Report No. FRA/ORD-79/20.1

385.0973 Un386ord 79/20,1



# FLYWHEEL ENERGY **STORAGE SWITCHER**

# STUDY SUMMARY AND DETAILED DESCRIPTION **OF ANALYSIS**

AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California 2525 W. 190th Street

Torrance, California 90509 TIONOFAMERICAN





ALLFOAD

AND TEST DEPART HAND TEST DEPART HAND TEST DEPART PUEBLO, CO BIDD

**APRIL 1979** 

FINAL REPORT

Document is available to the public through the National Technical Information Service Springfield. Virginia 22161.

**Prepared for** 

**U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION** FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION **OFFICE OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT** WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590

#### NOTICE

This document is disseminated under the sponsorship of the Department of Transportation in the interest of information exchange. The United States Government assumes no liability for its contents or the use thereof.

The United States Government does not endorse products of manufacturers. Trade or manufacturer's names appear herein solely because they are considered essential to the object of this report

	92001729 Technical Report Documentation Page
2. Government Accession No.	3. Recipient's Catalog No.
SWITCHER	5. Report Date April 1979
r and Detailed f Analysis	6. Performing Organization Code

FRA/ORD-79/20.1				
4. Title and Subtitle FLYWHEEL ENERGY STORAGE SV		5. Report Date April 1979		
Volume IStudy Summary ar Description of A	nd Detailed Analysis	6. Performing Organization Code		
7 Author(s)		8. Performing Organization Report No.		
L.M. Cook, W.T. Curran, R.	McConnell, A.K. Smith	79-15651-1		
9. Performing Organization Name and Addrss AiResearch Manufacturing (	10. Work Unit No. (TRAIS)			
2525 W. 190th Street		11. Contract or Grant No.		
Torrance, California 9050	)9	DOT-FR-777-4247-1		
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address		Type of Report ond Period Covered		
U.S. Department of Transp	ortation	Final Report for period		
Federal Railroad Administ	ration	Sept 77 to Jan 1979		
Office of Research and Dev	/elopment	14. Sponsoring Agency Code		
vvashington, D.C. 20590		I RKD12		
10. Supplementary Notes	/0PD_70/20:2) 262 DOGGO	contains appondivos that com		
Drise field data developed	d during switchvard and L	contains appendixes that com-		
prise fierd data developed	a during switchyard and re	comorrive rest phases.		
16. Abstroct				
<pre>viability of such a system. The system, as originally conceived, required the use of separately excited fraction motors, and a major task of the study was to test separately excited version of the Electro-Motive Division's D77 traction motor.</pre> The attractiveness of the system is very dependent on the operational scenario of the switching locomotive. Therefore, the study examined the operation of locomotives at three flatyards: Dillard (Southern Railway System), Baldwin (Seaboard Coast Line), and Whitefish (Burlington Northern), Also, a large amount of data concerning the operating environment of switching locomotives was collected,				
without the FESS system, f recuperated and reused. E sufficient to give an attr	or a typical flatyard ope Brake maintenance savings, ractive return on investme	eration in spite of the energy although significant, are not ent.		
17. Key Words	18. Distribution S	totement		
Transportation Regenerativ Railroads Energy cons	e braking ervation	1.0.1		
Flywheels		L'ELLILLAND		
	1	/b/ AFFINA X8		
19. Security Classif. (of this report)	20, Security Classif, (of this page)	LIN NOT OF POSTE MEZZY PACA		
Unclassified	Unclassified	E-329" (G \$0 F9		
DOT E 1700 7 (879)	1	MCE PDra W79 ET		
'orm UUI F 1/UU./ (8-/2)	Reproduction of completed page auth	orized RESEARCH		

+J 541 , A47

1. Report No.

.**⊒mp**\ [7] []

constant of the second seco second sec

PREFACE

Egines

This final report summarizes the results of the Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher study. it is submitted to the Federal Railroad Administration by the AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, a division of The Garrett Corporation, in accordance with U.S. Department of Transportation Contract No. DOT-FR-777-4247.

The Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher Study represents the efforts of the AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, assisted in the hardware testing by Motor Coils Manufacturing. The continued assistance and guidance of the Federal Railroad Advinistration (FRA) contracting officer's technical representative, Mr. William F. Cracker; the Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory (LBL), Engineering Sciences Department systems analyst, Mr. Robert K. Abbott; and several members of the FRA and LRL staffs were invaluable to the successful completion of the study.

Major contributions were made by many U.S. railroads, who contributed comprehensive information that was used to establish and maintain the necessary data base. In addition, the following railroads made a significant contribution to the study by allowing the use of their flatyards for data collection:

Burlington Northern (BN)

385.0973 Un386ord

Seaboard Coast Line (SCL)

Southern Railway System (SRS)

Specifically, the assistance of Mr. T. C. Gilbert (SRS), Mr. R. J. Morris (BN), and Mr. J. Prosser (SCL) was greatly appreciated.

Southern Railway System also allowed the use of their test facilities to investigate locomotive performance, and they provided two EYD D77 traction motors for test purposes.

The Southern Pacific Transportation Company made available an SW1500 locomotive at their Taylor Yard facility to enable the equipment installation drawings to be made.

The final report comprises two volumes, as follows:

Volume No.

Т

Title

Study Summary and Detailed Description of Analysis

Field Data

#### METRIC CONVERSION FACTORS

	Approximate Co	nversions to Metric	Messures		* <u> </u>	R	1997 - 19	Approximate Conve	rsions from Metri	c Maasures	
Şimpol	When You Know	Mettiply by	To.Find	Symbol			Symbol	Whon You Kesw	Maltiply by	To Find	\$ymbol
		,		:		c4			I FRIGTH	ta an teor di sua. Ny INSEE dia mampina	
	·					2			LLAUTH		
	· · ·	LENGTH	and the second second								
						9	(TVI)	millimeters	0.04	inches	10-
	in the second					<b>-</b>	cm m	Contimators Motors	33	Inches feat	
. fr	Inchas	2.5	- Centimaters	CM 			m	meters	11	i veri a	•1 
	verte	φ. 	Centimaters	cm.			km	ki lometer s	0.6	miles	970 1971
- 171)	Delas	1.6	kilometers	km	- =						
						Ξ.					
	and the second	ARFA	· · · · · ·		: =				AREA		
						4	-				
in <sup>2</sup>	anucco inchain	6 5			°		Cant .	square continuetors	0 16	square inches	in <sup>2</sup>
tr <sup>2</sup>	Bouse fast	6.09	Bollare Daters	2		19 11	กา้ <sub>ว</sub>	square meters	11	square yards	yd <sup>2</sup>
vu <sup>2</sup>	SQUER VARA	0.8	souare maters	2`			km <sup>*</sup>	square kilometers	04	square miles	mi <sup>2</sup>
ரு 2 கார் 2	square miles	2.6	equera kilometera			14	ha	hectores [10,000 m <sup>-</sup> }	25	ocros	
	acres	0.4	hoctores	ha							
	4					1	· · · ·		APP Innisha	A second second	· ·
	1	MASS (weight)							W22 (Malébi)		÷.,
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				13					1.1.1
0Z	0006598	28	ថ្នាងកាន	9		;	9	8.5ws	0.035	OUNCES	02
ib	pounds	0.45	kilograma	kg		1	kg	kilograma	2.2	pounds	· 10
	short tons	0.9	tonnes				2 <b>4</b> .	tonnes (1000 kg)	1.1	short tons	
	(2000 (h)					2			· · ·		
		VOLUME						the second second second	VOLUME		
						<b>6</b> ,					
180	teaspoons	5	miliiliters	σl			mi	millilitors	0.03	fluid owncas	floz
Thep	Lablescocos	15	milliters	mi		60	1	liters	2.1	pints	pt
floz	fluid ounces	30	milliliters	ml	ω <u> </u>		1	liters	1.05	querts	qt.
	CLIST	0.24	liters	1		•	1	liters	0.26	gallons	gal
pt	pints	0,47	litors	ŧ			m,	cubic meters	35	cubic feet	11 <sup>1</sup>
<b>q</b> 1	quarte	0,95	liters	4		<b>1</b> 0	μ,	cubic maters	1.3	cubic yards	yd "
r) Angi	gailons	3.8 0.03	liters					1. The second			
н. 	CUDIC 1691	0.03	CUDIC meters	3	<u> </u>			ТЕМО	CDATIIDE (event)		
30	coold Asiaz	U./0	CUDIC meters	m-							
	TEMI	PERATURE (exact)				*	°c	. Colsius	9 5 (then	Fahrenheit	•,
								Lemperature	act PI	temperature	
۴	Fahronhait	59 (after	Celsius	°¢		~~~~			<u> </u>		
	temperature	subtracting	temperature						and the second second	•F	
		32)				**		°F 32	98-6	212	·* ·
* <u>+</u>							<del>.</del> -	40 0 40	80 120	160 200	
, in 2,54	(exactly) For a	<ul> <li>and more detailed</li> </ul>	tables, see NBS Misc, Pub	. 86	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		$(1,2,2,\ldots,n)$	╞ <del>╸┎╶╻</del> ╘ <u>╄</u> ┺╋┻╋┙	┶╍┿╾┶┰╧╍╋┲┷╶┶╸┷		
Units of Weig	ibis and Measures, Price \$2.25.	E Caŭa 59 No. CI 3 10 20	ů.			Ę.		40. – 20 Č.	20 140	00 00 00 00	•
					<u>•                                    </u>	<u> </u>		·			

ببلار فلارتها وروائي أرابي والمستعد 

	CONTENTS	
×.		
<u>Sectic</u>	${ m on}$ . The second se	Page
1	SUMMARY	а <b>1</b>
	Field Data Acquisition	1
	Systems Analysis Traction Motoro	2
. · ·	Economic Analysis	2
	Alternate Configurations	3
	Conclusions and Recommendations	3
2	FESS STUDY INTRODUCTION	4
	Introduction	4
	Program Rationale	4
	Program Outline Brogram Mathedology	5
	Format of Final Report	12
		۱ شبر ا
3	FIELD DATA ACQUISITION, TASK I	14
	Scenario Tests	14
	Data Gathering	14
.—	Scenario Data Reduction	10 21
	Scenario Formulation	40
	Fuel Consumption Comparison	41
	Locomotive Performance Tests	41
4	SYSTEM ANALYSIS	56
	Introduction	56
	Basic System Elements	56 56
	ACT-L Energy Storage Unit (ESU)	20 67
	Flywheel Energy Storage Capacity	67
	Flywheel Assembly	67
	Safety Features	72
	Gyroscopic Effects	76
	Input-Output Machine	76
	Computer Simulation	78
	Series Motor Model Validity	70
	FESS Yodel	91
	FESS Model Validity	97
	Use of the Models	102
	Preliminary Analysis (Task   B)	102
	Concept A	104
	Concept B	104

#### CONTENTS (Continued)

#### Section

5

6

104 Selected Concept 104 Indepth System Analysis (IIC) 109 System Description 109 System Hardware 119 System Control 119 Energy Management 125 Motoring Control Braking Control 126 126 Control Analysis 134 System Operation 135 System Performance 135 Risk Analysis System Costs and Credits 136 137 Initial Costs 138 Annual Costs and Credits

Pag<u>e</u>

#### TRACTION MOTORS

Analysis/Design	141
Unmodified Motors	150
Tests of Unmodified Motors	150
Traction Motor Modifications	151
Test of Modified Motors	151
Test Configuration	151
Yo-Load Saturation Test	157
Load Saturation Tests	166
Performance	175
Heat Run Test Data	182
Traction Motor Thermal Analysis	182
Thermal Analysis Details	182
Thermal Performance	-185
Main Field Coil Optimization	193
Results of Traction Motor Task	201
ECONOMIC ANALYSIS AND RESULTS	202
Economic Analysis Techniques	202
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-94	202
Railroad Revitalization and Regulatory	
Reform (4R) Act-1975	203
Sensitivity Analyses 1 and 2	203
Inflation	203
General Price Level	204
Diesel Fuel	204
Maintenance	205
Engineering Economics Computer Program	205
Input Data	205

CONTENTS (Continued)

<u>Section</u>			Page
	Ou Econom	utput Data ical Analysis Results	207 207
7	ALTERNATE CO	ONFIGURATIONS	213
	Configu Economi	ration Descriptions c Analysis	213 213
8	CONCLUSIONS	AND RECOMMENDATIONS	224
	Conclus Recommo	ions endations	224 225
9	REFERENCES		226
<u>Appendixes</u>			
	APPENDIX A:	INSTRUMENTATION	A-1
	APPENDIX B:	END PRODUCT SOFTWARE	B-1
	APPENDIX C:	FESS ECONOMICS PROGRAM LISTING	C-1
	APPENDIX D:	FESS BASELINE CONCEPT ECONOMICS ANALYSIS	D-1

APPENDIX E: ALTERNATE CONFIGURATIONS E-1

### ILLUSTRATIONS

이 한 것은 것을 하지 않는 것을 가지 않는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있다.

# Figure

1	Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher Study Methodology	13
2	Instrumentation Block Diagram	15
3	Scenario Test Data Reduction Process	17
4	Portion of Meta IV Strip Chart	19
5	Computer Program Rlock Diagram for Scenario Data Processing	70
6	Scenario Data Reduction Program Printout	22

. .

<u>Figure</u>		<u>Page</u>
7.	Scenario Data Reduction Program Statistical Summary	24
8	Dillard Yard Data Summary	27
9	Baldwin Yard Data Summary	28
10	Whitefish Yard Data Summary	29
11	Combined Data Summary (Armature Current vs Active Time)	30
12	Combined Data Summary (Speed Less than Abscissa Value vs Active Time)	31
13	Combined Data Summary (Speed vs Active Time)	32
14	Dillard Yard Peak Speed Distribution	33
15	Baldwin Yard Peak Speed Distribution	34
16	Whitefish Yard Peak Speed Distribution	35
17	Combined Total Peak Speed Distribution	36
18	Southern Railway System Dillard Yard Annual Average	37
19	Southern Railway Dillard Yard Test Period Activity	37
20	Seaboard Coast Line Baldwin Yard Annual Average	38
21	Seaboard Coast Line Baldwin Yard, Test Week Activity	38
22	Burlington Northern Whitefish Yard Annual Average	39
23	Burlington Northern Whitefish Yard Test Period Activity	39
24	Locomotive Speed Distribution Characteristic	
25	Locomotive Armature Current Distribution Characteristic	43
26	SW1500 Load Box Test, Engine and Generator Performance, Locomotive 2302	47
27	Load Box Data, Speed vs Throttle	48
28	Locomotive Fuel Consumption, Load Box Test, Locomotive 2302	49

Figure		Page
29	Load Box Data, Generator Voltage vs Engine Speed	50
30	Load Box Data, Field Current vs Engine Speed	51
	Engine Generator Response Time	52
32	Data Roll No. 1	53
33	Data Roll No. 2	54
34	Data Roll No. 3	55
35	SW1500 Locomotive	56
36	SW1500 Locomotive General Arrangement	57
37	12-645E Engine Performance (Data from Electro-Motive Division, General Motors Corporation, Curve SC2980, March 5, 1974)	60
38	D32 Generator Characteristics (Data from Electro-Motive Division, General Motors Corporation, Curve 2689, October 25, 1968)	62
39	Characteristics of D77 Traction Motor at 260 kw (Data from Electro-Motive Division, General Motors Corporation, Curve SC-2673, November 20, 1966)	63
40	Simplified Schematic of SW1500 Locomotive	64
	Wheel Spin Protection Circuit	66
42	Energy Storage Unit	68
43	ACT-1 Flywheel Design	69
44	Disc Bore Stress Range, With and Without Shrink Fit	73
45	Modified Goodman Diagram Showing Benefits of Shrink Fit on Fatigue Life	74
46	Computer Model Standard SW1500	79
47	SW1500 Simulator Output, Fetch Mode	91
48	SW1500 Simulator Output, Switching Mode	85

ΙX

-igure		<u>Page</u>
49	Reverse Run Test Data (Start 1261)	90
50	Reverse Run Comparison of Model and Test Data	92
51	Diesel Characteristics	93
52	Forward Run Test Data (Start 1329)	94
53	Test Data Compared to Computer Model	95
54	Computer Model FESS	96
55	FESS Simulator Output, Switching Mode	98
56	Armature Circuit Connections	101
57	Simplified System Schematic of Concept A1	105
58	Simplified System Schematic of Concept A2	106
59	Simplified System Schematic of Concept B1	107
60	Simplified System Schematic of Concept B2	108
61	Typical FESS System Efficiencies	110
62	Energy Storage Unit (ESU) Modified for FESS Application	111
63	Energy Storage Unit Lubricating Oil Circuit Design for FESS Application	1,12
64	Typical U.S. Boxcar	
65	Characteristics of Proposed Field Supply Alternator	114
66	Reliability Growth of Proposed Field Supply Alternator for Commercial Aircraft Application	115
67	Outline of Field Supply Alternator	116
68	Space Available for Installation of Auxiliary Alternator	117
69	Younting Bracket for Alternator and Gearbox	†17
70	27-Point Control Jumper	120
71	Auxiliary Power Jumper	122

×

<u>F</u>	<u>igure</u> 72	Main Power Jumper	<u>Page</u> 123
	73	Traction Motor Field Power Supply	123
·	74	Air Brake and Electrical Equipment Compartment	124
	75	Flywheel Assembly Mechanical Losses vs Speed	124
	76	Tractive Effort Control Logic	125
	77	Braking Effort Control Logic	127
	78	Electric Brake Interface With Friction Brake	128
	79	Equivalent Circuit of FESS Concept A2	129
÷.	80	077 Traction Motor Saturation Curve	130
· .	8.1	Flywheel Machine Saturation Curve	132
	82	Existing D77 Traction Motor	142
	83	Separately Excited, Shunt-Wound Traction Motor with Compensating Pole Face Winding	144
	84	Separately Excited, Shunt-Wound Uncompensated Traction Motor	148
	85	No-Load Saturation Characteristics Unmodified D77 Traction Motors	152
	86	Unmodified Series-Wound D77 Traction Motor Characteristics	153
	97	Replacement Shunt Field Coil	154
	88	Replacement Interpole Coil	155
	89	Separately Excited Traction Motor Test Schematic	156
	90	No-Load Saturation Characteristics Yodified D77 Traction Motors	159
	91	Total Rotational Losses vs Generator Excitation from No-Load Saturation Test of Modified Traction Motor and Generator	163

Fiqure		Page
92	Effect of Conductor Temperature and Speed on Armature Winding Eddy Factor	169
93	Effect of Armature Reaction	171
94	Load Saturation Characteristics of D77 Traction Motor	
95	Unmodified Series-Wound D77 Traction Motor Character- istics (356 kw, 62:15 Gear Ratio, 40-in. Wheel, 75°C)	176
.96	Typical Excitation vs Armature Current Characteristics	178
97	Excitation vs Load Characteristics for Minimum Loss at a Given Speed	179
98	Modified Shunt-Wound D77 Traction Motor Characteristics	181
99	Thermal Nodal Network for D77 Motor	186
100	Thermal Nodal Network for D77 Motor	187
101	Thermal Nodal Network for D77 Motor (interpole Area)	187
102	D77 Motor Average Field Coil Surface Temperature Modified	190
103	Modified D77 Motor Average Field Conductor Temperature	190
104	Yodified D77 Motor Interpole Average Coil Surface Temperature	191
105	Modified D77 Motor Interpole Average Conductor Temperature	191
106	Modified D77 Motor Armature Average Temperature	192
107	Predicted D77 Motor Winding Temperature (96°F Cooling Air)	194
108	Main Field Coil Section	195
109	Insulation Details Main Field Coil	196
110	Thermal Optimization of Main Field Coil	197
111	Effect of Number of Turns and Interturn Clearance on Winding Space Factor	198

	· '소리· 소설물에 가는 '실망'에 걸려 주는 데 한 것을 하는 것 수 있는 것 가슴 물건이 가슴 것이 가슴 것	S. 15 S.
<u>Figure</u>		Page
112	Main Field Coil Construction	199
113	Projected Cost of Diesel Fuel	204
114	Economics Program Flow Chart	206
115	Baseline Concepl A2, One Boxcar	208
116	Baseline Concept A2, Two Boxcars	209
117	Baseline Concept A2; Three Boxcars	210
118	Baseline Concept A2, Four Boxcars	211
119	Modified Concept Al, One Boxcar	214
120	Modified Concept Al, Two Boxcars	215
121	Modified Concept Al, Three Boxcars	216
122	Series Motors Concept, One Boxcar	217
123	Series Motors Concept, Two Boxcars	218
124	Series Motors Concept, Three Boxcars	219
125	Series Motors Concept, Four Boxcars	220
126	Series Motors Concept, Five Boxcars	221
127	Series Motors Concept, Six Boxcars	222
128	Chopper-Controlled Dynamics Brake	223

## TABLES

1	Specific Cost Factors	11
2	Instrumented Parameters	14
3	Scenario Test Yards	16
4	Scenario Data Reduction Program Printout Headings	23

xiiı

# TABLES (Continued)

<u>Table</u>		Page
5	Scenario Data Summary	25
6	Scenario Data Summary	26
	Fuel Consumption Comparison	44
8	Locomotive Performance Tests Instrumented Parameters	46
9	General Data of SW1500 Locomotive	59
10	D77 Traction Motor Ratings in SW1500 Locomotive	61
11	Engine Speed Control Trainlines	65
12	ACT-1 Energy Storage Flywheel Summary of Losses	70
13	Acceleration/Deceleration Tests, Cut Consist	89
14	SW1500 Model Input Deck Description	103
15	FESS Card Input	103
16	Proposed Contact Identification of 27-Point Control Plug and Receptacle for FESS Equipment	121
17	Locomotive Modification Cost	137
18	Boxcar Installation Cost	138
19	Performance of Series Traction Motor (D77 Series- Wound Traction Motor With Interpoles)	145
20	Performance of Fully Compensated, Separately Excited, Shunt-Wound Traction Motor With Interpoles	146
21	Performance of Uncompensated, Separately Excited, Shunt-Wound Traction Motor With Interpoles	149
22	Traction Motor History	150
23	Unmodified D77 Traction Motor Resistances	151
24	No-Load Saturation Data, Modified Traction Motor	158
25	Calculated vs Measured No-Load Saturation Characteristics	100
26	Rotational Loss Data No-Load Saturation Test	161

# TABLES (Continued)

<u>Table</u>			Page
27	D77 Traction Motor (Modified) No-Load Loss Distribution at 1000 rpm		164
28	Brush Design Data, D77 Traction Motor		165
29	Friction and Windage Losses, kw at 1000 rpm		166
30	Load Saturation Test Data		167
31	Modified D77 Traction Motor Resistances		168
32	Loss Distribution From Load Saturation Test Data	•	174
33	D77 Series Motor Performance Characteristics		175
34	Modified D77 Separately Excited Motor Performance Characteristics		180
35	Heat Run No. 1 Test Data, Modified D77 Traction Motor	·	183
36	Heat Run No. 2 Test Data, Modified D77 Traction	1	·
37	Steady-State Thermal Conditions		185
	Modified D77 Traction Motor Steady-State Temperature Test Condition		188
39	Fluid Capacity Rate Elements		189
40	Traction Motor Thermal Study Summary		200
41	Summary of Inflation Rates		203
42	Flatyard Characteristics		212

xv/xvi

#### SECTION 1

#### SUMMARY

Within the last six years, the AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, a division of The Garrett Corporation, has developed a number of flywheel energy storage units (ESU's) for use on transit cars such as those currently in service for the New York City Transit Authority. With the arrival of the energy crisis, attention has been focused on the application of this new technology to other fields, and several ESU-equipped vehicles are in various stages of design and/or development. These include a bus and advanced concept train for the Department of Transportation; a postal van for the United States Postal Service; and a battery/flywheel passenger automobile for the Department of Energy.

AiResearch, in conjunction with the Federal Railroad Administration, identified the switchyard operation as the most likely candidate for short-term energy storage because the operating cycle of the switching locomotive involves repeated accelerating and braking with short periods between these operations.

A three-phase program was developed to quantify the costs and benefits of the flywheel energy storage switcher (FESS) system:

Phase I--System Analysis, Economic Analysis, and Bench Testing Phase II--Design, Hardware Fabrication, Testing Phase III--Demonstration

A Phase I contract, awarded to AiResearch in September 1977, specified that the system must "...utilize available hardware and existing knowledge...". Thus, FESS is based on applying the Advanced Concept Train (ACT-1) ESU to the General Motors Corporation Electro-Motive Division SW1500 switching locomotive.

#### FIELD DATA ACQUISITION

To establish a firm data base for subsequent computer simulations and energy calculations, operations at the following three representative classification yards were monitored: (a) Dillard yard of the Southern Railway System, (b) Baldwin yard of the Seaboard Coast Line, and (c) Whitefish yard of the Burlington Northern Railroad.

Continuous recordings, over 24-hr periods, were made of the following parameters:

- (a) Speed
- (b) Time
- (c) Traction motor current
- (d) Brake pipe pressure
- (e) Direction

From these data, statistical data reduction techniques were used to derive a typical scenario for a switching locomotive's duty cycle. The most significant finding of this part of the study was that the switching locomotive typically spends more than 50 percent of the time idle.

To determine the internal operating characteristics of the locomotive, static testing of an SW1500 locomotive was performed with the assistance of Southern Railway System. This allowed determination of (a) engine fuel consumption and power levels, and (b) generator power output.

#### SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

A preliminary systems analysis identified four possible ESU/locomotive configurations, and one was chosen for detailed analysis. The chosen configuration consists of an SW1500 with modified traction motors and an unmotored boxcar that houses two ESU's (two are required so that the ACT I flywheel electrical machine current rating can be matched to the locomotive traction motor rating).

Computer models of the existing and proposed FESS switchyard operations were developed and validated using the field and locomotive data described above.

An indepth analysis of the chosen configuration confirmed technical feasibility and quantified the costs and benefits associated with the scheme. For the chosen configuration and scenario, **it** was found that, due to the parasitic loads associated with the system, energy saving is almost negligible, and without careful energy management by the operator (in terms of when to use and not to use the flywheel), the FESS system could result in an increase in fuel consumption. Savings still result from a reduction in brake shoe wear. These results are directly related to the low utilization of the equipment capability.

#### TRACTION MOTORS

The original concept identified by AiResearch involved the use of a separately excited motor based on the General Motors Corporation Electro-Motive Division D77 traction motor. A significant portion of the study was devoted to testing a motor with this configuration to confirm design values and feasibility. A separately excited shunt-field coil design having 98 turns evolved from this effort. The performance of the modified motor was found to be equivalent to that of the unmodified motor with the exception that optimum performance is developed at slightly higher armature current and slightly lower excitation for the same tractive effort requirements at a given speed. Improvements in interpole coil design were incorporated in the modified machine to accommodate increased armature current. This change reduced interpole losses and interpole temperatures.

#### ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

The high initial cost of the FESS system and the low monetary value of the brake shoe maintenance reduction combined to show a return on investment( ROI) that was positive only in the largest of yards with well-above-average productivity.

#### ALTERNATE CONFIGURATIONS

In view of the poor economic return for the chosen configuration, an attempt was made to reduce the cost of the system by adopting more simple methods of achieving the same result. No financially viable configuration was identified.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The basic conclusion reached is that flywheel energy storage techniques are not applicable to railroad switchyard operation for two reasons:

- Existing operating costs of yards are relatively low.
- Equipment utilization is low.

In spite of rejection of the FESS concept, it is recommended that full documentation of the computer models (an optional task) be considered for , other applications beyond the present study.

Also, it must be recommended that Phases II and III not be pursued.

3

#### SECTION 2

#### FESS STUDY INTRODUCTION

#### INTRODUCTION

The Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher (FESS) is a three-phase program related to the recuperation of energy on a switchyard locomotive. It covers the system analysis, fabrication, testing, and demonstration of such a locomotive, and incorporates a flywheel energy storage unit (ESU). The project was defined from the beginning to "utilize only available hardware and existing knowledge to design, fabricate, and test the system." The three phases of the program were defined as follows:

Phase I--System analysis, economic analysis, and bench testing

Phase 11--Design, hardware fabrication, testing

Phase || I -- Demonstration

The intent of this Phase I study, therefore, was to establish the feasibility and to auantify the benefits of recuperating braking energy from a switching locomotive for short-term storage and subsequent reuse during the next operating cycle. Such energy is presently dissipated in the form of heat by the friction braking system. It was recognized at the outset that **it** was necessary to understand the operating conditions and duties of a typical switching locomotive to quantify the potential energy saving to be accrued from FESS. A test plan was formulated by AiResearch and approved by the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) to determine the following:

- (a) The internal operating parameters of the locomotive
- (b) The daily operational pattern of switching locomotives

The FESS study began with measurements at three flatyards: Dillard (Southern Railway System), Baldwin (Seaboard Coast Line), and Whitefish (Burlington Northern) where the data vital to the study were collected.

Concurrent with the data gathering task, the feasibility of modifying the most common traction motor in use in the U.S. (the General Motors Corporation Electro-Motive Division (EMD) Model D77) was investigated with the assistance of Motor Coils Manufacturing. The Southern Railway System loaned two motors for this task.

preliminary analysis of the total system configuration was also carried out at an early siage in the study to identify the most attractive concept and to concentrate the major resources of the study on that favored concept.

#### PROGRAM RATIONALE

Over the past few years, critical shortages of oil and its derivatives have been of major concern to the U.S. Government, with no alleviation expected in

the near future. The dependency of the economy on the consumption of oil has reached alarming proportions. The United States imports about 44 percent of the oil it consumes-a percentage that continues to increase. A major effort is underway now to reduce this dependency by exploring and investigating alternate sources of power to circumvent the use of petroleum and its byproducts.

During the past six years, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California has devoted a major portion of company-funded [R&D programs to the development and implementation of energy saving devices. One of these--the flywheel-has recently completed testing for commercial application as an energy storage device in the New York City Transit Authority rail system. The use of flywheels for energy storage is beneficial in situations where the duty cycle is one of acceleration/deceleration and energy is dissipated in braking friction, or where energy that could be conserved is ultimately wasted because there is no effective means of storing the energy. For example, when a train must ascend steep grades, usually more than one locomotive is required to produce the tractive effort to negotiate the incline. Once having ascended the grade, the potential energy that could be conserved during descent is dissipated in heat, either in the friction brakes or in a resistor bank if dynamic braking is employed. AiResearch recently completed a study of the use of wayside flywheels to store potential The flywheels are speeded up during the conversion of potential energy energy. to kinetic energy during the dynamic braking cycle. The stored energy is used later to provide power to assist another locomotive to ascend the grade.

Another potential candidate for flywheel energy storage and energy conservation was in the freight classification yard of fully loaded freight cars to makeup trains. In the majority of U.S. flat classification yards, a yard locomotive goes to the receiving area and couples to a cut of 20 to 35 freight This cut is withdrawn to a classification ladder that connects to numerous tangent distribution or classification tracks, leading ultimately to the makeup (or departure) section of the yard. The yard locomotive typically accelerates the cut of cars to a speed of 5 to 10 mph and then applies full braking to reduce the train speed. As the train accordions out from the compressed drive condition to a fully extended coupler, yardmen uncouple the lead part (car or cars) of the cut. This released part is destined to be set in a particular block or class track. As the cut car proceeds along the ladder, it is switched into the proper classification track. The car proceeds along this track until it couples into the train section being made up on this par-As soon as this car clears the initial switch, the switchman ticuiar track. signals clearance to the locomotive engineer, who repedts the cycle until the last of the cut is released. The locomotive then returns to the incoming yard section, retrieves another cut of cars, and repeats the entire cycle.

During the period of high acceleration and deceleration, the performance of the yard locomotive is characterized by maximum noise emission, and generally by significant smoke emission. This is a result of operation at very poor efficiency of the locomotive's diesel engine. Negative aspects associated with this operation include:

(a) <u>Fuel Consumption</u>--The diesel electric locomotives are operating in their worst fuel consumption regime at these low vehicle speeds.

- (b) <u>Noise-Operation</u> of the power plant in this mode is outside normally acceptable limits.
- (c) <u>Smoke--The</u> fuel mismatch for the engine is at its worst, so resulting generated smoke and pollutant volumes are high and in some areas (notably California) well beyond the legal limits.

A possible solution to these freight yard problems is the application of flywheel energy storage technology to the yard classification locomotive. A prototype flywheel system now has completed revenue service demonstration on two New York subway cars and a preproduction version also completed its demonstration program on the advanced concept trains.

#### PROGRAM OUTLINE

The FESS program was conducted by AiResearch and consisted of performing the' seven work tasks specified in the contract statement of work (SOW).. The specific work tasks completed during this program are summarized in the following SOW paragraphs:

#### Task I--Field Data Acquisition

- A Test Plan shall be submitted and approved by the COTR prior to the initiation of testing
- B. Field Data--Visits shall be made to an appropriate number (3) of switching yards of the participating railroads where locomotive(s) shall be instrumented to test and determine, in conjunction with appropriate railroad personnel, the following:
  - I. A realistic operational scenario for railroad yard switching that shall be used in the analyses.
  - 2. The acceleration and deceleration characteristics of an existing SW1500 locomotive.
  - 3. Monitor performance parameters (operating characteristics and power flow parameters) that will provide for a satisfactory correlation between the computer model and the actual operation of an existing SW1500 locomotive.

Task 11--System Analysis

A Performance Requirements

The system analysis will establish a realistic and definitive set of performance requirements for flywheel - locomotive system. This will be accomplished from analysis of existing equipment capabilities and analysis of field data describing the actual work. The field data will be examined not only to establish the average conditions for the application, but also extreme worst case conditions.

#### <u>Preliminary Analysis</u>

Β.

The contractor shall conduct a preliminary system analysis to establish the <u>most advantaqeous</u> system configuration within the limits of existing conventional hardware components (e.g., SW1500 locomotive, ACT-I flywheel unit). As a minimum the following two configurations will be considered:

- a) The flywheel in trailing car with the locomotive modified for separately excited traction motors.
- b) The flywheel in trailing car with the trailing car modified with separately excited traction motors and with the locomotive basically unmodified.

Any additional configurations besides a) and b) above should be identified within 30 days from the start of Task || 9 (Preliminary Analysis) and shall be approved by the COTR prior to further analysis. An optimum configuration shall not be addressed in Phase I. This preliminary system analysis shall make basic assumptions concerning critical elements of system such as control system, traction motors, installation features, etc. These assumptions should be stated and risks identified. Each element of the system shall be defined in terms of their performance requirements, the tolerances, component description, and features of installation. Each system configuration considered shall be described in terms of theory of operation, configuration analysis showing trade-offs, performance characteristics and limits, and functional block diagrams.

Practical applications in switch yards and/or on mainline railroads shall be identified for each system configuration. These analyses shall utilize the realistic operational scenario generated under Field Data Acquisition (Task I). At the conclusion of this task, the contractor shall conduct a program review to discuss the results of the preliminary analysis, to recommend a system configuration for further analysis under Task II C (Indepth System Analysis), and to discuss the status of other tasks underway. The contractor shall obtain COTR approval of the recommended configuration before proceeding with Task II C.

#### C. In-Depth System Analysis

I. System Analysis

The Contractor shall conduct an in-depth system analysis of only the approved configuration. This system analysis shall include elements of the control system, installation analysis, and traction motors as they pertain to systematically investigating the technical effectiveness, risks, costs and economic benefits in a quantitative way. The resultant system configuration description should be much more complete and detailed than the initial description and should include schematic diagrams, control system flow diagrams, and layout sketches.

Drawings shall be completed in accordance with the provisions of attachment B, Technical Data Requirements.

The analyses shall include but not be limited to the following considerations:

- a. The effect of varying the number of cars in a switching cut from 10 to 40 cars and the train weight from 460 tons to 2460 tons.
- b. The effect of Two equipment configurations:
  - 1) Time sharing a trailing car containing the flywheel installation with locomotive.
  - Constant coupled units (locomotive and trailing car).
- c. The effect of requiring the system design to include adjustment capabilities to account for different numbers of cars/ cut, different yard operation procedures, and various duty cycles.
- d. The effect of modifying the baseline operational scenario defined in Field Data Acquisition (Task 1) to maximize benefits.

#### 2. Control Analysis

In conjunction with the system analysis of the approved configuration, a conceptual analysis/design effort shall be undertaken on the control system. This effort shall be in sufficient depth to establish feasibility of the control system and to allow the economic benefits and technical risks to be assessed. This analysis shall include but not be limited to consideration of the following questions:

- a. Is it feasible for the control system to be designed with automatic or manual adjustments or to be programmed to provide optimum operation under various train load conditions;
- Is it feasible for the control system to be designed to maximize the tractive effort of each individual traction motor;
- c. Is **it** feasible to utilize the flywheel as an additional power source giving the integrated system a power potential greater than an unmodified locomotive;
- d. Is **it** feasible to vary the power sharing between the flywheel and the prime source as a function of some train variable (e.g., number of cars/cut or cut weigh:);

- e. How is tractive effort/ton maximized;
- f. How is spin/slide control accomplished;
- g. How is the operation of the existing friction brake system blended with the dynamic brake system; and
- h. How is the operation of the diesel generator blended with the flywheel system?
- Installation Analysis In conjunction with the system analysis of the approved configuration, a preliminary installation analysis/design effort shall be undertaken. This effort shall include layout sketches of the major components in sufficient detail to establish feasibility of the design and to allow the economic benefits and technical risks to be assessed.

1

- 4. Computer Simulation A computer simulation model shall be developed as necessary for the approved system configuration. Field test data shall be used to verify in the model the operational parameters associated with the existing locomotive(s). This model shall be used in the analyses and shall be capable of use in evaluating system performance as well as establishing design parameters. The model shall be able to accommodate variations in operating parameters, including, but not limited to:
  - a. Variations in the number of cars and loads in a cut to be switched.
  - b. Variations in the switching operation time due to different throttle settings and train speeds.
  - c. Variations in the typical duty cycle, including effects of switch yard geometry.
  - d. Variations in traction motor characteristics.

#### Task III -- Traction Motor Analysis/Design

Í.

3.

- A. The General Motors EMD Model D77 locomotive traction motor shall be analyzed for conversion to separate field excitation.
- B. In conjunction with the analysis, the preliminary electrical/ mechanical design necessary to implement the conversion shall be accomplished.

Drawings shall be completed in accordance with the provisions of attachment B, Technical Data Requirements.

Task IV--Traction. Motor Modification

A Traction Motors - Two General Motors EVD Model D77 locomotive traction motors shall be obtained from one of the participating railroads and modified to run with separate field excitation.

B. Restoration of the traction motors to their original configuration will be done as a result of the written instructions from the Contracting Officer.

#### Task V--Traction Motor Bench Test

- A. The contractor shall submit a detailed test plan and obtain the COTR's approval prior to the initiation of testing.
- B. The traction motors shall be bench tested to establish operational integrity and performance characteristics before and after modification. These tests shall be conducted in a "back-to-back" test rig. The bench tests shall be designed to provide information that will:
  - a. . Quantify the tractive effort before and after modification.
  - b. Assist in correlating the dynamic braking potentially attainable from an SW1500 locomotive incorporating modified traction motors with the braking characteristics of an existing SW1500 locomotive.
  - c. Assist in determining how rapidly an SW1500 locomotive incorporating modified traction motors can go from an accelerating mode to a dynamic braking mode.

#### Task VI--Economic Analysis

The cost/benefit and application for each design configuration analyzed in Task II-B (Preliminary Analysis), shall be determined and quantified. This analysis shall be based on or include the impact of switching yard data generated by Task I (Field Data Acquisition). The life cycle cost analysis will be made weighing the relative cost-benefits to be expected from each equipment configuration. Life cycle cost in this sense includes all costs incident to planning, engineering, fabrication, installation, operation, maintenance, training, and provisioning of a system. This analysis shall be refined for the approved configuration as further data becomes available during the in-depth system analysis (Task 11-C).

The economic analysis will be based on four different guidelines as to provide full insight in cost considerations and allow a direct comparison with the Wayside Energy Storage System (WESS) Program (Reference 1).

Reference 1. <u>Wayside Energy Storage Study</u>, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, 78-15180, June, 1978.

These guidelines will include the "4R" Act, the OMB. Circular A-94, one sensitivity study representing a best estimate of future inflation, and a sensitivity study using inflation rates favorable for FESS deployment. Specific cost factors for these four methods of analysis are shown in Table 1.

#### TABLE 1

#### SPECIFIC COST FACTORS

			Inflation			General	
Guideline	Computation Technique	Discount or R.O.I	Diesel Fuel	Electricity	Maintenance	Price From 1983 Inflation	
4R Act	Internal Rate of Return	Output	Constant	Constant	Constant	Constant	
OMB A-94	NPV- Constant	10 percent	2 percent*	1 percent*	2 percent*	Constant	
Sensi- tivity (Best Guess)	Internat Rate of Return	Output	2 percent*	1 percent*	2 percent*	6 percent	
Sensi- tivity (High Bound)	Internal Rate of Return	Output	4 percent*	t percent*	2 percent*	6 percent	

\*Relative to general price level.

The economic analysis will provide the following:

- (1) Perform the four economic analyses as per Table 1 above. The analyses will be done manually, or by a computer, or a combination of the two. Tabulated data will be generated for all four analyses.
- (2) The data from the four analyses will be reviewed,
- 3 A detailed analysis of the significant data will be prepared. The other output data will be compared to the significant data, and a description of the economic comparisons will be made.

(4) This economic analysis will allow a direct comparison by FRA with the Wayside Energy Storage System program.

#### Task VII--Optional Requirement - Computer Program Documentation

The computer model developed under Task 11, C, 4 of the Statement of Work shall be modified so that **it** can be used as a tool by interested parties for predicting benefits for various classification yard applications and different switching practices. The operating software program will include all parameters necessary to derive the benefits of the recommended flywheel-locomotive system for a particular railroad yard application.

The computer model must be capable of evaluating the flywheel-locomotive system in various railroad yard applications. The model shall be able to accommodate variations in operating parameters, including but not limited to:

- (a) Variations in number of cars and loads in a cut to be switched
- (b) Variations in the switching operation time due to different throttle settings and train speeds
- (c) Variations in the typical duty cycle including the effects of switch yard geometry
- (d) Variations in traction motor characteristics

The model shall be well-suited to study energy savings, operating, and performance evaluation.

References to the above-listed study tasks are made throughout this final report to show the specific efforts that have been directed toward each one.

#### PROGRAM METHODOLOGY

4 logic diagram of the methodology followed by AiResearch in performing the Phase I program is shown in Figure 1. As shown, the program logically consisted of three major areas of effort and each had a built-in FRA approval stage, culminating in the engineering economics analysis (Task VI).

#### FORMAT OF FINAL REPORT

The sheer volume of material generated during the 16-month Flywheel Energy Storaga Switcher Phase I Study has necessitated publishing this report in two volumes. Volume 1 contains the details of the system analysis, and descriptions of the locomotive and traction motor testing. Volume 2 contains the field data obtained from the three yards visited. These data were ultimately used to determine a typical switching locomotive's duty cycle.



Figure 1. Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher Study Methodology

2

#### SECTION 3

#### FIELD DATA ACQUISITION, TASK I

One of the critical steps in determining the viability of a flywheelassisted switcher locomotive was to determine the required operational characteristics and duty cycles that are currently employed by existing switcher locomotives. To determine these parameters, a test program was formulated to evaluate the following:

- (a) The operational duty cycle (or scenario) at three separate switchyards
- (b) The acceleration and deceleration characteristics of a commonly used locomotive

#### SCENARIO TESTS

#### Data Gathering

The switchyards to be included in the scenario tests were determined by relying on the experience of senior railroad personnel to identify the flatyards with maximum activity. The duration of testing was set at a minimum of 24 continuous hours at each of three test sites. The parameters to be monitored during each test were selected on the basis of usefulness in developing the final scenario. Due to the large mass of data that would be obtained, a digital sampling and recording technique was implemented to facilitate the use of computer-aided reduction processes.

The instrumented parameters shown in Table 2 were selected to provide the numerical evaluation of the operational duty cycle. The onboard instrumentation package was arranged as shown in the instrumentation block diagram of Figure 2. A detailed description of the instrumentation package is contained in Appendix A

#### TABLE 2

#### INSTRUMENTED PARAMETERS

Parameter	Transducer	Range
Locomotive speed	Axie generator	50 mph
Locomotive acceleration	Accelerometer	<u>+</u> 3 mphps
Brake cylinder pressure	Pressure transducer	150 pši
Traction motor current	Current shunt	1200 amp.
Sanding control signal	Trainline 23 voltage divide	74 vdc
Wheelslip relay actuation	Trainline 10 voltage divide	74 vdc
Locomotive direction	Trainline 8 and 9 voltage dvider	74 vdc



Figure 2. Instrumentation Block Diagram

ភ

The test procedure for the scenario tests consisted merely of installing the instrumentation onboard a locomotive at each flatyard and then monitoring the activity and movements during a period of at least 24 continuous hours. The details of this test plan are contained in AiResearch Report 77-14536A Reference 2).

In addition to the data recorded on tape, additional information was obtained in the form of switch lists. These lists represent the cars handled by each switcher locomotive during the three test periods; however, the procedures in each yard differed enough to prevent any detailed comparison of switch list data. The switch lists for each yard are contained in Volume 2 of this report.

The scenario tests were conducted at the three yards listed in Table 3 without major incidents or interference with the normal modes of operation.

#### TABLE 3

 Railroad	Yard	Location	Test Dates	
Southern Railway System	Dillard	Savannah, Ga.	Feb 2 to 4, 1978	
Seaboard <b>Coast</b> Lline	Baldwin	Jacksonville, Fla.	Feb 8 to 10, 1978	
Burlington Northern	Whitefish	Whitefish, Mont.	Feb 15 to 17, 1978	

#### SCENARIO TEST YARDS

#### Scenario Data Reduction

At the conclusion of the scenario tests, all of the tape recorded data were contained on nine digital tape cassettes. Due to the cassette tape format and configuration, it was necessary to process the information as illustrated in Figure 3. This apparent long processing chain was due principally to the use of existing equipment and is not necessarily a requirement for the basic method with completely compatible equipment. Several problems were encountered that consumed considerably more calendar time than originally anticipated.

Initially, the availability of the Gould recorder, which also was used for the playback function, was unpredictable due to conflicts with other FESS testing as well as other program users.

Each of the data tapes was sampled early in the reduction process to confirm successful data transfer. This was accomplished by the initial version

Reference 2. <u>Testing and Data Collection Plan to Define Operating Scenario</u> of Flatyard Switch Engine, AlResearch Report 77-14536A, AlResearch Manufacturing Company of California, December 1977.



Figure 3. Scenario Test Data Reduction Process

of the data reduction program by reading a short span of data at the beginning of the final nine track tapes. In addition, the Meta **IV** computer was used to generate a strip charf recording of recorded velocity and direction information. These charts were used during the remainder of the program as a "road map" to the recorded data and to explain apparent anomalies and odd conditions. A typical portion of this recording is shown in the upper two traces of Figure 4.

The second problem encountered was the loss of data apparently caused by lack of hardware compatibility between the two computer facilities. After discovery of this problem, the regeneration of some of the nine track tapes was required. Eventually these problems were identified and sorted out to allow complete reduction of all recorded data.

All recorded parameters, with the exception of locomotive acceleration, were used in the final reduction process. The accelerometer recordings contained a high noise content apparently due to structural vibration of the accomptive. Although it may have been possible to devise a filtering technique in the reduction process, alternate methods of estimating acceleration were used where required.

The final form of the data reduction program allowed a sequential listing of 'he available data; however, because a large mass of data was to be handled, it as necessary to summarize the various inputs. The method selected is illustrated in Figure 5.

The digitized data input of the locomotive speed signal is processed by a digitar filier that compares the indicated speed to parameters based on armature current and brake pressure. This step was required to eliminate influence of occasional noise spikes on the final data. The operation of this filter is illustrated by comparison of the lower trace of Figure 4, which is the filter output, to the upper trace of the figure, which is the original digitized data. The sampling period of the original data was once per second. As it can be seen, the principle influence is removal of the high amplitude and short time duration spikes.

As soon as a valid speed trace has been obtained, the reduction program calculates the following parameters on a sample-by-sample basis:

- (a) Distance travelled
- (b) Motor and generator operating conditions based on published characteristics of armature current and speed
- (c) Generator output energy
- (d) Braking energy imposed by the locomotive
- (e) Fuel consumption of the engine based on published characteristics

As a technique to condense the data, but still maintain visibility as to locomotive activity, a line printout is obtained whenever the distance


DB AUG 78-

---

Figure 4. Portion of Meta IV Strip Chart



Figure 5. Computer Program Block Diagram for Scenario Data Processing

travelled by the locomotive exceeds a net value of 500 ft. A typical printout obtained from reading a data tape is shown in Figure 6. Table 4 defines the column headings.

At the end of the data printout, a summary line is printed representing the combined accumulations of the previous lines. The final level of summary for the data tape, which was also accumulated as the tape was processed, is shown in Figure 7. This summary presents a statistical accumulation of the various parameters shown that allow the data from separate yards to be combined into an average operating profile. For the purpose of describing the overall au-y cycle, the locomotive and its equipment, the velocity distribution and armature current distribution data have proven to be the most valuable.

#### Scenario Test Data Summary

The results of the data reduction of all recorded tapes are shown in Tables 5 and  $\mathbf{6}$ . These tables have been arranged to summarize the locomotive activity at each test site as well as She combined total of ail three yards. In addition, the distribution data for each yard and the combined total have been plotted in Figures 8 to 13. Complete reduction program outputs are contained in Volume 2 of this report.

Some of the more significant factors revealed by the data summary are as follows:

- (a) Active time of the locomotive ranged between 41 to 61 percent with an overall average of 50 percent.
- (b) The braking energy available for regeneration averaged 25 percent of the energy output by the generator. This is disappointingly low when considering the use of a flywheel energy storage system.
- (c) The speed profile data indicate very little activity at speeds in excess of 15 mph. The average speed, after the bulk of idle time has been removed, was slightly less than 4 mph.
- (d) Less than 10 percent of the active time is spent in excess of the traction motor current rating, so there exists a great margin of thermal capability for the usage.

In addition to the data automatically processed, the total quantities of locomotive movements were manually measured from the speed-time "road map" previously described. These data have been used to determine mean values for kicking speeds and movement quantities. Figures 14 to 17 illustrate these data.

To ensure that the data collected at the three test sites were obtained during typical operating days, each yard was asked to submit data reflecting the car quantities processed during the past year and during the test period. These data are shown in Figures 18 to 23. Source information far these graphs is contained in Volume 2 of this report. In each of the three tests, the average car quantities were not grossly different than the previous year's average.

150355 15:01:35

LUCATION 182011	(1+	FL 8115 (811)	301 1101 (0103)	DIST THAT (PEET)	ная мрн	K#H2 6	KWHP H	€A‡ .	€)E ⇔	HLK R	111 6	T HRS	APE	11 11	SEC
U.s.	Ŷ	.000	.000	0.0	00	ូ ្លប	60	. () i)	61	1	9		\$ 1		11
•535g	4	10117	4.767	515.	12039	.67	004	5 5 1	81	清	12		7	0	18
∾1020e	•	.533	.000	50%	11.62	.05	.00	.04	01	15	12		7	ŏ.	50
•1525,	<b>. 4</b> -	.617	្តុលាដ្	505.	19.10	23	.00	606	81	16	17		7	. ĭ 🗥	21
~2n35,	4 ·	• * H J		510.	13.34	.56		.08	81	12	14		7	1	56
-25*1.	¢.	. 4 1 3	.000	506	13.25	02	.00	.03	.81	10	11	1 A 4	1	à	26
-30e.3.	4 :	0 4 FT 3	0000	502.	14.94	.71	.42	.09	81	19	8		7	2	54
~2533.	65 .	15,500	10.133	921.	13.22	1.42	2.40	1.09	100	48	10		7	H.	56
~2026 a		717	.000	507.	4,,34	.07	.06	.05	100	49	21		7	19	. 39
÷1515.	-	690	.000	510.	11.05	.31	.42	.06	LOO	50	25	1.1	7 1	20	15
-2031.	٥	6.600	684e	1506.	12.41	9.35	2.66	1.13	100	63	5	1 · · · ·	1 :	26	51
~2635 <b>.</b>	<b>.</b>	.533	÷000	504	12.30	.42	.03	.07	100	64	5		1. 1	27	23
-3049.	•	.517	.000	515,	12.88	4.02	.00	. 34	100	65	4		1 :	27	54
-3550,	<b>\$</b>	, 4 H.3	.000	501.	12.76	1,37	.00	14	100	66	1 1		7 1	96	23
-4057.	\$	+517	.000	507.	11.63	1,39	1.55	.14	100	66	32		7 1	59	54
*3556.		3.717	±017	821.	9.74	8.21	5.11	.90	100	73	31		7 1	<u> 12</u>	37
=3041.	•	19.450	12.263	3344.	17.20	22,40	14.72	2.99	101	110	14		7	53	8
-2541.		1,067	.000	. 500 <sub>e</sub>	13,46	.67	1.73	.15	101	112	. 14		<b>7</b> - 1	54	12
+2033.	*0	1.450	- <b>•</b> 000-	980.	15.45	2.47	2.15	.26	101	115	S		7	55	39
·2536.	· • .	4.283	•090	850.	10.67	34+69	.65	3,14	101	123	6 .		7 1	59 -	56
+3037.	· •	2.700	•000	- <b>5</b> 80.	3.82	24.37	•61	2.17	101	-128	. · 6 · ·		8	2	38
<b>#3540</b>	<b>e</b> .	2.617	a U U O	503.	4.29	24,11	·• 00 ··	2,15	101	133	5		8	5	15
~4043,		1,750	• 000	503.	10.21	13,44	.05	1,22	101	136	14		8	1	32
· 4545.	•	.750	.000	502.	0.12	4.12	.28	e 36	101	137	27		8	8	17
~5047.	<b>•</b> . 1	3.333	.000	1002.	8.12	13.45	4.79	1.31	101	144	3		8	1.1	37
-4543.	•	2.717		BOLe	6.84	14::31	4.50	1.30	102	149	6		8	14 🖓	20
=4041.	<b>C</b> #	3,533	•000	924 6	8.47	14.16	4 e (14	1.39	105	155	26		8	17	52
<b>*3540</b> ,		4.150	. a000 -	1251.	9,40	12,51	5,52	1,31	102	163	19		8	23	37
•3039,	40 <sup>(</sup>	1.417	.000	518,	10.35	1.07	°99	•18	102	166	. 8		0	25	2
-2535,	۰.	2.767	<b>₽000</b>	1597.	15.99	6.71	3.30	671	102	171	14		8	27	48
-3054.	4	.917	.000	722,	19-50	1 - 96	1,35	.21	102	173	5	in de la c	8	28	43
-3419,	<b>e</b> y	5.250	2.533	406.	15,31	.12	1,10	ø 34	102	185	35		8	33	58
>>>> Suri	"AH¥	TIME (HHS) 1.62	GEN KWHR 219-34	BHK KWHR 57.75	101AL 0 24,	AL MILE	S TRAV 406				· · · ·				

4	STATUSE	0	BFOCK N B	182	LINE # = 12	TAPE # #	V18684	м. 1. т

>> END TAPE READ/PRINT >>

22

Figure 6. Scenario Data Reduction Program Printout

# SCENARIO DATA REDUCTION PROGRAM PRINTOUT HEADINGS

Column	Heading	Definition
1	LOCATION (FEET)	Net distance from starting point at beginning of data tape.
2	DIR	Direction of locomotive travel when 500-ft marker was crossed.
3	EL TIME (MINI	Elapsed time from starting point of data tape in minutes.
4	IDL TIME (MINI	ldle time accumulated since last 500-ft marker. Idle time accumulation is not started until 1 min after speed is below 1/2 mph and brake pressure is greater than 20 psi.
5	DIST TKAV (FEET)	Total distance travelled since last 500-ft marker. This will indicate sum of forward and reverse move ments.
6	MAX MPH	Maximum speed obtained since last 500-ft marker.
7	KWHR G	Calculated energy output by main generator of loco- motive in kilowatt-hours,
. 8	KWHR B	Calculated enerqy absorbed by locomotive wheels during braking.
9	GAL	Calculated gallons of fuel consumed since last 500-ft marker.
10	DE#	Data entry number manually set into recorder when data were collected. Used for correlation to test log books.
11	BLK#	Block number of data tape.
12 .	LN#	Line number of data tape.
13	TAPE TIME <b></b> HRS MIN SEC	Indicates recorded value of time at which 500-ft marker is crossed. Value indicated will be modified if recorder had been turned off or placed in standby mode.

>>TAPE IDENTIFICATION < 118684 > BLOCK 1 TO 120 150355 15:03:55 ----LOCOMOTIVE ACTIVITY --- ACCUMULATED TIME (MINUTES) RUN FOTAL 97.1

ARM AMPS	>30		34	
`	>20u	£	21.1	• •
	2500	ίa.	21.1	
	>1€00	ß	15.4	
BRAKE PST	»]U	阙	12.2	(SPI) >0,5)
	>30	<b>F</b> 2	8 <sub>8</sub> 3	
SLIP RELAY	QIN	胡	U e	«SECONDS»
SAND	ŴН	鶡	2H.4	
SPEED (HPH)	>⊍,5	8	49.7	
	>2.0	8	41.5	
	>4.0	祠	59.5	
	>6,0	а	20,0	
	>8.0	*	13,9	
	>10,		8.0	
	≥15.	5	1.0	
	>20.	<b>1</b>	• 1	
CHUISE TIN	F	왥	9.5	E HPH >8. AND ARM AMPS <200.)
TOLE TIME		權	30.2	(I MIN AFTER MPH 40.5 AND PSI >20.)

---- ACTIVITY RATIOS (EXCLUDES IDLE TIME)

 16.5 % TIME BETWEEN
 0.5 AND
 MPH 11.1

 26.7 Q
 2. AND
 4. MPH 13.9

 14.9 %
 4.0 AND
 6. MPH 10.0

 13.0 %
 4.0 AND
 8. MPH 1.3

 14.9 %
 8.0 AND
 10.0 MPH 9.0

 14.0 %
 10.0 AND
 15.0 MPH 9.5

 24.0 %
 BRAKING
 55.0 % ACCEL

 71.0 %
 FTIME SANDING DURING BRAKING AND ACCEL

---- IDLE TIME = 31.1 % OF TOTAL

**dfi**n

Figure 7. Scenario Data Reduction Program Statistical Summary



# SCENARIO DATA SUMMARY

÷

I	I .		Log Book Dat	a			D	ata Tape Summ	nary		<u> </u>		Average Ca	lculations	
FESS Tape	Yard, RR	Elapsed Time, min	No Record, min	Recorded Time, <sup>nii</sup> n	Run Time, MIN	Gen, kw-hr	Brk. kw⊢hr	Total Fuel, gal	Miles Travel	tdle ⊤ime, min	Cruise Time, min	kw-hr/ gal	Average mph w/o ldle	Active Tine, min	i Brk kw-hr∕ Gen kw-hr
16	Dillard	1490	224	1266	525-6 97-2	941.14 219.34	178.21 57.75	105.3 24.0	34.6	44.0 30.2	48 1 9-5	8.94 9.14	3.92 4.12	481.6 67.0	0.19 0,26
2	SRR	407	15	392	349.9	695-97	198.69	78.9	26.6	91.7	64.6	8,82	6.18	258.2	0,29
3a 35		636	52	584	533.4 27.2	647.08 15.11	260.86 9.8	85.2 2.9	27.6 21	166.1 3.5	65.7 6.9	7.59 5 21	4.51 5.3	$367 \ 323 \ 7$	0.40 0.65
	Total	2533	291 (11%)	2242	1533.3	2518.6	705.3	296.3	92.4	335.5	19418	8.50	4.63	1197.8	0.28
4.	. I	- 440	53	387	447.6	538.8	203.15	70,2	23.6	65 9	39.0	7.68	3.71	381.7	0.38
5a	Baldwin	1017	-0-		402.	628 82	119.08	74.4	19.8	102.3	27.1	8.45	3.96	299.7	0.19
5Ь	\$UL	1017	385	632	216.6	335.6	60.82	39.4	13.6	38.0	21 2	8.52	4.57	178.6	0.18
6			42	311	262.8	314.4	96.01	44.5	11.0	24.5	20.6	7.07	2.77	238.3	0.31
,	, Total		(27%)	1330	1329	1817.6	479.1	228.5	68.0	230.7	107.9	7.95	3.71	1098.3	0.26
7		1020	457	563	467.4	390.5	56 01	60.3	10.9	22.0	0.2	6.48	1.47	445.4	0.14
8	l ∦hitetish . BN	120	50	70		40.45	13.55	5.5	5.6	0.5	16.7	7 - 35	9.55	35.2	0.33
9		260	25	235		93.44	27.02	16.0	111	37.1	36.5	5.84	7.02	94.9	0.29
	Total	1400	532 (38%)	868	635.17	524.39	96.58	81.8	27.6	59.6	53.4	6.41	2.88	5755	0.18
<u> </u> To	tals	5743	1303.	4440	3497.4	4860.6	1280.94	- <del> </del> 1606.6	, 188.0	6258	356.1	8.01	3.93	2871.6	0.26
			23%	77%		;	i			1			-	1	• • ••

(

Ç

1

# SCENARIO DATA SUMMARY

FESS	Active			4	Speed Pro	ofile,					Acma	ture Cur	rent				Speed Hi	istogram, bh		
Tape No	⊺ime, min	>0-5	> 2	> 4	> 6	> 8	> 10	> 15	> 20	> 30	> 200	> 500	> 1000		0.5	2 -4	4 ~6	6 8	8 -10	10 -15
а	481.6	371.4	320.1	222.2	128.8	60.7	29.4	3.6	1.4	270.4	204.5	113.9	9.7		66.5	126.7	121.8	88.1	40.5	33.7
¦Ъ	67.0	49.7	41.5	28.2	20.8	13.9	8.0	1.0	6.1	34	27.3	21.8	15.4		11.1	17.9	10.0	9.3	8.0	9.5
2	258.2	207 4	193.9	163.5	129.2	86.7	56.0	29.2	9.7	128.9	87.5	58.2	21.8		16.8	38	42.6	52.9	38.2	33.3
3∂	367.3	271.1	235.2	191.3	141:5	87.0	43.9	0.5	0.1	181.5	124.0	62.3	9.4		48.5	59.5	67.6	73.8	58.4	58.8
35	23.7	17.2	16	\$4.5	11.2	7.4	4.7	0	0 <sup>.</sup>	10.8	4.4	1.0	0	! 	1.7	2.0	4.5	5.2	3.7	6.5
	1197.8	916.8	806.7	619.7	431.5	255.7	142.0	34.3	11.3	625.6	444.7	257.2	56.3		144.6	244.1	246.5	229.3	148.8	141.8
<u> </u>	100%	77	67	52	36	21	12	3	1	5-2	37	21	5		12	20	21	19	12	12
4	381.7	269.6	219.4	168.1	115.3	59,1	21.4	1.4	0.1	174.4	128.1	56.1	5.5		71.0	72.5	74.8	79.8	53.4	28.3
l.5a	299.7	2258	177.8	125.6	81.4	43.1	23.6	4.5	3.3	156.9	127.4	74.3	5.7		63.8	69.2	58.7	51.0	25.8	25.5
50	178.5	136.3	110.1	86.9	60.6	37.3	21.4	6.5	1.4	90.5	70.5	33.2	4.6		39.3	30.4	34.5	30.5	20.9	19.5
6	238.3	168.9	133-1	98.5	60.8	29.6	14.7	1,.5	0.1	107.5	77.8	35.7	0.2		50.5	48.9	53.2	43.9	21.0	18.6
	1098.2	800.6	640.4	479.1	318.1	169.1	81.1	13.9	4.9	529.3	403.8	199.3	16.0		219.6	221	221.2	205.2	121.1	91.9
	100%	73	58	44	29	- 15	7	1	0.5	48	37	18	1		20	20	20	19	11	8
7	445.4	346.1	131.6	10.7	0.9	0.2	0	0	0	2.74.2	164.2	94.2	9.0		276.2	155.5	12.5	0.9	0.5	0
8	35-2	31-3	31-1	28.2	26.3	23.8	21.3	3.1	0	21.1	11.3	0.8	0		0.18	3.2	2.22	2.75	2.78	20.5
5	94.9	71.1	70.2	61.4	52.5	41.7	33.0	8.7	1.2	44.8	20.4	7.7	0.6		1.0	11.9	11.8	14.5	11.6	32.6
	575.5	448.5	232.9	100.3	79.7	65.7	54.3	11.8	1.2	340.1	195.9	102.7	9.6		277.4	170.6	26.5	18.2	14.9	53.2
	100	78	40	17	14	11	9	2	0	59	34	18	2		48	30	5	3	3	9
	2804.5	2165.9	1680.0	1199.1	829.3	490.5	277.4	60.0	17.4	1495.0	1044.4	559.2	81.9		641.6	635.7	494.2	452.7	284.8	236.9
	180°,	77	60	43	30	17	10	2	1 1	53	37	20	3	1	23	23	18	16	10	10

. 26















Fiaure 11. Combined Data Summary (Armature Current vs Active Time)



Figure 12. Combined Data Summary (Speed Less than Abscissa Value vs Active Time)



Figure 13. Combined Data Summary (Speed vs Active Time)















Figure 17. Combined Total Peak Speed Distribution







Figure 19. Southern Railway Dillard Yard Test Period Activity









Figure 21. Seaboard Coast Line Baldwin Yard, Test Week Activity











Scenario Formulation

The primary objective of the scenario tests was to create a data base from which the operational duty cycle could be determined. Also, the format of the scenario had to be compatible with the computer simulation of the switching focomotive that is described in Section 4. The ground rule for determining the scenario was to match as many of the tested average parameters as practical. The following description details this procedure.

- (a) Based on logbook and recorded data, the active time was set at 50 percent.
- (b) From switch list data (contained in Volume 2), the cars processed per day were:

Dillard Yard 348/30.8 cars/hr Baldwin Yard 613/31 cars/hr Whitefish Yard 498/26 cars/hr

Overall Average = 402 cars/24 hr

(c) From logbook data and observers experience:

2 cars/kick 22 cars/fetch

(d) The kicking cycles required:

402 cars ≈ 18 fetches 22 cars/fetch

(e) The total movement quantity should be:

Dillard Yard 795/30.8 moves/hr Baldwin Yard 723/31 moves/hr Whitefish Yard 319/26 moves/hr

Overall Average = 491 moves/24 hr

For a fetch of 22 cars and assuming 2 forward moves and 1 reverse move for every 2 kicks, the kicking moves will total 15 moves/fetch or 270 moves kicking. Therefore, the sum of fetching and other miscellaneous moves should total approximately 220.

(f) The primary technique for matching the test data in terms of energy transfer was to select a set of computer runs that matched the speed and armature current distribution data. This was accomplished by an iterative trial and error method. The runs tabulated below provide a reasonable match to the data. This is not the only combination, but is considered a suitable match for the fuel consumption comparison.

Type	Quantity	No. of Car	<u>s</u> Peak Speed, n	nph <u>Distance, ft</u>
Kicking	18	22	7.5	NA
Fetching	8	22	5.8	2300
Fetching	8	22	6.8	2400
Fetching	65	22	9.8	1000
Fetching	13	22	11.0	3800
Fetching	30	10	15.1	1100

The preceding detailed computer runs are contained in Volume 2. The comparison's of the speed and armature distribution data of the scenario runs and the test data are shown in Figure 24.

The scenario simulation speed distribution characteristic differs from the test data primarily in the low speed (less than 4 mph) region. This is attributed to *the* relatively smal! number of computer runs used in the scenario simulation. The area of difference could have been represented by many very low speed runs that do not have a significant influence on total energy expended or recovered. To make up for this difference, however, the selected computer runs result in a speed distribution that is slightly higher in the remainder of the characteristic where the energy content is more significant.

The armature current distribution characteristic resulting from the formulated scenario is represented by the data points plotted on the test data characteristics of Figure 25. The differences between test data and computer simulation data are primarily due to the relatively small number of computer runs used as well as the small number of data points used to construct the characteristic.

#### Fuel Consumption Comparison

When a set of computer runs that matched the test data had been identified, the task of determining the fuel consumption of the standard and the flywheelassisted configurations was accomplished. The various components of fuel usage are shown in Table 7. The resulting fuel differences are essentially zero. Even with the assumption that the flywheel system is not energized on nonprofitable moves, the savings achieved during the kicking merely offsets the additional losses of the idling period.

#### LOCOMOTIVE PERFORMANCE TESTS

It was necessary to develop a basis for evaluating the accuracy of the computer model because the primary evaluation technique for the FESS program was to use a computer simulation of the switching locomotive. This evaluation idescribed in Section 4) was to be based on actual test data. During June, 1978,



Figure 24. Locomotive Speed Distribution Characteristics



S 34182

## Figure 25. Locomotive Armature Current Distribution Characteristic

Operating Mode	Standard I	_ocomotive	Flywheel	System	Gallons
Operating Mode	Time, min	Fuel, gal	Time, min	Fuel, gal	Saved
ldle, 12 hr	720	45.6	720	48	-2.4
<u>Fetching</u> , 3.4 hr					
Cars x Dist x Speed x Runs 22 x 2300 x 5.8 x 8 22 x 2400 x 6.8 x 8 22 x 1000 x 9.8 x 2 Idling between moves	44.3 38.3 4.0 117.0	6.74 6.82 1.27 7.41	45.0 37.2 3.9 117.0	6.89 <sup>3</sup> 6.943 1.20 7.8	-0.15 -0.12 +0.07 -0.4
Kicking, 3.6 hr 22 x NA x 7.5 x 18 Idling between moves	122.9 93.0	36.7 5.9	117.0 99.0	32.9 6.6	+3.8 -0.7
<u>Misc. Moves,</u> 5.0 hr					
22 x 3800 x 11.0 x 13 22 x 1000 x 9.8 x 63 10 x 1100 x 15.1 x 30 Idling between moves	63.1 126.0, 41.7 70.0	19.9 40.1 17.2	66.2 122.5 42.0 70.0	19.3 37.5 16.0 4.7	+0.6 +2.6 +1.2 -0.3
Flywheel Startup to 50 Percent	an a				
6 times/24 hr		0		3.8	-3.8
Totals	440.3	192.0	1439.8	191.6	0.4
<ol> <li>Fuel rate = 3.8 gph.</li> <li>Fuel rate = 4.0 gph.</li> <li>Flywheel system deenergized.</li> </ol>		<u>Gallons save</u> Cars switche	$\frac{1}{2} = \frac{0.4}{396} = 0.00$	1	

## FUEL CONSUMPTION COMPARISON

the locomotive tests to supply this data were conducted at the Atlanta, Georgis facilities of the Southern Railway System. The locomotive used for testing was an SW1500 with SRS No. 2302. This locomotive was also used during the scenario tests at Savannah, Georgia. The test plan is described in AiResearch Report 78-15055 (Reference 3).

The parameters instrumented during the performance tests are shown in Table 8. The details of the instrumentation package are described in Appendix A.

The locomotive was stationary during the initial testing, but the main generator was connected to a resistive load bank. This method is a standard technique for evaluating the performance of the diesel engine and main generator. For the FESS program test plan, the engine was operated to obtain a stabilized thermal condition. The engine was then operated in each available throttle notch to establish the steady-state operating parameters at power output, fuel flow, engine speed, and control characteristics.

The resulting power vs speed characteristic is shown in Figure 26, which also shows tie equivalent published characteristic. In general the characteristics are similar; however, there is a displacement in engine speed and power output between the two curves. These differences can probably be attributed to the age and state of control in calibration of the tested locomotive. The engine speed vs throttle characteristic of Figure 27 depicts the tested and published characteristics of these parameters.

The output power vs fuel flow characteristics are shown in Figure 28. A slight variation that shows a greater fuel flow for the tested locomotive was found.

The relationships of generator volts, battery field current, and engine speed obtained during the tests are shown in Figures 29 and 30. There were no published characteristics available for comparison; however, the apparent control range of the battery field could have allowed a better match of the generator power vs engine speed characteristics **if** the controls had been slightly adjusted. No control adjustments were made for the FESS program.

The response times of the engine-generator combination were recorded as the engine was accelerated and decelerated with single notch steps. Although some data scatter were obtained, the results are shown in Figure 31.

All of the preceding test characteristics were developed from the test data aid are considered representative of the tested configuration. Yowever, under dynamic conditions, the traction motors can present different loads that will tend to vary or distort these characteristics.

Following the load box test, the locomotive was subjected to various conditions of acceleration and deceleration with different loads. Various runs from this data set were used in the detail development of the computer model and its validation. Figures 32, 33, and 34 show typical data obtained during these tests.

Reference 3. <u>Performance Test Plan for SW1500 Locomotive</u>, AiResearch Reoort 78-15055, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, May 2, 1978.

## LOCOMOTIVE PERFORMANCE TESTS INSTRUMENTED PARAMETERS

Vehicle Parameters	Transducer Type	Range
Acceleration	Servo accelerometer	<u>+</u> 3 mphps
Speed	Œ Tachometer	50 mph
Direction	Trainline 8 and 9 voltaqe divider	74 vdc
Engine Parameters		
Fuel flow (Inlet-return)	Turbine flowmeter	150 gph
. Engine speed	Photoelectric sensor	1000 rpm
Main Generator Pardmeters		
Battery field current	Current shunt	75 adc
Output voltage	Voltage divider	1200 vdc
Output current	Current shunt	3000 adc
Traction Motor Parameters		
Armature voltage	Voltage divider	74 vdc
Armäture current	Current shunt	1200 adc
Suspension displacement	Cable potentiometer	,+1 in.
Control Parameters		:
Throttle position	Cable potentiometer	Notch 0-8
Brake cylinder pressure	Pressure transducer	150 psi
Wheel slip relay actuation	Trainline 10 voltage divider	74 vdc
Sander valve actuation	Trainline 23 voltage divider	74 vdc



Figure 26. SW1500 Load Box Test, Engine and Generator Performancs, Locomotive 2302



Figure 27. Load Box Data, Speed vs Throttle



Figure 28. Locomotive Fuel Consumption, Load Box Test, Locomotive 2302



Figure 29. Load Box Data, Generator Voltage vs Engine Speed



Figure 30. Load Box Data, Field Current vs Engine Speed





		1. The second		•			
· · · · · ·	The second			1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	1	1.1	
ابغ وسومي محمد وسور		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	իս կարութի խություն ով	: խորովուկովուկությո	իշիսվորիովության՝	· <b>Falmeticale - for to - t</b> - to - 15	┝╍┧╍┨╍┨╼┥╼┥╼┥
			╾╸┝╾┽╌┥╸┼┋┝╍╌┥╸┼╴┽╴	━┼┼┼┼╎┼┼┼┼	╾┥┥┥╫╎╷┥╍┾╺┝╼┝		
						in the second	FT-F
			╞╋╼╋╍╢╋╍╋╼╋╧╋╝				
			a had a star a second				
						light party and a start of the	
	╴┝┽┿┝┦┵┇┲┥		┝┿┿╍╁╢┅┢╍┧╍┧╺╅				412
	┝╍╋╍┿╍┾╍┥╍┥		┝┅┾╍┼╌┼╉┤╌┕╞╌╿╌╉╍┨				- historia hadronia a formation of the second second
	─┼┼┼┼┼┼	┯┯┿╍┥┈┿┅┯┅┨┉┼┈┥╍┝╍╂╍	╾┟┅╏╌┿╌╎╄╎╌┥╌╢╌╂╌╀╴			─ <u><u></u></u>	╺┝╍┥╼┥╍┥╼┼┯┆╾┾┯┉
	┝╈┿┿┿╋┥		┉┉╎╴┦╍┥╂┧┑╍╎╼╍╎┅╍┯╍╛				
	┝╼╋╍╬╍╬╍╬╍╬╍╋╍╬	- <u>} - } - } / } / / </u>	┝╍┼╍┝╍╁┠╍┪╍┧╍┤╸			┟╧╢╍┝╍╢╍╢╍┥╍┝╌╢╍╣	┝┿┉┥┉┦╍┨╌┨╌╋╌┯
	┝┥┯┯┥┥┥╴┊╴┊╴		┝┥┥┥┝┥╸				┝┿╅┿┿┿
		<u> </u>  ,//		╞╬╧┥╌┤╾┨╋┝╍┥┯┝┙			┝┼┽╍┟╄╼┲╺╈╌┼
			┝┝╞╶╎╿╣╍┤╍┾╶┼╌┥				
─ <del>   + <sub>1</sub> +   i      </del>	╶┼┽┾┾╘╤╃┖┨		<u>────</u>		╾┟╪╞╌┟╴┟╴┝╌┝╌┝╌┝╌┝		╺┿┉┝┉┝╼╆╴╪╴╋╸╋╸╄
	┝┼┼┟╍┝╫┝┍┚			hint of the second s		- Filmstanden fra har fan	┝┿┼┼┼┼┥┥
	┝┼┝╦┫╍╟╋╍┲┩			in inter production			┝┿┿┿┿
	┝┟┼┼╀╢┼┼┤						╞╍┥╍┥╼┝╍┾╍┝
┝╾╾┼┼┼┼┤							╞╡┽┙┽┾┾╪╄
1							
·····		┝╺┥╌┝╾┾╌╊╴╋╌┽╴┿╼┥			in the second	i i sa ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an	┝┥┥┥┿
		╶╺┶┶┶┶					
······	┝┼╃┥┼╟╇┽┥	┝╼┣┉╉┉╡╌┢╺╋╼╋┍╋┷			100 000 00 00 00 00 000 000 000 000 000		
							── <del>┆╴┇╶┇╶┇╶╡╸╡╺╡╸</del> ╡ └── <b>└──</b> ┎── <b>┎</b> ── <b>┟</b> ── <b>┟</b> ── <b>┟</b> ── <b>┟</b> ── <b>┟</b> ── <b>┟</b> ─
┟┝╾┥╴┥┥┙╹	┝┽┼┯╊╌╊┽╍┝╍╽			┝┼╌┥╍┝╍┝╍┝╍┝╍		┝╍┼╍┼╍┼╍┼╍┼╸┽╴┥╵	┝┝┥┥╋
	╔╴╬┈╄╼┨╼┨╍╫╋┝╍┼╍┥						
	┝┼╌┦╌┦╍┽╍╿┥╎╴┷╍┥						
				·····			- Fridande de la deservi
		┝┥╍┾╍┝╍┝╋┉┠╍┨	┝╍┝╍┝╍┝╍┝╍┝╍┝╍┝╍┝	╞╪╪┥╌┋╔╌┍╼╄╼┥		┝╍┝┉╁╼┿╍┼╼┧╍┽╾┼╾┦	┢╋╋╧
╵╟╾ <sub>╪</sub> ┽┼┼┼╴	┝╌┾╌┝╼┿╍┠╌┧┟┿╾┥╼┦	┝┝┝╌┝╼┆╌╂╶┼╌┞╅┯╌╏	┝┼┼╫╢┧┧Ҭ┙	┝╍┠╍┨╍┨╌┨╌┥╌┥	┝╌┨╼┨╼┨╼	┝╍┝╍┠╍┠╍┠╍┠╍	┝┝┿┥╍┝╺┝
		╾┟╧╻┼╌╞╌┼╣╢╧╴				━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━━	
┟┥┿┿┿╼┝╍┥	┝┽┥┼╶┦╤╤╤	╞┥┿┿╅┥	┠╍┝╍┝┠┠╌┠╍┠┙┙┙	┝┿╪╉┯┯	┝╍┝╍┾╍┼╍┝╍┝╼┝	╞╪┿╪╪┼┥╉╍╏┈║	┝╬┿╁╬╋╋
+	╶┊┼┼┊┼╢╢╢┛╸	┈┾┾┿┤╌╎╌┝┾┥Ҳ	╾┼╍┊┧╍╟╢╌┼╺┽╺┞╴┨╴	<u>─</u> ┼┅ <u>┤</u> ╍ <u>┥</u> ╍ <u>┥</u> ╍┥ <u>┥</u>	┉┿┿┉╎╌┨╌╋╍┝╍┝╌┨╩╋━	━━╞╤┫╍┼╸┝╺┞╍╎╍╎╍┝╍┝╍┠	╾╊╍┫╍┫╸╢╸┫╴╢╸╋╴╢
	┝╍╪╍╞╍╞╍╪╍╪╍╁┅┨	┟┽┵┾╋┾┽┾╢	╘╌┼╌┇╏┨┑╎╼╎╸┽╺┥	┢┅┋╍┧╍┝╼╢╍┥╶╡╌╂╌┥		┝╪┠╾┤╾┾╍┠╌╂┉┝╍┝╾┥╿╺	╞╪╍┿┥┥┥╍┾╸╋
	+++++++	┠╍╢╍┝╌┾╌┾╍┾╍┼╼┫	┝┅╪╍┼┉┥╂┼┅╄╾┦╍┥╶┥	┝╍┝╧┞╾╋╼┨╺┑┨╍╸┠╍╍┠╍╍╉╼╼╿	┝╍╋╼╟╍╞╾┝╼╋╍┝╍┿┙		┝┿┯┾╼╊╌╋╼╂╌╅╌┞╌┼
╎┝╌╬╌┍╌╎╌┝╼┞╌┡╼╇┯┩╵	┝╍╍┝┝┢┝┝┙┫┥	╞╞╪╌╄╍╄╌╿╌┨╌┩	┝╾┝╾┦╾╿╋┝╍┝╼┨╸┝╼	┝┿┿╍╎╍┥╍╎╌┥╌┥╌	┊┝┿╍╄╼┝╼┝╼╄╼╋╼╢╴		┝╋┥┽╀┾┾
مراجع معرف المراجع الم							
<u>╠</u> ╆┿╾╋╋╋╅┥	┝┿╾╏╍┾╍╂╍╂╌╉╌┨╌┦		╞╪╪┥╌╋┫╼┽╴┝╼╬╬	╞╌┼╌┼╌┼╌┼╌┤╴┤			╞╌┼╍┼╍┼╍┾╍╋╌╢╸
N-8_Nlcie	-1062-	_40200_		+20	_40200_		┼┼┼┼╆╄╁╁┼
		╔┿╍┾╍┼╍┼╍┽╍╡					
∟Throttle]	Engine	Leoco Speed		Drawbar	Brake	┝╬╾┼╾┼╾┦╌┽╼╢	╞╪╪╪┥┥┾╋╇
	RPM +++	- MPH -	I Second	- 1000 lbs	Pressure		
┝╍┝╺╍┊╄╍┞╺┝╺┥					PS PS		
	┝╍┾╍┝╌╇┅┿╍╁╋┥						iape Cou
							383
╞╤┯╾╾┥╍┾╍┝╍┨╼╴		┝╼┢╌╉╼┿╼┿╼┝╍╁╍┝╌					
				harden der standen der stan	الماج يناف إدارت وسيتجو وبر	and the second	Enderstrates Januar Januar
			ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	كالعالب اذباء والووان ساوت إسينا وسياو	كنيته المحجد والتركية	حاف ا ما جاو سا بن اس وقال	اسلبه المراجع الشبابية

Figure 32. Data Roll No. 1

					an an in an	an an ana an a	and a constraint of the	a balantina ina
- 10								
- 14					· [2] 사이지 아이지 아이지 아이지 아이지 않는 것이지 않			
÷ r' i		━┽┨┼╍┞╸╎╌┠╴┥╼╿╧					n fer halandar, son a ferhan	جاذاته فيتجاجب
- 1 6	╶╧╍┊┋┫╺╧┥┥┦	┝╍╄╍┼┼┼╌╆╍╉╼╺┱╌╉╶┨	┝╍╞╼╄╼┟┅┥╍╉╼┼╌┠╍┥╴	فيواحده وماريه والمراجع والمساوية	finders have been a second	kindardar   − der   − <del>der der d</del>	- hadia hadi a hadiri di se ya d	a de la composition d
- L -	<u>· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · </u>	<u></u>	and the second s	الحاصا واكر المجار والمراجع	the standard and the standard	handar.	- hadron for the stand of the s	، و منه الاستېرېږي
1	<del>╺┊╄╹╽╎╝╡┫</del> ╷	┝╍┝╼╋╍╋╍╋╍╄╌╄╼┫	┝┽┼╍┝┍┟╌┠╌╿╍╿		had a start of the	hand and the state of the state		
H		┝╌┢╼╡╼┦╶┼╶┠═┾╍┧╌┨						
1	┊╡┼╙╍┿╍┞╸┇┊╹╋╸	┯┋╬╁╍╊╾┝╶╂╌┧╶╂┍╋╼						
- 11	┥┼╷┾╅╄┼┥							
- 15								
- 10								
- 1 i	┈╧┧┟╿╎╼╊		╍┼┥┥┥╸┊╞╍╞╶┨╌╿╶╴			<u></u>	╺┲╈╪╋╌┧┈┧┯╋╼╋╼┧╼┧╼┧	
1	┶╔╍┢╼┟╌┟╼╋╍╣╴		التباسات الجياب الت		time			i handara di sana sa
	<del>╶┋╞╞╹┿╹╎┇┋╝</del> ┨┆	└┼╌╆╺╋╍┥╼┠╶┦╌┿╼┥	┝╈╋╋╋					·
1	╺┿┼┑┢╹╍┿┥		interaction and the second second	linanea er er erafisiere	his man and a second			- 12 41 1 - 14
- 11								
- 11	약안 안 작은 눈	-+						
- 15								
1							· halada ay I hadad	had a large firm and
15					in martin for second		- Independent of the first	وحجا برؤه وتشقيه المحا
	┽┽┥╝╍╋╺╈╺╋╼	┈┽┼╌┊╍┟╍╞╼┟╴┫╼	╾╋╍╁╶┦╍╅╾╎╍┠╶┼╍╿╧╫╾	╶╌┠╌┨╶┥╍┝╾┾╾╄╍ <b>┊╾╉</b> ╴	<u>──</u> <del>↓┊</del> ╋┈ <u>┣</u> ┊╉╶ <u>╄</u> ┯┣┅┥━╋ <sub>╴</sub> ╉──	┉┠┯┥┉┠╍┟╺┲╍┨┷┼╶┠╍╫╾╸	─────────────────────────────────────	
- 11	· ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓	<u>│                                    </u>	┝╍╃╌╡╴╿┶╍╋╌┽╴╄╍╣				and the second s	┝╺┾╾┿╍┥
— ( F	╤┽┽┟┟┟┉┢╍┽┤╵	╶┟┿┿╉╋╊╋┿┿┥	┊╞┯┯┯┯┯┯┯┯		── <del>──────────────────────────────────</del>		· } <del>·</del> ··································	│ <del>│</del>
_ <u> </u>	╧┿┶╉┧┾╋╣	┝┿┿╍╄╼┇╂┨╌┿╍┥╍┨	╞╌┼╍┽╍┽╌┼╴┼╍┿╍┽╼╢╶	┉┼╍┧╴╉╶┨╌╋╍╋┯╺╉╌┨	┣┿┥╍┾╍┝╍┠╍╉╴┥╌┫		- <del>21</del> -1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-	│
] H	┽┽┑┥┽┼┼┢┥	jj		╞┉┨┉┠╌┨╶╉╌┽╍┽╺┟╴┨	had a start of the			
-	(1)目目1				- r:)*) ( ( ) ( ) (			
			had a find a first standard		أأناه المراجع المراجع المراجع	المرابي مرادية فالمرابع	- Coloria - Coloria - Coloria	l Inden Kristel
1.			┝━╍┼╾┽╌╁╌╿╴╿	┝┉┝┉┼╌┼╍┠╍┼╌╿┛	┢╪╋╌┨╍╎╍┝╼╋╼╇╫╢	الخط والمراجل والجنياني	أسهدا كاسرا كالمتراتين	│
- 1 Ĥ	╺┿╍╂╍╧┰╂╌┫╍╋╍╬╌┨╴	┝╍┥╍┥╼╉┙	╶┠┿┿┽┼┼┼┉╆┽┙	┝┉┟╍┟╍╁╼╉╍┩╍┪╍╦╉╼╢	╔╦╫╌┧╌┥╼┫╼┩╶╗╱╝		<u>┣┿</u> ┥━┥╼┥╼┥╸┥╌╽	┝┿┉╽╼ <sub>╞</sub> ┛╏╾╂╍┿┉╪╼┥
- 14	·→→↓↓↓↓++						╶╞╘┿╤╋┝╍┥╼╋╌┢╱┨	┉╾┼╌╎┼┼┼╘╬╶┝┱┑┨
11		┝┼┿┽┲┦┼┿┥	· <mark>├ ┼ ┼ ┿</mark> ╍┠╸╂╶╄ ╡ <b>┥</b> ┫ <sup>┲</sup> ┥		╞┥╾┝╴╋╌╢╾┝╗		╶╞╤╞╝┯┥╌┥╸┫╌┥	<u>                                      </u>
1	╤┋┇╋┿┥┽╌┦╴	┝┼┊┝╋╍┊┊┊╝						
-   <del>}</del>								
- 15								
- 15								
- 12			┝┅┼┼┟┶┟┉┟┼┼╟╌┥		الملبط والمتلج المتلج	المهاجبة المجاجبة	┝┉┿╌╃╌┩╌╢┷┥╼┫╋┝╍┥	- half and the second sec
1 L		┝╍╍╶╌┠┈┞╼┽╼╡╌┨	┝┅╪╍╤╶┋╴┋╌┇╍┥┍┯┤┯┥	┟┉┋┉┟╍┿╼╋╼╋╼╋╧╣╷	and the second	┝┅┼╍┠╍┠╍┼╍┼┼┼┠╍┥		┉┼╌┼╸╠┊╶┼╸┍╼┥
-   <del> </del> -	╶╴┾╍╁╍╎╴┨╴╻╍┾╼╉╴	╾┟╍╄╍╋╾┡╶╄╶╄╍┥╍╋╼	╶┼╌╤╼┟╌┊┼┼┽╢╍┽╴	<u>─</u> }─┿╍┝╼╿╼╞╍ <u></u> ┨━┋┉ <u>┾</u> ╍	<u>──┼┉╅╼┧┯┨╌╿╌┥╺╅</u> ┉╋╧╉ <u>─</u> ╸	┉┝╍╞╺┝╶┤╴╓╍╎╺╷┼╂╌┨━╸	┍╫┦╾╄╍┿╌┝╼┾╍┞┦╿╸╋	
<del>.</del>	┿┿┿┲┿┿	┝╀┼┿┥	╞ <del>╞┋╗</del> ┿┽╌┠╌┼╢╍┧		╞╾╄╾╎╍╋╍╎╢╼╉╺┪╍┩╍┥		h	
- 18	┥┼┼╋╋┥┤	┊┢╋╁┼┟╂┍┿╇┼┤	┝╍╢╍╄╶┼╶┼╍╋╍╫╾┩	┝╍┫╍┨╍┨╍┫╍┫╍┫╍┫				
- 15								
10							helen her	in the second se
- 11					┝┍╞╼┫╌┨╺╋╍┿╸┨╶╝	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
- 11-	1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-	Lifedar - I - I - Arabia	┞╺╆╍┺╼┦╼┽╾┽┥╆┿╌┥	المرابعة المراجعة المتلبسين	his state of the second se		┝╞┿┿┉┝╋┿┥┩┿┥	
- I H	<u>+                                    </u>	┟┿┿┾┪╂╂╂┿┥	┠┼┼┿┿╋┼┼┼╂┾┙┫	┊╞┼┙╍┝╍┠╼┼╼┤╍┿╍┥╶	┝╶╪╾╆╍┽╌╿╴┾╾╋╍╅╧┥	┝╍┥╍┝╌┟╌╂╧╊╍╫┽┼╶┤	┊╞╍┫╴┽╍┨╍┥╍╅╋┝╍┪	╞╍┝╍┾╼┱╼┋┎╗┲╺┝╌┩
12	<del>ۥ╷╷╻╻</del>	╼╪╉╢┾┲╋┿╎┾╆━	╍╉╍┊┨╎┥┱╪╺┿╹┨╏╘╇╼	╾┶┼╌┼╍┥╼┣╍┾╌┼╶┼╍┝╼	╾┠┼╤╊╍┿╼╫┦╎╍┝╧┿╍╴	╶┨╘┝╍┥╼╡┫╌┨╋┫╍┤╼	<del>┥┥┥┥╿╽</del>	<del>··· ↓  ··<u>↓</u> ···<u>·</u>+··]</del>
- I F	┉┯┯╤┥╏╏╘┫┉╋╼┤	┢╍┉┼┼┼╢┉╈╸┼╌┼╌┨╴		┊┝┥╅╄╋┿┾┼┤┪	╶╴┝╍┾╼┼╍╄╍┞╍┾╼┽╍┥	· ┣╪┿╾╬╍╬╍┽╌╠╍╎┟╍╽╍┥		
- 17		}						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
11								E
- 15								
10			ان بيران بيراني المراسي			أمت المتحد ا		- [
14		Edited at the second		a second and the second second	ti fi dente de la denderad	hite of the factor of the	E	had the second s
- L h-		┋┼┼┼╋┿┿┼┼┥		╞┼┼┼╌╠┥╌┼┼┽	╔╫╴╪╼┥╺╺┨╍┥╶┤╶┼╌┥	المتحد والمتحد والمحاجة المحاجة	┝╍╞╍┝╍┾╌╄╍┞╍	┝╍╞╌╞╌╪┊╢┊╪╌┝╌┇╍┥
- J F	┿┾┼┼╏╴	╞╧┥╼┼╌╋╌╿╾┼╌╪╌┫	╞╾┽╾╪╌╪╼┪┅╬╌┩╌┽╌┤	┋╦╋╍┥╸┾╶╢┥╍╺┢╼╞╶╢	╞┿╌╏╌╡┦┥╺┥╸┿╍╏	in the second second	┋╧╧╘┊╂╌┦╍┨╋┯	իսկսիսի Չերկսիսի
1	┷╍┯─┝╾╏╾┨╍╏╍╏╍╴	╶╪┿╍╉┊╴╢╎╌┿╺┿╍┨╴	╶┼┼╌╬╍╏╌┊╶┤╣╍┝╬╦╸		─ <u>┼</u> ┿┥┥┥ <sub>╵</sub> ┊┼╘┝╶╽╌┤╌	╾┥╍┝╍╃╌╎╴╍┉┞╺╣┈┼╴┼╺╸	╸╪╼╞╌╄╌╀╍┝╌╋┲╌┼╍┥	
. 1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
٦Ľ								
								had a second
	╅╍┧╌┧╌┠╌╍╇╼┇╴╴	╶╬╎┥╸┊╢┝┺╸		┶┶┝┉┝╍┝╼┡╼╄╼┸╍┖┉┢╍			╶┼╦┿╍┥╌┋╌╿╴╢╂┦╼┠╌╽	
- I F	┼╌┉╌╂╂┼╌┝╍╢╴	┊╞┼╍┙╍┿╋┽┨╼┪	┝┿╄╌╬╍┨╾╫┿┿┱╸			Elizabeth and the second s		┝┿╍╞╍╋╍┊╋
÷	<del>╷╷╷</del> ╋╺╋╍ <del>╞╺╎╶╏╺</del> ┦	╞╬╁┋╋┝╋╋╋╋╋	┝╤╪╪┿┉╫┼┼┼┤	╞╦┽┼┼┿╋┪┽╢	╒┧╴┼╶┟╺╢┥╴┼┥	┝╪╪╕┙┙╽╍┠╒ <del>┦</del> ╌┠╍┾╬	╶╔╬╍┼┼╌╆╢╍╊╌┦	┈┝╍╋╼╬╍╬╍╠╬╟╍┱╴╼╍┥
- (h	┥┽┟╋┿┽╉┤		┊┢┩╼┥┼┼┥┥┿┽┥	┉┿╸┿┥┥╸╋┓┡┉┝┯┤			┊┝┿╪╌┼╍┿╸╆╌┲╋╌╋╍┨╌┥	
			┝╌╢╌╢╌╢					
- 10								
10								
16					File Laboratory No.			┝╋┽┽┝┓┋╋
- 11-	<del>╡╞╘╋╡┊┠┩</del>			┝╌┿╍┥╌╉╴┦╌╄╍╊┱┥	Line of the second s			┝╍┟╍┝╺┝╌┝╍┥╌┝╼┥
- 11-	┿┿┿┽┼╁┿┩┿╼	╺┥┥┥┥╢╼	<b>─{∻\\</b>	╺╶┟┇┥╶┥╸┥╼┝╸┥╴╢┪━			╺╞═╠═┟╌┟╌┟╌┟╌╽╴┥	╾╁┼┼┼╌┲┽┸
: IF	┿╋┥ ╶	<u>╞</u> ╬ <sub>╋╋</sub> ┥╏┊╿┊┪╍┢╬	<u>┣┅╪┽┼╁┲</u> ╤╬╬				┊╞┿╍┥╍╄╌┞╼┡╌┦╩┪	┝┥┥╅┾╅╇┷╛
11	<u>; </u> ; ; + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	┝┼┼╍╡┽┽┼╌╁╍┨		╞╍┫╼┝┅╎╾┼╾┿╍┩╦┥			┢┾┿╍┼┼┼┼┲╉╼┨	
15		┝┼╁┽┉┥┅┤┽┥╇┥		╞┼┥╗┥╸╋╴╋╺┽╼┥				
11								
15								
				╞╍╢╍╢┼┼┼┼┙╢╸┓		_ bentantantantantantantantantantantantantan		اسبا سليم بإدار والمجمع
_N-I	s∵ ν=≃ ιυζε		ου∪ <u>400  </u> 0		2 YU		+uu,	
	والمستجد والمعاصين	+uu 200 0	H AMPS +	×۷۷ ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		***************		
11	THANTTIE	CANCENTED -	CENERATOR -	TAL 2 VOL TACE	TH & YOU TARE	FUD ARMATHRE	AFT ASMATURE	MOTOR
_ <u>;</u> _		- GENERATOR	CODENTIA			CUDDENT STOLE	CHORENT ST. L	
10	TOST HUN-	VOL HOL	CUKKENI				hightighting and a low of the	DA SE CAUE MENT
-10							للمواط والتشتايين	- 11 <u>8688 11 1</u> -
10			╾┾┝┊┼┾╋╷┊┠┺┱	╾╎╷╎╺┝╍┝╼╋╾╋╴┝╍┝═╋╼	<u>──</u> <del>──</del> <del>──</del> <del>──</del>	┈┟┊╄╌┠╌┠╌┠╌┨╌┨╼╴	╾╋╦╇╌╢┅┝╍╉╌╏╌╿╼┦╼╎	<u></u>
- I <del>-</del>	<del>┊╺╞╺╞╺╞╺</del> ┫╸	┝╤╞╍┪╌┨╶╴╴╤╺╍┝╾┨	┠ <sub>╋╋</sub> ┥┽┼┼╬ <sub>╋</sub> ╋╇┨	╴┝┵┼╌╂╌╉┅┫┉╏┈╂╼┠╼┫╶	┝╍╁╧┢╍┥┉┞╍┼╌┠╌┡╍┩	- Filmbook - State - S	- Fridanda - Janda - Hamilton (	<u>, ┣</u> ╍╊╍╋╍┿╍╉ <b>╢</b> ╺╄╍┫
.   F	╧╧╧╋┥┿┿╍┨╴	╞╋╦╈┽┼╁╅┉╟┥	┝╋┿┽╁┼╋╬┼┧	╶┝┿┼┼┼┼┿┿┿┽┥╴	╞ <del>╔╋╹┨╶╎</del> ┅┠╍╊╍┼╾╋╼ <sup>┩</sup> ╶╴	<u>he de la compañía</u>	╶┝┥╤╂╤╂╼┞╍╏╍╏╼╋	╽╴┝┿ <b>╢┿┤</b> ╡
- 1 H		<del>╞┇╹┥╄</del> ╈╈┽┽┿╅	┟┼┼┥┥┦┼┼┿┩	╞╋┥┥┽┼╧╻┢┥┽╵				
. ( H		╞┿╾╎╌╻┦╌╍┝╌┥┨	┝ <del>┍┝╶┇╶┇╘┝┍┥╶╏┈</del> ╏	╞╬┿╍┠╌┝╍┫╍┝╌╉╶┼╍┨	┝╗┥┿┿┿┽┼┼┞╝┫	┉╁┉╄╾┼╾╂╼╉╍┝╍╂┵┦		
. : <del>.</del>	<del>\ \ \ \          </del>	╶┼┼╍┝╌╏┥╴┨╶╴		<del>╺╔</del> ┝┼╞╊╝┝┥┼╊╴	그리님과 대장한테는			
. 1i					and a second sec		and the second	

Figure 33. Data Roll No. 2

54
					┝┝┿╢╌┡┥╕┿╝╝		
				a se la cherte la cherte della cherte della cherte della cherte d			╔┿╤╌┥╺╷╧╞╾┥╼╎╾┼╼┨
	╼ <u>┝</u> ┥┥┥╴╴╴╴╸			Aliter of a state and a state of a	- Bill 20 Brain 21 and a star		602
	╼╠╫╧╧╧┥┼┠┦╼			a a far ha	مداور با	── <del>                                    </del>	
			and the second s	and the second state of th	alahan kalendari kalenderi. Kalendari kalendari kalenderi kalenderi.	╝╔┥ <b>╸┝</b> ╺┟╶┼╌╟┈┽╌┿╼┩ ┉╎┯┽╍┝╍╻╼┱╼┶┉╟╴┪	╞╍┫┉┨╶┼┙┫┉┿╺┨╌╢╺┥ ┝╶┼╌┨┉┝╺┨┉┫╶╛╶╴╿╺┥
			and the second sec	ام و دو در این بالو در مرد این در استان مرکز بالو در این ا	and and a state of the state of	┝╍┝╼╋╍┥╍┝╍┝┙ ╴╴┟╌╡┲╕╴┙╴┝╌	■ - + - + - + - + - + - + - + - + - + -
╵║┽┽╁┟┟┟┽┿┨				and and a tripe and array			, 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 199 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994
				مراجع مراجع المراجع ال المراجع المراجع	┝╍┙ <sub>┍┙</sub> ┟╍╬╍╬╺┑╻╖╦╖┾╍┙ ┝╍╘╦╬╺╬╍╌╌┽╴┽╴┾╍┝╸┥		lead and a second s
				- Fringer Hannel	— <del>[- ] ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [</del>		مىرىغى ئەرۋىرىغى ئەرۋىرىغى تەرۋىرىغى 1940-يەر ئەرۋىرىغى ئەرۋىرىغ
			i de la composition d		interaction in the second	· ┣╸┠╾┥╼┨╼┠╸╡╼┥╺┥	and a second
		╶╶╌┧╼┧╼┥┩┝╌╎					
					in a far har an		
						H-H-H-DA	
		╾┠┼┊╋┯╾╢╫╋┯					
	━┍╫┼┿┟╍┉┿┥	┉┝┥╪┼┾╵╉┼╣╍					
				┍┈┝╌┝╌┝╌┝╌┝╌			
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
			╼╫╞═╌╤╺╌┝╌╞═╍╤╴			╾┾┼┼┼┥┿	
{ - <u>⊢</u> −+		┝╍╢╺╟╴┽╴┨╶┝┓┨╼╸┠╴┨					
ا من	╶╷┼┽╉┊	╺╴┝╺┺╼╪╼┥╾┦╞╧┝┝╗╣	╺╫┼┼┿╻┼┼┼┤			┶╍┿╍┾╌┼╍╋┙┾╍┢╌┥	┶╍┿╍╎┉┠╍╞╍┥┥
							┝╾┥╍┥╼╄╍╋╶┽╌┼╾┾╍┥ ┝╍╎┅╽╼┦═┠┨╼┾╍┥╼╉═╡
╎ <u>┍</u> ┽┽┼╞┽┽┨ <sub>┥</sub> ╎┤ ╽╷┼┼╴┾╍┱┑ <sub>┙┱╼</sub> ╢					╾╋╼┥╾┼╴╉╶┨╍┝╌╀╶┨╸ ┝┅┲┙╍┝╌┊╴┶╍┝╍╋╼┧	╼┥╦╔╌╎╴┝╼┥╌╿╶╢┺╾ ┲╗┍┥╸┍┑╏╍┝╾┨╫┥	── <u>┼</u> ┧┉┤╫ <u>┺</u> ┠┥┙ ┝╼┥╼╽╎┼┺╋┿╽╷
						┝╌┼╌┼╍╎╍╎╌┼╌╎╍╣ ────────────	
							en produce de la production de la composition de la production de la composition de la composition de la compos
							╞╾╁╍┧╼┨╼┨╼┥╼┥╺┥ ┝╴╁╍┥╼┨╺┨╼┥╼┪╼┑┥
│ <mark>┝╓┪╌╅╌┨╴╵╍╂╼╵╍┼╶┥</mark> ╎╌┪┉╪╼╉ <del>═┥</del> ╍╋╼╋┲ <mark>╴</mark> ┱═┙			┿┿┿┿┙ ┝╺╶┙┙┙╴	──┿╺╧╺╬╍╢──┨╸┿╾╬┱┿╦╣── ┝──╅┑┥╍ <b>╞╸┽╸╷╴┶╌</b> ╣	——————————————————————————————————————	───────────────────────────────────────	•-+
in the second		and a subsequence of the second se	and a second	Sector of a sector form		10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	n na antar a su a su a
╡╞╍╗╌┼╌┼╾╄╸┿╸╿╼╡ ╷╞╌┧╍╿╼┽╼┨╼╾┶╲╻╍╋╾	┍╶┥┍┥╕┝═╞═╡╍╞╼╄╍╿ ━╋╺╋╍╋╼╋╍				╡╍┥╍┨╶╞╍╬╍┨╼╢╍╔╍╬ ╾┿┿╉╌┨╍╬╼╬╌╝┝╼╋╍╬╍	┝╼╌╎╸╒┝╌┊╴┥╌╻┝╼┥ ━─┼──╎╍┠╌╡╌╋╼╋╍╋╍╋╍	ini si
	harden fandersjalen de stategel mel e ister i de stategel			, and a second s	al a superior and a s		a banan karalar da ar da karalar Az banan da ar da ar da ar
		┝╌┼╌╂╌┨╍┢╌╎┿┼╸	┝┿┿┿┿ ┝┿┿┿┿			╺╺┠╌┼╶┟╍╞╼┟╸┨╶┼╶┼╸┫	
		<b>╶</b> <u></u>					
							╞┫╼╪╤┽┫╌╢
┝┿┿╍┿┥╍┑┿╼	┢╴┲╶┋╼┼╼┨╍┿╍┼╌┨╌	┝╍┝╾╞╌┊╌┊╌┝╍┝╌┿╌╏				┝┥┥┿┿┥┙┥╴┝┥	520
		╶┝╌┉┥╼╡╾╄╍╅╺╴┥╺╄╾╸					
	┝┷┷┷╋╋						barden ander a
المجمع في المراجع المر المحاصية المراجع			h+				· ┝-┿╍╬╍╣╌╎╺╿╍╬╼┦╍╢ ╍╍╋┿┿╧┙╉┉┢╍┪╴╉╴╧┥
السوية ويونو وروم المراجع : المسوحة في في في معرفونه	· hundennin - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$		╵┝╍┺╍┻╍┲┲┼╌┼╌╀╌╀╼┑ ╴╞╾╤╾┨┅┯╌┨╺┱╺╌╢╾╇╼┥				Padarta da la darda da Padarta la da la darda da
N=8 N=1 1217						800 400 40	4000 2000
[한국학 한국대 및 1971년 1 [한국학 한국년 1971년 1	F 3PA-+	HE MPH	HINCHES H	Las x 1000		VOLTS I	AMPS
THROTTLETT	LL ENGINE		MOTOR	DRAWBAR L.	BRAKE	SENERATOR	GENERATOR
	-+->r=ED+-++ -+++->-++++		PUISPEAGEMENT	┥┙┙┙┙╋┠╝╬┝╸┾╬ ┥┍╷╎╴╎╴╎╴╎╴			
	FRA H						
	FFFFF		FFF FFF				TAPE COUNT
				╶╞╴╋╴╴╋╴╴		╶╴┎╴╶╴╎╼╴╴╴╴╴╴╸┝╸┝╸┥╼┿╍┤╌	10 /65 /
SECO.	AUS						765 TO 872
I MINUTE I							10-26-78
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	··			╶┝┊┨┼╂┇┼╄┙	<u></u> <u></u>	╞╍╾╄╍╉┼┼┠╌┦╺╪╍┦

منبوحا

S-34276

Figure 34. Data Roll No. 3

### SECTION 4

SYSTEM ANALYS IS

### INTRODUCTION

The goal of the system analysis was to establish the most advantageous configuration using the two basic system elements defined in the contract SOW. These elements were the EMD SW1500 locomotive and the AiResearch ACT-? Energy Storage Unit (ESU). To define this superior configuration, a preliminary analysis identified four alternate concepts that were evaluated on a relative rather than absolute basis. The performance requirements of the system were identified concurrently with the preliminary analysis where subsequent, indepth analyses could be performed on a firm data base.

### BASIC SYSTEM ELEMENTS

### SW1500 Locomotive

The SW1500 locomotive has been manufactured by EMD since 1968 (see Figures 35 and 36). Another locomotive choice could have been the SW1000. This



Figure 35. SW1500 Locomotive



SIDE ELEVATION a.



CROSS SECTION b.

- 1. COCLING SYSTEM SHUTTERS
- FAN SHROUD AND SAND 2.
- BOXES LOCATION
- 3. AIR COMPRESSOR
- 4. RADIATORS
- 5. EQUIPMENT RACK
- 6. 645E DIESEL ENGINE
- 7. ENGINE BLOWER 8. ENGINE OLL BATH ALR FILTERS
- AUXILIARY GENERATOR
- 10. MAIN GENERATOR
- 11. TRACTION MOTOR BLOWER
- 12. CONTROL CONSOLE 13. AIR BRAKE EQUIPMENT AND
- ELECTRICAL SWITCHGEAR
- 14, BATTERY BOX AND SAND BOXES
- 15. TRUCK
- 16. FUEL TANK

DATA AND ILLUSTRATIONS OBTAINED FROM SW1000-SW1500 OPERATOR'S MANUAL, 2ND FDITION, GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, ELECTRO-MOTIVE DIVISION, SEPTEMBER 1968.

Figure 36. Swi500 Locomotive General Arrangement.

locomotive was introduced in 1966, and is also manufactured by EMD. The basic difference in the two locomotives is the engine size; the SW1000 has a smaller 1000 hp engine. In terms of broad principles, the system analysis described below is applicable to both locomotives. Only detail changes would be required to accommodate a model change.

Specific information on the SW1500 locomotive that is relevant to the study is contained in Table 9.

# 1. Diesel Engine

The engine performance characteristic published by EMD is shown in Figure 37. The brake horsepower is the total mechanical power output pf the diesel engine and includes power to the main generator, auxiliary generator, air compressor, and radiator cooling fan. The traction horsepower is the input to the main generator. The specific fuel consumption curve relates to total engine power output, that is, the brake horsepower.

### 2. Main Generator

The main generator on the locomotive is a Model D32 manufactured by EMD. The generator is directly connected to the diesel engine by a flexible coupling. The engine rotates the generator to develop a rated 600 vdc output voltage at 1700 amp.

The generator is a multifield machine having the following windings:

- (a) <u>Starting Winding</u>--The starting winding is energized by the locomotive battery during engine start to motor the generator and crank the engine.
- (b) <u>Interpole Winding</u>--The interpole winding is provided to assist commutation of armature current.
- (c) <u>Compensating Pole Face Winding</u>--This winding provides compensation for armature reaction and maintains uniform air gap flux distribution.
- (d) <u>Differential Winding</u>--This winding is connected in series with the armature circuit to buck the main field. This produces a droop in output voltage with load current, and alters the generator characteristics so a relatively small change in separate excitation will provide control of generator output power.
- (e) <u>Battery Field Winding</u>--The battery field winding is a separately excited shunt field winding connected to the battery and auxiliary generator circuit. The battery field is controlled by the load regulator, which serves to maintain a constant horsepower demand on the engine for any ampere demand within the capability of the generator and load regulator.

# TABLE 9

# GENERAL DATA OF SW1500 LOCOMOTIVE

Wheels	
Arrangement	B - B
Diameter	40 in.
Diesel Engine	
Model	12645E
Power	1500 hp
Cylinder arrangement	45 deq v
Cylinder bore and stroke	9-1/10 in. x 10 in.
Maximum speed	900 rpm
Idling speed (standby)	330 rpm
ldling speed (working)	493 rpm
Main Generator	
Model	D32
Rating	1700 amp at 600 v
Output	Direct current
Voltage control	Field excitation
Traction Motors	
Model	D77
Туре	Series field, self-excited
Continuous rating	850 #1 amp
Cooling airflow per motor	1400 cfm
Connection	Permanent series/parallel
Gear ratio	62:15
Maximum speed (armature limit)	71 mph
.ocomotive Weight (maximum)	250,000 ib
Consumable supplies	
Sand	30 cu f t
Fuel, basic	600 U.S. gal
extra	1100 U.S. gal





(f) Shunt Field Winding--A small portion of generator output is fed back and used to excite the shunt field. This field is used to adjust generator characteristics in relation to the number and connection of motors powered by the generator.

Figure 38 shows the characteristics of a D32 generator which reflects the traction power available from the diesel engine between maximum current and maximum voltage limitations.

## 3. Traction Motors

The four traction motors are standard D77 models used on most EVD road and switching locomotives. D77 models are series field, self-excited traction motors. The characteristics of the motor used in the SW1500 locomotive are shown in Figure 39. As installed in the SW1500 locomotive, the traction motors are air cooled at 1400 cfm/motor at maximum engine speed from a single engine-driven blower, giving a continuous current rating of 850 amp. Short term ratings are given in Table 10.

### TABLE 10

Duration	Current, Amp	Speed, mph
Continous	850	10.7
1 hr	890	9.8
30 rnin	965	8.7
15 min	1065	7.4

# U77 TRACTION MOTOR RATINGS IN \$\\$1500 LOCOMOTIVE

A more detailed description of the traction motor is given in Section 5 of this report.

# 4. Power and Control Circuits

The simplified power schematic in Figure 40 shows that the traction motors are connected in permanent series/parallel. This arranyement reduces the size of the generator required to supply the motors. For example, if the four traction motors were ail connected in parallel, the generator would have to be capable of delivering 3400 amp at low iocomotive speeds. If all traction motors were connected in series, a generator capability of 2200 v would be required at high speeds. Therefore, the series/parallel connection represents a compromise often made in diesei locomotive practice.

Power control is achieved by the load regulator, which is a plate-type rheostat driven by a hydraulically operated vane motor.



Figure 38. D32 Generator Characteristics (Data from Electro-Motive Division, General Motors Corporation, Curve 2689, October 25, 1978)



Figure 39. Characteristics of D77 Tranction Motor at 260 kw (Data from General Motors Corporation, Electro-Motive Division, Curve SC2673, November 20, 1966)



Figure 40. Simplified Schematic of SW1500 Locomotive

A pilot valve in the engine governor controls a flow of engine oil under pressure to drive the vane motor clockwise or counterclockwise, thereby positioning the rheostat brush arm and regulating the output of the main generator by varying excitation of the generator field. Control of generator field excitation results in control of the load on the engine. Load control on the engine (by the governor) permits the governor to maintain engine speed with regulation of power at the correct level for a given speed.

The pilot value in conjunction with the load regulator requires the engine to assume a predetermined load for each throttle position by controlling the loading of the main generator through the battery field.

Engine speed is controlled using four control solenoids fed from relays controlled by the operator's throttle control. These feeds are trainlined, as shown in Table 11, to give multiple unit control of engines when required.

### TABLE 11

#### ENGINE SPEED CONTROL TRAINLINES

Throttle Position	Throttle Relays Energized	Engine Speed	Trainlines Energized
Stop	D		3
1	None	315	None*
2	А	395	15
3	, C	480	7 Î
4	AC	560	15, 7
5	BCD	650	12, 7, 3
6	ABCD	735	15, 12, 7, 3
7	BC	815	12,7
8	ABC	900	15, 12, 7 ,

\*None of the four "engine speed" trainlines.

# 5. Braking System

The SW1500 locomotive is equipped with a standard 26 NL-type air brake.

## 6. Wheel Spin/Slide Control

Wheel spin is detected by means of wheel spin relays connected in a bridge circuit around each pair of series-connected traction motors (Figure 41). In this circuit, differential wheel spin between a pair of axles is detected by the presence of sufficient differential voltage to pick up a wheel spin relay. When a wheel spin is detected, a wheel spin light is illuminated in the cab and a battery field contactor opened to reduce main generator excitation. Thus, locomotive power on all motors is reduced until sufficient adhesion is regained to reduce the spin, decrease the differential voltage, drop out the spin relay, reclose the battery field contactor, and restore locomotive power to the previous level of output.



Figure 41. Wheel Spin Protection Circuit

In the event of synchronous spin of both axles on a truck, the wheel spin bridge circuits will not receive any differential voltage and the wheel spin relays will not pick up. However, when a synchronous spin condition develops on a single truck, the increase on motor speed will result in a current decrease in each of the spinning motors. The generator voltage and current will increase in the pair of nonspinning motors. The differential current between the motor pairs resulting from this condition will pick up a differential current relay, This relay performs the same functions as the differential voltage sensing relays, and results in the removal of all tractive effort until sufficient adhesion is regained to reduce the differential current below the dropout value of the differential current wheel spin relay.

Synchronous spin of all four axles on the locomotive is undetectable by the wheel spin bridge on differential current circuits, and no automatic protection is provided on the SW1500 locomotive for correction of this condition.

When wheel spin conditions are encountered, the engineer can use fhe sanding switch to apply sand which improves adhesion conditions, or if the locomotive is equipped with automatic sanding circuits, these circuits can apply sand when spin conditions are detected. Wheel slide protection during friction braking is not provided. Although during the data gathering tasks it was noted that the friction brake forces were relatively low (approximately 35,000 lb for a 250,000-1b locomotive), the requirement for 14-percent ddhesion does not result in an unacceptable number of slides.

# ACT-1 ENERGY STORAGE UNIT (ESU)

The ESU in Fiaure 42 shows the ACT-I energy storage unit as designed for the ACT-1 and NYCTA applications. This unit consists of a single ACT-1 type of flywheel assembly with its gearbox and electrical machine. This unit accepts the electrical energy transmitted from the traction motor during braking and stores **it** as mechanical energy in the form of a rotating mass. On demand, this mechanical energy is transformed back to electric power and delivered to the locomotive traction motors so the locomotive may be accelerated initially without the use of power from the diesel engine. Modifications to the ESU for the FESS application are described later.

The fiywheel also provides direct mechanical drive to a large blower and an auxiliary alternator. The alternator is the prime source for the motor field power during normal operation.

# Flywheel Energy Storage Capacity

There is an optimum range of energy storage capacity for the flywheels for rapid transit systems. This defines the storage capacity and not the FESS application to which the ESU is now being applied. This capacity is a function of the vehicle weight and the average velocity profile over which the vehicle will be operated. It was determined that a flywheel capacity of 4.5 kw-hr (12 x  $10^6$  ft-1b) was optimum for the ACT-1 unit.

### Flywheel Assembly

The AiResearch flywheel design employs the laminated disc concepi illustrated in Figure 43. The rotor uses a bearing and seal arrangement similar to that developed for the NYCTA R-32 car energy storage flywheel. The shaft provides a backbone for supporting the disc laminations. The laminations are installed with a thermal differential expansion to the shaft that results in a prestressed fit after assembly. Support plates are located at the rotor ends to act as a secondary bearing in the event of roller bearing failure.

Testing of the NYCTA and ACT-1 energy storage flywheels has produced data for system and component losses that have been used to derive improvements in component operation. A 50-percent improvement has been achieved on the first unit tested. An additional improvement of 20 percent from the present loss value also is expected.

The losses for the current ACT-1 design modified for the FESS application are summarized by component in Table 12.







Figure 43. ACT-1 Flywheet Design

# TABLF 12

Mechanical Losses at 100-percent rpm	Loss, hp
Windage, flywheel Rotor bearings (2) Rotor seals (2) Planetary gears (no load) Planetary bearing (6) Lubrication and vacuum pump Accessory gears	2.0 2.0 2.7 0.5 1.0 1.7 0.3
Total	9.7

# ACT-1 ENERGY STORAGE FLYWHFEL SUMMARY OF LOSSES

### 1. Bearings

The flywheel rotor is supported by two roller bearings. The rings and rollers are made from 52100 steel, which provides adequate strength and hardness at the design operating temperatures. The roller bearings will be provided with thrust capability, eliminating the need for additional thrust ball bearings and thereby minimizing mechanical losses. The design objective is a 110,000-hr B-10 fatigue life for the bearings that provides a margin for any unforeseen loading or operation conditions.

Lateral thrust arising from acceleration, deceleration, or minor misalignnent of the flywheel is reacted by flanges on one of the roller bearings with machined cages. The planetary gears transmitting the power between the motor and the flywheel are supported by roller bearings.

### 2. <u>Seals</u>

The two shaft seals are of conventional design, which is typical of many applications used at AiResearch for high-speed machinery. The seals are of the radial type with a hardened surface rotor that runs adjacent to the carbon face. A surface velocity of 190 ft/sec maximum is well within the operating regime of this type of seal. An operating life of greater than 25,000 hr is expected for this seal.

### 3. Gears

The flywheel drives the motor-generator through a planetary gear train at a gear ratio of 3 to 1. The gears are of the conventional spur-gear type and are designed to operate reliably for 25,000 hr.

# 4. Lubrication and Vacuum System

The lubrication system provides lubrication and cooling for bearings, seals, and gears. An air-to-oil heat exchanger removes the heat losses from the lube oil. The lubricant used is MIL-1-23699, which is a synthetic oil used in turbine engines operating under severe temperature and load conditions. This

70.

system contains a filter and relief valve to provide properly conditioned oil to +he various lubrication points. Lubrication of the bearings is performed by oil Jets. The system is designed to minimize oil splash and reduce oil churning losses.

The lubrication and vacuum pump is similar to the pump used on the NYCTA and ACT-1 energy storaae flywheels, but is removable while the ESU is on the car. The pump is made from two internal gear pumping elements and is typical of lubrication pumps used in aircraft jet engines and gas turbines. The expected life is a minimum of 25,000 hr.

# 5. Rotor Stresses

The shaft and the laminations are proportioned to take maximum advantage of the direction in which the centrifugal stress is applied. The shaft is stressed compressively by the discs and is lightly loaded from the centrifugal forces at maximum speeds. The resulting cyclic loads on the shaft surface are well below the fatigue limit for conventional materials.

The laminations are made from alloy steel formed by hot rolling from billets. The plate thickness is selected to provide optimum containment weight and resistance to buckling. The laminations are heat-treated to obtain a combination of maximum fatigue strength and ductility. Nondestructive testing of the laminations is enhanced by the thin plate design, which can be inspected ultrasonically. Overspeed testing of each disc will further evaluate material properties. AiResearch experience with these inspection methods has provided a high degree of product reliability in rotating machinery.

The laminations are the most highly stressed components in the rotor. The maximum disc stress with no central hole would be approximately one-half that of a disc with a center hole; however, no practical method exists to assemble a laminated disc of this configuration and to retain **it** in a rotor without introducing stress concentration effects such as *tiebolt* holes that would increase the local stress approximately to the levels in the disc with a central hole. In addition, a design of this type would not have the intrinsic rotor integrity provided by a large central shaft.

For the material selected, the maximum disc stress and corresponding average tangential stress must he limited to a level that will provide adequate margins of safety on yield and disc buist speed; however, the limiting criterion for a material exposed to many duty cycles of fluctuating stresses is fatigue strength. Assuming an 8-hr/day, 6-day/week utilization, the flywheel will experience 72,000 cycles during a I-year period. The speed will range from 70 to 100 percent, therefore, half the full stress range is experienced during each cycle. If the maximum stress range experienced is reduced during a duty cycle, the fatigue life of the disc is increased. The stress range in the disc laminations is reduced by introducing a residual stress in the discs with a shrink fit on assembly. The shrink fit creates a residual tensile tangential stress and a residual compressive radial stress at the disc bore at zero speed. At operating speed, the shrink pressure and radial stress is nearly zero, and only the tangential stress remains at the bore. Using the effective Hencky-von Mises bore stress, the beneficial effect of the shrink fit on the disc bore

stress range is illustrated in Figure 44. The maximum stress range experienced by a disc with an 8-in. bore diameter, and a shrink fit designed to prevent separation of the disc from the shaft over the operating speed range, is approximately 15 percent of the stress range experienced by a similar disc with no shrink fit. To assess the effect on fatigue life, a constant-life or modified Goodman diagram should be used. Figure 45 is a modified Goodman diagram for A1S1 4340 steel at an ultimate strength of 200 ksi.

The stresses introduced in the shaft due to rotational speed and shrink **fit** are much lower than those in the discs, and adequate life margins can be achieved with relative ease.

The cyclic bending stresses imposed on the shaft due to gyroscopic moments from the flywheel are relatively low for the design approach used by AiResearch because of the large shaft diameter and bearing span.

### 5. Rotor Dynamics

A critical speed analysis of the flywheel rotor shows that no rotor critical speeds occur in the operating speed range. The required effective bearing stiffness has been determined to position the first two rigid-body critical speeds below the minimum operating speed.

The effective bearing stiffness, damping, and bearing configuration is optimized to locate the critical speeds out of the operating speed range. This effective stiffness is achieved by introducing mechanically resilient bearing supports. AiResearch has found this approach highly successful in many rotating mschinery applications, including the energy storage flywheel for NYCTA. The resilient mounts reduce the rotor-generator vibration and increase the tolerance to rotor unbalance.

### 7. Containment Shield

Under normal conditions, the stress level in the disc should eliminate the possibility of failure from static overload or fatigue; however, after all inspections and production screening processes are performed, manufacturing flaws that could grow to critical size during operation could exist.

The incorporation of a containment shield is, therefore, a requirement of the flywheel system. The shield is of forged steel, 1.5 in. thick.

The containment shield must be capable of protection against projectiles resulting from structural failure of the rotor that may occur during normal operation. A study made of various designs to determine the system weight of the respective designs showed that the prestressed-bore, laminated rotor with a lightweight containment shield resulted in the least system weight.

### Safety Features

AiResearch has considered the safety aspects of the energy storage unit in a public transit vehicle. These considerations are carried through to the FESS application even though there is no passenger involvement. The safety



Figure 44. Disc Bore Stress Range, With and Without Shrink Fit



Figure 45. Modified Gcodman Diagram Showing Benefits of Shrink Fit on Fatigue Life

aspects are summarized below. Although the energy storage unit stores a large amount of energy, **it** can be designed to be safe using the following conservative, achievable, low-risk design practices:

- Conservative design stress levels to ensure that no rotor failure occurs
- Identification of the most severe types of failure and analysis of their potential hazard
- Containment of the rotor for rotor failure, bearing failure, or accidental vehicle impact
- Elaborate inspection and test techniques to ensure proper material and fabrication quality
- Safety devices to prevent unsafe operation

AiResearch has designed, developed, and produced over 3.5 million pieces of high-speed rotating equipment, and most of them are used in man-rated vehicles. Each new design is subjected to extensive verification of design safety, including burst testing. AiResearch has accumulated a vast knowledge of the theory and test data that allows design safety optimization, including rotor containment, of a high-speed rotating device such as the energy storage unit.

The material selected for the flywheel is optimal (based on cyclic fatigue, high strength, and fracture toughness) and within the constraints of reasonable cost for material and fabrication. In addition, the multiple disc design is inherently safe because of the following considerations:

- Simultaneous fracture of all the discs is exceedingly remote; hence, only a small portion of the stored energy is dissipated in a burst.
- The flywheel cannot be oversped because the discs will lose their radial contact with the shaft, and thus the shaft will not transmit further torque to the discs.
- Failure of one disc will serve as a brake for the rotor, and the rest of the stored energy will be dissipated slowly as heat.
- The disc material has high ductility that allows the discs to creep rather than fracture in the event of rotor overheating.

The laminated flywheel design provides important safety features with respect to the possibility of a triaxial hub burst of the rotor caused by a defect that is normally undetectable during flywheel operation. The use of many stacked laminations limits the kinetic energy release to a minor fraction of the available kinetic energy in the complete flywheel. Particle containment is achieved through the use of a lightweight high-strength ductile housing material. Momentum transfer to the surrounding structure is limited to the translation and rotation caused by burst of the lamination. The triggering effect of the subsequent unbalance and shock can then employ a braking device to decelerate the flywheel. The shock loads are limited to a value established by shear pins located in two girth rings that surround the propulsion unit. This arrangement prevents the main mounts from being loaded to failure in the event of rotor seizure.

## Gyroscopic Effects

Although the flywheel possesses a relatively large angular momentum when spinning at its design speed of 11,000 rpm, the resultant gyroscopic forces will not have an adverse effect on car performance or flywheel component life.

Since the spin axis of the flywheel will be parallel to the longitudinal axis of the car, no qyroscopic moment will be developed by angular movement of the car about this axis (roll). Considering the case of car motion about the pitch axis (e.g., car front-end up, car rear-end down) and assuming that the ends of a 50-ft-long car are moving up and down at an amplitude of  $\pm 6$  in. at a frequency of 1 oscillation per second, it can be shown that a gyroscopic moment of 2654 lb-ft will be developed. This moment will increase the side loading on the four ESU mounts by 514 lb per mount, which is less than 30 percent of the load on the mounts from the ESU weight, and is well within design limits.

In the case of a car negotiating a turn of 145-ft radius at a speed of 33 mph, a vertical load of 685 lb will be developed at each mount. This load is approximately 40 percent of that due to ESU weight alone, and again is well within design limits particularly since speeds of this magnitude are not achieved within the switchyard.

Comparing these forces to the empty car weight of 50,000 |b and the maximum loaded weight of 123,000 |b, it can be seen that the gyroscopic forces do not present a problem.

### Input-Output Machine

The following is a description of the input-output machine that is coupled to the flywheel.

## 1. Rating

The machine has a rating of 610 kw, 1200 v, 540 amp, 2730- to 3900-rpn range. The peak rating is 1020 kw, 1200 v, 900 amp as a motor; and 540 kw, 600 v, 900 amp as a generator.

### 2. Type of Machine

The input-output machine is a separately excited shunt with pole face winding to compensate the armature reaction. The frame is fully laminated to give good commutation under all steady-state and transient load conditions.

### 3. Insulation

The insulation of the armature and stator winding is Class 200. It consists of Kapton (polyimide film) insulated copper wire, with Kapton ground insulation in the armature and pole face winding, and mica paper insulation on shunt and interpole coils. The other insulation materials are glass tapes, either untreated or treated with high-temperature El-staged resins. The armature is vacuum-pressure impregnated into solventless silicon resin; after partial curing, **it** is dipped into the same resin and then fully cured. The stator windings are impregnated and dipped in the same silicon resin and cured. After mounting and connecting the coils into the stator, the whole stator is dipped into a high-temperature polyester resin and cured. Nomex and flexible mica sheets are used on supports.

### 4. Armature

The armature consists of low-silicon steel laminations pressed on a solid shaft. End-support rings keep the laminations under uniform pressure. The commutator is of the ring-nut type, with a spring ring to give it elasticity in axial direction, and to prevent overstresses under all speed and temperature conditions. The slot wedges are machined from glass laminate impregnated with high-temperature polyester to prevent delamination of wedges The end bands are made from parallel-filament (weffless) glass fibers held together by B-shaped resin. It is wound hot with a high preload over the end turns and then cured. The armature conductors are TIG-welded to the risers in such a fashion that the copper of the commutator bars is not overheated during the welding operation. After the resin treatment, the commutator is finish-turned and the copper bars are beveled.

# 5. Stator

The magnetic active portion of the stator is made up of octagonal-shaped laminations with the same axial length as the armature. End plates of the same shape are on the commutator end bell and other side; after pressing the stator stack, eight tiebars are welded between the two end plates to make a stator housing. The main pole seats, bearing fits, shield registers, brushholder supports, etc., are machined concentric to each other to ensure a uniform air gap. The precise circumferential positioning of the main poles and interpoles is assured by recesses in the stator laminations into which the poles fit.

The shunt field windings are fitted to the main poles and then mounted into the stator. Then the interpole coils are mounted on the poles, the pole face winding is inserted in the pole face, and all the coils are connected to each other and to the motor leads.

### 6. Bearings and Seals

Roller bearings are used--the one on the commutator is locked against a shoulder with a locking ring; the other is floating. The seals are of the labyrinth type. The bearings and seals are lubricated with a suitable grease that will withstand all temperature conditions. No regreasing between overhauls will be necessary.

77

### 7. Brushes and Brushholders

The brushes will be of the split type with an elastic pad on top to distribute the spring pressure evenly and to dampen any vibrations. The brush springs will be of constant force over the whole useful brush length. The holders are mounted to insulated radial studs that are mounted to the brushholder lugs on the stator. Positioning of the brushholder lugs is from the pole recesses of the stator to ensure perfect neutral position.

### 8. Ventilation

The machine is ventilated with filtered air entering from the air inlet or the noncommutator side. This ensures a clean motor free of contamination, including carbon dust. The air is distributed by means of an inlet baffle, which gives the right amount of air to the stator and rotor. The rotor air distribution gives the optimum cooling to end turns, armature core, and under the commutator.

### COMPUTER SIMULATION

Two computer programs were constructed: (1) a simulation of the standard SW1500 locomotive, and (2) a modified version that provides for energy storage and recovery. These programs have been used to generate various performance profiles under a wide range of operating conditions. The standard SW1500 simulator has been exercised in test profiles that have been directly compared with data taken during actual tests of an SW1500 in Atlanta. The results indicate a good overall representation by the model in both the ballistic sense and the fundamental electrical parameters, and also in fuel consumption calculations.

The models simulate the locomotive to a fine level of detail. The major parameters are provided as printout at 1-sec intervals (internal computation takes place at 0.1-sec intervals) and include such quantities as: acceleration, speed, drag force, total tractive effort, motor parameters (rotational speed, current, voltage, torque), main generator operation, diesel engine primary performance parameters (brake horsepower, rotational speed, fuel consumption) and others. The simulator for the standard SW1500 responds to an input profile of locomotive throttle notch setting vs time. Although not shown in the printouts provided here, considerably more detail internal to the programs can be accessed such as motor iron and copper losses, efficiency and gearbox losses, Davis drag components, etc.

The format of the digital programs of these models is arranged so they can be easily reconfigured  $\pm_0$  run 4-axle and 6-axle vehicles with the existing motor subroutines. Other motor designs may be substituted using the same motor subroutine format.

### Series Motor Model

The standard SW1500 model functions are shown in general terms in the block diagram of Figure 46. The detailed printout includes parameters corresponding to those recorded during actual tests of the SW1500. There-fore, the model performance can be evaluated by direct comparison of time profiles of actual test data and overall fuel consumption for a given task.







S-34173

.79

The input card deck for the model is straightforward in terms of train consist, locomotive gearbox ratio, motor operating temperature, throttle notch vs time profile, etc. The deck consists of nine data cards as shown in Figure 47, sheet 1 (bottom inset). The model can be run in a car kicking mode and in a cut fetching mode and can simulate a variety of operating conditions using the throttle notch profile as the variable input.

Examples of the model operating in fetch mode and switching mode are shown in the computer printout sheets of Figures 47 and 48, respectively. The first page of the printout reflects the input card deck so that the output performance data may be examined in proper context. To simplify the input deck structure, the characteristic data for traction motors, main generator, and diesel are stored as separate subroutines internal to the program. The simulator responds to the throttle notch vs time profile in the same way as the real locomotive does. Braking is initiated when throttle notch command is negative.

The model incorporates the major time constants of the machine. These include the rate of increase in engine speed for a change in throttle setting (which is dependent on the engine speed) and braking tractive effort ramp rate. Electrical transient data due to system inductance, resistance, and capacitance ratios are not simulated. The characteristic lags can be observed in the second-by-second printout vs throttle setting, and in the drive/brake transition. Currents and volts in the printout are per motor. Tractive effort (TE) as shown includes Davis drag, air brake, and traction motors output at the wheels (including geprbox and motor losses). The drag shown is Davis drag only, in pound-force at the wheels. The diesel engine rotational speed (DSL-RPM) and fuel consumption shown in Figures 47 and 48 reflect the road test data collected at Innman Yard, Atlanta, June 26 and 27, 1978.

The fetch mode printout of Figure 47 takes the model through an acceleration phase, then a short run at constant speed, and finally braking to a stop with locomotive brake, all on level track. The model also can accommodate coasting (engine idling and no brake) and the effects of grade. Figure 48 shows two cycles of a switching operation starting with 16 cars and kicking 2 at a time, ending with 12 cars.

The run summary in Figure 47, sheet 4, is self-explanatory and shows total time and distance, total fuel consumed, and rms current per motor. The final item in the printout is the statistical summary, which is generated in the same format as that used in summarizing the scenario tapes data reduction. This data may be combined into a daily operating composite, providing one method of comparison of daily yard operation. The summary for the switching example is similar. There are intermediate run summaries for each set of cars switched out and a trip summary. Usually, the printout would continue until all cars in the cut are switched out; the example in Figure 48 was terminated on a time limit for brevity.

>>>> Sw 1500 C 4 077	IS SERIES-PARALLE	C) AIM-HBAKING ONLY	<<0 <sup>0</sup>	51114180 PT 146 20
	DD DRAG COFFS K[± K2=	WEIGHT LBS # VEHICLE POTNE	AALES # CAPS PEP CAP	
LOCOHOTIVE >	.03002880	248000. 20000.	4.	
FREIGHT CARS	.0450 .0450	108000. 10000.	4. 22.	
L0C0M GR =62./15.	WHEFL ()\$A=40+0	INCHES GEAR BX EFF	= .970 TM TEMP =160. C	
THROTTLE PUSITION PROFIL THROTTLE PUSITION PROFIL THRE IS	t CH ± 2. 3. SEC1= .υ 8.0	5. 100. 12.0 50.0 70.0 120.0	-00. 3v0.0 370.0	
•			DIESEL RPM HAMP RATE = 21. +Ax BRAKE TE = -200	G RPM/SEC (AROVE NX≠4) 340, LHS
			PRK HAMP TIME 3.0 BRK HELEASE	) FLC Ph
т		064 CONTROL 05LT4 PPINT Time PRINT DIAGN DIAGN	T = .1000 SEC INTERVAL =1.0000 SEC LIMIT =120.00 SEC LEVL = 3. (ZERU is MIN) OSTIC STAPT N .00 SEC DSTIC INTERVAL = .000 SEC	
PUN NTC+3460-250476 #ASG+A NTC-62.	DECK (9 dat 5-/03-0106+177+?	ta Cards)	CN(P = 0 (PR0) IF =1 )	
SYPL ALCHICKICKICKICKICKICKICKICKICKICKICKICKICKI	26	·		
	24x100 20000	APALLEL ATP-BPAKING 4.		
•045 •045 ) 62. II. 4	109000 10000. 40	4. 27. 16ú.		
2. J.	1. 12.0 50.	0101 - 70. 120. 3	.0101 00. 370.	
2120000.	3.∎. υ.Ĥ			
0.1 1.0	129 3			

.

Figure 47. SW1500 Simulator Gutpel, E tch Mode (Sheet 1 of 4)

T(SEC)	NPE	FEFT	"PULSEC TE (LUS) DRAG	TUZMTR	PPH	AMPS	V01151	GENKW	HHF	USL-RPF	661 11-8	L-NCH SASO
•00	<b>U</b>	• 0	=000 .0 -2670.0	• 0	• 0 ·	10.0	0	+00	c0.0	300.0	• 0.0	de la companya de la comp
1.00	• 5 •	• 1	.254 33248.3 -4386.6	1911.2	7.9	799.H	36.0	115.12	147.7	316.0	12.66	2.
5.00	5	7	.263 34401.3 -4401.5	40.32.6	16.8	820.9	43.1	141.58	236.2	376.0	16.78	2
. 3 <b>.</b> 00	•1	1.5	+252 32760.7 -4417.U	3863.7	25.9	791.5	48.5	153.39	254.3	391.6	18.12	2.
4.00	1.4	2.×	-229 29666.0 -4431.3	3545.6	34.3	735.3	52.1	153.24	251.6	340.0	1	
5.00	1+2	4.4	.209 27169.2 -4444 5	3285.4	41.9	689.6	55.5	153.04	263.3	396.0	1 1 7	
6.00	1.4	6.4	.193 25031.1 -4456.7	3044.5	48.9	65 4.2	56.5	152.93	252.9	390.0	1	C
7.00	1.6	8,5	.179 23269.0 -4468.0	2882.6	55.4	622.5	61.4	152.85	252.7	390.0	16 0.5	
· 8.00	1.8	11.0	·168 21785.7 -4478.7	2129.5	61.4	596.2	64 3	152.78	262.9	390.0	10 10	· ·
9.00	1.9	13.4	.173 22658.3 -4489.2	2821.3	67.3	612.0	68.9	168.57	277.1	429 0	10.00	<u> </u>
10.00	2+1	16.7	·140 23440.1 -4500.2	2414.5	71.4	626.2	73. n	184.75	102.1	445 1	17031	3.
11+00	5*3	50.0	.171 22264.9 -4511.3	2776.5	79.6	604.1	76.6	185.20	302.7	465 0	20.000	3.
12.00	2.5	23.4	A.1524- 4.50015 501.	2658.9	85.3	583.9	- ŏ. ĭ	105.16	302.5	445 0	20109	
13,00	2 4	27.2	.172 22555.1 -45.14.4	2815.0	91.1	611 0	. 84 7	202 11	334 0	405.0	20.08	
14.00	2.0	31.1	183 23979 3 -4541.7	2464.2	97.1	636.3	94 5	230.37	376 6	400 V	23,05	<b>.</b>
15.00	3.0	35.4	193 25245.9 -4555.9	3097.1	103.8	658-6	96.3	253.74	405.4	507+V	27+20	2.
16.00.	3.2	39.9	+202 26375+7 =4568-7	1215.9	120.6	674.3	102.3	377 63	430 0	540 6	21+75	
17.00	3.4	44.7	+225 29538+0 =45d2.6	3546.0	116.0	736.4	110.7	106 66	4374.0 615 0	547.0	30.39	
18400	3.6	49.9	-248 12427.7 -4598 2	3847.9	126.2	788.7	119.2	323.00	21207	570.40	34+07	· · · · ·
19.00	3.9	55.4	266 14856 5 -4615 3	4102.1	135 1	032 0.	136 0	370442 435 50	. 37U.2	24140	37.90	- <b>1</b>
20.00	4.6	61.3	-282 36876.5 -4633 8	4313 0		960 0	120 0	420.39	744 8	012.00	41+80	2.
21.00	4 4	67.6	274 35642.0 -4652.9	4187.6	154.3	947 6	1 3 4	412,07	74460	033.0	45.14	5.
22.00	4 1	743	+262 34111.0 =4671.3	4030.4	169.6	620 6	1 7 7	463434	75460	635.0	40+23	<b>b</b> •
23.00	5 0	81.4	251 32735.5 4689.2	1889.3	172.6	794 0	1			- 030+U	40.021	2 • C
24.00	5.2	88.9	-241 31434-1 -4706-6	3755.0	19200	77000	172+0	403.77	104.3	035+0	46.20	5. ·
25.00	5.5	96.7	.232 30255.3 -4723.4	3635.1	199.4	761 3	10/+2	405 65	754.1	0.35.0	46.19	5.
26.00	5.7	164.9	-224 29182.6 -4739.7	3636.3	107.7	7217	101.1	402402	10340	035+0	40.18	
27.00	5.9	123.4	-211-2P201-8 =4755.6	3625.1	1714-2-	717 2	100.0	403.07	2.00	035.0	46.11	
28.00	6.1	172.2	-210 27297.6 -4771.0	332341	20240	407 9	1 0 2	407807	12444	6.15+0	46.16	5 <b>5</b> 5
29.00	6.3	131.3	- 2017 26436 3 - 4786 1	333107	21247	67112	1 4 2	600.70	153+0	-035+0	46.14	5.e -
30.00	6.5	140.7	.197 25649.2 -4HGA.9	31.44.5	226.6	440 W	101 3	403+10	75240	0.15.0	46+13	2.6
31.00	67	150.4	-191 24020.1 -4615 3	3000 2	220.0	267.0	101+3	485.70	152.0	. 535.0	96.12	5.
32.00	6 9	160 4	186 24241 7 -4820 4	2021 1	230.0	00140	10411	48,00	122.0	030.0	40+14	7.
33.00	7.1	170.7	181 73607.3 -4843 A	202101	237.0	643.7	180 0	485.82	152.4	635.0	46.11	5.
34.00	1.1	181.2	-177 23013-4 -4854 T	273941	240.2	03211	191.3	485.84	152.3	635.0	46.11	5.
35.00	7 4	192.6	.172 22455.5 -4870.0	2070.0	254 5	62467	174.4	482.07	24.4	0.35.0	46.10	5.
36 . 00	7 6	203.1	116 21930-2 -4883 o	203740 3704 E	250.55	604 1	147.5	485.87	152+1	635.0	46.10	5.
37.00	7.8	214.3	-164 21434.4 _4895 B	270013	370 3	600+1 607 (	200.4	403.91	152.0	035.0	46,09	5.
38.00	7.9	225.9	-161 20965 4 -49/15 4	2,30,3	27012	577+4	203+4	403.94	751+7	635.0	46:09	÷ د
39+00	ė.	237.6	157 20521-0 -4920 C	2000.7	212+7	509.2	200+2	485,96	15148	635+0	46.09	5.
40.00	e 3	240 6	-154 20000 0 -4032 0	204480	20144	20103	209.0	485.90	15148	635.0	46.08	5.
41 00	- F 4	261 9	151 19697 5 _4944 0	2601107	- 60.8	5/3.0	£11+7	486.01	75147	635.0	46.08	5.
42.00	8.4	274.3	148-19315-C _4954 7	2200.7	207.3	200,1	<14.4 317 0	486,03	151.0	635.0	46,08	5.
43.00	8.7	287.0	-145 18940.5 -4940 4	202284	27(+3		21/+0	480.05	/51.0	635.0	46.07	5.
44-00	8 9	299.0	143 16500 5	243247	302+2	223+3	514.0	486.07	751+5	635.0	46.07	5 e
45.00	9.6	212 9	140 18364 7 _4991 0	243043	30783	54/+1	222.1	486.10	(51.5	635.0	46.07	5.
46.00	9.1	336 3	-138 17943 0 _E003 4	2410+0	312 4 4	241+1	224.0	486.12	751-4	635.0	46.07	5.
47.00		320 7	-135 174317 -200214	235441	311+2	232+3	227+0	486.14	751+4	635.0	-46+06	5.
49-00	7.3	33701	+133 1(030+3 =7013+4	2373+7	321+9	529.7	229.4	486.16	751.3	635.0	46.06	5.
0100°	7.7	353.4	131 17057 0 EADE A	2324.3	360.0	524.4	231.8	485.18	/51.3	635.0	46.06	5.
50.00	0.7	391.4	*100 17100 0 EV*C * *131 11054*0 =0032*0	2290,9	331.2	-519.2	234.1	486.20	191.5	635.0	46.06	5.
51-00	О Ц	30164	*127 JU70J#0 #3045#6	6200.0	335+1	514.3	236.4	466.22	751+2	635.0	46.06	5+
52-001		37360		771.2	338.9	204 1	101 0	205./8	346+7	468.8	23.80	1.
53.00	9.3	4 3 C a C		431+1	337 <b>.</b> 4	100.0	130.2	96.90	1/2.5	326+3	11.62	1•
54 00	540	.444.5		305.1	337.0	1/0.4	112+6	81+67	150.0	310+0	9.80	1.
55.00	07	430.0		365.6	338.6	170.5	117+7	81.68	150+0	310.0	9.80	1.
22800	7.1	4244		360 1	338,2	170.6	119.7	81.68	150.0	310.0	9.80	1.

Figure 47. Continued (Sheet 2 of 4)

												(1) A. (1) A. (2)		
T(SEC)	Nbr	Fëtt	"PHISEC TE (LES) DEAG	TOZETR	<b>RPM</b>	AMPS	27 10 V	DE HAR G	u=0					1
.55,10	9,1	4 4 3	012 -1528.5 -5051.5	366 1	338.2	170.7	1167	61 40	16.0 0	USL HRPM	GALZER	L=MCH	SALD	
56.00	9.7	467.2	012 -1523.5 -5050.6	366 5	337.6	170-8	110.6	01.407	100.0	310.0	9.0	1.	н., с. н. А.	÷.,
. 57.00	5,7	41 4	012 -1518.0 -5049.7	367.0	337.4	170.9	110 5	C1+07	150+0	310=0	9+60	. <b>!</b> * .		
58.00	9.7	495.7	-+012 -1512.5 -504H.7	367.5	337.0	171.	110 5	01+74 01-76	120.0	310.0	9.80	1.		
59.00	9,7	509.9	-012 -1507.0 -5047.8	16H 0	336.6	171 1	1170 0	01.71	1.20.00	310.0	9100			
60+00	9.7	524-1	T+012 -1501-5 -5046-0	368.6	336.2	171	11707	01.911	10000	310.0	9.80	1	1.1.1	
61+00	9.7	538.3	011 -1496.0 -5045.9	168.9	375.8	171.3	11743		150.0	310.0	9.80	1.		
62.00	9.1	552.4	011 +1490.5 =5044.9	369.4	335.4	171.4	110 2	010/2	100+0.	310.0	9.00	· 1+		
63.00	9.0	566.6	011 -1485.1 -5044.0	160.0	335.0	171 5	11742	01413	130.0	310.0	9.80	1.		
64.00	9.6	580.7	011 - 1479.6 - 5041.1	370 3	334.6	171 6	11945	11 I I I	120.00	310.0	9480			
65.00	9.6	594.9	011 -1474.2 -5042.1	378.8	334.2	171.7	117 .1	01,175	120.0	310.0	9.00		1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	÷
66.00	9.6	609.0	<b>=</b> •011 =1468 7 =5041.2	371.3	337.9		117+0	01.75	.1⊐0+U	310.0	9.00	1+ .		. •
67.00	9.4	623.0	-:011 -1463.3 -5040.3	371.7	333.4	171.9	119.0	01.76	12040	. 310.0	<b>4.0</b> 0	1.		
68.00	9.6	637 1	-+011 -1457.9 +5039.4	372.2	277 1	172.5	11647	01.76	150.0	310.0	4490	1.	1.1.2	
69.00	9.6	651.2	011 -1452.5 -5u38.5	372.7	332.7	172 1	116.0	01 77	150+0	310=0	9460.	1.	5	
70.00	9.6	665.2	-+011 -1447+1 -5037+6	373.1	372.7	172.3	110.0	0, 70	12040	310.0	9.80			
71.00	9.5	679.2		-20.4	331.6	10.0	1101/		120+0	310+0	9.60	1.*	10.00	1
72.00	9.5	693.2	→•040 =5/29-1 =5032-8	-20.4	330.2	10.0	0.0		2100	300.0	4.07	-0.		
73.00	9.4	707.1	089-11890.6 -5027.8	-20 A	328.1	10.0	- 0,5 A A	• .34	21.0	302.0	4.07	-0.	1.1	
74.00	9 3	720.9	140-18547-9 -5018-8	-20.3	324.3	10 0	0 • •	199. 199.	2100	302+0	4.07	-U.		
75.00	9.2	734.5	191-25200-9 5005-4	+20.3	314.6	10.0	0.7	. 33	21+0	302.0	4.07	÷0.		
76.00	9.0	747.8	- 193-25184 7 -4990 1	-20 2	311 0	10.0	0.3	33	. 2145	302.0	4.07	-0.		
77.00	6.6	760.8	-193-25168-5 -4974-7	-20.1	3/5.2	10.0	. 0,1	, 22	£1.9	302.0	4.07	-0.		
78.00	Ë 6	773.6	- 193-25152.6 +4959.4	-20.1	202.5	10.0	·	. 32	21.0	302.0	4.07	=0.	1.1	
79.00	8.4	786.0	193-25137.4 -4944.2	=20.1	291.8	10.0	7 7	121	21.02	342.0	4.07	-0.	1 A A	
80.00	8.2	798.2	- 193-25122.7 - 4929.1	+20.1	295.1	10.0	7 2	. 30	21.4	302.0	4.00	•0•	1 A	Ξ.
61.00	6.6	810.1	= 192=25107.2 = 4914.1	=20.1	278.4	10.0	7 5	.30	61.4	302.0	4.06	-0-		
82.00	7.8	821.7	- 192-25092-4 4999.2	-20.1	271.7	10.0	7 3	30	¢ 1 • •	302.0	4.05	-0.		÷ .
83.00	7.6	<b>033</b> n	192-25077.h -4884.4	+20.1	265.1	10.0	7 3	• 2 7	21.9	302.0	4,00	-0+		- 1
A4 00	7.4	844.1	-192-250-2.9 -4864 7	-20.1	250.4	10.0	7 8 6		21+3	302+6	4.00	°°U+:		
85.00	1.2	854.9	-192-25048-3 -4855-1	-20-1	251.7	10.0		.20	2103	302.0	4.00	-0.	1 - E 1	٠.
86.00	7 1	865.4	**192+25033.8 _4840.6	-20.1	246.0	1.0.0	4 9	940	C1+3	302.0	4.00	-0.	- 1	
87.00	6.9	875.6		-20-1	239.4	10.0	4 7	. 27	21.3	302.0	4.00	- 0 -	· · · ·	÷.,
88.00	6.7	885.5	-192-25005.1 -0811.9		23017	1040	× ~	121	21+2	302.0	4.00	-0.		
89.00	6.5	895.1	=.192=24991.0 =4797.H	-20+1	23101	10.0	0e7 4 4		2112	30210	4.05	-0.		
80.00	6.3	904.5	-191-24976.9 -4783.7	-20-1	22301	10.0	6 3	+ 20	2102	302.0	4.05	-0.	· · .	
91.00	6.1	913.6	-191-24962.9 -4769.7	-20-1	211.4	10.0	0.3	• 2 3		302.0	4405	-0.	1.7	
92.00	5.9	972.4	-191-2494940 -4755.8	1 1	205-1	10.0	- del	124	2101	302.0	4.05	-0.		
93.00	5.7	0.30.0	- 101-24035 3 -4742 1	-20 1	100 5	10.0	5 0	22	5141	202.0	4.00	70.	1. A.	
94 00	5.5	939 1	- 191-24921 6 -4728 A	=20.1	191 8	10.0	57	23	21 1	302.0	4,U3 4,05	<b>₩0</b> .	(1, 2, 2)	
95.00	5.3	947.1		=20 1	185.2		5.6	.22	21-0	302.0	4.03	-0.	11. A	
96.00	5.1	956.6		-20.1	178-6	10.0	5.6	22	21.0	302.0	4403	-U.	1.1	
97.00	5 a	962.2		-20-1	171.9	10.0	5,3	. 21	21+0	302.0	4.03	-0.	·	
98.00	4.8	969.3		=20.1	165.3	10:0	5 3	21	21.0	302.0	4 04	-0.		
99.00	6.6	976.1	g.191-24854.7 -4661.5	-20-1	158.7	10-0	5.1	1	21.0	302.0	4.04	-0.		:
100.00	6.4	982.7	Pa 190 - 248 41.7 - 4648 - 5	- EV - 1	152.1	10.0	4.9	20	20.0	302.00	~ 04	-0.		
101-00	4.2	999.0	- 190-74828-7 -4676 S	-201	145.6	10.0	407	10	20.7	302.0	4.04	-0.	1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	
102.00	6 0	005.0	-100-24016.9 -4423 4	-20.1	130.0	10.0	4+0 4 *	. 17	2049	302.0	4904 4 44	-0+		
103.00	3.6	1000.7	#17V~5701700 =7046#6 #190926907.0 =6400 0	-20.1	133.3	10.0	<b>**</b> *É	+17 10	20.9	30290	4 . 0 4	-0.	14 1	
104.00	3.6	1006 2		-20.1	136,3	10.0	<b>7.</b> 3	10	20.0	342.0	9.0U4 6.04	•• U •	1.1	
105.00	3.4	1011.2			14307	10.0	***	•10	20.0	302.0	<b>4</b> ,0V4	#0 •		
106.00	1.2	101103		-2041	112.6	10.0	4.5	• 1 f. • 7	20.0	302.0	4.03	-0.		
107.00	3 0	101012		-2011	11542	10.0	7+1	011	2010	30210	9 ± U.J 4 0 0	- U #		
108-00	2.0	102067		-20-1	102+7	10.0	4,0	* 10. 1 F	2007	302+0	EU # #			
109200	2.7	1020.7			7703	10.00	3.7	410	2047	342.00	1 U L P	-00	1.	
110.00	2 5	106702		-2011	7241	10.0	3.1	• 1 7	20.47	302+0	4.03	-0.		
110000	C e C	103360	_#103_5417044 4435345	-20+1	00+1	. 10.00	3+b	• 1 **	2007	302.00	4		<ol> <li>1.1</li> </ol>	

Figure 47. Continued (Sheet 3 of 4)

- ÷ ·									· · · ·			
T(SEC)	MPH FEET	MPH/SEC TE(LAS) DRAG	TOZMTR	RPM	AMPS	VOLTS	GENKK	BHP.	DSL #ŘPM	GALZER	THNCH	SAND
110.10	2,5 1033,3	-,189-24715.2 -4522.0	-20.1	85,5	10.0	3.6	.14	20.7	302.0	4.03	-0	34.40
111.00	2,3 1036,5	189-24704.4 -4511.2	+20+1	79.5	10.0	3.5	. 1 -	20.7	302.0	4-03	-0.	
112+00	2.1 1039.7	189-24692.5 -4499.3	-20.1	73.0	10.0	3 3	11	20.6	302.0	4.03		1.1
113.00	1.9 1042.6	189-24680.7 -4487.5	-20.1	66.4	10.0	3.2	1.3	20.6	302.0	4.03	-0-	1.1
114+00	1.7 1045.3	189-24669.0 -4475.8	-20.1	59.8	1 1 . 0	3 1	.12	20-6	302.0	4.03	=0.	
11500	1.5 1047.7	169-24657.4 -4464.3	-20-1	53.2	10.0	2.9		20.6	3.2.0	A-02		- 1 L
116.00	1.3 1049.8	-,189-24645.9 -4452.8	-20.1	46.7	10.0	2.8	. 11.	20.5	302.0	4.07	-0	
117.00	1.2 1051.6	189-24634.5 -4441.3	-20-1	40-1	10-0	2.0		20.5	30210	- 02 - 07	-0	1 - 1
118.00	1.0 1053.2	189-24623.2 -4430.0	-20+1	33.6	10.0	2.1	.10	20.5	302.0	402	-0.	
119.00	6 1054,5	189-24612.0 -4418.8	-20.1	21.0	10.0	2.0	10	20.5	302.0	4.02	0.	1

>>>> PUN SUMMARY ... TIME(SEC) FEET BAL RMS AMPS BRK KWHP GEN KWHP # CARS 120.0 1055.4 .636 439.7 2.58 5.80 22.

05 JAN 79 08143103

---- LOCOMOTIVE ACTIVITY -- ACCUM TIME (MINUTES), PUN TOTAL = 2.00

ARM AMPS	>30		1.18	
	>200	ż	86	
	>500	=	.83	
	>1000	=	• 0 0	
SPEED (НРН	)>0+5	Ŧ	1.96	
	>2.0	≠	1.72	
	>4.0	=	1.37	
	>6.0	=	1.07	
	>8.0	=	•71	
	>10.	₽	•00	
	>15.	×	.00	
	>20.		.00	

---- ACTIVITY RATIOS

**FIN** 

84

12.2	¥	I THE BETWEEN	0.5	AND	2,	нрн
17.2	¥,	1	2.	AND	4.	MPH
15+3	۴,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	4.	AŃD	. 6.	м₽н
17+8	*		6+	AND	8.	мрн
35.6	¥		.8.	ANO	10.	UP"
• 0	9,		10+	ANO	15.	MPH
• 0	8		15+	AND	20.	MPH
· • 0	æ			· >	20.	мрн
43.1	g.	ACCEL				
39.8	7	PRAKE				

2786 5 10

Figure 47. Continued (Sheet 4 of 4)





113	SEC1 -	PPF	FEFT	HE USEC.	TE (LRS)	DHAG	TOZHTP	HF.M	AMPS	VOLIS	GENNN	ннР	DSL-RPM	GALZER	I-NCH	SAND	1200
	.00	0		+000	. 0	-2670.0	0	.0	10.0	- 0	. 00	20.0	30.0.0	.50	0.	34.10	· .
	1.09	.3	. 2	. 140 3	3433.0	- 3269 3	3814 3	10.5	782.8	37.0	115.81	188.7	370.0	12.97		1	- 1 - E
. i	2•00 · S	•6	.4	341 3	3528.5	-3284.1	3825.7	22.2	784.8	45.4	147.45	217.0	376 0	16 54			1
:	3.00	: 1.0	. 2. 1	+334 3	2766.6	- 1299.2	374A.1	34-1	771.2	53.2	164.08	270.9	414.0	18.50	3		
	4.00	1.3	3.H	• 321 - 3	1495.0	-3313.9	3617.5	45.5	748.1	60.3	160.33	294.0	452.0	10120	· · ·	a presidente de la composición de la co	1.1
9	5.00	1.6	5.9	,299.2	9166.1	-3328.2	3379.0	56 4	705 4	66 0	195 14	29010	402.0	24+64	,		10.1
	6.00	1.9	8.5	.271 2	6496.6	- 3341 4	7100.9	66.3	659.2	70 5	195 97	304.2	405.0	21.00	2.	1	
	7.00	5.5	11.5	- 249 2	4370.2	-3353.6	2881.2	75.4	622.3	24.6	185.81	103.7	465 0	20100	3.		1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -
1.1	B.00	2.4	14.9	.231 2	2615 8	- 3364 . 9	2702.1	81.7	401 A	78.5	195 AU	303.4	465.0	20.10	3.		
9	9.00	2.6	18.6	.241 2	3674.5	-3376-1	2811.2	91.9	610-1	95 1	207 45	3344	48540	201,74			1.1
1.0	6.00	2.9	. 22.6	-251 2	4662.0	-3387.9	2915.1	100.4	628.0		230.82	371.6	Su7 0.	23-10	7.	1. A.	
1	1.00	3.1	27.0	. 259 2	5511.3	- 1400.3	ULLA H	169.2	643.2	04 A	264.31	A 4.1	576 0	256.30	24', E		
Ŀ	2.00	3.4	31.6	267 2	6253.6	- 341 3 3	1081.1	118.4	656.3	105.9	278.11	440.5	540.0	20.00	2.		en prins
1	3.00	3.7	37.0	. 294 2	9031-5	- 3427 1	3373.2	128.0	704.4	115 9	336 46	513.0	670 0	30.442			
14	4.00	4.0	42.7	. 119 1	1458.1	-1442 5	3627.0	128.7	740.4	136 0	377 30	501.0	. 77V+V	34+12	<b>5</b> •		
- îs	5 00	4.3	48.H	.340 3	3523.6	- 1459.7	1843.4	150.1	797.9	120.0	371460	540.1	571.00	30+00	· · · ·		- 11 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14
1.6	6.00	4.7	55.4	. 158 1	5193.7	- 1477 3	4.619.9	142.2	919.6	146 3	420.02	746.4	433 C	41+00	<b>7</b> •		
17	7.00	5.0	62.5	. 367 3	6116-0	- 3496 3	4116 7	174 8	836 4	164 3	477403	- 74340 - 814 A	133.0	45+78		10 July 10 Jul	
ĩ	8.00	5.4	70-1	. 375 3	6844.7	- 15 6 . 0	4194.4	197.7	040 7	120-02	526,430	01310	. 0004+0 676 A	67.77	. <b>₽</b> ∎ .		
- î e	0,00	5.9	. 70 7	. 301 3	7470.3	-1514.3	4241 4	200 0	060 7	194 6	2040124	01000	0/0+0	52.00	· • • • •	e de la secola	
21	0 00	6 2	ส์วิว	18.1	7946 9	- 3557 3	4313 3	214 1	B60 D	104.3	6V/+C4	94443	09040	22.18	8.	and and and	
. 2	1.00	6.5	96 4	. 370 3	6242 7	- 1579 3	4142 5	277 7	007.V	104 1	640,15	101393	11749	50.41	8 e		2 - E - E - E
- 22	2.00	6.9	106 1	- 354 3	4726.6	- 15 98 7	1063 0	22/43	0.3760	· 174+1	453 74	101149	717+0	58 60	=0.	and the second	1.1
2	1.00	7.4	134 7	- 340 3	23.09.4	- 16 19 6	170617	23747	93/0	201.2	05.4.0	-1011+4	/1/.0	58.57	= 0 +	1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	1. 
. 2/	4.00	7.6	127 5	- 340 3	9907 <b>8</b> 4	-2627 7		22690	407 1	200.0		(011+3	/1/.0	24.20	<b>•</b> 0•		1.11
20	5.00	7 8	12 4 2	• JY] 2	641040 6401 U	-3663	3331.4	203.0	09/01	209.4	584.02	401+8	670.3	53.17	0.		
۰.			1.00	4003	203143	- 10-11 1	21041	20700	20034	14/+3	100+14	20119	430+8	14+81	9.		
24	6.00	7 0	3	100 -	0344 3	- 1211 /	-11 0	3/0 0	- 36 11				CAPS REMA	AINING =	14 (K)	CKEU 2.}	· · · ·
2	2 00	2 2	161 6	100 -	Y340 • J	-1216-0	11+8	267.9	-65.7	-10.4	1.70	-61-3	696.7	- 5/	0.		1.1
20	8.00	· • •	101-5		1331.1	-3224-3	=11.0	204.3	-25.9	-10.2	1.00	-14.1	296.7	45	9 <b>•</b>	1	
20	0 a 0 0 9 : A A	2 0 .	145 0		0300 9	-7167 3	-11-6	253.9		=15 <sub>+</sub> 7	1.52	=/6+2	296.7	-+31	9 e		
20	2000		102.7	- 449-3	00000	-3167-3	1 1 - 8	23703	-25.7	-14.9	1:54	-/1+9	590.7	10	.0 <b>.</b>	1. S.	1.2.2
2	1 40	<b>C</b> . 9	172.1	- 449-3	721014	-3104.4	· •11•8	223.7	-25,9	-14-1	1.46	66.9	296.7	+12	0.		
3	2 4 4	6 C	501.0	. = • 4 4 9 = 3	22043	-31-2-7	-11-0	207.9		=12+2	1 • 3H	-61-9	296.7	• 34	Q	a station	
		<b>D</b> • 2	210.2		9234.0	-1121-1	-11+8	192.3	-25,9	-12.5	1.29	-57.0	246.7	.57	Û.		
3.	3.00	2.1	218.0		9213.3	-3099.8	-11.8	175.6	-25,9	=117	1.21	-52.0	296,7	79	0.	and the second second	
34	4.00	4.0	225,2	448-3	9192.4	- 10/ 8.9	-11.8	161.2	-25.9	-10,9	1.13.	-47.0	296.7	1.01	0	ter an an an th	
- 53	5.00	4.4	231.6		9171-8	- 10 - 8 - 4	-11.8	145.6	-25.9	-10.1	1.04	-42-1	296.7	1 23	0.		1.1
31	5 ± 0 0	3.1	237.5	** 448*3	9151+7	- 30 3R 2	-11+8	130+1	-25.9	-9.3	• <b>96</b> .	_; <b>−</b> 37 <b>•</b> 1	296.7	1 45	0.	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
الۍ محاد	1.00	3.3	242.6	447-3	9131.9	-3010.4	-11.8	114.5	-25.9	-8.5	•88	-32.2	296,7	1+67	0.	1 <u>1</u> 7 1 1	5 M.S.
30	0.04	Z.H	247.1	-+447-3	9112+5	-2999.0	-11+8	.99.0	-25.9	· •7•7	.79	-27,+2	296.7	1.89	0.	1	1.00
34	9+00	2.4	251.0		9093.2	-2460.0	-11.8	83.4	+25.9	-6,9	•71	-22-2	296+7	5.15	0.		·*
4 (	0.00	2.0	254.2	-,447-3	9074.4	=2961.3	-11.8	67+9	-25,9	-6.1	•63	=17.3	296.7	2.34	0 <b>.</b> .	1. S. M. S.	
4	1.00	1.5	256,7	447-3	9056.5	-2943 0	-11.8	52,4	-25,9	-5.2	•54	-12.3	296.7	2.56	V.		1.11
4 6	2,00	1.1	258.6	446-3	9038.6	-2925.1	-11.8	36.9	-25.9	-4.4	•46	-7.4	296.7	2.78	. a.		19
4.	3+00	• 6	259.8	-+399-3	4301+0	-2907.8	-20.1	21.6	10.0	2,3	• 09	20.4	296.7	4.02	0 e _		$\phi = \sqrt{1}$

(

>>>>	RUN	SUMMARY						
		TIME (SEC)	FEET	GAĻ	RMS AMPS	ABK KWHR	GEN KWHR	CARS
		44.0	260.4	.254	560.9	1.35	2.51	14.

Figure 48. Continued (Sheet 2 of 4)

ł.

--134 .0 **−**2094.8 -20.1 i . 0' 10.0 2.1 .08 24.4 250.0 .0 • 0 4.02 0. -.016 -2752.7 -2670.0 -8.6 ۰,0 - • Û . .0 .07 20.4 288.0 10.0 1,9 4.02 з. .387 33638 6 -2891.5 3796,4 2,00 779,7 106.53 6.8 34.2 175.2 326.0 11,84 ۰,5 .1 3. .379 33145.1 -2906.2 .6 3746.6 20.1 170.9 43.2 133.30 222.4 364.0 15.66 . 6 3 .375 32700.0 -2921.0 .356 31036.2 -2935.6 3701.9 763.0 52.7 159.31 263.4 1.4 33.3 402.0 18.60 1.0 3. 5.00 3530.5 46.0 732.6 59.9 175,45 288.4 440.0 19,89 1.3 3.4 3. •335 29174.2 -2949.7 •302 26239.4 -2962.8 6.00 1.7 3338.4 58.1 698.3 66.8 186.65 305.4 465.0 20.88 5h ٦. 64 A's Z 7.00 2.0 0.3 3034 8 69.2 71,8 186.24 304.5 465.0 20.92 3. 608.6 8,00 2.3 11.5 .275 23981.0 -2974.9 2801.4 79.3 7b.U 186.02 304.0 465.0 20.78 3. •254 22169.1 -2986.1 •252 22096.4 -2996.7 9,00 2.5 2614.2 88.5 576,1 B0.7 185,87 303.6 15.0 465.0 20.75 3... 86,3 198,55 10.00 2.8 18.9 2407.8 97.1 575.0 322.9 477.6 55.15 5. +263 23087.3 -3007.8 2711+9 593.2 93,4 221+62 23.7 106.1 357.7 498.6 24.58 3.1 5. .273 23936.8 -3019.5 2801+4 608.0 392.3 27.03 12.00 27.4 100.6 245.00 519+6 3.3 115.4 5. ·282 24671.8 -3031.7 13.00 2879.1 125.0 621.9 108.0 268.69 426.7 29.46 3.6 33.0 540.6 5. · 302 26516.7 -3044.6 3.9 3072.1 135.0 654.5 117.1 306.55 463.1 561.6 32.57 14.00 38.5 н. -331 29078-2 -3058,B 698.5 3339.8 357.30 560.5 15.00 5.4 44.4 146.0 127.9 582.6 30.46 .355 31147.7 -3074.5 3556.5 157,8 737.L 138,4 406.18 5.TEO 16.00 4.5 50.8 643+6 40.33 d . 770.2 17.00 57.7 ·376 32920·3 =3091.4 3742.5 170%5 149.2 459.60 714.4 624.6 44.21 н. 4.9 18.00 5.3 65.2 · 390 .34111.7 -3109.4 3668\*5 183.8 792.3 160.0 506.97 786.5 645+6 47.12 19.00 5.7 73.3 .398 34863.5 -3128.2 3948.3 197.5 806,2 170.5 549.99 852.5 666.6 50.84 н, .405 35481.0 -3147.7 .411 36000.8 -3167.9 817.7 592.69 918,3 20.00 6.1 A1.9 4014.5 211.4 647.6 5.1.94 н. 181.2 21.00 91.1 4070.6 225.6 827.4 192.0 535.30 984.3 708.6 57,06 6,5 Ρ. 22.00 6.9 +403 35191.6 -3188.4 654,27 100.9 3988.6 239.9 813.2 201.1 1012.3 717.0 58.63 -0. 655.24 23.00 7.3 111.4 ·385 33584.1 -3208.5 3823.6 253.6 784.5 208,B 1012.2 717.0 58.62 =u . 266.4 24.00. 7.7 ·244 23441.2 -3227.4 2771,5 603.5 201-1 485.45 751.2 623.6 46.04 Ο. 122.3 .058 4815.9 -3235.4 263.4 146.90 253.8 6. 25.00 133.7 836.7 271.7 139.2 390.1 18.10 1.8 # CARS REMA INING = 12. (KICKEU 2.) 270.7 1.69 26,00 7.8 -.140-11332.2 -2816.1 -11.9 •25•8 +16.4 -64.5 296.7 0. 145.2 \* . f.f. 263,4 -2.24-27.00 -25.8 296.7 7.6 156,5 -.296-23322.6 -2808.5 -11.9 -16:1 1,56 -.56 0. 26.00 167.4 -.452-35306.1 -2792.0 250.6 -25.8 -15.5 1,59 -78.2 296.7 -11.9 -.38 0. -11.9 233.5 -25°H -14.0 1.50 -72.7 296.7 29+00 6.7 177.8 -\*207-38884\*1 =2770\*0 a.14 S . 30.00 6.2 187.1 -.507-38862.0 -2747.9 -11.9 215.8 ≂25.× -11.7 1.41 -66.9 246.7 •15 0. 195.8 -.506-38840.3 -2726.2 198.3 296.7 31.00 5,7 -11.9 -25-8 -12.8 1.32 +61.2 • 38 Line . -55,4 -25,8 1.22 296.1 .64 0. 180.7 ~11.9

32,00 5,2 563.8 -.506-38819.1 -2705.0 -11.9 -,506-38798.3 -2684.2 163,1 -25.8 -11.0 1.13 =49.6 246.7 . 19 33,00 4,7 211**.**1 -11.9 Ί. -.506-3877H.0 -2663.9 145.5 -25.8 -10.0 1.04 -43.9 296.7 1.15 .0. 34.00 4.2 217.6 -11.9 10 **e** .94 -38+1 296.7 125.0 -91 1+41 35.00 223.4 -.505-38758.1 -2644.0 +11.9 =25•8 3.7 -.545-38738.6 -2624.5 -8.2 .85. -32.4 296.7 1.66 -11.9 110.4 =25 e ti 0. 36.00 3.2 228.4 -25.F -7.3 .76 296.7 92,9 -26.6 1.42 0. +1505-38719.5 -2605.4 37:00 2,1 232.7 -11-9 .66 -.505-38700.9 -2586.8 .75.4 -25,8 +6.4 -20,9 500.1 2+18 -0. 38.00 236.3 -11.9 5.5 -.504-38682.7 -2568.6 57.8 -25.8 -5. **S** .57 -15.1 296.7 2.43 0. 39.00 -11.9 239.1 1.7 -4.6 40+3 -25.8 .46 -9-4 296.7 2.19 o a ' 40.00 1.2 241.1 -.504-38665.0 -2550.9 -11.9 41.00 ++4P1=36326.8 =2533.6 -20+1 22.8 10.0 2.4 .09 20.4 296.7 4.02 G . • 7 242.5 LANN FUR SUM, .... GAL AMS AMPS ARK KWHP GEN KWHR & CARS TIME(SEC) FEET 228 533.0 1.22 41.9 243.0 5.53 12+

<> <> TRIP SUMPARY .... UAL RHS AS PS BRK KWHR GEN KWHR # CYCLES TIPE(SEC) FEET 462 547.P 2.57 4.74 2. 503,5 A5.9

05 JAN 79 10107143

T-NCH SAND

HHP DSL-RPM GALZHR

---- LOCOPOTIVE ACTIVITY -- ACCOM TIME (MINUTES), RUN TOTAL = 1.43

Figure 48. Continued (Sheef 3 of 4)

 $\infty$  T (SEC)-

• 0.0

1.00

3.00

4.00

11.00

MPH

FEET MPH/SEC TE(LHS) DHAG

TOZMÍR

RPM

AMPS

VOLTS GENKW

RN	AMPS	> 10	=	. 82	
		>200	з'	н2	
		>500	æ	• 7A	
		>1000	=	.00	
PEE	n) (HE21	)>0.5	z	1.34	
		2.0	=	1.08	
		>4 0	3	.69	
		>6.0	÷.	.37	
		>H 0	=	.00	
		>10.1	4	.00	
		×15.	. ≠ `	.00	
		>20.	Ξ	.00	
	₽×i	RH AHPS PEED (HPS)	RN AMPS >30 >200 >500 >1000 PEED (MPM)>0.5 >2.0 >4.0 >4.0 >6.0 >10. >10. >10. >10. >20.	RN AMPS >30 = >200 = >1000 = PEED(((PP))>0.5 = >2.0 = >4.0 = >6.0 = >10, = >10, = >10, = >10, = >20, =	RM AMPS 536 = .82 >200 = .42 >500 = .7A >1000 = .00 PEED((*F*))>0.5 = 1.34 >2.0 = 1.0A >4.0 = .69 >6.0 = .37 >6.0 = .37 >4.0 = .00 >10. = .00 >15. = .00

# ---- ACTIVITY RATIOS

SFIN

1 E	18.0	ч,	IJ∾F	PETWERN	0,5	AND	2.	мрн	
+	. 27.4	Ж.		- '	ς.	AND	4.	<b>PPH</b>	
	22+5	×,		1 - C	4.	AND	6.	HPH	
	25.7	¥		1.00	6.	AND	8.	мрн	
	• 0	¥.	· · ·		8.	AND	10.	MPH	
	• 9.	Ŷ			10.	AND	15.	мрн	
	• 6	3.			15.	AND	20.	нрн	
	_∎ <b>∩</b>	%		· · · ·		>	S0.	мрн	
	57.3	8	ACCEL		1.1			÷.,	
	41.6	÷.	HDAKE			1.1			

Figure 48. Continued (Sheet 4 of 4)

# Series Motor Model Validity

R.-

Data retrieved from yard operation of an instrumented switcher locomotive engine were used as the basis for establishing the validity of the computer model. For purvoses of this report, a pair of acceleration/deceleration runs in two directions was selected as representative of the locomotive performance.

The particular test data are from tape reel || starting at tape counts 1261 and 1329. The first is an upgrade run in reverse, to approximately 16 mph, then braking to a stop using approximately 6 to 7 psi air brake. The parameters used as the basis for comparison to the simulator are: throttle notch, diesel engine rotational speed, traction motor current, traction motor voltage, and locomotive speed. The recorded data played back in engineering units are shown in Figure 49. The consist was locomotive plus caboose and 10 cars at 613 tons total, as shown in Table 13.

## TABLE 13

Car Identification	Loaded/Empty	Tons				
ACL 38761	L	77				
SAN 638	E	23				
SOU 98039	E	23				
SOU 65295	L	84				
SOU 550303	L	81				
NATX 18623	E	23				
CIR 2123	E	23				
UP 451241	L	71				
SAN 551027	E	23				
GATX 126940	E					
		451				
Caboose		38				
Locomotive		124				
	Total	613				
June 26, 1978						

# ACCELERATION/DECELERATION TESTS, CUT CONSIST



Figure 49. Reverse Run Test Data (Start 1261)
Initial runs of the model were made using diesel and generator characteristics derived from the load box test data. However, the computer-plotted output from the model did not match the generator current curve, as shown at the bottom of Figure 49, in the 0 to 8 mph region. It also became evident that an appreciable grade was present by comparing the speed curves (acceleration and deceleration) of the model and the test data. These parameters were varied until a reasonable match was obtained as shown in Figure 50 for the reverse run starting at tape footage count 1261. The computer-plotted data comprise the simulator model, the dash lines are data replotted from Figure 49. The basic input to the computer model is throttle notch vs time taken from the test run.

It was determined that the grade for the reverse run was  $\pm 0.5$  percent at this location. A comparison of the published data for the diesel with the load box test and the road test data is shown in Figure 51. According to the comparison, the response of the power unit to throttle notch was quite different for a dynamic load, in the low speed region, as opposed to the fixed resistive load in the load box test.

The same consist was run in the forward direction (downgrade). Test data starting at tape count 1329 are shown in Figure 52, and comparison with the model is shown in Figure 53. The plot data for the model in Figure 53 were run at -0.4 percent grade average for the run. The downgrade run was considerably longer and **it** is assumed that some grade change was encountered in the extended part of the run. The motor current curve was not as qood a match on the downgrade run, which indicates that the assumed loading characteristic (Figure 51) is influenced by the higher motor voltage.

The overall match is good and the sensitivity to grades and power loading demonstrates the integrity of the model.

## FESS MODEL

۰... • ....

The SW1500 with two ACT-1 flywheels is an expanded version of the series motor model. Computation was expanded to include operation of the field power supply as an added control subsystem, powered by a 400-Hz, 150-kva alternator driven from the forward line shaft of the diesel engine. This power takeoff is included as an added load on the engine and varies with the demands for field power. In addition, the necessary cooling for the traction motors during dynamic braking is presented as a load on the alternator that reaches an estimated 15 kw maximum. A steady 1.5-kw load is assumed to be supplied via the alternator for controls auxiliary power. All of these items are reflected in an increased total power output and fuel consumption of the FESS configuration as compared with the standard SW1500 model. The FESS simulator also accomed dates the additional control system transitions from flywheel-powered to main generator power acceleration when the flywheel energy is depleted; and the transition from electric to air brake when the flywheel speed reaches its upper limit.

The logic required for controlling a real-world system is contained within the program and represents a first design iteration for the controls configuration. A block diagram of the FESS model is shown in Figure 54.

















ť

N.



RUN SUMMARY DATA: TIME, DISTRIBUTION, KW-HRS, GAL, RMS AMP

Figure 54. Computer Model FESS

The computer input deck is similar to the SW1500 model with added parameters to accommodate changes in th basic size and speed of the flywheel design. An example of the basic input (10 card) deck is shown in the lower inset of Figure 55, sheet 1, and the associated computer printout is shown in Figure 55, sheets 1, 2, and 3.

A comparison of Figure 48, sheets 2 and 3, with Figure 55, sheets 2 and 3, showing essential operating parameters, will demonstrate the difference in response of the two systems in a similar operating profile. In particular, the diesel engine loading profile is quite different due to the energy supplied by the flywheel in the FESS model during acceleration to the time the flywheel is depleted to its lower limit. All armature currents and voltages are shown on a per-motor basis in these printouts. The armature circuit connections for the two models are shown in Figure 56, and it is assumed that the parallel sets share current equally. Hence, flywheel machine armature current equals traction motor current in the FESS model.

To accommodate the requirement for the separately excited motors' and the flywheel motors' field power, a shaft-driven alternator is incorporated into the FESS model. The model also incorporates auxiliary power usage for controls and for motor cooling during dynamic braking. This shows as increased fuel consumption for FESS as compared with the standard model in the braking phase. The alternator is engine shaft-driven so these auxiliaries show as a power demand on the diesel engine, which is reflected in the second-by-second data printout of Figure 55, sheets 2 and 3. Thus, some of the fuel saving gained when using the flywheel for acceleration is lost during dynamic braking.

In the Figure 55 printout, it will be noted that the motor field current is the same as the armature current, producing essentially the same operation as the series motor configuration. Other field schedules could be used, but for the purpose of performance comparison of the SW1500 and FESS, this was considered acceptable. Even with different field coil turns, the field power requirement would be unchanged, and as a convenience, the shunt field version of the D77 motor subroutine (which removes the field voltage drop from the armature circuit) was used. In addition, keeping the field current proportional to armature current (rather than using full field at low speed) reduces field power demand and represents a more efficient mode of operation.

The same program is used for running fetch mode, with a slight alteration of the input card deck. For example, switching speed is set to a negative value and the two blank cards, shown in Figure 55, sheet 1 inset, are filled with armature current vs time profile data. Calling for a specific negative armature current initiates dynamic braking at the desired level.

## FESS Model Validity

The validity of the standard SW1500 model has been established as acceptable through comparison of ballistic and electrical performance with real-world tests. The FESS model uses the component subroutines from the SW1500 model and is an extension, using an added motor model of the same format (proven accurate with existing real-world test data for the ACT-1 ESU.



3.

50.

0.1

1.0

figure 55. FESS Simulator Output, Switching Mode (Sheet 1 of 3)

											-										
111-6	SPC	0151	NET TE	<	• () 77 ·	>	<	+ ACT	Fw		<\$0U	RCE>	GEN		DIFSEL	>	AL T		SYS	THR	
SEC	MPH	FFET	185	AR)	FLD 1	RPM.	KKHP	ARM 1	FLO 1	I RPM	VOLIS	KW	ARM 1	RPM	RHH	6PH	HP	SAND	DRV	NCH	
· • 0	• 0	• 0	.• 0	50.	<b>_</b> 0	•• 0	2.937	Ο.	.0	3000.0	0.	• 0	<b>0</b> .	.0	Ü.	. 0	0.		FW	0.	
1.0	• 0 ·	C	502.5	150.	150.0	• C .	2,935	-75.	.7	2998.9	21.	3.2	0.	339.6	49.	6.4	29.		Fw	8.	
5+0	• 0	٥.	4633.7	25ú.	25.0.0	•6	2,932	-125.	1.1	2997.4	32	8.1	0.	343.2	52.	6.6	32.		FW	3	
3.ŭ	•1	• 1	16097.7	350	350.0	2.8	2 928	-175	1.6	2995.2	48	16.8	0	345.6	57.	6.8	77			2	
4.0	• 5	3	15016.6	450	456.0	6.8	2.921	-225.	2.2	2992.0	69.	30.9	0.	348.7	63.	2.0	43.		- F.	2	
5.0	.4	• 7	20465.1	550	550.0	12.7	2.912	-275.	3.0	2987.2	95.	52.4	0.	352.7	71.	7.1	51.		<b>F W</b>		
6,0		1.5	26021.7	650.	650.0	20.5	2.898	-325	3.9	2980.3	128.	83.3		367.6	80	7 6	- 40 -		Г	2	
7.0	+9	2.6	31616.2	75".	750.0	30.4	2.879	-375	5.0	2976.2	168	125.7	6	363.0	01	8.0	71			<b>2</b> •	
R.O	1.2	4.1	14336.5	800	800.0	42.0	2.652	-400	6.0	2956.4	207	165.4	Ň.	166.1	07	9.1	77			34	
9.0	1.6	6.2	34320.6	800	860.0	54.2	2.821	-400-	6.9	29411-2	241	102.0	0.	166.2	07	9.1	27			1.	
10.0	1.9	8.F	34304.5	800.	600.0	66.3	2.786	-400.	7.8	2921.9	276	200 6		366 3	07	0.0	77		5 <b>1</b>	3.	
11.0	2	11.9	14288.1	HUD.	Ran.u	78.4	5 747	-400	H. 7.	2901-4	210	260 5	~	360.2	9/.				P.W	3*	
12.0	2.6	15.5	14271 5	400.	800.0	90.6	2 7 14	-400	0.6	2879 7	344	276 5	~. ``	344 3	714	0,3	114		F M	30	•
13.0	3.0	19.7	4254 7	9000	Run 6	102.7	2 6 6 6	-400	10 6	2853 7	370	2 2 2		300.3		0.3				3.	
14.0		24.3	34237.6	900	844 9	114.9	2.613	- 300	11.6	2839.7	417	330 4	-200	- 203°2	2124	(13	24.		FW	3.e.:	
15.4	3.7	20.5	14720 3	2004	800.0	126.9	2.670	-200	12.3	2810.0	413.	354.0	-400	75 75	210.	13+2	521		UEN	.d+	
14.0	4.0	35.1	34202 7	0004	000+0 000-0	130.0	2 554	-100	12.1	2700 4	440.	330+0	-400+	- 470+3 E34 A	300.	20+1	.∵⊃≰•.		UE	4.	
. 7.0		43 3	34104 0	000		151 1	3 5/4	-100.	13.1	3703 4	486.		+000	520.9	525.	29.1			UE M	4+	
.15.0	4.7		34104,9	9.20	CUU∎0	141 3	3 6/0	16	13.0	2793.0	510	413+0	-800.	201+4	106+	18 8	23.		GEN	4.	
10 0	4 <b>1</b> / ·	- 40.1 CE 5	3410014	000		10342	2.3.3	10.	1 4 4 7	2192.0		440+4	-131.	042.44	111+	42+2	54.		GEN	4 .	
20 0	5 1	47.0	3414940	860 <b>e</b>	1947 I I I	1/3+3	2+745	17.	15.8	2792.9	585	467.8	-831.	010.3	815.	44+5	53.		GEN	4 •	
2499	5.4		34130+1	0.0.0	00010	.10/+4	C+740	12.	10.4	2793.0	619.	495.2	-831.	610.5	859,	46.8	53.		GEN	4 .	
21.0	5•H	· (1+)	34111.4	800	H00*u	199.4	2,546	15.	18*1.	2793.1	653	522+6	-031.	644.1	903.	49.1	54.		GEN	4.	
20.0	b • ]	9.7	34092	400+	800.00	211+5	2 740	15.	19.2	2793-3	688.	550+Q	-631.	657.9	947.	51+3	54.		GEN	. <b>5</b> +	
	<b>1</b>	. 89.I	34073+3	800+	360	223.5	2.547	15.	20.5	2193+6	722.	577.4	-631	672+1	991.	53.7	54.		GEN	5.	
24.0	6+H.	98.4	34053+8	890.	400.0	23.6	2.547	15.	21.9	2793.9	756	604.7	-831.	686.6	1035.	56-2	55.		6£ N	5.	
25+1	(+2	109.1	27433.9	_ 6⊬0≞	680.0	247.5	2.548	15.	21.9	2794.2	758.	515.4	-711.	641.2	894.	46.6	41.		GEN	0.	1
26.0	7.4	119.8	10457.5	: 3⊱u∎	340.1	2-5-4	2.544	15.	17+5	2794.4	637	242.2	-411.	5,06,7	459.	25+5	16.		GEN	U e	
27.7	1.4	136.6	-2098.5	80.	90 <b>.</b> 0	257.6	5.248	15.	4.6	2794.3	179	14.3	-111+	349.4	64.	7.0	з.		GE N.	0.	
										1.1.1	1997 - C. 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 19	1. A.		#	CARS RE	MAININ	iG ∎ `	14. (	KICKEU	- 2.5	
21.03	1.4	141.5	-9691-7	-220	550-0	256.1	2.549	110.	9.9	2794.7	394,	92.9	Ο.	271.1	27.	4.4	7.		E F M	-2.	
29.1	7.2	1-2-1-	-76557 4	-520	20.9	220.2	2,571	260	15.0	2807.1	587.	336.0	0.	325.0	45.	6.0	25.		F₩ -	-3.	
36.0	n.9	142.4	-28737.4	560.	560.0	538-5	2.611	280.	14.;2	2828.8	565.	351.8	0.	335.4	48.	6.3	28+-		FW.	-3	
31+0	6.5	112.2.	-28721.5	-560-	560.0	227.8	2.650	280.	13.3	2849.4	535	335.0	0.	334.9	48.	6.3	28.		ΈŴ	-3.	
12.0	t. ?	101.00	28705 2	-560.	560.0	216.4	2.685	280	12.3	2868.7	505.	318+2	ο.	353.6	73.	7.4	53.	1 . T	F W	-3.	
3319	<b>د</b> . بک	190.4-	24683 2	560	566.0	205.0	2,719	280.	11.4	2686.6	475	301.4	0.	353.6	72.	7 3	52		FW	-3	
.34.0 -	5.5	194.6-	-28673 4	-560	560.0	193.6	210	280	10.5	2903.2	445	284 7	0.	353.5	72.	7.3	52.		F.W.	-3	
- 35+6	5.2	206.7.	20657.8	-560.	560.0	182.2	2 740	260	9.6	2918.5	415	267.9	÷ 0.	353.4	72.	7.3	52		FW	- 3	
36.0	4 9	214.14	23642 4	-56u	560.0	170.8	2.806	260.	8.9	2932.5	386	251.2	<b>G</b> •	353.4	72.	7.3	52.		F w:	-3.	
17 0	4.6	221.6	28627 2	550	560.0	159.4	2.831	280	. 8.1	2945.3	356.	234.5	Ö.	353.3	72.	7.3	52.		FW	-7.	
16. 3	4.2	227 -	28612.2	560	560.0	148-1	2.053	260	7.3	2956.8	326.	217.8	0.	353.3	72.	7.3	- <u>-</u>		E.	2	
34.6	3.9	233.44	28597.4	-54 h	560.0	136 7	2.673	260	<b>b</b> -6	2967.1	296	201.1	0	352.3	72	7.7	62		É w		
40.0	3.6	236.9	-28562 - 5	-hele.	260-1	125.4	2.490	280	5.8	2976.2	266	184.4	ů.	351.2	72	7.3	6.2			2.	
41-0	a S	243.9	- 444 44 5	-560.	550.0	1 4 . 0	2.985	286.	5-1	2964.0	236	1 7 7	0	353.2	7.5	7.3	6.2.			- 7 -	
42.0	2.0	248 44	- 245-54 3	- 54 -	566.0	332.7	2 010	200		2900 7	2.30.	363 0	- ä	353 3	7.0	7 3	5.5		гн. 5-ш	- 2 •	
-4-1 - 0	2.	252 5	22536 3	-5-0	560 0	01.3	2 0 30	200.		29906 2	177	12140	~.	353.2	12.0	7 3	52.		F 🖷 -		
44.0	2.1	256.1-		*5.24	560.2	91.0	2 0 0	280	20	3000 4	147	117.4	· .	352.1	72	7.3	50				
+*• + 11 ⊒5 - 11	c • 3	- 200 + 1* - 35 C - 3	202010013	-544	501112	6910	2 7 0	200	2.7	- 100.40 100.7	117	11110	. v.+	35	12	143	- 7 <b>2</b> +				
+ 2 = U 4 = 0	1.4.4	274+1+			100190 540	50 p f	2 744 	2140	1 5	300317	11/+	10140	0 e	363	16.	7+3	96 e	•			
40.40	1.0	- COI+P*	- C 34 4 4 1	נימיבי -	: C ( • ()	7.43	r . 74 H	280,	1.0 2	300747	- HO -	84.5	U.	30341	/ 1.4	1.3	51			-1.	
94741 UNI D	1.4.4	203.44	- 20470 - 4			- 90 # // - 37 #	2+120	284	• :	300043	30	0(+1	1 <b>1</b> •	32.3.1		f + 3	⇒1•			-1+	
40.0 40.0	1+1.	<	- 6 5 2 6 4	- 331	336 0	54 # /	2 7 9	200.	1	3000-2	10	47.7	. 0 <b>.</b>	30118	69.	(+2	47			- <u>1</u> +	•
49.0	• /	70¢+8	9890 1	-630+	¢30.0	∠17 + L	2+947	115.	- i	7002*3	154	10+5	12 <b>e</b>	345+8	. 56+	0.0	56.		+ W	U .	
										an thuộc thế					·					1.1.1.1	
	1	·																. *		1.1	
>>>	L	J. 513	- A Y	• •																	

Th F₩ TIME (SEC) FEET GAL HMS AMPS HMS ANDS HRK KANN GEN KANN FA KANN # CARS 44.3 267.0 .218 628.H 250.4 1.17 1.56

.01 14.

...

Figure 55. Continued (Sheet 2 of 3)

						1 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A					A CONTRACT OF											
	T I ML	SPU	0151	NET TE	<	• D 11	>	<	ACT	· F W	>	<\$0U	PCE>	GEN	. <	DIESEL		AL T		SYS	тыр	
	SEC	MPH	FEET	LHS	APM 1	FLU 1	ны	KAHR	ARM I	FLD	I нРм	VOLTS	-κw	APM T	RPM	BHH	GPH	нP	SAND	nev	NCH	
	• 0	· +7	• D	• 0	50	140.0	24+8	2.947	70.	.0	3005 n	7.	3-8		110.9		6.4	29.	2,4114	F*	6.	
	1.0	. 1	1.0	-219.3	150	150.9	23.8	2.944	-75.	1.4	3003.7	40	7.4	n.	130.7	40.	6.4	26.		י דע 1	N.9	1
	5.0	.7	0.5	4392 A	250.	250.9	24.2	2.940	-125.	2.1	3001.7	49.	18.8	0.	343.2	5 62	6.6	32		р.е. С. н.		
	3.0	.8	3.1	4853.8	350	350.0	26.7	2.934	-175.	2.9	2998.5	101	75.4	0.	345.6	54		32.		г w с	<b>.</b> -	
	4.0	. 0	4 1	15362.6	4 0	450.0	31.2	2.925	-225.	3.7	2903.4	120	59.0	0.	3200	43				r e	1.	
	5.0	1.1	5.6	20810.8	550	550.G	38.0	2.911	-275	4.6	2986.4	129.	50.0	· n.	34040	7 034	7+0	4.J.s 6.1		F 11	<u></u>	
	6.0	1.4	7.6	26367.0	650.	650.0	46-9	2 401		5.6	2076 7	1014	130 0	ו	35247	. / .	743	510		<b>F W</b>	Ζ.	
	7.0	1.7	9.9	11960.9	750	750.0	58.1	2 965	-375.	6 0	2962 0	200.	1.30.00		32193	80.	1.0	20.		- F W	2.	
	8.0	2.1	12.7	34490.5	000	800.0	71.7	2.000	-400	0.4.7 1 1	2046 4	200	221 0	v.	30341	71.	0.0	11+		F	3.	
	9.0	2.5	16.0	74661.9	800.	800.0	85.1	2 768	-400	0.1	2023 1	290.	263.1		344 3	97.	8.3			1 W	3.	
	10.0	2.0	20.0	34647.0	800.	800.0	98.0	2 763	-400	10.2	2900 2	367#	20301	<b>U</b> •	30013	97.	8+3				3.	
	11.0	1.1	24.5	34439.8	800.	800.0	112 4	2 - 01	-400.	11 2	2077+3	300.	274+4	U .	300.4	9(.	9+3			HVV	3.	
	12.0	3.7	29.6	34612.3	800.	800.0	126.4	2.073		12 6	20/3+0	407.	367.0	- 70	300.0		10.3			P W	3.	
	13.0	4 1	35.3	34594.5	800.	800.0	160.1	2,040	-270	12.1	204462	440.	370+0	-340	330+3	100.	10+1	. 53+		OFH	<b>4</b> •	
	14-0	4.5	61 6	34676 5	800	800 0	163.0	~ 667	-170	1202	2700 "	907. 50/	300.0	-200.	40040	293.	17+0	238		GEN		
	16.0	4.0		3451003	800.	903 0	147 6	24331	-1704	1440	219715	2644	419.2		307.00	460.	22.2	53.	1	GEN	**	
	15.0	5 3	4044	34330042	0000		101-0	2.030		12+2	2/01+0	563.	450+4	+000.	505+2	652.	35.9	23+		OFN	4+	
	17 0	5 3	22.4	34534.0	800.	900 0	10103	2,324	14,	10,4	2 (84.1	602.	481.5	*828+	622.0	835.	45.5	53.		GEN	- <del>4</del> e	
	10 0	- J + I 	77.4	34520+0	000		173+0	2.327	14.	.1145	2784.1	041.	512.1	-828.	036.4	885.	48-1	54.		GEN	4.	
	10.00	0+0 .6	1204 D. 4	34501+0	800+	300.0	200.1	2.530	14.	19+1	2189+1	680.	54.3+8	-828.	054.	935.	50 - 7	54.		GEN	5.	
	20 0	6 0	0110	34402+2	0004	000.0	226+4	2.330	14.	20+4	2/54+3	. /194	5/4.9	-826.	6/0+0	985.	53.4	54.		UEN	5.	
	20.00		21.3	3440243	800+	600.00	230.1	2.030	1	.22.0	2/84+4	157	606.0	+828+	020.4	1035.	56.2	. 55.		GEN	5.	
	22 0	<b>**</b>	10100	20100.1	0000	750.0	247.5	2.530	- 14.	61.8	2784+6	152	488.9	*078.	951+1	850	46+3	38.		GEN	0.0	
	22.0	7	11214	9552+1	300.	350.00	231.9	2,031	14+	1013	2789 7	01/+	212.9	-3/0.	492.1	417+	23.3	14.		GEN	0.6	
	2300	· • 5	15304	-3101+7	20.	2000	237.9	2.530	14.	2+2	2184+5	115.	2.8	=78 <u>-</u>	- 327+4	45.	6.1			GEN	0.	
-	24 O	7 .	1 3 4 3	14030 5	-754	35.0.5		- c	1.76		3765 J					CARS RI	LMAINI	40 <b>=</b>	12+	UNICKED	_ 4+1	
	25 0		134.3	10030-0	-2304	550,0	250.1	2,000	160.	16 2	2703.4	136.	110.0	0.	274.3	20.	<u>.</u>	· 8.		E PE	-2	
	240		140.0	-21100-1	-5300	330.00 540 0	220.9	2,330	2/2.	1213	2197.0	594.	300.0		33364	4/.	0.2					
	27.0	6 C	100+0	2032040	-540.	540 0	230.3	2.270	2004	1215	2021.0	500	330.4		33314	404	0.3	20.		्र <b>स</b> .म.∕		
	28.0	4 1	10241	2831947	-840	560.0	223.44	2.030	2004		2042 1	229	331+3		33440	48.	0.3	20.			-3.	
	20.0	6 J.	190 8	2027444	-500.	500.0	212+0	2.0/1	200.	12+1	2001.0	470+	312+7	. V.	353+0	- 12+		24			*3+	
	. 30 0		102.7	2021041	-500+	500.0	1,77+0	2.104	200.	11.0	2010.3	402.	273.0	0.0	30390	12.	1+3	224		1 · #	-3a.	
-	30.00	5.3	19190	-28203.2	-5004	560.0	10/00	2.734	280.	10+0	20,440	428.	2/5.0	U e	333.+5	2 14+	1.1			P	*3+.	
	3100	⊐0	140-0	-28247.9		560.0	114.2	2,102	280.	9.2	5404.5	394.	250.2	0.	.353+4	72.	7+3	22.			-3.	
	32.0	4.0	200.0	-28232.7	-560+	200.0	101.4	2.101	200.	8.3	2922.3	301.	23/14	Q.	33349	12+	7.3	- 22.		FW-	# <u>2</u> + -	•
	33.0	146	212.1	20210-1	-200	500.0	140.0	2.807	200.		2934.1	327	218.6	0.	333.4	72.	7.3	24+			-2+	
	34.0	3.9	210.1	-28203+5	-560+	560.0.	112.0	5.829	280.	6.0	2944.5	294	199.8	0.	353+3	72.	7+3	52.		F H	-2.	
	3340	3.5	223.5	-28189.2	-500+	200.0	123.1	2.047	280.		2953.5	260	161-0	. 0.	353+6	12.	7+3		1.1	- <b>- - -</b>	- 2 ·	
	30.0	3 1	228+3	-∠8175.1		360.0 E60.0	110.3	2,861	280.	4+9	2961+1	227	162.2	G.	353.2	72.	7+3	52.		F¥.	-Z.	
	31.0	<b>6.</b> 8	236.1	-20101.2	-500+	500.0	9/06	2.8/3	280.	4+1	2967.4	1934	143+5	0.	353-2	: 72.	1.3	52.		- <b>F</b> M	-2-	
	30.0	204	230.5	20147.0	-500	. E < a - 1			200.	3.2	6716.4	160.	124.7		353-1	72	7.3	72.		F.W	-2.	
	17.V	2.0	239.7	-20134.2		-⊐60 <b>.</b> 0	14+1	2,890	280.	. Z + 4.	2970.0	120.	100+0	. 0.	101	72	· 7.3	22.		. <u>P</u> M	- 2	
	90e0	1 7	242+5	-50151+0	-560+	360.0	27*3	2,895	280.	1+0	29/8.3	93.	67.2	0.	193+1	71	7+3	21.	•	- FW	-1+	
	41.00	1.3	244 6	-28108.0		⊐a0.0	46+6	Z.897	280.	•6	29/9+3	59.	08.5	Q.,	123-1	71+	7.3	51.		F M	<b>71.</b>	
	46.0	• 9	240.3	20442.3	-530.	>30.0	33,9	5.890	. 200	•1	5414.0	28.	40.5	υ.	351.6	5 69.	7.2	49.		- 臣留	-1.	
	4.5.0	. 47	241.4	-9512.2	-230+	<b>2</b> 30.0	24+2	2,894	115.	.0	2218*0	12.	9.5	. Q.e.	342+6	52.	. 6.6	32.		- <b>F</b> W	Q é	

>>>> RUN SUMMARY

TIME(SEC) FEET 43.4 247.7 TM FY GAL RMS AMPS RMS AMPS BRK KWHR GEN KWHR FW KWHR # CARS •1<sup>79</sup> 612•4 251.0 1•06 1•21 ••05 12.

<> <> TRIP SUMMARY ....

 TIME (SEC)
 FEET
 GAL
 RMS
 AMPS
 BRK
 KWHR
 GEN
 KWHR
 FW
 KWHR
 # CYCLES

 92.7
 514.7
 .396
 621.2
 251.0
 2.22
 2.77
 -.04
 2.4

Figure 55. Continued (Sheet 3 of 3)



G = GENERATOR TM = TRACTION MOTOR FW = FLYWHEEL MACHINENOTE: FIELD CONNECTIONS NOT SHOWN

S-34186

Figure 56. Armature Circuit Connections

The auxiliary loads including the field power supply and added cooling are probably not more than 20 percent in error. These are, in any case, only second-order increments in the range of 40 to 90 hp absolute. Therefore, **it** is essentially of the same merit as the SW1500 model.

### USE OF THE MODELS

Model flexibility is exercised through variations in input deck data; however, changes in basic system component characteristics can be readily accommodated by substitution of the respective subroutines. In general, the component subroutines contain stored data sets defined by real-world test data. These data sets can be altered without any basic modification of the subroutine format.

Tables 14 and 15 show variations that may be entertained by alterations of data in the input card decks. The card decks illustrated in Figures 47 (sheet 1), 48 (sheet 1), and 55 (sheet 1) also show the control cards that are used with the UNIVAC 1100 system. The programs are written in FORTRAN V and are compatible with minor modifications down to level IV G.

A list of programs and subroutines related to the simulator models is given in Appendix  ${\rm B}_{\bullet}$ 

#### PRELIMINARY ANALYSIS (TASK 11B)

This Phase I study of a yard-switching locomotive incorporating a flywheel energy storage unit has been structured to establish the most advantageous system configuration within the limits of existing conventional hardware components (i.e., SW1500 locomotive and ACT-1 flywheel unit) by means of a preliminary system analysis, as defined in the contract SOW.

The following two basic configurations were considered in the analysis:

- (a) The flywheel energy storage unit in a trailing car with the locomotive modified for separately excited traction motors
- (b) The flywheel energy storage unit in a trailing car with the trailing car having separately excited traction motors and the locomotive basically unmodified

It was not the purpose of the preliminary analysis to establish an optimum configuration. No additional configurations other than the specified alternatives were identified at this stage in the study.

The FESS concepts previously analyzed in AiResearch Report 78-15053 (Reference 4), are summarized below.

• •

Reference 4. <u>Analysis Report, Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher</u>, AiResearch Report 78-15053, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, June, 1978.

# TABLE 14

## SW1500 MODEL INPUT DECK DESCRIPTION

Card 1	Title card (all literal).	
Cards 2, 3	Define the consist.	
Card 4	Defines the locomotive configuration motor operating temperature.	and mean traction
Cards 5, 6	Define operating profile for fetch m	ode.
Card 7	Defines system response rates.	
Card 8	Declares kicking or fetching mode; i kick speed and number of cars per kic	f kicking, <b>it</b> defines :k.
Ca-d 9	Program control for run duration and	printout options.

## TABLE 15

## FESS CARD INPUT

Card 1	Title.
Cards 2, 3	Consist definition.
Card 4	Locomotive confiquration and traction motor mean temperature.
Card 5	Flywheel configuration.
Card 6	System operating levels and auxiliary load level.
Card 7	Declares kickinq or fetchinq mode; if kicking, <b>it</b> defines kick speed and number of cars per kick.
Cards 8, 9	Defines operating profile for fetch mode.
Card 10	Proqram control for run duration and printout options.

#### Concept A

The basic Concept A1 system schematic is shown in Figure 57. In this system, the diesel engine, main dc generator, and the basic friction brake system are existing SW1500 locomotive equipment. The traction motors are modified by the replacement of the existing series-wound main field coils with low-current main field coils that are excited from a separate source. No changes to the magnetic circuit or armature of the traction motor are required. The auxiliary alternator has been added to the engine-driven auxiliaries, and the locomotive controls modified for operation with the energy storage unit. The flywheel energy storage unit is installed in a trailing car. Suitable power and control interconnections are provided between the locomotive and trailing car. The limitation on the performance of this system was found to be the flywheel machine continuous current rating of 540 amp. То overcome this limitation, Concept A2, shown diagrammatically in Figure 58, was developed.

#### Concept B

The basic Concept B1 system schematic is shown in Figure 59, and consists of an SW1500 locomotive with the addition of an auxiliary alternator, a series/parallel switch for the traction motors, an isolation switch, a necessary modification of locomotive controls for operation with an energy storage unit, and four separateby excited traction motors installed on a trailing car. The trailing car is also provided with a friction brake system.

System elements are the same as described for Concept A, but the energy storage unit must drive a larger blower to supply cooling air to the traction motors on the trailing car. All field power supplies are installed on the trailing car. One field power supply unit with individual controls for each separately excited traction motor and one field power supply for each energy storage unit are provided.

As in Concept AI, Concept B1 was found to be limited in performance by the flywheel machine rating, and therefore Concept R2 shown in Figure 60 was developed.

#### Selected Concept

Rased on the preliminary data available. AiResearch recommended that Concept A2 should be chosen for an indepth system analysis. FRA concurred with this recommendation, and the indepth analysis (Task IIc) was directed to Concept A2.

## INDEPTH SYSTEM ANALYSIS (TASK IIC)

Concept A2 consists of a General Motors Electro-Motive Division (EMD) SW1500 switching locomotive and a nonmotored boxcar containing two ACT-1 energy storage units (Figure 58). The two vehicles are coupled, using a standard Association of American Railroads (AAR) coupler and electrical/air connections.



Figure 57. Simplified System Schematic--Concept 41



Figure 58. Simplified System Schematic--Concept A2





Figure 59. Simplified System Schematic--Concept B1



Figure 60. Simplified System Schematic--Concept B2

(

## System Description

The system has two basic operating modes, motoring and braking. Since the motors are modified EMD D77 traction motors, they are of the low field current, separately excited type. During motoring the power source may be the diesel engine, the flywheel (via intervehicle electrical connections), or a combination of both. The power source for a given condition depends on the stored energy level and the energy management policy adopted. The flow of current from the flywheel machines to the main generator is prevented by the use of isolation diodes between the generator and traction motor units. During braking the traction motors, now acting as separately excited generators, are driven by the locomotive wheels and the current is fed to the flywheel machines increasing the flywheel speed and storing the braking energy. The speeds of the txo flywheels are kept approximately the same by flywheel machine field adjustment. Current passage to the generator is again prevented by the isolation diodes.

Upon receipt of a command to transition from an accelerating mode to a braking mode, the traction motor field currents are increased slightly to raise the armature voltage above that of the main generator. This action reversebiases the isolation diode and the generator field current and the output current are reduced to zero. During the same interval, the initial level of armature current in the flywheel machine could be either positive or negative. However, due to the increasing traction motor voltage, the current will increase in a negative direction until the commanded current level is obtained. The primary controls for the braking mode are the traction motor field currents used to set the operating voltage level as a function of speed, and the flywheel motor field current used to zero, the generator voltage can be held at some level below the traction motor armature voltage. The transition from braking to acceleration will essentially be the reverse of the process described above.

The component efficiencies of the system shown in Figure 61 are generalizations since efficiency varies with load and duty cycle. It can be noted that the approximate round-trip efficiency is 67 percent. In a normal duty cycle, delays between deceleration and acceleration will be minimized; therefore, flywheel spinning losses have been neglected.

In the computer simulation, actual values of component efficiency based on load including spinning losses were used to calculate fuel savings.

#### System Hardware

Although existing, unmodified system hardware will not be described in this report, references will be made to the modifications of the control of such hardware.

#### 1. Energy Storage Units

The ESU's to be installed in the trailing boxcar are based on the ACT-1 ESU's modified for this application (the modified ESU is shown in Figure 62).



Figure 61. Typical FESS System Efficiencies

#### a. <u>Modifications to Standard ESU</u>

Minor modifications are required on the standard ACT-I ESU for suitability to the FESS application. The oil-cooled auxiliary alternator used in the ACT-1 installation to provide field power for the flywheel machine is not required for the FESS installation since field power is obtained from the diesel engine-driven, auxiliary alternator on the locomotive by means of jumper cables. This arrangement has the advantage of reducing the number of rotating machines, but does preclude the charging of the flywheel from a single external source that may have been operationally convenient. Removal of this alternator will entail blanking off the oil ports used for alternator cooling. The revised lubricating oil circuit design is shown in Figure 63.

The turbocooler used in the ACT-1 installation for air conditioning is not required for FESS. As with the alternator removal, the oil ports will have to be bridged to preserve the integrity of the oil circuits.

The standard ESU blower is used to cool the flywheel machine and traction motors on ACT-1, but the only cooling requirement in the FESS application is for the flywheel machine. This means that a smaller blower can be used in this application, again minimizing the energy drain on the flywheel.



Figure 62. Energy Storage Unit (E80) Modified for FESS Application



LOCATION		JET DIA, IN•	GPM PER Jet	NO. OF JETS	TOTAL GPM
А	OUTBOARD PLANET BEARING	0.030	0.13	3	0.39
В	INBOARD PLANET BEAR ING	0.030	0.13	3	0.39
C	SUN GEAR	0.037	0.20	3	0.60
D	ROLLER BEARING	0.073	0.80	1	0.80
Е	RESILIENT MOUNT	0.037	0.20	. 1	0.20
F	ROLLER BEARING	0.073	0.80	. 1	0.80
G	RESILIENT MOUNT	0.037	0.20	1	0.20
					TOTAL

TOTAL 3.38 GPM

Figure 63. Energy Storage Unit Lubricating Oil Circuit Design for FESS Application

#### b. Installation

Installation requirements for the ESU are relatively simple. The major requirements are:

- (a) Cooling air to be filtered and ducted
- (b) Cable runs to be in accordance with normal safe practice

(c) ESU mechanical mounts to be able to withstand accelerations associated with switching (3 g longitudinal, 2 g lateral)

(d) Ease of access for maintenance of ESU and control system

(e) Storage of special maintenance parts

A typical boxcar is shown in Figure 64.



Figure 64. Typical U.S. Boxcar

## 2, Locomotive Equipment and Modifications

### a, Traction Motors

The modifications of the traction motors to 97 turn main fields with improved interpoles is described in detail later in this report.

## b. Field Supply Alternator

The power source required for the traction motor and flywheel machine fields will be an engine-driven alternator. The power requirements are as follows:

Traction motor field supplies (including field forcing)' 60 kw Flywheel machine field supplies (including field forcing) <u>20 kw</u>

Total 80 kw

Considering alternator efficiency and assuming a 0.6 power factor, the alternator is required to deliver 150 kva over the entire 493/900 rpm engine speed range. This performance requirement can be met by the alternator used by Garrett on the gas turbine-electric (GTE) cars. The characteristics of the proposed field alternator (Figure 65) show that the machine when operated from 4,930 to 9,000 rpm through a 10:1 speed increases gearbox and pulley systems and is able to produce a minimum of 150 kva at the minimum operating speed.

This alternator was used successfully on the GTE cars and has seen extensive service on commercial craft. With more than 20 million hours of service experience, the alternator has a proven reliability record. It is not sensitive to environment and has given consistent performance. Maintenance is simplified and reliability assured by the lack of brushes, commutators, and slip rings. The growth of the mean-time-between-failure (MTBF) as used on 707/720 aircraft is shown in Figure 66.



Figure 65. Characteristics of Proposed Field Supply Alternator

10,000 BF (IN HOURS) ł YEARS SINCE INTRODUCTION **S** 33862

> Figure 66. Reliability Growth of Proposed Field Supply Alternator for Commercial Aircraft Application

The major components of the generator are the main generator, the exciter generator, a rotating rectifier assembly, and associated mechanical parts. The exciter of the generator consists of a stationary dc field and a rotating ac armature. The ac output of the exciter is fed into a three-phase, full-wave silicon rectifier assembly mounted in the center of the generator shaft. The dc output from the rectifier assembly is supplied directly to the rotating field of the main generator.

Regulation of the generator ac output voltage is accomplished by controlling the strength of the exciter dc field. A transistorized or magnetic amplifier voltage regulator directs the output voltage by sensing and comparing this voltage with a referenced value to obtain an error signal. This signal is amplified and used to control the current supplied to the exciter field winding.

The alternator (shown in Figure 67) is to be installed above the main and auxiliary generators in the space shown in Figure 68, the location of the speed increasing gearbox. The alternator and gearbox will be mounted off the existing bracket shown in Figure 69. A general arrangement of the installation is shawn in Drawing SK6999.



DIMENSIONS IN INCHES





Figure 68. S

Space Available for Installation of Auxiliary Alternator



F-29052





### c. Jumper Cables

Jumper cables are required to connect the locomotive and boxcar electrically and will conform to the requirements of AAR Specification, Section 7-4-2-1. The jumper cables are as follows:

- (a) Control--Standard 27-point plugs and receptacles shown in Figure 70 will be mounted in the AiResearch-designated standard positions in order to utilize the existing jumper equipment. Spare wires will be used by new control functions. A list of the proposed function allocations is contained in Table 16; these will be approved by AiResearch before being implemented.
- (b) Auxiliary Power--The field power supply jumper cables of the flywheel machine will be standard AiResearch 30-amp capacity, currently used for external supplies for locomotive lighting. Two cables in parallel will be used to achieve the necessary current capacity. These items are detailed in Figure 71.
- (c) Main Power--To provide for the 1000-amp jumper requirement for main power, it is proposed that the AiResearch dynamic brake field loop plug and receptacle be used (Figure 72).

## d. Field Control Unit

The optimum field control unit is shown in Figure 73. The operating current and voltage were selected because a transformer is not required, allowing the cost of the modification of the motors to be offset by the cost of the transformer.

The field control units will be mounted in the electrical compartment under the cab, with the power device heat sinks mounted in cutouts in the traction motor cooling air ducts. The space available for this installation is shown in Figure 74.

## SYSTEM CONTROL

#### Energy Management

Although relatively small, the spinning losses associated with the flywheel vary as the square of the speed (Figure 75). Therefore, at 70-percent speed there are approximately 55 percent of the losses at 100-percent speed. In order to minimize these losses, it is proposed that the flywheel be maintained at as low a speed as possible. This is achieved when energy is taken out of the flywheel at the start of an acceleration at the maximum power level. Upon reaching the flywheel minimum speed, diesel power will take over to supply the traction motors and maintain the flywheel at its minimum speed. Because there is no way of knowing the weight of the locomotive and cars to be braked, energy will be passed to the flywheel from the initiation of braking. As the flywheel reaches maximum speed, if sufficient energy is available due to braking, the brakes will be applied to complete the braking duty. This system inherently takes account of changes in train weight thereby avoiding the need for costly and complex control logic.



Figure 70. 27-Point Control Jumper

# TABLE 16

# PROPOSED CONTACT IDENTIFICATION OF 27-POINT CONTROL PLUG AND RECEPTACLE FOR FESS EQUIPMENT

Receptacle Point	Function	Code
1	Power Reduction Setup	PRS
2	Alarm Signal	SC
	Engine Speed	DV
4	Negative	N
5	Spare (Emergency Sanding)	ES
en la	Generator Field	GF
	Engine Speed	CV
ŝ	Forward	FO
9	Reverse	RE
10	Wheel Slip	₩S
11 <sup>°</sup>	Brake Hold Off/Generator Excitation Inhibit	BH*
12	Engine Speed	ВН
13	Positive Control/Fuel Pump	PC/FP
14	Excitation Set Up on G.E. Units	SN
15	Engine Speed	AV
16	Engine Run	ER
17	Electric Brake	EB
18	Braking Effort Command	BECP*
19	Second Negative	NN
20	Dynamic Brake	BG
22	Compressor	CC
23	Sanding	SA
24	Brake Control/Power Reduction Control	BC/PRC
25	Headlight	HL ·
26	Separator Blow-Down/Remote Reset	SV/RR
27	Braking Effort Command	BECN*

\*FESS Proposal







Figure 72. Main Power Jumper



Figure 73. Traction Motor Field Power Supply



Figure 74. Air Brake and Electrical Equipment Compartment



F-29761

Figure 75. Flywheel Assembly Mechanical Losses vs Speed

## Motoring Control

The motoring control logic diagram is shown in Figure 76. At the motoring command, the traction motor fields will be turned fully on until armature current is detected. At that time the field current will be reduced to maintain a constant ampere-turn/armature current ratio to the locomotive base speed, maintaining a series motor characteristic. The notch communication to the load regulator position will be intercepted if the flywheel has usable energy available. The flywheel machine field will be turned on and increased until the equivalent generator output current/voltage is achieved. To compensate for the decrease in flywheel speed, the field current of the flywheel machine is increased, enabling the constant volt-amp product to be maintained over the full flywheel machine speed range.

A closed-loop control continuously monitors the armature current to ensure that the required output is being delivered to the traction motors. As the flywheel approaches minimum speed, the generator volts are allowed to rise to the required level until the isolation diode is forward-biased, and the generator supplies power to the traction motors. At this time, the flywheel machine field current is maintained at a level where the machine, now acting as a motor, takes sufficient power to maintain the flywheel at its minimum speed, 5.3 hp.



Figure 76. Tractive Effort Control Logic

### Braking Control

The braking control logic diagram is shown in Figure 77.

The objective during brake is for the operator to be unaware of the source of the braking power. This is accomplished by using a pressure transducer in the existing air brake system (Figure 78). This transducer will be located in the train pipe so a signal proportional to the train pipe reduction can be used to determine the braking current necessary. Upon detection of the braking power, an electrically operated valve will be energized to prevent air pressure buildup in the brake cylinders. The system is basically fail-safe in terms of power equipment, but to accommodate stray feeds to the brake holdoff valve or seizure of brake hold-off valve, a separate lever operated manually should be provided at the operator's location to enable the hold-off valve to be byoassed. The feed to the brake hold-off valve will be derived from a relay in the boxcar, ensuring that the valve can only be energized when the boxcar is available. Operating instructions would call for the brake hold-off bypass lever to be in the "bypass<sup>n</sup> position whenever the locomotive is not operating uith the boxcar.

This modification will be easy to achieve since the air brake equipment is located directly beneath the cab as shown in Figure 73, and has the advantage of requiring minimum alteration to operating techniques. This means a minimum of operator retraining is required; a factor, which though expensive, is often overlooked.

The flywheel machine is capable of maintaining control of braking effort by matching traction motor speed variations with an adjustment of its field. Thus, there is no need for the generator field to be varied with locomotive speed from the nominal value, determined by the drop in brake pipe pressure, because the flywheel machine field current variation will be referenced to maintaining a constant armature current. Therefore, stability problems caused by traction motor and flywheel machines attempting to control the machine simultaneously are avoided.

#### Control Analysis

## 1. <u>Motoring</u>

The locomotive performance analysis will be based on a 1050-amp armature current, the probable maximum accelerating current, which defines the base speed (the limit of constant current operation) to be 8 mph (Figure 79). At 8 mph, the applied motor voltage has to be 250 v per motor. This results in a 1000-v output requirement from the flywheel machine even at its minimum operating speed of 2655. With the armature and brush drops (15 v and 3 v, respectively), a field current of 48 amp at minimum speed is required. Although this is above the continuous rating of the field, **it** is within the capability of the flywheel.


Figure 77. Braking Effort Control Logic





128

أيوني ا



Figure 79. Equivalent Circuit of FESS Concept A2

From the above analysis, **it** is clear that each of the flywheel machines is able to supply 525 amp over the operating range of the traction motor, up to base speed at any voltage necessary to 1000 v. The operation above base speed at reduced current is not usual during switching duty, therefore its importance is limited. By the time the locomotive and boxcar (and any coupled cars) achieve relatively high speeds, the flywheel is already at minimum speed and does not contribute to the energy delivered to the locomotive wheels.

# 2. Braking

The scenario data and the SRI report (Reference 5) suggest that a switching locomotive typically brakes from 8 mph. Simplification of the control scheme will result if the traction motor field current can be maintained constant and the braking effort controlled by the adjustment of the flywheel machine alone.

# 3. Equivalent Circuit

The equivalent armature circuit of the machine, neglecting brush resistance but including interpoles, is shown in Figure 80.

Total circuit resistance is 0.08966 ohms, which results in a 98-v drop at 1050 amp. Brush losses are calculated at 3 v per brush set for a 15-v total brush loss, and a circuit voltage drop of 109 v.

Reference 5. Railroad Classification Yard Technology, a Survey and Assessment, Stanford Research Institute Report, January 1977.



Figure 80. D77 Traction Motor Saturation Curve

Assuming a constant 1050 amp in the traction motor fields, the minimum brake speed is determined by the speed at which the 109-v drop cannot be overcome.

# 4. Traction Motor Control

At a locomotive speed of 8 mph, a 40-in. diameter wheel, and a 62:15 gear ratio, the motor speed is 277.87 rpm. For a field current of 1050 amp, the induced emf is 220 v as seen in Figure 80.

The minimum brake speed (N) is:

$$10^9 = \frac{N}{277.87} \times 220 \times 4$$

N = 34.4 rpm

Wheel speed =  $\frac{15}{62}$  x 34.4 = 8.326 rpm

Locomotive speed =  $\frac{40}{2x12}$  x  $2\pi$  x  $\frac{8 \cdot 328}{60}$  x  $\frac{60}{88}$  = 0.99 mph

Therefore, the maximum braking current of 1050 amp is available from 8 mph to 0.99 mph, resulting in less than 2-percent loss of available energy.

# 5. Flywheel Machine Control

To confirm the range of flywheel machine control (i.e., field current) adequate for this duty, the approach adopted is to consider the two extreme cases of brake entry at almost maximum flywheel speed (unlikely) and minimum flywheel speed. The test of the adequacy of the flywheel machine control will be based on a traction motor armature and field current of 1050 amp, and a brake entry speed of 8 mph. Under these conditions, the total generated emf is 4 x 220 percent 880 v. The back emf of the flywheel machine must not exceed 880 - 109 = 771 v.

At minimum flywheel speed the volts per rpm become 290, and the saturation curve (Figure 81) gives a field current of 26 amp.

At maximum speed the volts per rpm become 203.3, and the saturation curve gives a field current of 16.5 amp. Therefore the braking duty is within the control regime of the flywheel machine field current, with the traction motor field maintained constant at 1050 amp.

### 6. Locomotive Power Enhancement

It is obvious there is scope for increasing the locomotive power within the traction motor capability. This could be achieved by placing a voltage source, such as the flywheel machine, in series with the main generator. The benefits of this arrangement in the switching mode are minimal since, for the most part, the locomotive is not horsepower limited. Furthermore, the time that the flywheel could be used to boost power is so short the possibility of locomotive power enchancement was not pursued.

# 7. Tractive Effort Control

It is possible to compensate for the weight transfer that occurs when the traction motors apply torque using separately excited traction motors with a separate field supply for each motor. Since the weight transfer that occurs, neglecting truck friction and suspension hysteresis, is a function of torque only, weight transfer compensation becomes a simple matter of arranging the outputs from the four field power supplies in fixed ratios automatically reversed, depending on the direction selected. This simple procedure allows the tractive effort per ton of locomotive to be maximized without increasing the probability of wheel spin.

The performance of a switching locomotive is not closely tied to available adhesion due to the copious use of sand to enhance traction conditions at the wheel/rail interface. Therefore, the benefit of weight transfer compensation on a switching locomotive is virtually impossible to quantify.

Similarly, the introduction of a complex system of load weighing to account for locomotive weight loss as consumable supplies such as sand and fuel are used, is considered unnecessary. The variation in locomotive weight from 100 to 0 percent consumable supplies is only 5 percent.



FIELD CURRENT, AMP

S 33864

Figure 81. Flywheel Machine Saturation Curve

# 8. Spin/Slide Protection (Optional)

This basic operating concept would consist of sensing the rapid increase or decrease in wheel velocity due to spin or slide, respectively, and taking the necessary corrective action. Tractive or braking effort would then be reapplied in a controlled manner so the wheel/rail velocities would become synchronous in minimal time to achieve high efficiency.

Each axle would be equipped with a pulse-type speed pickup mounted from the reduction gearbox. A frequency-to-dc converter of the sample-and-hold type develops a dc voltage proportional to wheel velocity and is operational down to velocities of a few miles per hour. Filtering is necessary to smooth the output and prevent false trips because of noise, resulting in a small time delay before the spin/slide condition is detected.

Since the motors are in series, detection of spin/slide would be on a total locomotive basis, with the filtered dc speed signal being fed to a rate-sensing circuit of the electronic flywheel type. This differentiating circuit performs the following functions: (1) senses when the wheel acceleration or deceleration exceeds about 2 mph/sec and puts out a protective trip signal, and (2) removes the protective trip signal only when the wheel velocity again is essentially synchronous with that of the rail.

The rate-sensing method has numerous advantages over the differential wheel speed schemes, including the following:

- (a) Detection of spin/slide is based on rate only, and hence does not require a specific speed error to develop before taking action.
- (b) Speed errors in tachometer signals due to tolerances and temperature drift have negligible effect on protective action. Since speed signals are not compared directly, variations in wheel diameters only slightly affect the 2 mph/sec trip point rate. This value could vary from 1.5 to 2.5 with no change in performance.
- (c) No special circuits are required to handle either random or synchronous slides of all wheels on a locomotive.
- (d) The rate-sensing method results in lower wheel/rail slip velocities and higher operating efficiency.

If wheel spin is detected during acceleration, the tractive effort command is automatically reduced to zero to allow the wheel to recover synchronous speed. Once this occurs, the tractive effort is restored. If wheel slide is detected during deceleration, the brake effort command and any dynamic braking are automatically reduced to zero to allow the wheel to recover synchronous speed, and once this happens the brake effort command is restored by adaptive control.

If the tractive braking effort is returned to the same level from rhich the spin/slide occurred, the result will be another trip. Repetitive dumping with low efficiency will take place until adhesion improves or the command

133

value is reduced. Adaptive control serves to overcome this problem by progressively reducing the tractive effort command to a level compatible with the available adhesion. Typical operation of an adaptive control scheme is as follows:

(a) Each time a dump occurs, the command signal is reduced to a certain percentage (e.g., 85 percent of its value by means of a bucking voltage signal).

- (b) At the end of the dump, the command returns rapidly to the 85-percent point, and then ramps up at a slow preset rate toward the initial 100-percent value.
- (c) A second dump immediately drives the command down to the 70-percent region, where **it** ramps upward at the same preset rate toward the initial 100-percent point.
- (d) Successive dumps reduce the command to a level slightly below the available adhesion in such a way that the number of dumps is minimized and efficiency is maximized. The reapplication percentage and ramp-up rates are selected for optimum efficiency under specified adhesion conditions.

Although the AiResearch proposal allows the adoption of this advanced spin/slide system, it is not considered economically sound to apply it to the switching locomotive since the motors are connected in series, and a rapid reduction in field current may tend to a flashover condition on other machines. This wheelslip protection scheme is ideally applied to locomotives with motors in permanent parallel or in multiple series/parallel groupings.

# SYSTEM OPERATION

Details of the FESS system operation will vary from switching yard to switching yard, and from railroad to railroad. The purpose of this study was to provide a flexible system able to be accommodated and absorbed by a railroad, with minimum impact on the existing operation. The major variable concerned the number of boxcars required in relation to the number of locomotives modified out of the total population of switching locomotives in the yard. If the railroad can dedicate a certain proportion of their switchers to the actual switching duty, and use the remainder exclusively for train makeup and other duties, then a significant saving in first cost can be realized on a "per car switched" basis. In order to allow the benefit of dedicated switching locomotives to be demonstrated, the economics program plots R01 against cars switched per day with variables, such as number of locomotives modified and number of boxcars required, inputted to produce families of curves.

Apart from the task of coupling the boxcar and ESU together, which would be infrequent in the idealized case, there should be no impact on the actual switching operation. Costs and savings associated with the implementation of FESS are discussed later in this document.

134 http://www.action.com/action/action/action/action/action/action/action/action/action/action/action/action/a

Simulations carried out in previous studies (Reference 5) indicated that the stages of flatyard operations are generally well-balanced, and no single activity acts as a bottleneck to the flow of cars through the yard. For example, an increase in the switching rate at most flatyards would not significantly increase yard capacity or reduce car-detention time unless train arrival and departure processing activities were also increased.

Since the existing operation tends to be adhesion limited (attested to by the amount of sand found in switching yards), **it** is clear that no significant impact on productivity could be realized by an improved motor rating or braking rate. Methods of increasing the effective working adhesion, such as individual axle control, would not have a significant impact on the operation since the use of sand increases the adhesion level up to 50 percent, compared with relatively small increases (15 percent) due to individual axle control.

# SYSTEM PERFORMANCE

Computer model simulations described earlier in this section were conducted to establish the following:

- (a) Fuel consumption of the existing system
- (b) Fuel consumption of a FESS A2 system with the same performance level (cars switched/day) as the existing system

The above approach allows the railroad to optimize its operation on the basis of productivity or energy consumption, whichever is considered to be the more important.

At the cooling air flow rate available in the SW1500, it has been deternined that the continuous rating of the D77 traction motor is 850 amp. It is at this rate that the limitation on the motoring performance of the FESS system has been reached. In brake, the performance is again limited by the traction motor rating, although if the motor rating were increased more than slightly (e.g., increasing the airflow), it would be necessary to consider the impact of the available adhesion level assumed.

The existing switching system is generally limited by adhesion in both motoring and braking, which has led to the adoption of operating methods that recognize this constraint. Prominent among these methods is the copious use of sand to prevent slip/slide when the adhesion level temporarily falls. This is an extremely cost-effective method of dealing with an intermittent problem, and is recognized in the switching yard as well-suited to the application. However, if the separately excited motor configurations were applied to road locomotives, **it** would be recommended that the optional spin/slide protection system be included in the package.

# **RISK ANALYSIS**

The hardware required for the FESS system can be considered as either existing or state of the art. Existing hardware which is to be used to implement the FESS system includes the following items.

- (a) D77 traction motor manufactured by EMD and modified as demonstrated. The control of the machine will ensure that the series characteristic, flux to armature current ratio consistent with the existing conditions, is maintained and the operating conditions of the motor unaltered.
- (b) ACT-1 energy storage unit manufactured by the Garrett Corporation with only minimal modifications. Following extensive final running on the ACT-1 vehicles, sufficient experience has been gained to ensure that production hardware will achieve an acceptable level of reliability.
- (c) The field supply alternator available from the Garrett Corporation is a proven machine, having operated reliably in the traction environment of the GTE cars.

New hardware required for the FESS concept, which is available within the state of the art, is limited to the field control unit which supplies power to the traction motor field. This type of power supply is common and falls within the area of expertise of Garrett. No particular risk can be assigned to this yet-to-be-designed hardware.

The main area of risk comes from the system integration required to incorporate the SW1500 locomotive, modified D77 traction motor, ACT-1 ESU, field supply alternator, and field control units into a viable working unit within a specified budget. The following are identified points of interface:

- (a) Motoring control--Translation of the operator's engine power demand into a flywheel machine current
- (b) Braking control--Translation of the operator's braking effort demand into a flywheel machine current
- (c) Field control--Maintaining the flux/armature ratio consistent with the series field characteristic, taking into account field saturation

The short-term technical risk associated with this product can be confidently stated to be minimal. While every effort will be made to preserve the impressive reliability record of the locomotive, it is probable that by introducing new and different hardware into the locomotive, its reliability will suffer. The front-end engineering effort would be directed to minimize that impact.

# SYSTEM COSTS AND CREDITS

All system costs and credits are in 1978 dollars, and are based on locomotive/ESU quantities in excess of 50. Although the figures are not sensitive to quantities above 20, below this figure the cost per unit rises dramatically. The annual costs and credits are not related to the quantities produced.

# Initial Costs

# 1. Locomotive Modification

The estimated cost of the locomotive modification is shown in Table 17.

# TABLE 17

# LOCOMOTIVE MODIFICATION COST

ltem	Cost
Traction motor modification kit	\$ 11,000
Auxiliary alternator (AiResearch PN SC938398)	15,000
Field power supplies	30,000
Electronic control unit	12,000
Jumper cables	5,000
Control modifications	10,000
Installation labor	25,000
Miscellaneous	10,000
Total	\$118,000

3f the \$118,000 estimated for the modification cost, \$68,000 (59 percent of the total) has been estimated to within  $\pm 5$  percent. This leaves only \$50,000 as a rough order-of-magnitude estimate, of which \$10,000 (9 percent of the total) is miscellaneous. Therefore, the total cost figure is considered to have sufficient accuracy for the purposes of this study.

# 2. Boxcar Installation

The estimated cost of the total boxcar installation is shown in Table 18. Of the 4215,500 estimated for the total installation cost, \$180,000 (85 percent of the total) is confirmed as the probable production cost of two ACT-1 ESU's in large quantity production. Therefore, the total cost of the installation is considered accurate.

137

# TABLE 18

# BOXCAR INSTALLATION COST

ltem		Cost
Basic boxcar		<b>\$</b> 15,000
Two ACT-1 ESU's (modified)		180,000
Electronic control unit		8,000
Jumper cables		5,000
Installation labor		2,500
Miscel laneous		5,000
	Total	\$215,500

# Annual Costs and Credits

# 1. Energy Storage Unit Maintenance--Boxcar Installation

Extensive theoretical analyses of the application of ACT-1 ESU's to New York have resulted in the generation of the following maintenance costs attribut-able to the ESU's:

Material 0.00495/car mi

Total \$0.363/car mi

A fleet of 6,700 cars covers an average mileage of  $305 \times 10^6$  miles. Therefore, the average annual cost of ESU maintenance (schedule and failure modes) becomes \$1,600 for one ESU per car. On the basis that maintenance cost is time-related rather than mileage-related, **it** will be assumed that the annual cost of maintenance of the two ESU's in the boxcar will be \$3,000.

2. Locomotive

# a. Field Supply Alternator Maintenance

The alternator to be used in the FESS scheme has been involved in extensive rail traction service in the Garrett GTE cars currently operating in Long Island, New York. Experience to date indicates that the air cooled version of the alternator will be an extremely low cost maintenance item. Assuming a major rebuild every 10 years, the average maintenance cost is estimated at \$550 per annum.

# b. Locomotive Brake Maintenance

In order to derive the maintenance savings attributed to reduction in friction brake use, the starting point was data supplied by the Southern Railway. Brake shoes cost \$7.15 each, and **it** is estimated that **it** takes 30 minutes to change 16 shoes every 8.5 days. The total cost per year for brake shoe maintenance is \$9,376 per locomotive. Brake shoe wear is generally proportional to the kinetic energy to be converted to heat. For average conditions, this can be translated to car stops. The typical scenario (Table 7) shows a locomotive making 4348 car stops per day, 3996 car stops with the ESU in service. Since the electric brake is only operative to 1 mph, the percentage of the kinetic energy still to be translated into heat is given by:

$$1 - (\frac{7.5^2 - 1^2}{7.52}) = 1.78$$
 percent

Therefore, the saving in brake shoe maintenance due to the FESS system is estimated at:

 $\frac{3996}{43483}$  X 0.9822 = 90.2 percent of the brake shoe maintenance.

This gives an annual maintenance saving of \$8,464.

It is recognized that the introduction of additional control equipment to the locomotive will result in additional costs, such as:

- Retraining of maintenance personnel
- Purchase and maintenance of new test equipment
- Increased spares holding

It is almost impossible to quantify this cost without involving a specific case study including railroad policy, local labor agreements, etc. However, an allowance of \$500 per locomotive will be made in the locomotive maintenance costs to cover the above.

d. Summary of Locomotive Maintenance

The net locomotive maintenance saving becomes

8,464 - 550 - 500 = 7,414.

The maintenance data are based on an average switching locomotive owned by the Southern Railway. The scenario data derived in Section 3 of this report indicated that an average Southern locomotive switches 396 cars per day, 350 days per year. Therefore, the net savings in locomotive maintenance can be  $es^{\dagger}i^{-}$  mated at \$0.054 per car switched.

# 3. Fuel Savings

Fuel savings on a "gallons per car switched" basis are calculated by the computer simulations referred to earlier in this section for the chosen scenario. The fuel cost used in this study at 1978 levels is \$0.42 per gallon.

# 4. Productivity

An attempt was made to determine whether **it** would be economically attractive to switch cars at a faster rate, thereby improving productivity.

Simulations carried out in previous studies (Reference 5) indicated that "the stages of flat-yard operations are generally well-balanced and no single activity acts as a bottleneck to the flow of cars through the yard. For example, an increase in the switching rate at most flat yards would not significantly increase yard capacity or reduce car-detention time unless train arrival and departure processing activities are also increased."

Observations made in this study indicate that a locomotive typically spends at least 50 percent of its time idle. Therefore, to complete a task faster would simply lead to more idle time. Since incoming and outgoing traffic times are determined by factors outside the classification yard (such as line capacity, availability of cars, availability of road locomotives, etc.), it is clear that the classification yard must be considered as an essential service industry to the main task of transporting cars from point A to point B. The inefficient use of resources, such as locomotives idling 50 percent of the time, is a necessary characteristic of switchyard operation.

The conclusion reached in this study is that locomotives and crews must always be available to cater to the peaks of work. The only incentive to increase switching rates would be the elimination of complete locomotives or complete three-shift days. With the small population of locomotives considered (up to six per yard), this would require a 15-percent (minimum) increase in switching rate. This could be more easily achieved without FESS. Since electric brake is not required, the traction motors could be run at higher currents in motoring, and higher braking levels could be achieved using air brakes. Generally, the railroads do not aim for these high acceleration and deceleration rates since switch rate is not the critical factor in overall yard productivity.

# TRACTION MOTORS

SECTION 5

The program plan called for analysis of the General Motors EMD Model D77 locomotive traction motor for conversion to separate field excitation, and development of a preliminary electrical/mechanical design necessary to implement the conversion. The plan also required the testing of two traction motors to establish operational integrity and performance characteristics before and after modification. The tests were intended to quantify the tractive effort before and after modification, assist in correlating the dynamic braking potentially attainable from an SW1500 locomotive incorporating modified traction motors with the braking characteristics of an existing SW1500 locomotive, and assist in determining how rapidly an SW1500 locomotive incorporating modified traction motors can go from an accelerating mode to a dynamic braking mode.

This section reports the results of activities conducted under Task 111, Traction Motor Analysis/Design; Task IV, Traction Motor Modification; and Task V, Traction Motor Bench Test.

# ANALYSIS/DESIGN

An analysis of the conversion of the EMD Model D77 locomotive traction motor to separate field excitation was performed. The first configuration evaluated was that of a fully compensated, separately excited, shunt-wound, traction motor with interpoles and pole face compensating windings. The development of this design is presented in the following discussion.

Figure 82 shows details of the series-wound traction motor with interpoles. This design configuration is the result of years of development by EMD to provide increased power in the same basic frame. Note that the series field windings are designed with parallel coil sides. Space between the series coil sides and the commutating coils on the interpoles is partially filled with baffles and additional baffles are installed between the pole tips to control the distribution of air to the various areas of the machine and to maintain the high velocity airflow required to obtain good heat transfer from the coil surfaces. When viewed from the end, the central sections of the series coils on the main poles are seen to extend in a radial direction almost from the pole tip to the frame. The commutating windings also extend over the full length of the interpoles. These windings utilize a very large fraction of the available volume within the machine.

Conversion of this machine to a separately excited machine requires a number of tradeoffs to design an acceptable configuration within the existing frame. As seen in Figure 82, the space available is extremely limited. This limitation in available space is much more severe than anticipated and introduces a number of difficulties in the design of a fully compensated, separately excited, shunt-wound configuration within the existing motor frame.

To provide space for the compensating pole face windings on the main poles, it is necessary to reduce the size of the main pole shunt field windings.



Figure 82. Existing D77 Traction Motor

Reduction in the main pole air gap reduces the excitation required from the main pole separately excited shunt field windings. This reduction in excitation required from the shunt field permits a reduction in the size of the shunt field coil and reduces the shunt coil losses. The pole face compensating winding neutralizes, or partially neutralizes, the cross-magnetizing ampereturns of the armature and permits a reduction in the ampere-turns in the commutating winding on the interpoles. Concentration of the reduced commutation coils near the interpole tip provides additional space near the frame for the shunt field coils on the main poles.

Figure 83 shows the design that has evolved as a result of these tradeoffs. The following modifications are required:

- Replacement of the existing main field poles with a new main pole and separable tooth pole to provide a reduced main air gap and slots for the pole face compensating winding
- Repiacement of the existing series field winding with a separately excited shunt field winding
- Replacement of the existing commutating winding with a new commutating winding concentrated near the pole tip
- Installation of a new compensating winding in the main pole faces
- Modification of motor interconnections
- Development of a new baffle configuration

Tables 19 and 20 show the results of analysis of the performance of the series traction motor and the separately excited, fully compensated traction motor. These tables show that the efficiency of the fully compensated separately excited shunt-wound machine is comparable to that of the series-wound machine.

The use of the compensating pole face winding greatly reduces the leakage fiux from the interpole and the useful interpole flux is made more nearly proportional to armature current. The compensating pole face winding reduces distortion of the motor air gap flux, producing a more uniform volts-per-commutator bar. It also reduces saturation in the commutating flux path and improves commutation at high armature current. These features are advantageous in certain applications, as in high-speed road locomotive and rapid transit propulsion systems.

The analysis of the D77 motor modification in the preceding description and the preliminary design work performed indicate that development of the fully compensated separately excited shunt-wound modified D77 motor with interpoles will require appreciable nonrecurring engineering effort. The required additional effort results from the need for iterative electromagnetic, mechanical, insulation, and thermal design and analysis to develop an acceptable design within the restrictions of the available motor frame design. It wds estimated that the cost of this approach would be several times the cost allowable for economic application in energy storage switch engine applications.



TABLE 19

# PERFORMANCE OF SERIES TRACTION MOTOR (D77 SERIES-WOUND TRACTION MOTOR WITH INTERPOLES)

Armature<br/>Current,<br/>ampTerminal<br/>Voltage,<br/>vArmature Circuit<br/>Input Power,<br/>kwSpeed,<br/>rpmOutput<br/>Torque,<br/>Ib-ftSeparately<br/>Excited<br/>Field Power,<br/>kwEfficiency,<br/>percent1105319.6353.23476171304.1086.1

dinp	•		· F					
1105	319.6	353.2	347	6171	304.1	0	86.1	
690	523.7	361.4	695	3409	336.4	0	93.1	
510	705.2	359.7	1042	2302	340.6	0	94.7	
420	878.0	368.8	1389	1779	350.8	0	95.1	
360	1037.2	373.4	1737	1440	355.2	0	95.1	
320	1178.1	377.2	2084	1210	358.1	0	95.0	
290	1285.9	372.9	2431	1023	353.0	0	94.7	

# TABLE 20

PERFORMANCE OF FULLY COMPENSATED, SEPARATELY EXCITED, SHUNT-WOUND TRACTION MOTOR WITH INTERPOLES

Armati Currei amp	ure Terminal nt, Voltage, v	Armature Circuit Input Power, kw	Speed, rpm	Output Torque, Ib-ft	Output Power, kw	Separately Excited Field Power, kw	Efficiency,* percent
1105	309.7	342.2	347	6116	301.3	19.6	82.7
690	523.7	361.4	695	3440	339.4	8.26	91.5
510	705.2	359.7	1042	2313.	342.2	3.16	94.2
420	878.0	368,9	1389	1785	351.9	1.87	94.9
360	1037.2	373.4	1737	1444	356.0	1.26	95.0
320	1,178.7	377.2	2084	1213	358.7	0.940	94.9
290	1285.9	372.9	2431	1024	353.5	0.706	94.6
*Base	d on field power s	upply efficiency of 8	38 percent.				

The major factor contributing to this increased cost is the complexity introduced by the compensating pole face winding. If the compensating pole winding is eliminated and a simple, noncompensated, separately excited, shunt-wound traction motor is considered, minimum changes to the motor, which can be implemented at considerably lower costs, are required.

Figure 84 shows a cross-sectional view of an alternative uncompensated separately excited design. Inspection of this figure shows that **it** involves a simple replacement of the series field winding on the main pole with a shunt field winding on the same pole. No changes to the magnetic structure are involved. The poles and air gap are unchanged. Minor changes in baffle design and interconnections are required. These changes can be incorporated at minimum cost. Table 21 shows the analytical results of the performance of this uncompensated separately excited design.

Both the compensated and uncompensated separately excited machine designs adequately provide means for the control of power exchange between the traction motors and energy storage flywheel. Reference to Tables 20 and 21 at the same armature current and speed indicates that the uncompensated separately excited machine has the same high-speed efficiency as the compensated machine and has slightly better low-speed performance.

Separately excited shunt-wound machines designed for operation from solidstate power supplies utilize laminated poles and fully laminated frames to reduce iron losses resulting from harmonics in the motor flux. In the FESS application, the traction motor armatures are supplied with smooth dc voltages from rotating machine generators. The fields are supplied from phase-delayrectifiers operating in series with the output of an auxiliary generator. The inductance of the shunt field winding limits the ripple in excitation current to a relatively low value. Therefore, **it** is unnecessary to laminate the main poles of the machine.

The solid iron frame of the D77 permits the generation of eddy currents that prevent rapid rates of change in motor flux. Because rapid rates of change in flux are prevented by the solid frame of the D77, advantages resulting from improved transient load commutation with compensating pole face windings cannot be realized. Improvement in motor commutation under high-speed field weakened conditions, resulting from the use of compensating pole face windings, are significant in high-speed road locomotive and rapid transit applications. The FESS application utilizes the traction motors at full field and low speeds for the greater portion of the locomotive operation.

The most significant advantages of the pole face compensating winding, therefore, can be only partially realized in the FESS application. The advantages of the fully compensated machine over those of the uncompensated machine are not considered sufficient to offset the disadvantages of lower efficiency, complexity of assembly, and increased cost.

On the basis of the results of the analytical work described above, the uncompensated, separately excited, shunt-wound friction motor with interpoles has been selected for use in the FESS system.

n en la seconda de la construcción de la construcción en **147** de la construcción de la construcción de la constru Construcción de la construcción de



# TABLE 21

# PERFORMANCE OF UNCOMPENSATED, SEPARATELY EXCITED, SHUNT-WOUND TRACTION MOTOR WITH INTERPOLES

Armature Current. amp	Terminal Voltage, v	Armature Circuit Input Power, kw	Speed, rpm	Output Torque, Ib-f†	Output Power, kw	Sepatately Excited Field Power, kw	Efficiency,* percent		
1105	300.7	332.2	347	5994	295.3	10.5	85.8		
690	523.7	361.4	695	3454	340.9	5.76	92.6		
510	705.2	359.7	1042	2319	343.1	2.86	94.5		
420	878.0	368.8	1389	1787	352.5	1.92	95.0		
360	1037.2	373.4	1737	1445	356.4	1.40	95.0		
320	1178.7	377.2	2084	1214	359.1	1.10	94.9		
290	1285.9	372.9	2431	1025	353.8	0.869	94.6		
*Record on field power supply efficiency of 88 Percent									

149

# UNMODIFIED MOTORS

Two General Motors EMD Model D77 traction motors were made available to the program by the Southern Railway System. The history of these motors is shown in Table 22.

# TABLE 22

Motor Serial Nunber	Original Service Date	Overhaul Date	Accumulated Mileage	Remarks
71121661	1972	1-8-76	404,151	
		10-31-77	539,858	Armature replaced with C75E296 having 109,626 mi accumulated service at installation.
69311094	11-3-71	2-27-76	326,636	First record of motor original service date unknown. Armature replaced with C69G375 remanufactured by National Coils.
		10-25-77	478,480	

# TRACTION MOTOR HISTORY

# TESTS OF UNMODIFIED MOTORS

The two unmodified traction motors were installed on a test stand at Motor Coil Manufacturing in North Braddock, Pennsylvania. Winding resistance and insulation resistance measurements were made with the motors cold. Tests were run to establish the no-load saturation and performance characteristics of the machines. Heat runs also were performed on the machines. Table 23 shows the results of the resistance measurements. The measured winding resistances were within the  $\pm 2$  percent range specified by the manufacturer except for the interpole winding resistance of one machine, which was found to be 2.6 percent above the specified resistance band. The insulation resistance of both machines was greater than 10 megohms.

Figure 85 shows the no-load saturation characteristics of one machine. The characteristics of the second machine were found to be equivalent within the limits of instrumentation accuracy and the hysteresis characteristics of these machines.

w

# TABLE 23

	Serial Number					
Circuit	71-L2-4661*	69-J1-1094*				
Interpole	0.005865	0.005205				
Main field	0.007584	0.007200				
Armature	0.01031	0.01003				

# UNMODIFIED D77 TRACTION MOTOR RESISTANCES

"Resistance corrected to 20°C.

Figure 86 shows the performance characteristics with 40-in. wheels, a reduction gear ratio of 62/15, and an assumed reduction gear efficiency of 96 percent. Excellent agreement is seen between the published performance data and the performance based on motor tests.

Heat run test data indicated that the 850-amp continuous current rating at 1400 cfm results in acceptable motor temperature rises. The thermal time constants of the interpole and main field windings as established from test data are 22 and 27 min, respectively, at 1260 cfm.

These test results indicate that the operational integrity of the unmodified motors is good and that the performance is in agreement with published characteristics. The thermal test also disclosed that the unmodified interpole winding temperatures are the highest temperatures in the machine.

Figure 86 quantifies the tractive effort of the unmodified machine.

# TRACTION MOTOR MODIFICATIONS

After completion of the unmodified traction motor tests, the motors were modified to the separately excited, low field current configuration. In addiion, the interpole coils were replaced with coils having increased conductor area to reduce interpole losses and lower interpole temperatures. Figures 87 snd 88 define the replacement coils installed in the modified motors.

# TEST OF MODIFIED MOTORS

### Test Configuration

Figure 89 is a schematic diagram of the test configuration showing instrumentation and control as installed for the tests using the electrical supply of loss test circuit with a booster generator. This circuit was used to perform no-load saturation tests, establish load saturation characteristics, and perform heat runs on the modified machines.

151



# Figure 85. No-Load Saturation Characteristics Unmodified D77 Traction Motors



Figure 86. Unmodified Series-Wound D77 Traction Motor Characteristics

153

ł

C produces the second product of C and C and C respectively the second product C



Figure 87. Replacement Shunt Field Coil



Figure 88. Replacement Interpole Coil

ៅទីទ



Figure 89. Separately Excited Traction Motor Test Schematic

156

# Yo-Load Saturation Test

Table 24 shows the no-load saturation test data for the modified D77 traction motor in columns 1 to 8. The measured speed was determined by use of a counter connected to a magnetic speed sensor which develops 60 pulses per revolution. With a 1-sec counting interval, this arrangement provides direct reading digital speed indication. A check of the motor speed with a stroboscope speed indicator showed that the instrumentation was operating properly. Therefore, corrected speed is the indicated speed as shown in columns 8 and 9. The generator excitation shown in column 10 is the product of the generator field current (column 6) and the number of turns per pole on the modified main field coils (132). The open circuit generator output voltage shown in column 4 is normalized to 1000 rpm speed and is shown in column 11.

The no-load saturation characteristics of the machine are shown in Figure 90. Because these characteristics agree with those observed on the unmodified machine and the modification work should not have resulted in any change, only one of the modified machines was tested for no-load saturation characteristics. These characteristics may be represented by the expression:

and the second				-
<u>م</u> ۲	and the second	and the second		/1\
 F		and the second		• • •
- <u>-</u>	en en de la sector d		 and the second	
		1	 	

where

E' is the open circuit voltage per kilorpm

- F is the excitation in ampere-turns
- a is an empirical constant (947.9)
- b is an empirical constant (3738)

These constants were selected to give 490 v/kilorpm at 4,000 ampere-turns and 690 v/kilorpm at 10,000 ampere-turns. Table 25 is a comparison between the measured and simulated characteristics. Excellent agreement is seen between the measured and computed results at normal operating excitation levels.

### 1. Rotational Losses

Table 24 provides the data necessary to compute the power input required to drive the motor and generator. The armature circuit resistance losses in the motor are small under no-load saturation test conditions. As a consequence, the entire motor input power is equal to the rotational losses of the machines. With the generator open-circuited, the actual supply current (column 1) and motor armature current (column 3) are identical. The average of the two measured currents multiplied by the motor voltage (column 2) is taken as the motor input power and is shown as the total rotational loss in column 2 of Table 26. Column 3 of Table 26 shows the motor excitation, which is the product of motor field current (column 7 of Table 24) and the 132 turns per pole of the main field windings.

# TASLE 24

NO-LOAD SATURATION TEST DATA, MC	DDIFIED TRACTION MOTO
----------------------------------	-----------------------

	Supply cuppent	Mot R Voltage	Moture Demature Current	GENERATOR VOLTAGE	Motors Fieud Volta sé	Geverativ Field Current	Moture	INDICATED SPEED RPM	CORRECTED SPEED RPM	GENERATUR Excitation Ampere Tom	OPEN CIRCUT VULTACE D 1000 RAM
NO.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
1	14	616	15	9	28	0	44	1002	1002	0	8.98
2	14	614	16	296	28	16	44	1010	1010	2112	293
3	16	613	17	489	28	30	43	1006	1006	3960	486
4	19	608	20	593	29	44	42	1003	1003	5808	591
5	21	607	23	651	29	59	42	1002	1002	7788	650
6	26	605	25	693	29	74	42	999	999	9768	694
7	30	603	29	727	29	89	42	999	999	11748	728
8	34	601	34	752	29	103	42	1022	1022	13596	736
9	39	599	38	776	29	119	42	022	1022	15709	759
10	43	597	43	792	29	133	42	997	997	17556	794
11	34	GOZ	33	723	33	103	48	982	982	13596	736
12	30	604	30	701	33	90	48	990	990	11880	708
13	27	605	26	673	33	75	48	963	963	9900	699
14	23	609	23	640	33	60	48	968	968	7920	661
15	18	616	17	489	33	30	48	941	941	3960	520
16	14	611	14	8	33	0	41	986	986	O	8.11
17											
18									· · · ·		
- 19											
20		· .									
21											

158



Figure 90. No-Load Saturation Characteristics Modified D77 Traction Motors

# TABLE 25

= 947. = 3738	94				
	Generator Excitation, ampere-turns	Open Circuit Voltage at 1000 rpm	Calculated Open Circuit Voltage at 1000 rpm	Voltage Error, v	Voltage Error, percent
No.	10	11	12	13	14
. 1	0	8.98	0	-8.98	-100
2	2112	293	342	49.2	16.8
3	3960	486	488	1.6	0.34
4	5808	591	577	-14.3	-2.4
5	7788	650	641	-9.5	-1.5
6	9768	694	686	-8.4	-1.2
7	11748	728	719	-8.9	-1.2
8	13596	736	744	7.5	1.0
9	15709	759	766	6.7	0.9
10	17556	794	782	-12,5	-1.6
11	13596	736	744	7.5	1.0
12	11880	708	721	13.1	1.8
13	9900	699	688	-10.9	-1.6
14	7920	661	643	-17.0	-2.5
15	3960	520	488	-32.4	-6.2
16	0	8.11	O	-8.1	-100

# CALCULATED VS MEASURED NO-LOAD SATURATION CHARACTERISTICS

160

# TABLE 26 ROTATIONAL LOSS DATA NO-LOAD SATURATION TEST

	Generator Excitation, ampere-turns	Total Rotational Loss, kw	Motor Excitation, ampere-turns	Speed, rpm	Open Circuit Voltage at 1000 rpm, V
No.	1	2	3	4	5
1	0	8.93	5810	1002	8.98
2	2112	9.20	5810	1010	293
3	3960	10.10	5680	1006	486
4	5808	11.80	5540	1003	591
5	7788	13.30	5540	1002	650
6	9768	15.40	5540	999	694
7	11748	17.80	5540	999	728
8	13596	20.40	5540	1022	736
9	15709	23.00	5540	1022	759
10	17556	25.60	5540	997	794
11	13596	20.20	6340	982	736
12	11880	18.10	6340	990	708
13	9900	16.00	6340	963	699
14	7920	14.00	6340	968	661
15	3960	10.80	6340	941	520
16	0	8.63	6200	986	8.11

Figure 91 shows the total rotational losses vs generator excitation for operation at an average speed of 1010 (997 to 1022) rpm and an average motor excitation of 5600 (5540 to 5810) ampere-turns per pole. These essentially constant conditions for these parameters are from lines 1 to 10 of Table 26. If the generator is operated at an excitation of 5540 ampere-turns per pole, both motor and generator will be operating at essentially the same conditions and the total rotational losses of 11.6 kw may be assumed to divide equally between the two machines. When the generator excitation is reduced to zero, the total rotational loss reduces to 8.78 kw. This change has little effect on motor losses, so it may be considered to require the same 5.8 kw as required for operation with the generator at 5540 ampere-turns per pole. The difference between the 8.78 kw total rotational loss and the 5.8 kw rotational loss required by the motor is the generator friction and windage of 2.98 kw, which remains when the generator excitation is reduced to zero. This may be assumed to equal the motor friction and windage loss for identical machines. The difference between the total rotational loss of the motor of 5.80 kw and the motor friction and windage loss of 2.98 kw is the motor iron loss at 1000 rpm and an excitation of 5540 ampere-turns per pole. Table 27 summarizes these no-load losses in the motor and generator for the unexcited and excited generator conditions as described above.

### 2. Iron Losses

The iron losses in the machine may be described by the equation:

$$\mathsf{P}_{\mathsf{FE}} = \left(\frac{\mathsf{K}1}{\mathsf{N}} + \mathsf{K}2\right) \frac{\mathsf{E}^2}{1000}$$

where

P<sub>FF</sub> is the iron loss in kilowatts

N is the speed in rpm E is the air gap voltage in volts K1 and K2 are iron loss constants for the machine

The iron loss constants for the machine have been calculated from motor design data and material characteristics and are 5.86 and 2.289 X  $10^{-3}$  for K1 and K2, respectively.

Equation (1) may be used to calculate the air gap voltage for the excitation level of 5540 ampere-turns and a speed of 1010 rpm as follows:

$$E = \frac{947.9 \times 5540}{5540 + 3378} \times \frac{1010}{1000} = 572 \text{ v}$$
(3)

(2)

At this excitation level, Table 25 indicates that the calculated voltage should be increased about 2 percent. This correction results in an air gap voltage of 583 v for the given conditions, and a calculated iron loss from Equation (2) of 2.75 kw. This calculated iron loss agrees quite well with the


:

المراجعة المتحدث

1.63





#### D77 TRACTION MOTOR (MODIFIED) NO-LOAD LOSS DISTRIBUTION AT 1000 RPM

	Motor	Generator	Total
Excitation, ampere-turns	5540	0	
Friction and windage, kw	2.98	2.98	5.96
iron loss, kw	2.82	0	2.82
Total rotational, kw	5.80	2.98	8.78
Excitation, ampere-turns	5540	5540	
Friction and windage, kw	2.98	2.98	5.96
iron loss, kw	2.82	2.82	
Total rotational	5.80	5.80	11.60

2.82 kw shown in Table 27 as derived from test data. Constants K1 and K2 are adjusted as follows to match the test data:

$$K1 = \frac{2.82}{2.75} \times 5.86 = 6.01$$

$$K2 = \frac{2.82}{2.75} \times 2.289 \times 10^{-3} = 2.35 \times 10^{-3}$$
(5)

#### 3. Friction and Windage Losses

Brush friction losses may be calculated from the expression:

$$P_{BF} = 5.9184 \times 10^{-6} \text{ w l n P } \mu \text{ N D}$$
 (6)

uhere

P<sub>BF</sub> is the brush friction loss in kw/motor

 $\ensuremath{\mathsf{w}}$  is the brush width in inches

1 is the axial length of the brush in inches

n is the number of brushes per motor

 $\boldsymbol{\mu}$  is the coefficient of friction between brush and commutator

N is the motor speed in rpm

D is the commutator diameter in inches

Table 28 shows the brush design data used in the calculation of brush friction losses for the D77 traction motor.

#### TABLE 28

## BRUSH DESIGN DATA D77 TRACTION MOTOR

	y ang yang kanangan mananin sama sang kanang inang yang gang ng kanang ng kanang ng kanang ng kanang ng kanang Ng ng yang kanang ng k	apple for the second
W	Width, in.	0.625
1	Length, in.	2.0
Bara an Bara an A	Pressure, psi	6.5
n	Number of brushes	12
μ	Coefficient of friction	0.15
D	Commutator diameter, in.	15.81

The calculated brush friction losses, using the data of Table 28, are 1.368 kw/motor at 1000 rpm.

Bearing friction may be calculated from the expression:

$$P_{BRG} = 7.398 \times 10^{-7} \text{ g N}$$
 (7)

where

P<sub>BRG</sub> is the bearing loss in kw q is the bearing drag in oz-in.

N is the motor speed in rpm

Windage loss may be calculated from the expression:

$$P_{w} = k_{w} N^{2}$$
(8)

where

P<sub>w</sub> is the windage loss in kw

 $k_w$  is the windage loss coefficient

The loss coefficient (k\_w) is estimated to be 5.217  $\,\times\,10^{-7}$  from tests of similar machines.

The sum of the calculated brush friction, bearing friction, and windage toss should equal the 2.98 kw as derived from *fesf* at 1000 rpm. Table 29 shows the calculated friction and windage losses at 1000 rpm as compared with the test value. The calculated value is less than that established by test. The calculated losses are adjusted to match total friction and windage losses as shown in Table 29. The major increase in the adjusted losses is in the brush friction loss. This increase in brush friction may be the result of operation with an unseasoned, clean, new commutator surface that has not yet acquired a burnished low friction film.

#### TABLE 29

	Calculated Loss, kw	Adjusted Loss, kw	Effect of Speed
Brush friction	1.368	2.08	Linear with speed
Bearing friction	0.074	0.122	Linearwithspeed
Windage loss	0.522	0.782	Speed squared
Total losses	1.964	2.98	

#### FRICTION AND WINDAGE LOSSES, KW AT 1000 RPM

#### Load Saturation Tests

Load saturation tests were performed to establish the effect of load on the performance of the motor. Table 30 shows the measured load saturation test data as recorded. Analysis of the test data has shown that the indicated speed exceeds the actual speed that could exist for certain test conditions. Therefore, it was necessary to adjust the speed prior to additional data reduction. It appears that the speed instrumentation counter input signal threshold was set too low and that some noise was counted as motor speed. The principal noise source was the three pulse-per-cycle noise on the solid-state power suppliers shown in Figure 89. At high power levels, one or more of these pulses apparently added to the counter each cycle of supply frequency. One pulse per second is equivalent to a speed of one revolution per minute. Three pulses per cycle at 60 cycles per second, therefore, are equivalent to 180 rpm if each noise pulse is detected by the counter. Thus, speed errors may be 60, 120, or 180 rpm. Column 15 of Table 30 shows the corrected speed resulting from evaluation of the data.

The effect of load on the performance of the motor is to introduce voltage drops between the motor input terminals and the internal voltage of the machine and to increase the magnetomotive force (mmf) under one pole tip and to decrease it under the other pole tip of each pole. As a consequence of saturation, the increase in mmf results in less than proportional increase in magnetic flux where the load current produced mmf is aiding the main field flux. This increase in flux is less than the reduction in flux that occurs under the pole tip where the armature reaction mmf is bucking the main field flux. As a result of this effect, the average flux per pole is reduced, which is equivalent to additional voltage drop. These effects are considered in greater detail in the following paragraphs. LOAD SATURATION TEST DATA

TABLE 30

	IME	stor LTDGE olts de	NERATOR ELD LTASE	NERATUR RERPULE TIPSE	JERATAR MATURE RREJT	したい たしい ためでいて	DILATED PEED 2PM	MERATUR TAGE	star ELD LTA GE	stor terporé LTASE	TOR MATURE RRENT	Tok ELD RREUT	spery RRENT	uster LTACE	נגנידבה בבה
	┣	٤٢	`دْ يَان	223	9479 9479	U U U U U	ZŃ	200	źű, Ż	233	Edu	ELU	N 1 2 2 4	âž	2 5
NO.	<b>1</b> .	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	.9	10	11	12	13	14	15
1	821	80	61.1	3.40	722	102.4	226	49.0	47.4	3.81	835	1.1	115	-	106
2	823	164	58.5	4.23	884	93.8	422	136	48.2	4.91	1029	77,1	143		242
3	825	340	57.8	4.61	914	89.7	606	312	48.9	5.17	1022	76.9	113	30.2	486
4	835	445	57.8	4.74	925	88.0	722	419	49.0	5,50	1055	76.0	120	29.4	662
5	837	569	62.5	4.96	933	92.1	998	543	51.0	5.61	1039	78.0	115	29.6	818
6	845	569	34.2	4.95	902	49.0	1144	543	30.9	5.73	1015	47.4	125	29.5	964
7	851	577	25.4	5.01	893	36.9	1415	539	23.3	6.00	1043	36.5	140	38.0	1235
8	852	578	19.7	4.56	813	29.2	1632	539	18.9	5.77	1010	30.4	151	40.6	1452
9	900	577	15.6	4.85	844	23,0	2012	528	15.1	5.96	994	24.9	159	-	1832
10	905	566	12.6	4.93	844	18.6	2308	508	12.5	6.25	1030	21.3	175	63.8	2128
11	921	573	21.7	5.42	915	33.7	1503	513	20.8	6.63	1044	35.2	130	61.0	1323
12	922	581	19.4	4.31	725	30.2	1443	529	20.9	5,05	796	34.9	74	53.3	1263
13	931	578	29.5	4.53	752	46.3	1086	527	30.2	5,07	817	49.6	60	53.0	966
14	935	580	36.9	4.52	751	57.9	1012	526	36.9	4.93	797	60.1	51	53.0	892
15	938	577	59.1	4.55	758	90,6	987	527	57.5	4.95	810	90.0	50	52.9	807
16	941	581	57.3	2.25	380	85.1	867	547	59.2	2.41	401	90.1	28	34.4	807
17	945	577	40.5	2.10	369	58.8	979	563	39.0	2.33	405	58.9	36	14.4	919
18	949	582	33.9	2.02	366	49.1	1036	576	32.6	2.31	410	49.6	44	7.75	976
19	958	582	23.1	1.91	356	33.6	1223	581	224	2.20	405	35.2	45	2.16	1163

#### 1. Resistance Drops

The resistance of the interpole winding, armature winding resistance, and brush drop all contribute to the effect of load on performance. The resistance of the windings was measured at a known temperature using a Kelvin bridge  $\ddagger \circ$  obtain precise values of winding resistance. The results of these measurements are shown in Table 31.

#### TABLE 31

	Serial	Number
Circuit	71-L2-4661*	69-J1-1094*
Interpole	0,004738	0.004724
Main field	0.5351	0,5394
Armature	0.01031	0.01003

#### MODIFIED D77 TRACTION MOTOR RESISTANCES

\*Resistance corrected to 20°C.

The resistances shown in Table 31 are corrected for temperature using the expression:

$$r_{\uparrow} = r_{20} \left( \frac{234.5 + t}{234.5 + 20} \right)$$

(9)

where

r<sub>†</sub> is the resistance at temperature †

 $r_{20}$  is the resistance at 20°C

t is the average winding temperature in  $^{\circ}\text{C}$ 

The product of the armature current and the sum of all resistances in series with the motor armature is the voltage drop resulting from the dc load current at low speed. As the speed of the machine increases, alternating current is induced in the armature conductors. This alternating current results in eddy current losses in the armature conductors, which increase the effective resistance of the armature. This effect is accounted for by the introduction of an eddy factor (EF), which is a function of speed (frequency) and armature conductor temperature (resistivity). Armature design data were used to develop the EF for the D77 armature resistance. This multiplier of the dc or ohmic resistance of the armature is shown in Figure 92.



# Figure 92. Effect of Conductor Temperature and Speed on Armature Winding Eddy Factor

An additional voltage drop is the brush drop. The brush drop is given by the equation:

$$V_{B} = E_{B} + I_{A}R_{B}$$

where

 $\circ r$ 

- ${
  m V}_{
  m B}$  is the brush drop in volts
  - $E_{\mathbf{B}}$  is the brush contact drop in volts
  - $R_B$  is the effective brush resistance in ohms
  - $I_A$  is the armature current in amperes

The brush contact resistance is assumed to be 0.00217 ohms and the brush contact drop is assumed to be 2.5 v.

#### 2. Armature Reaction

Armature reaction resulting from load current flowing in the motor armature of an uncompensated motor results in an increase in the mmf on one pole tip and a decrease in the mmf on the other. If there were no saturation, the average magnetic flux would remain constant. When the mmf increases on one pole tip, saturation results in a less than proportional increase in flux under this half of the pole, which fails to compensate for the decrease under the other half of the pole. Figure 93 shows this effect. It has been shown that the no-load voltage (E') may be written:

$$E^{t} = \frac{aF}{F + b}$$
(11)

Load current ( $I_A$ ) results in an armature reaction mmf equal  $\dagger \circ$  ( $\delta$ ) where:

$$\delta = k_A l_A$$
(12)

The average voltage (E) under load may be approximated by the expression:

$$E = \frac{1}{2\delta} \left\{ \int_{0}^{F + \delta} \frac{a F}{(F + b)} dF - \int_{0}^{\delta - F} \frac{a F}{(F + b)} dF \right\} \quad \delta > F$$
(13)

$$E = \frac{1}{2\delta} \int_{F-\delta}^{F+\delta} \frac{a}{(F+b)} dF \quad \delta \leq F$$

$$E = a \left\{ \frac{F}{\delta} + \frac{b}{2\delta} \ln \left( \frac{b+\delta-F}{b+\delta+F} \right) \right\} \delta > F$$
(14)
(14)



(10)



## Figure 93. Effect of Armature Reaction

or

$$E = a \left\{ 1 + \frac{b}{2\delta} \ln \left( \frac{b - \delta + F}{b + \delta + F} \right) \right\} \qquad \delta \leq F$$

Figure 94 shows calculated load saturation characteristics (E) vs (F) with  $(I_A)$  as a parameter for  $k_A = 6.5$ . This constant  $(k_A)$  has been selected to best fit the experimental data,

(16)

This curve is derived from the load saturation test measurements shown in Table 31. Table 32 shows the corrected speed (column 1), the motor excitation (column 2), the motor back emf (column 3), the normalized motor back emf at 1000 rpm (column 4), the motor armature current (column 51, and motor air gap power (column 6).

Columns 7 through 11 show the corresponding generator parameters. Instrumentation correction factors have been applied to the voltages and currents shown in Table 31 prior to calculation of the items in Table 32. The back emf of the motor and generator, as shown in Table 32, are based on these corrected values and on the measured resistances of the armature corrected for the estimated armafure temperature at the test condition. The armature temperature is estimated on the basis of observed interpole and field winding temperature by resistance. Eddy factors from figure 92 are applied for the armature temperature and speed conditions at the time of measurement. Interpole drops are as measured and shown in Table 31. Brush drops are calculated and included in the total drop to establish the back emf. Corrected speed values are used to normalize the back emf of motor and genera-for.

#### 3. Load Saturation Characteristics from Test Data

The motor back emf at 1000 rpm from column 4 vs motor excitation from column 2 of Table 32 defines the load saturation characteristics of the motor. Corresponding parameters define that of the generator.

#### 4. Rotational Losses Under Load

The difference between the air gap power output of the motor and the air gap power input of the generator is the total rotational loss. This loss is calculated for each condition as shown in Table 32 (column 12).

#### 5. Stray Load Losses

The friction and windage losses, motor iron losses, and generator iron losses are calculated from the equations developed herein from actual test data. These losses are shown in Table 32 on a per-machine basis in columns 13, 14, and 15, respectively. The total rotational losses minus the sum of the friction and windage losses and the iron losses for both machines, divided by two, is the stray load loss as shown in column 16 of Table 32. This loss divided by the motor input power calculated from corrected motor voltage and current is shown in column 17 as the stray load loss for the motor in percent of motor input. The average of the stray load losses of column 17 is 1.9 percent.



Figure 94. Load Saturation Characteristics of D77 Traction Motor

## LOSS DISTRIBUTION FROM LOAD SATURATION TEST DATA

-						_				-						<u> 1</u>	1.11	
		Speed. rom	Motor Excitation ampere-turns	Motor Back emf, V	Motor Back em「at 1000 rpm, V	Motor Current. amp	Motor Air Gap Power, kw	Generator Excitation, ampere-turns	Generator Back লো, v	Generator Back em∫at 1000 rpm, v	Generator Current. amp	Generator Air Gap Power. kw	Total Rotational Loss kw	Fr ction and Windage Loss. kw	Hotor Iron Loss. kw	Generator Iron Loss. kw	Stray Load Loss.	Stray Load Loss in Motor, percent
	No.	1	2	· 3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	II	12	13	14	15	16	17
	1	106	10180	63.1	596	835	52 7	13520	64.3	606	724	46 5	6.18	0.24	024	0.24	2.61	3.90
. [	2	242	10180	143	592	1029	· 147	12380	155	640	887	137	9.98	0.58	0.56	0 65	3.81	2.25
	3	486	10150	318	653	1022	325	11840	334	687	. 917	306	18.41	1.25	1 48	1.64	6.40	1.83
	4	662	10030	420	635	1055	443	11620	443	669	928	411	32.20	1.78	2.02	2.24	122	259
	5	818	10300	543	663	1039	564	12160	570	696	936	533	30.82	2 32	286	3.15	10.1	1.70
	6	964	6260	541	561	1015	549	6470	571	592	905	516	32.57	2.84	2.51	2.80	10.8	I.86
	7	1235	4820	544	440	1043	567	4870	570	462	896	51	56.26	3.90	213	2.35	22.0	3.64
	8	1452	4013	542	373	1010	547	3850	571	393 .	815	466	81.55	4.83	1 90	2.72	33.9	5 80
	9	1832	3290	533	291	994	530	3040	568	310	847	481	48.92	6.64	1.60	1.82	16.1	2.80
	10 [	2130	2810	513	241	1030	528	2460	554	261	847	469	58-97	8.21	1 36	1.59	19.8	3.33
	11	1323	4650	537	406	1044	561	44-50	547	413	91.8	502	59.23	4.27	1.39	2.06	23.3	3.89
	12	1263	4600	554	439	796	441	3990	556	440	727	404	37.07	4 02	2.18	2.20	12.3	2.66
j	13	966	6547	554	574	817	453	6110	552	571	754	416	36.70	2.85	2.63	2.61	12.9	2.72
	14	892	7930	557	625	797	. lalata	7640	550	617	· 753 .	414	30.06	2 58	282	2.75	9.67	2 09
	15	807	11880	555	688	810	450	11960	550	682	760	418	31.08	2 28	3 02	2.97	10.3	2.19
	16	807	11890	570	706	401	229	11230	561	69 5	381	214	14.78	2.29	3.18	3.08	1.98	0.85
!	17	919	7770	565	615	405	229	7760	577	628	3 70	213	15.53	2 6 7	2.84	2.96	2.19	0.93
	18	976	6550	570	584	410	234	6480	590	604	367	217	17 20	2.88	2.77	2.96	2.85	1 19
. 1	19	1163	4650	569	490	405	231	4540	596	512	357	213	17.31	3.61	2.44	2.67	2.79	1.18
+			•		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · ·		· · ·						-			

#### Performance

The preceding discussion has established all of the parameters necessary to determine the performance of the D77 traction motor in the unmodified series-connected configuration or in the modified shunt-connected configuration. This section first calculates the performance of the unmodified machine from test data and compares **it** with published data from the manufacturer. Then the performance of the modified machine is calculated from test data to indicate the effect of the modification on performance.

#### 1. Performance of Unmodified D77 Traction Motors

The performance of the unmodified D77 traction motor has been calculated from the test data. The results of these calculations are shown in Table 33. The calculations are made for the condition of a constant 356-kw input power to the motor. Reduction gear efficiency has been calculated from data on similar gears. Figure 95 shows the tractive effort vs current and speed vs current performance characteristics of the machine as defined by the manufacturer (EMD Curve SC-2786). The voltage vs current characteristic is fixed by the constant power input constraint. Also shown in Figure 95 is the efficiency, including gear losses vs current as calculated from the tractive effort, speed, and input power defined on this curve. These characteristics are the baseline performance characteristics of the motor and gear. The characteristics shown in

#### TABLE 33

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				· · ·
	Armature Current, amp	Tractive Effort, Ib	Speed, mph	Voltage, v	Reduction Gear Efficiency, percent	Efficiency Including Gears, percent	Output Power at Rail, hp
	1020	12960	11.7	350	98.7	84.3	402
	895	11030	14.0	399	98.4	86.3	412
	797	9560	16.5	448	98.5	87.8	419
	704	8170	19.5	507	98.4	88.9	424
-	618	6890	23.3	577	98.3	89.5	427
	495	5100	31.6	721	97.9	89.8	428
	400	3760	42.4	892	97.2	89.0	424
		2740	56.9	1097	96.0		415
• )							

#### D77 SERIES MOTOR PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS (356 kw, 62:15 ratio, 40-in. wheels, 75°C, 16 turns/coil)



Figure 95. Unmodified Series-Wound D77 Traction Motor Characteristics (356 kw, 62:15 Gear Ratio, 40-in. Wheel, 75°C)

Table 33, which are based on the test results, have been added to Figure 95. Excellent agreement is seen between the baseline and measured characteristics. The published performance characteristics are verified as representative of actual motor performance for the series-connected machine. The performance parameters established from test data also may be considered to be verified for use in system analysis, because they produce results that agree with expected performance.

#### 2. Performance of Modified Traction Motors

The motor data developed in the preceding subsection and validated by comparison of calculated performance with published performance data for the series motor have been used to calculate the performance of the modified motor. The modified motor field losses must be separately supplied. These field losses and the losses in the field power supply (alternator and rectifier) must be included in the input to the motor in order to compare the performance of the modified machine with the baseline characteristics. In the seriesconnected machine, the main field winding must operate at armature current. At full armature current, the main field winding must be capable of dissipating full armature current losses in the winding. The field losses increase with the current squared but the resulting flux increase is limited by saturation, so operation at high armature current is inefficient. In the separately excited machine, an additional degree of freedom is introduced and excitation may be controlled independent of armature current. Figure 96 shows the effect on the motor losses and tractive effort of a tradeoff between armature current and field excitation. As the armature current is increased, the armature copper loss, the interpole loss, and the brush drop increase. At the same time, the main field loss and iron loss decrease. Figure 96 shows that at constant input power and speed an optimum excitation exists that will result in minimum losses, maximum efficiency, maximum tractive effort, and maximum output power. Figure 97 shows optimum excitation vs armature current for constant power input to motor and field supply losses. Also shown in Figure 97 is the 100-percent field condition equivalent to that of the series machine.

Table 34 shows the calculated performance of the modified D77 traction motor for constant input power to the motor plus field supply losses with optimum excitation applied to the motor. Field power supply losses are based on 85-percent field power supply efficiency. Reduction gear efficiencies, as shown, are included. These data are shown in Figure 98.

Figures 95 and 98 provide a direct comparison of the performance of the unmodified and modified machines for constant power input at 75°C winding temperatures. At light load (low current), the field power supply losses are small and most of the power is delivered to the motor drmature circuit. The voltage vs current characteristics, therefore, are practically identical. At higher current, the modified motor input voltage is slightly less than that of the unmodified motor at the same current. Operation of the modified motor at reduced excitation and higher armature current for a given power input on speed results in a shift of the tractive effort curve to the right, an increase in the speed curve, and an increase in the efficiency curve. At the same tractive effort and input power with optimum excitation, the modified machine



Figure 96. Typical Excitation vs Armature Current Characteristics



Loss at a Given Speed

MODIFIED D77 SEPARATELY EXCITED MOTOR PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS (356 kw,\* 62:15 ratio, 40-in. wheels, 75°C, 132 turns/coil)

		Optimum Exci	tation						
	Armature Current, amp	Current, amp (132 turns)	mmf, ampere- turns	Tractive Effort, lb	Speed, mph	Voltage, v	Reduction Gear Efficiency, percent	Efficiency Including Gears, percent	Output Power at Rail, hp
	1100	97.1	12800	13170	11.7	318	98.7	85.7	409
	1000	76.6	10110	11150	14.0	351	98.6	87.4	417
	900	67.6	8930	9640	16.5	392	98.5	88.6	423
	800	59.8	7890	8203	19.5	442	98.4	89.5	427
	700	54.1	7150	6930	23.3	506	98.3	90.1	430
	600	39.2	5170	5110	31.6	591	97.9	90.2	430
	500	31.2	4120	3770	42.4	709	97.2	89.4	427
	400	27.0	3560	2760	56.9	890	96.0	87.7	418

"Total motor input + field supply losses.





operates at higher armature current than the unmodified machine, but at the same speed and efficiency. Therefore, both machines operate at the same overall performance level, but with a different distribution of internal losses.

#### Heat Run Test Data

The two motors were operated back-to-back at the conditions shown in Tables 35 and 36 until steady-state temperatures were obtained. Temperatures of the winding surfaces were measured and recorded. Average winding temperatures were established 'by resistance determined from voltmeter and ammeter readings. Average armature temperature after shutdown was determined by resistance measurement and commutation/brush interface temperature after shutdown was measured by a thermocouple. Airflow to the machine was adjusted and measured as the pressure drop across the motors and air temperatures were. Extensive temperature data obtained during these tests have been reduced and are included in the following subsection. The thermal time constants of the main field and interpole windings as determined from tests of the modified machine are 73 and 23 min, respectively, at 3130 cfm. The increase in thermal impedance of the shunt-wound multiturn coil that results from turn insulation is significantly greater than the effect of airflow on the cooling rate and explains the Increase in time constant for this coil. The modified interpole winding has increased heat capacity and increased cooling capacity, and therefore, has a time constant similar to the unmodified coil. The significant results of the heat run are that the thermal capability of the interpole winding was greatly improved by the use of a larger size conductor and that some improvement in the thermal design of the shunt field winding of the modified machine is The following subsection provides detailed temperature time history required. data from heat run 2 to illustrate the thermal condition of the machine as modified with a prototype shunt field design.

#### TRACTION MOTOR THERMAL ANALYSIS

A thermal analysis of the modified D77 traction motor was performed. The purpose of the analysis was to establish a digital computer thermal model for the evaluation and optimization of the motor performance in terms of thermal rating. The thermal model was correlated with laboratory test data to verify and improve its accuracy. The study has shown that the thermal modeling technique presented herein is a valid tool for thermal design of the traction motor. The test conditions on the machine were tdken from heat run 2 (line 24, Table 36). Analysis of the test data resulted in the thermal conditions, airflow, and loss distribution as shown in Table 37.

#### Thermal Analysis Details

The analysis was performed using the AiResearch Thermal Analyzer Computer Program. The program analyzes a thermal network model that considers conduction, convection, cooling airflow, and radiation. The heat dissipation ( $1^2$ R) as a function of temperature was accounted for in the program. A detailed model was created for the analysis and is presented in Figures 99 to 101. The calculated steady-state temperatures based on the test condition of the D77 motor are presented in Tables 38 and 39. The measured temperatures and the calculated temperatures at the critical areas of the motor are presented in Figures 102 to 105.

## HEAT RUN NO. 1 TEST DATA MODIFIED D77 TRACTION MOTOR

TABLE 35

	T Imé	Moture Voltage Volts de	CENERATOR FIELD Voutos	CLENERATUR INTERPOLE VOLTACE VoltaCE	GENERATURE ARMATURE CURRENT AMPS &	Clénierarar Freus Curreut anos di	I NUICATED 57260 RPM	CLENERATUR Voltace Voltace	Moture Fielus Vouragé Vultagé	Muture Nucreace Vucreace	Moton Armaturé currént amps de	Mutua Fiero curred ands de	Supply current amps de
NO.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Ι	12:60	513	743	5.37	920	95,3	881	505	74.1	5.47	1035	94.5	4z.
2	12:05	577	75,3	5.83	1035	93.8	944	507	75,2	6.14	1/0/	93.5	62
3	12:10	580	78.0	5.77	967	94.7	959	513	77.1	6.02	1025	93.8	60
4	12:18	580	81.3	5.81	939	95.5	1008	610	80.7	6.06	990	94.9	50
5	12:20	577	83.6	5.89	962	97.3	1006	508	81.1	6.29	1016	94.7	53
6	12:25	572	84.1	6.29	973	95.4	970	505	81.2	6.31	1013	94.9	54
7	12:30	571	87.8	6.23	961	97.4	1023	503	83.6	6.44	999	94.5	56
8	12:35	572	88.7	6.05	929	96.2	1050	503	25.1	6.44	993	94.9	55
9	12:43	569	91.8	6.25	943	96.5	1031	502	85.9	6.47	974	94.6	54
10	12:50	571	96.1	6.20	931	98.7	1026	504	88.4	6 55	998	95.1	55-
11	13:00	571	90.1	6.31	932	91.2	1016	506	83.9	6.70	996	89.6	57
12	13:06	572	83.3	622	910	84.3	1008	505	79.6	6.40	950	85.3	5Z
13	13:10	578	83.2	5.86	870	84.3	1073	512	79.7	6.13	907	85.5	45
14 -	13:16	566	83.3	6.16	900	84.7	981	500	79.6	6.38	958	85.7	53
15	13:26	570	84.]	5.95	882	85.3.	1013	503	80.1	6.12	933	86.4	47
16	13:30	567	92.5	6.48	960	94.1	985	502	83.Z	6.64	990	89.4	59
17	13:35	565	91.1	6.40	950	91.9	984	498	83.Z	6.71	1000	89.2	60
18	13:40	568	91.4	6.47	945	91.7	988	501	83.7	6.15	998	89.5	64
19	13:50	568	91.5	6.32	918	90.8	994	501	83.6	6.59	962	89.1	55
20	14:00	572	93.2	6.59	951	91.7	1041	508	84.2	6.90	1004	89.3	68
21	14:05	576	93.8	6.43	917	91.4	997	509	84.1	6.72	985	87.2	62

HEAT RUN NO. 2 TEST DATA MODIFIED D77 TRACTION MOTOR

		HIM6	Motur Voutage Volts de	Generator Content	GENERATUR INTERPOLE VOLTORE Volts de	GENERATUR ARMATURE CURRENT CURRENT	GENERATOR FIEUD CURRENT	1 NUICATED SPEED RPM	GENERATUR Voutacie Volts Re	Mutur Fielu Vultage	Mutur Intérpoué Voltacé Volta de	Motor Armatune Guarent Guarent	Mutur Fiero Curred	suppy current amps de	Buuster Vurtage Vults de
	NO.	1	2	3	4	5	.6	7	8	9	10	· 11	12	13	14
	1	10:25	578	55,7	4.13	809	79.2	981	518	53.4	6.09	1062	80.Z	90	55
	2.	10:30	565	63.3	6.80	1105	85.2	1009	508	53.4	7.91	1233	78.5	124	57.1
	3	10:35	561	63.2	6.61	1050	83.9	1040	515	53.8	7.70	1155	77,4	140	49.7
	4	10:40	565	65.1	6.84	1055	84.4	1011	517	53.8	8.20	1210	76.4	146	49.6
	5	10,45	563	64.9	7.10	1052	82.8	1014	517	53.8	8.55	1210	75.4	150	49.8
	6	10:50	567	65.6	7.03	1035	82.7	1034	518	54.0	8.75	1180	74.6	145	49.9
	7.	10.55	564	66.0	7.16	1052	82.0	1026	516	55.0	9.18	1230	75,5	175	49.7
	8	11:06	570	70.5	7.32	1060	85.6	1027	522	57.6	9.10	1185	78.2	150	50.1
	9	11:05	574	71.1	7.14	1030	85.1	1015	523	57.7	9.01	1183	77.4	140	57.5
	0	11:10	571	71.4	7.15	1035	85.3	1012	525	58.6	9.22	1185	77.8	145	51.2
	1	11:20	575	74.2	7.10	1018	85.3	1021	52C	60.7	9.20	1150	79.1	133	52.4
	2	11:30	556	74.6	7.39	1044	848	984	511	61.0	9.47	1160	<i>78.5</i>	143	51.7
1	3	11:40	557	73.8	7.44	1036	82.9	1018	510	61.0	9.50	1152	77.6	140	51.5
	4	11:50	562	75.1	7.38	1030	82.6	1022	513	61.9	9.25	1133	78.3	144.	51.5
1	5	12:01	559	77.7	7.51	1035	85.3	972	510	64.3	9.25	1145	80.3	135	51-7
<b>1</b>	6	12:11	562	78.2	7.45	1015	84 s	980	513	64.9	9.45	1172	80.3	133	54.0
	7	12:20	564	79,5	7.50	1035	85.5	987	515	65.5	9.40	1150	80.5	137	55.4
1	8	12:30	561	79.5	7.60	1030	84.6	1021	507	66.2	<i>9.3</i> Z	1136	80.9	124	54.9
1	9	12:45	557	82.0	7.61	1035	85.2	950	505	67.6	9.57	1159	82.0	135	-
2	0	12:53	560	82.7	7.63	1020	85.7	960	510	67.7	9.40	1150	81.4	135	55.1
2	1	13:08	560	81.6	7.51	1003	84.1	979	508	67.6	9.33	1135	81.0	134	55.0
2	2	13:20	557	81.9	7,70	1038	83.7	992	500	67.6	9.78	1185	80.5	150	55.0
2	3	13:37	560	81.6	7.60	1020	83.6	979	509	68.0	9.35	1135	80.8	135	55.3
à	4	13:42	552	81.3	7.89	1053	83.8	978	500	68.0	9.90	1205	81.0	145	55.0

**a**.

184

Figure 102 presents the average surface temperature of the main field coil at the cooling air inlet end (commutator end) and the cooling air outlet end. The measured temperatures are based on four thermocouples reading at each end of the coil. Each thermocouple is bonded on the center of end turn

#### TABLE 37

DV OTATE THEDRAL CONDITIONS

STEADT-STATE IN	ERMAL CONDITIONS	
Cooling airflow	2800 cfm	
Cooling air temperature	96°F	
Motor speed (corrected)	858 rpm	
Armature current	1053 amp	
Power dissipation summary		
Interpole	8.34 kw at 169°C	
Main field	6.81 kw at 223°C	1999 - 1999 -
Armature cu	27.43 kw at 248°C	
Brush drop	7.1 kw	
Armature tooth	10.6 kw	
Armature iron	3.12 kw	
Main pole face	5.58 kw	

surface. Figure 103 shows the average field conductor temperatures that were calculated by resistance measurement. Figure 104 is the average surface Temperature of the interpole coil. The measurement technique is similar to the main field coil. The average interpole conductor temperature measured by resistance method is presented in Figure 105. Figure 106 shows the average armature conductor temperatures that were calculated by resistance measurement after shutdown.

Examination of the results reveals that the thermal model has demonstrated a good agreement between the test data and the analytically computed results. Therefore, the thermal model can be used for the prediction of the hot-spot winding temperature and thermal performance of the traction motor.

#### Thermal Performance

The thermal analysis model of the as-modified traction motor validated by test data has been used to investigate the effect of airflow and main field coil design changes on the thermal performance of the motor.





NOTES: NODES 23, 24, 29 INLET AIR END END-TURN 25, 26, 30 OUTLET AIR END END-TURN 31, 32 INSULATION 33 TO 40 WINDING 41 TO 46 HOUSING OR IRON 8-33802





Figure 101. Thermal Nodal Network for 077 Motor (Interpole Area)

### MODIFIED D77 TRACTION MOTOR STEADY-STATE TEMPERATURE TEST CONDITION

· .	на. На 1911 г.						
	NU-UF TTER	HE SOLUTION	EMP= 1.0000	ACCEL# 1.	5000		н. На 1919
	HODE NO.	TENP. F	HEAT IN. W	ATT.PHOV	CPTT	KN	TEOP
	1	342.12	34.2248	•00000	ុ ៖ កំពុំតំនូ	200.0000	172.
	2	295.33	32+0430	.000000	₽000 <b>₽</b>	200,00000	146,
	3	349.71	34+5792	.000000	•0000	200.00000	176,
	4	313.21	32.8767	•000000	,0000	S00*00000	156
	5	341.27	116.0351	•000000	•0000	500.00000	-171
	5	347.27	116,9815	•000000	- •0000	S00*00000	1/5
	7	294.10	-108-5705	•00000	•0000	200.00000	145
		307,98	110.7660	•00000	•0000	200,00000	153
		350,92	52.0461	•000000	.0000	500*00000	177
	10	359.50	52+64/6	•000000	0000	200.00000	181
÷	. 11 13	374.15	110.0010	•000000	r	200.00000	111
	12	330.03	1/0,143/	•0000000		500 • 00000	101
-	1.3	204041		· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	0000. 0000.		102
	14	. <u>21091</u> / 104 30	• UUUU •	000000	•0000 •0000	\$1000 \$1000	102
	14	100,20	0000		•0000	911000	104
	17	220.21	+ 0,000 hand	- 000000 - 000000	•0 <u>0</u> 00	11000	104
	10	205010	0000	000000 000000	+ 00000 0000		111
	10	271 80	0000	•000000. •000500	0000	50 00000	170
	20	282.75	10000 10000	- <u>- 000000</u>	- 2000	60.00000	130
	21	271.12		- 000000	-0000	60.00000	172
	22	277.20	- 8000	.000000	-0200	60.00000	176
	23	484.78	-7.3041	_000000 _000000	-0000	00000.000	251
	24	494.65	68,0755	000000	.0000	90000	257
	25	492.53	b7.9100	.000040	.0000	90000	255
	26	503.88	÷8.7981	.000000	.0000	.90000	262
	- 27	335.11	17.2030	.000000	.0000	.90000	168
	28	365.31	7,9339	.000000		.90000	185
	. 29	421,46	51,9690	.09000A	.0000	.90000	21÷
	30	433.91	52,7807	•000000	<ul> <li>B060</li> </ul>	. 96000	553
	31.	~185.65	.0000	* 0.000 0 Q	<b>,</b> 0n00	•11000	8 <u>5</u> .
	32	241.55	• 0000	.000000	*000e	.11000	116
	33	480.41	77.9470	* 640,040	•0960 ·	,90000	249
	34	482.57	78,1440	<b>.</b> 000000	•6460	.,90000	250
	35	494 .03	79.1867	°uù0000	•0660	.90000	256
	36	498,40	79.5847	• e91000	ុមថ្លាំា	•900NU	259
	37	409,99	59,6439	• 340.000	0.000	-9000U	505
	-38	415.08	50+0298	*000000	•0000		212
	39	354,00	2045686	•000000	. 1600	,90000 ,90000	178
	40	301.05	50°8381	•000000	• 0 U U U U	•99000 •99000	184
	41	203.20	∎ 0 0 9 0 0	*000000 *000000	•0900	50.00000 50.00000	. <u>1</u> 40
	*C	273 <u>0</u> 31 975 77	* U V V V	•0~0000 •00000	• 1009 0000	60 000000	135
	43	212411		• 0000000 • 000000	0000	60 00000	130
	45	285,84	349-0000	_0000090 _000000	- 0000 - 0000	60_66900	141
	46	203.80	- 349_0000	1000000	-0000	60,00000	149
	47	159.47	0000±<=~0	.000000	.000V	15,00000	70
	48	304 36	380-000	. <u>0010000</u>	_0000V	15.00000	151
	49	415,74	.0000	_000u00	• (c) 0 0	200,00000	213
	50	419.76	984.0000	.000000	.000u	1,00000	215
	51	226.82	.0000	.000000	.0000	4,50000	jóa
	52	459.51	3429-0000	.000000	.0000	200.00900	237
	53	90.00	.0000	-1,080086	1.0000	1.00800	. 26
					0 4 0 0	15 20200	

FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS

#### FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS

STREAM NO.= 1 NODE NO.= 100 INLET TEMP.= 96.00 HEAT DA. RHOF SECTION NODE NO. TOUT FLOW .0708 -000000 · 1470,0000 104.35 1 191 FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS INLET TEMP. = 104.30 STREAM NO.= 2 NODE NO.= 101 RHOF HEAT IN. FLOW TOUT SECTION NODE NO. .000000 .0703 102 592.0000 105.22 1 .000000 592.0000 .0702 2 103 106.10 .000000 592.0000 .0674 З 104 150.73 FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS STREAM NG.= 3 NODE NO.= 101 INLET TEMP.= 104.36 HEAT IN. PHOF -SECTION NODE NO. TOUT FL0₩ .000000 •0703 1 105 104.88 878,0000 FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS INLET TEMP = 104.88 STREAM NO. = 4 NODE NO. = 105 HEAT 1404789 SECTION NODE NO. TOUT FLOW RHQE 106 o 0666 1 166.87 454-0000 2 1.260794 107 231.73 .0602 454.0000 FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS INLET TEMP.= 104.88 STREAM NO. = 5 NODE NO. = 105 RHOF HEAT IN. SECTION NODE NO. TOUT FLOW .0000000 127.74 424.0000 01089 108 1 424.0000 .0663 .0000000 2 109 149.13 FLUID CAPACITY RATE ELEMENTS. INLET TEPP. = 175.32 STREAM NO,= 6 NODE NO.= 120 SECTION NODE NO. TOUT FLOW HEAT IN. RHOF 121 1 175.58 1470.0000 a000000 a () 524



Figure 102. D77 Motor Average Field Coil Surface Temperature Modified



Figure 103. Modified D77 Motor Average Field Conductor Temperature



Figure 104. Modified D77 Motor Interpole Average Coil Surface Temperature



Figure 105. Modified D77 Motor Interpole Average Conductor Temperature

191	



Figure 106. Modified D// Motor Armature Hverage remperature

Figure 107 shows the effect of motor cooling airflow rate on interpole and main field temperatures. Inspection of this figure shows that increased airflow has little effect on winding temperatures in the as-modified machine for the test conditions specified.

Inspection of Figure 107 discloses that reduction in main field coil temperatures required that the coil be optimized.

#### MAIN FIELD COIL OPTIMIZATION

A 132-turn shunt field coil was designed, fabricated, and installed in two D77 traction motors. The coil was fabricated to match the dimensions of the standard motor. It utilized Kapton turn insulation and an external insulation system identical to that of the standard coil as manufactured by Motor Coils Manufacturing. The coil was designed as a low-current (100 amp), moderate voltage (100 v) replacement for the standard coil. The purpose of this coil was to provide benchmark thermal data on the performance of such a multilayer, multiturn coil in a D77 traction motor. No detail drawings of the machine were available to AiResearch, and detail thermal analysis without drawings or test data was not considered to be an effective approach. The approach followed was to design, fabricate, install, and test the above coil for minimum cost in money and time, and the resulting test data were used for coil optimization.

Figure 108 shows a simplified section of the coil as manufactured. Additional details of the insulation system are provided in Figure 109. These details were used to define the baseline thermal model of the as-modified-astested motor.

Figure 110 shows three techniques for improvement of the thermal performance of the main field windings. The first involves the installad-ion of a metal filler plate along the coif sides to provide increased thermal conductivity for the conduction of heat from the coil to the cooling surface. This technique is similar to that employed in machines using a 7-turn, 9-turn, 2-section, main field winding in the series machine. No problem or development is required to incorporate this improvement in production coils. The second technique takes advantage of the fact that the separately excited main field coils in the shunt-wound machine are operated from an isolated power supply and so are not subjected to full armature circuit voltages and switching transients that require high insulation levels in the series machine. The baseline coil is grossly over-insulated and significant reduction in insulation thickness to ground can be obtained without loss of electrical integrity. However, until operating history can be obtained on the separately excited machines with such main field windings, it is not considered prudent to reduce the insulation system to the minimum electrical requirements because the insulation system provides considerable mechanical support for the windings and **it** also provides mechanical protection for the internal insulation. A reduction of 0.016 in., therefore, is considered as the maximum reduction to make from the established design at this time. The third technique increases the coil fill factor (percent of the coil space occupied by copper) by the use of improved production tooling to control the buildup of the winding. A conservative reduction of 0.005 in the inter-turn space is assumed around



Figure 107. Predicted D77 Motor Winding Temperature (96°F Cooling Air)









- REDUCED THERMAL IMPEDANCE ON AIR SIDE OF COIL
- REDUCED COIL INSULATION 0.016 IN.
- INCREASED COIL FILL FACTOR
  - IMPROVED TOOLING
     REDUCED TURNS

5.3382*H* A

Figure 110. Thermal Optimization of Main Field Coil

each turn. In addition, a reduction in the number of turns will reduce the number of layers of insulation that impede heat transfer and will reduce the losses in the coil.

Figure 111 shows the effect of a reduction in the number of turns and a reduction in the inter-turn space on the fill fraction. A 132-turn coil (existing shunt field coil design) and a 98-turn coil design are shown.

The thermal model of the D77 was utilized to investigate the effectiveness of these techniques. Figure 112 identifies the main field coil construction for specific thermal model cases.

Case 1A is the as-tested configuration with the as-tested airflow and loss distribution. Case 1B is the same as 1A, except that the airflow is increased. Case 1C is the same as 1A, except that additional airflow is provided. The speed and losses are as-tested for all three of these cases. These are the same cases shown in Figure 107.

The results of the thermal analysis are summarized in Table 40.

Case 2 shows the effect of a reduction in the number of turns on the thermal performance for the same conditions as case 1A, which are the as-tested conditions. Inspection of Table 40 shows that the main field hot-spot temperature has been reduced from 262" to 228°C and the average winding temperature has been reduced to 209°C.

Additional reduction in temperature is shown to result if the turns are reduced and, in addition, insulation thickness also is reduced as shown in Figure 112. When both changes are accomplished, the thermal model indicates that the main field hot-spot temperature is reduced to 217°C and the average main field temperature is reduced to 199°C. Interpole winding temperatures are only 181°C hot spot and 168°C average. Armature temperature, however, is high (237°C) because operation of the motor at 858 rpm results in a high armature eddy factor.

Case 4 shows that if the motor speed is reduced to base speed of 372 rpm (10.7 mph), the armature losses and temperature are reduced to an acceptable 191°C at the higher armature current level of 1129 amp. With an excitation of 11,800 ampere-turns per pole, this performance is identical to that of the series machine at 1056 amp. All winding temperatures are acceptable.

Case 5A shows the effect of reduction in airflow from that of the road locomotive to that of the switcher. At this airflow, load must be reduced. Case 5B reduces load to a level where 85 percent of the losses of case 5A are developed and case 5C reduces load to a level where 80 percent of the losses of case 5A are developed.

Acceptable temperatures are shown for case 5C. The performance of the separately excited switches at these conditions is acceptable and exceeds that of the unmodified series machine, which is limited by interpole temperature to about 850 amo load current at 1400 cfm.




CASE 1	<ul> <li>79 PERCENT CU-FILLED WIRE</li> <li>t1 = 0.042; t3 = 0.057</li> <li>T2 (AVERAGE EPOXY MICA FILLER) = 0.264</li> <li>t4 = 0.062: t5 = 0.146</li> </ul>	
CASE 2	SAME AS CASE 1 WITH 85 PERCENT CU-FILLED WIRE	
CASE 3 TO CASE 5	• 85 PERCENT CU-FILLED WIRE • $t1 = 0.026$ ; $t3 = 0.041$ • $t2 = 0.125$ ; $t4 = 0.046$ • $t5 = 0.146$ NOTE: DIMENSIONS ARE IN INCHES.	S-33798

Figure 112. Main Field Coil Construction

## TABLE 40

### TRACTION MOTOR THERMAL STUDY SUMMARY (COOLING AIR AT (96°F)

		Conditions				Main Field Winding Temperature		Interpole Winding Tomporature		Armature Winding	
	Configuration	configuration		Armature Ex	Excitation,	°C		°C		°C	
No.	for description)	cfm	rpm	amp	turns	Hot Spot	Average	Hot Spot	Average	Average	
1A	As-tested	2800	858	1056	11000	262	237.	182	170	237	
1B	As-tested	3000	858	1056	11000	257	232	176	164	232	
1C	As-tested	3200	858	1056	11000	252	218	172	161	227	
2	Reduced turn (98)	2800	858	1056	11000	228	209	-181	168	237	
3	Reduced turn (98)	2800	858	1056	11000	217	199	181	168	237	
4	insulation	2800	372	1129	1 1800	213	195	190	175	191	
5A	resistance	1400	372	1129	11800	265	243	265	243	249	
5B		1400	372	1040	10880	217	201	215	199	217	
5C		1400	372	1010	10550	202	187	200	185	206	

ĺ

#### RESULTS OF TRACTION MOTOR TASK

Traction motor performance data obtained from tests have been used to develop models for the analysis of the performance of unmodified and modified traction motors. The performance model for the series model predicts performance that agrees with the established characteristics. This validates the data for use in the analysis of system performance.

A prototype separately excited main field coil was designed, manufactured, and installed in two D77 traction motors. Testing of the modified motors provided the thermal data necessary for development of a thermal model of the machine and optimization of the coil design.

An optimized coil design resulting from this effort is shown to have 98 turns. Performance of the separately excited machine is equivalent to that of the series machine, but with a different distribution of losses. Operation of the separately excited machine is most effective at reduced excitation levels and increased armature current levels when compared with the series machine.

Increases in interpole conductor size improve the thermal capability of the machine.

#### SECTION 6

#### ECONOMIC ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

The potential benefits of flywheel energy storage are largely economic. Although reduced fuel consumption is a desirable material goal, no particular social benefit results from the deployment of FESS. The major savings are locomotive fuel, energy, and reduced locomotive maintenance. On a timeconsistent basis, these savings must be compared with the initial investment and maintenance costs for the flywheel system equipment.

The comparison of savings to cost has been performed by using several accepted economic techniques. The FESS can be considered economically viable if (1) the savings sufficiently exceed costs to provide a reasonable return on invested capital, including interest charges, and (2) the savings compensate for the uncertainties associated with the introduction of new technology.

#### ECONOMIC ANALYSIS TECHNIQUES

To simplify the calculation of return on investment (ROI) in the economic analysis, **if** was assumed that all investments were made in year zero of the 20-year economic life of the system. Year zero is defined as 1982 for the purpose of this study since this would be the earliest a production FESS system could be deployed. Savings were calculated at the mid-year point for each of the 20 years.

The economic techniques to be employed in this study were agreed upon with FRA at an early stage when an attempt was made to assess the viability of the FESS concept using the techniques with which industry and government are most familiar. These techniques are described below.

#### Office of Management and Budget Circular A-94

This is a net present worth or net present value technique. As the name implies, this technique is concerned with assessing the value of monies spent or saved in future years in terms of today's money value; however, this is not a method for dealing with inflation. OMB A-94 allows relative inflation to be taken into account. Inflation factors are shown in Table 41.

4 crucial discussion to be considered concerns the rate at which future monies should be discounted. OWR A-94 dictates that a 10-percent rate be used. This represents an estimate of the average rate of return for private investment before taxes and after inflation. However, railroads typically realize only a 5 to 6 percent rate of return, and therefore the applicability of the OMB A-94 guidelines to FESS is questionable. For this reason, the results derived from this technique were not used as the baseline case.

#### TABLE 41

#### SUMMARY OF INFLATION RATES

Analysis Technique	Diesel Fuel	Maintenance	General Price Level
OM5 A-94	2	2	0
4R Act	0	0	0
Sensitivity 1	8	8	6
Sensitivity 2	10	8	6

### Railroad Revitalization and Regulatory Reform (4R) Act-1975

The purpose of the Railroad Revitalization and Regulatory Reform (4R) Act was to provide financial assistance to the U.S. railroads, enabling them to invest in essential new projects, such as track maintenance, track reconfiguration, etc. It was considered prudent to assess the benefit of FESS using the guidelines of the 4R Act, even though FESS could probably not qualify for 4R assistance as the legislation is currently structured.

Because the 4R Act guidelines make no allowance for general or relative inflation, AiResearch feels that the results do not reflect accurate world conditions. Therefore, the results from this technique were not used as the baseline case.

### Sensitivity Analyses 1 and 2

These analyses were recommended by AiResearch as being "real-world" because inflation was taken into account, producing an output based on current dollars. The analyses, like the 4R Act, employ ROI techniques, with the exception of inflation recognition. The inflation factors for the two analyses are shown in Table 41.

Sensitivity analysis 1 is considered to be the most realistic scenario, so **it** was used as the baseline case for the economic analyses.

#### INFLATION

In this type of study, the choice of inflation factor is a crucial decision when the year of decision is 1982, and the hardware is designed for a 20-year economic life. Many different components make up the total costs and annual savings; historically, each of these components has increased in cost at different rates relative to the general price level (GPL).

#### General Price Level

When inflation factors were formulated in November 1977, the GPL was rising at 6 percent per year. Today the GPL is rising at 9 percent per year, but the inflation rate of 6 percent has been used for this study.

#### Diesel Fuel

Diesel fuel inflation is difficult to predict because it is subjected to international political pressure. A report by A. D. Little (Reference 6) suggests that diesel fuel will probably escalate at 2 to 4 percent rate above the GPL over the next 25 years. Figure 113 is based on a 2 percent differential inflation rate, and 2 percent above GPL is considered to be the most realistic estimate for fuel inflation (Reference 7).



Figure 113. Projected Cost of Diesel Fuel

Reference 4. Schwarm, E. G., <u>Energy Costs for Railroad Electrification, final</u> <u>Report</u> prepared by A. D. Little, Inc., under contract to DOT-TSC, May 1977.

Reference 7, An Evaluation of the Costs and Benefits of Railroad Electrification, Draft Report, Federal Railroad Administration, Washington D.C.

#### Maintenance

The Department of Commerce (Bureau of Labor) projections of increased costs in manufacturing and nonmanufacturing industry have historically shown an increase of 2 percent above GPL in maintenance costs. This increase has been assumed for the life of FESS.

#### ENGINEERING ECONOMICS COMPUTER PROGRAM

In order to handle the large number of calculations required for the four economic analyses of FESS, a computer program has been written for the Univac 1100 system. Figure 114 shows a simplified flow chart for this program, and Appendix C gives a program listing. The input and output data of this program are briefly described below.

#### Input Data

The first card is a title card in which 80 alphanumeric characters can be used for job identification purposes. As described below, other input data are inputted in a namelist form:

CØMØD--Initial cost for one locomotive modification

BØXCØS--Initial cost of one boxcar

ESUCØS--Initial cost of two ESU's

LBCMTC--Maintenance cost of one locomotive per cars switched

ESUMTC--Annual maintenance cost of ESU per boxcar

FULSAV--Fuel savings in gallons per cars switched

NBBBX--Number of quantities of boxcars considered

NØLØC--Number of quantities of locomotives considered

NCARS--Number of quantities of cars switched

BØXC--Array for numbers of boxcars considered

LØCC--Array for numbers of locomotives considered

CARSD--Array for numbers of cars switched

DISCØN--Discount rate

<u>IPR</u>--2 0 gives diagnostic printout = 0 no diagnostic printout

NYRCØN--Life of project in years



Figure 114. Economics Program Flow Chart

<u>IPLØT - = 1</u>. generates Calcomp plots = 0. no Calcomp plots

FACT--Scale factor for Calcomp plots = 1. for full size

<u>IRPT</u>--= 1. prints output = 0. no printout

CWEIT--Average car weight in tons

YMAX--Maximum value (in percent) of the Y-axis to be used in Calcomp plots

#### Output Data

The first page of the printout shows the input data used in the run. Subsequent pages show the following variables printed as a function of number of cars switched for a given number of boxcars and a given number of locomotives.

- (a) Net present value (NPV) in thousands of dollars
- (b) Initial cost in thousands of dollars
- (c) Return on invest in percent using the 4R method
- (d) Return on investment in percent using sensitivity 1 analysis
- (e) Return on investment in percent using sensitivity 2 analysis

#### ECONOMICAL ANALYSIS RESULTS

The results of the Concept A2 economic analysis are contained in Appendix D, using sensitivity 1 as the baseline. This is presented graphically in Figures 115 through 118 where the calculated ROI is plotted against the numbers of cars switched per day in a given yard. The numbers of locomotives requiring modification to the FESS configuration to switch the given number of cars per day is given as the third variable on each plot. The fourth variable taken into account is the number of boxcars required for each yard, a factor dependent on locomotive utilization, which in turn is dependent on yard topography, labor agreements, available work, etc. Due to the difficulty in arriving at a general set of uni-versai rules which could be used to evaluate FESS in any application, the results are plotted to enable any interested party to plot their own particular circumstances on the graphs.

The data collection task described in Section 2 of this report provided the parameters for the three flatyards visited (Table 42).





Figure 116, Baseline Concept A2, Two Boxcars



Figure 117. Baseline Concept A2, Three Boxcars





### TABLE 42

### FLATYARD CHARACTERISTICS

	Dillard	Baldwin	Whitefish
Cars/day	1409	3485	725
Locomotives/yard	3 or 4	5 or 6	3 or 2

Applying the data obtained from Table 42 to the results of Figures 115 through 118,  $\exists$  conclusion is reached that even in a most optimistic case (the number of ESU-equipped boxcars less the numbers of locomotives), the ROI would not exceed 5, and would probably be negative. Therefore, the obvious conclusion is that FESS Concept A2 is economically unattractive.

#### SECTION 7

#### ALTERNATE CONFIGURATIONS

#### CONFIGURATION DESCRIPTIONS

During the concluding efforts of the indepth system analysis, preliminary economic analysis results made it apparent that the Concept A2 economic viability was marginal for two reasons: (1) without careful energy management by the operator, the lack of fuel saving could alter to increased fuel usage, and (2) a high initial cost was associated with the concept. In an attempt to retrieve the situation, AiResearch considered alternate configurations that were aimed at reducing the cost of the most expensive items: the locomotove modification and the ESU's. The following three alternate flywheel configurations were Identified and are described in Appendix E:

- o Concept A2 (modified)
- Concept A1 (modified)
- Series motors concept

Furthermore, because it has been clearly demonstrated that the energy savings identified are negligible and the benefits identified result solely from brake maintenance reduction, it is obvious that similar benefits would result from the use of a dynamic brake if it could maintain braking effort at a low speed (1 mph). The chopper-controlled dynamic brake is such a system, and it is also described in Appendix E.

#### ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

It was considered that this cursory analysis of alternate configurations was more useful than a conventional sensitivity analysis on a proposal which was so clearly uneconomic. The detailed results of the economic analysis of each configuration are given in Appendix E. From these data, the baseline analysis results are plotted in Figures 119 through 121 for Concept A1 (modified), Figures 122 through 127 for the series motors concept, and Figure 128 for the chopper-controlled dynamic brake.

An economic analysis of Concept A2 (modified) was unnecessary because the only difference between A2 and A2 (modified) was a less than I-percent reduction in the locomotive modification cost.

It can be seen that none of the alternate configurations are attractive, and it has been concluded that the switchyard locomotive operation costs are so small to run that high-cost modifications cannot be justified. The low utilization factor of the equipment also precludes taking a financial credit for dny possible increase in productivity that could have resulted from enhanced equipment performance, because this would have been absorbed by an Increase in the utilization factor.

-.-



Figure 119. Modified Concept A1, One Boxcar





Figure 121. Modified Concept A1, Three Boxcars







Figure 123. Series Motors Concept, Two Boxcars







SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

SENSITIVITY .

NO. OF BOX CRRS = 4



Figure 125. Series Motors Concept, Four Boxcars



Figure 126. Series Motors Concept, Five Boxcars



-



Figure 128. Chopper-Controlled Dynamics Brake

# SECTION 8

#### CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The completion of Phase I of the flywheel energy storage switcher program has resulted in the quantification of the costs involved in, benefits derived from, and technical feasibility of short-term energy storage as applied to the operating environment of the switching locomotive. On this basis, the concept has been found to be economically unattractive, although technical feasibility was confirmed. Alternate configurations were considered and some were found to Improve the economics, although the concept is, at best, marginally valuable.

The specific conclusions and recoymendations of this 16-month FESS study are given below.

#### CONCLUSIONS

- (a) The recuperation of braking energy from a switching locomotive, its short-term storage, and subsequent reuse cannot be achieved in an economically attractive way using existing equipment.
- (b) The overall energy consumption of the existing switching operation is very low and, therefore the energy savings, which can be realized only during the short switching period, are also low and usually balanced by an increase in parasitic loads.
- (c) The study has resulted in the quantification of the duty cycle for a typical switching locomotive, which shows that the equipment is generally underutilized because of the nqture of the work.
- (d) The modification of the EMD 077 traction motor to a separately excited, low-current field configuration has been shown to be technically feasible. This modified motor may have applications beyond the FESS concept.
- (e) The operating costs of the switching locomotive are so low that high investment programs (in which only 5 percent of the locomotive cost are involved) cannot generally be justified by maintenance or energy savings. The locomotive population is generally small (usually less than six locomotives per yard), and therefore a minor increase in the potential productivity cannot be accomplished by a reduction in the size of the locomotive fleet. This is generally in agreement with the conclusions reached by the Stanford Research Institute (Reference 5).
- (f) The computer models developed for this study may have potential for application to other railroad activities, since the model uses the internal parameters of the locomotive to generate a train's performance.

#### RECOMMENDATIONS

- (a) The traction motors made available by the Southern Railway System should be reconverted to the standard configuration and returned to service. SRS may wish to retain certain features of the modified motor, such as the improved interpole.
- (b) The proposed Phases !! and !!! of the FESS program should not be pursued, since the concept has been shown to save little energy and to be economically unattractive.
- (c) The optional task in the contract (Article V, Computer Program Documentation) should be considered for use in other research projects since this comprehensive train model has a virtually universal application.
- (d) The scenario data reduced for FESS purposes have been fully described in this report. It is possible that other requirements may exist for further data reduction, and **it** is recommended that this possibility be investigated by FRA.
- (e) Because the feasibility of separately exciting the most common traction motor in U.S. railroad service has been confirmed, **it** is recommended that the application of this motor beyond the FESS concept be pursued.

### SECTION 9

#### REFERENCES

Wayside Energy Storage Study, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, AiResearch Report 78-15180, June 1978.

- 2. <u>Testing and Data Collection Plan to Define Operating Scenario of Flat-</u> yard Switch Engine, AiResearch Report 77-14536A, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, December 1977.
- 3. <u>Performance Test Plan for SW1500 Locomotive</u>, AiResearch Report 78-15055, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, May 2, 1978.
- 4. <u>Preliminary Analysis Report, Flywheel Energy Storage Switcher</u>, AiResearch Report 78-15053, AiResearch Manufacturing Company of California, June 1978.
- 5. <u>Railroad Classification Yard Technology</u>, A Survey and Assessment, Stanford Research Institute, January 1977.
- Schwarm, E. G., Energy Costs for Railroad Electrification, Final Report prepared by A. D. Little, Inc., under contract to DOT-TSC, May 1977.
- F. PAR Evaluation of the Costs and Benefits of Railroad Electrification," Draft Report, Federal Railroad Administration, Washington, D. C.

#### APPENDIX A

#### INSTRUMENTATION -

#### SCENARIO TESTS

The switching locomotive was instrumented to record data on digital cassettes for future retrieval. The data was recorded at a rate of 1 scan per second, and scanned at a rate of 200 channels per second. Prior to the test, a calibration of each channel was rscorded on the digital cassette. An event marker provided a stop and start marker for each individual test. Figure A-1 illustrates the data acquisition systems; Table A-1 lists the instrumentation required for data acquisition and calibration; Table A-2 shows the sensor locations for the recorded signals. All of these, except the accelerometer and brake sressure transducer, are standard locomotive equipment.

Retrieval of recorded data was accomplished using a Gould 6000 communications interface in conjunction with a standard RS-232 teletype. Calibration data recorded on the digital cassette provided the necessary scale factors to convert the printout digital data to engineering units. Figure A-2 is an illustration of the data recovery system, and Table A-3 lists the test equipment used far data recovery.

#### LOCOMOTIVE TESTS

#### Description

The switching locomotive was instrumented to record data on analog magnetic tape for future retrieval, and on an oscillograph for quick-look monitoring of tape recorder outputs and selected parameters. Figure A-3 is a block diagram of the onboard data acquisition system. A description of this equipment is given in Table A-4.

Retrieval of taped data was usually accomplished by playback on an eightchannel recorder as shown in Figure A-4. Data reduction was then cotinued, using the analog information provided from these playbacks. This playback equipment is described in Table A-5.

The bandwidth resolution, the sensors, and the sensitivity ranges of the recording equipment are summarized in Table A-6. A summary of the parameters recorded, and the instrumentation used for the performance tests is shown in Table 4-7.

A section of the locomotive wiring diagram shows the connection points for the voltage and current measurements (see Figure A-5). Note that measured motor voltage is actually motor armature voltage plus brush drop. True motor voltage is calculated to include the field voltage drop.

#### Calibration

#### 1. Current

The current shunts have a 50-mv output for rated current input. They have been calibrated and certified by the AiResearch metrology laboratory.

A-1



Figure A-1. Data Acquisition Systems

\$-34251

### DATA ACQUISITION SYSTEM AND CALIBRATION INSTRUMENTATION

·							
No.	Description	Model No.	Manufacturer	Response Range	Sensitivity	Calibration	Notes
1	Digital data logger	6100	Gould, Inc.	1 to 200 channels per second scan rate.	+10 mv to 10 v		
.2	Shunt isolation amplifiers	LSK 36895	AiResearch	Dc to 15 kHz	.1 m∨ min.	50 mv = 5.0 v	
3	Current shunts	Supplied by locomotive manufacturer		0 to 500 Hz	.1 m∨ min.	50 mv = 1000A	
4	Buffer/divider card	LSK 36521 (modified)	AiResearch	0 to 5 kHz	.1 v min.	75 v in = 5.0 v out	Used to con- difion FWD/ RE:, whee!
							slip, and sanding signals
5	Pressure transducer	217	Taber	0 to 100 Hz	0 to 200 psig .1 psig min.	75 psig = 5.0 V <sub>out</sub>	
6	Strain gage card	LSK 36530	AlResearch	0 to 10 kHz	.01 mv min.	AiResearch certified	
7	Linear accelerometer	LSBC2S	Schaevitz	0 to 40 Hz	0 to <u>+</u> .25 g .001 g min.	.25 g = 10.0 v	-
8	Accelerometer conditioning card	LSK 36530 (modified)	AiResearch	0 to 10 kHz	.01 m∨ min.	AiResearch certified	
9	Speed alter- nator (frequency to voltage	MM 24	General Electric	300 Hz	5 Hz	160 Hz = 50 mph	Supplied by locomotive manufacture
	transducer)						
10 -	Frequency to dc converter	LSK 36525 (modified)	AiResearch	0 to 10 kHz	5 Hz min	160 Hz = 5.00 v	
.11	Signal condi- tioning power supply and chassis	LSK 36896.	AiResearch	N/A	N/A	N∕A	· · · · ·
12	Low voltage calibrator	DVC 8500	DÀTEL	Dc	.1 mv min.	AiResearch certified	
13	Digital multimeter	3476B	Hewlett- Packard	Dc to 10 kHz	.1 mv min.	AiResearch certified	
14	Frequency counter	CF601R	Anadex	1 Hz to 99,999 Hz	<u>+</u> 1 count	AiResearch certified	
15	Pressure gage	1850	Ashcroft	N/A	1.0 psig	AiResearch	

A-3 

### TABLE A-2

### SENSOR LOCATIONS

Parameter	Test Point
Train speed	Signal from an alternator mounted on the rear axle, right side.
Train accelerator	Signal derived from a linear 0.25 g accelerator mounted on a wooden baseplate, taped to the cab floor.
Brake cylinder pressure	A pressure transducer was hooked into a pressure tap on the rear-axle brake cylinder on the left side of the engine.
Traction motor current	Picked up shunt signal across terminals of the current meter mounted in the cab console,
Sandi <mark>ng con</mark> trol	Signal across sanding light on control console.
Forward/reverse relay	Signal from forward/reverse switch in cab control console.
Wheel slip relay	Signal across wheel slip light on instrument console in engine cab

TABLE A-3

### DATA RECOVERY SYSTEM TEST EQUIPMENT

Item	Instrument	Mode I	Sensitivity	Range	Description
1	Digital data logger	Gould 6100 system	1 mv to 10 v	Scan rate: 1 to 200 channels per sec	Data storage on digital cassette 300A
2	Communications Interface	Gould 6000 system		110 to 1200 baud ASC11 format	Microprocessor- controlled data logger command station
3	Teletypewriter	Teletype Corporation, Model 43		30 character per sec 132 column serial data terminal	Provide printout data from data logger, and supply commands to interface
4	Power supply	Hewlett Packard		0 to 60 vdc 0 to 15 adc	Supply operating power to data
		5Z74B			nogger and com- munications inter- face

· · ·



Figure A-2. Data Recovery System



Figure A-3. Onboard Data Acquisition System Block Diagram

# TABLE A-4

# DATA ACQUISITION SYSTEM INSTRUMENTATION

			÷		<u></u>	and a second		· · · ·
   N	tem b.	FESS Instrumentation Description	Mode' No.	) Mapufacturer	Response Range	Sensitivity	Calibration	Notes
	1	Oscillograph recorder, 18 channe	5-134	Sell and Howell	0 to 1000 Hz	≈2.5 v per in.	0 to 2 in. for F.S. signal	
-	2.	Tape recorder	3600	Sangamo	0 to 10 kHz	≂10 mv min.	<u>+</u> 5 v F.S. signal	
	3	Strain gage signal conditioning	ĹSX 36530	AiResearch	0 to 10 kHz	≈10,µ∈ min	Depends on sensor	
	4	General signal conditioning	LSK 35896	AiResearch	0 to 1 kHz	N/A	±5 v F.S. signal	Provides buffering for voltages and accelerates
	5 ·	Speed and signal conditioning	L\$K 36925	AiResearch	0 to 1 kHz	≈+0.1 mph and ∝+1.0 ft	0 to 50 mph	
	5	Linear accelerometer	LSBC- 25	Schaevitz	0 to 40 Hz	≈.001 g min.	5 v. = "25 g	
	7 .	Current shunts	PR1000	Quality Electric	0 to 500 Hz	≈0.1.mv mîn.	50 mv = 3000A, 1000A, and 100A	
	3 .	Current shunt isolators	6271A LSK 36895	AiResearch	15 khZ .	≈0.5 percent of F.S.	50 mv ≈ 5 v	
	•	Voltage dividers	LSK 36521	AiResearch	0 to 1 kHz	≈0.5 v min.	1000 v and 500 v ≈ 5 v	0.1 percent resistive divider
J.		Calibration high voltage power supply	408A	Fluke	500 to 5000 v	1.0 v	AiResearch certified	
11		Calibration fre- quency counter	CF501R	Anadex	1 Hz to 99,999 Hz	<u>+</u> 1 count .	AiResearch certified	
12		Calibration oscillator	204C	Hewlett Packard	5 Hz to 1.2 mHz	<u>+</u> 1 percent	AiResearch certified	
13		Callbration rms voltmeter	427A	Hewlett Packard	0.01 v to 300 v 10 Hz to 1 mHz	≉0,5 mv min.	AiResearch certlfled	
14		Millivolt calibrator	DVC 8500	Datel	Dc	0.1 mv	AiResearch certified	
15		Calibration dc voltmeter	34768	Hewlett Packard	0 to 1000 v	0.1 mv	AiResearch certified	
16		Inverter	1K60+ 752001	Nova	Do to 60 Hz	N/A	NZA	10
17		Oscilloscope	503	Tektronix	Dc.to 1 mHz	10 mv min.	AiResearch certified	
18		Linear displacement	R14046	R.I. Controls	De to 50 Hz	≂1.0 v per in.	3 in. F.S.	
19		Turbine flowmeters	AN8-4	Cox	Do to 10 Hz	.25 gpm min.	AiResearch certified	
20		Optical speed sensor	13135	Spectral Dynamics Corp.	De to 5 kHz	N/A	N/A	
21		Temperature potentiometer	8693	Leeds and Northrop	Dc -250 to 500°F	.5°F min.	AiResearch certified	
22		Orawbar force gage		Suppli by Sou	ed and calibra thern Railway	ted		•
23		Pressure transducer	217	Taber	De to 100 Hz 0 to 200 psig	.1 psig min.	AiResearch certified	
24		Current sensor, hall effect	CT 100LS	Ohio Semitronics inc.	Do to 10 kHz	1A (min.) 0-100A range	AiResearch certified	

A-7



rigure A-4. Remieval of Taped Java System

and the second second
#### TABLE A-5

#### DATA RECOVERY SYSTEM INSTRUMENTATION

Ę

I	tem	Instrument	Yodel	Sensitivity	Range	Description
	1	Yagnetic tape recorder/reproducer	Sangamo 3600	0.5 to 10 v peak for full deviation	3-3/4 ips - 0 to 625 Hz 7-1/2 ips - 0 to 1250 Hz 15 ips - 0 to 2500 Hz	14-channel FM reproduce med- ium band system
	7	Strip chart recorder	Beckman- Offner Type Dynograph	1.0 mv∕mm max.	0 – 200 Hz <u>t</u> 20 percent	8-channel writing oscilio- graph
	3	Digital voltmeter	Doric-DS 100	0.1 mv to 1000∨	-	Dc voltmeter
	1	Dc power supply	Lambda LS 513	100 µ∨ to 40 v	-	Precision, pro- grammable, digital adjust
	5	Frequency counter	Anadex CF601 <b>R</b>	<u>±</u> 1	1 Hz to 99.999 kHz	Digital counter
	3	Oscillator	Hewlett- Packard 204B	±1% of scale	5 Hz to 560 kHz	Solid state, bdttery-operated
	7	Frequency	Anadex P1-408R	9.01 v RWS threshold voltage	5 Hz to 51.2 kHz	Frequency to analog converter with zeco sup- pression



A-9

.

.

1

÷.

 -
OALLODATION DANOES
 -

TABLE A-6

Parameter	Calibration Range	Calibration
Voltaqes	1000 v = F.S. (750 v = 9.000 v)	Resistive divider (0.01 percent resistors) fluke power supply and Hewlett Packard digital multimeter voltmeter
Currents	1000 A = 50 mv	Certified current shunt Datel mv calibrator
peed	0 to 50 mph	Anadex oscillator and Anadex counter
Oscillograph Records	5 v = 2 in.	Datel mv calibrator and H.P. digital multi- meter
rape Recorder	$\pm 5 v = F.S.$ ( $\pm 40$ percent deviation on FM)	Datel nv calibrator and H.P. digital multi- meter
Fuel Flows	.25 t o 2.5 GPM	Anadex counter and oscillator
Pressure	O to 50 psig	Wallace and Tiernan pressure gage

A-10.

į

Recorded Parameter	Load Box Tests	Accel/Decel Tests	Simulated Switching
V, main gèn.	ТО	ТО	Τ Ο
V, arm. 3		то	то
V, arm, 4		ТО	т О
Amp, main gen.	T O	то	ТО
Amp, arm-fwd		то	T O
Amp, arm-rear		то	Т. О
Amp, gen. fld.	т о		
Fuel flow-inlet	T		Т
Fue! flow-return	T		Т
Engine speed	Т	Ţ	Т
Locomotive speed		то	т о
Press, brake cylinder		т о	т 0
Throttle position	тО	т о	Ť O
Motor displacement		то	то
Sanding		T Ö	
Wheel slip		т о	
Drawbar force			Τ΄

# TABLE A-7

PERFORMANCE TEST PARAMETERS AND INSTRUMENTATION

T = Recorded on magnetic tape.

3 = Recorded on oscillograph paper.





A-12

Shunt signal conditioning is calibrated by inserting a precision power supply in place of the current shunt. This input signal is varied from 3 to 50 mv, and the output is read on a calibrated digital voltmeter. The gain of the signal-conditioning amplifiers is adjusted as necessary to provide the correct output,

#### 2. Voltage

The voltage divider cards were calibrated with a precision high voltage power supply for input and a calibrated digital voltmeter for output. This provided a voltage calibration ratio. Since the divider are made up of precision resistors, this ratio is constant. Subsequent field calibrations require only a two-point check with zero volts input and line voltage input,

#### 3. Fuel Flow

The output of the turbine-type flowmeters was recorded directly as a frequency vs fuel flow. No amplitude calibration was required. For data reduction the signal was played back into a frequency counter, and flow was determined from a calibrated graph relating frequency to fuel flow. The fuel temperatures were also recorded to allow for volume flow corrections.

#### 4. Speed

Engline shaft and locomotive speeds were both recorded as ac signals which related directly to npm. The locomotive speed was calculated from the wheel and wheel circumference npm<sup>1</sup>s.

#### 5. Rrake Cylinder Pressure

A pressure transducer was connected to an output port in the brake cylinder of the left rear locomotive axles. The transducer was calibrated in the laboratory using a pressure source and a gage. 4 simulated calibration was then performed using a known precision resistor to unbalance the transducer-sensing bridge. This imbalance was related to the output from an applied presure source. Field calibration was then carried out using a precision resistor to simulate an applied pressure.

#### 5. <u>Displacement</u>

Throttle position and motor reaction displacement were instrumented, utilizing precision linear displacement potentiometers. The potentiometers were calibrated using a vernier scale to relate inches of displacement to potentiometer output.

The throttle position potentiometer was instrumented to give a recorded indication of throttle position during a series of tests. The motor reaction displacement potentiometer was attached at a point between the traction motor and the locomotive frame. This indicated motor reaction due to varying torque.

### 7. <u>Sanding--Wheel Slip</u>

These parameters were recorded simply as on-off signals to indicate occurrences of sanding or wheel slip.

### 8. Drawbar Force

The equipment used for this measurement, the instrumented drawbar, and the calibration signal was supplied by Southern Railway. The parameter was recorded on magnetic tape as an analog signal.

#### APPENDIX B

#### END PRODUCT SOFTWARE

The following list is an inventory of debugged and operating digital computer programs developed and/or modified for use on the FESS study program. Table B-1 relates to the scenario tests. Table R-2 relates to the simulators used to produce the comparative performance study for the SW1500 and the 47 configuration (dual flywheel system). The lists do not include UNIVAC 1100 system standard support software. Tables B-1 and 8-2 represent approximately 3200 Fortran card images.

#### TARLF 8-1

#### SCENARIO SOFTWARE

Program Identification		Contents		
.BLKRD		Prints selected regions of 9 track mag tape which contains scenario test data in engineering units		
.EVELYN		Converts 9 track ASCII to 9 track field	l data	
.BLKST/3		Scenario data reduction and statistical summaries from 9 track field data tapes (.BLKST/3N for Whitefish data)		
Supporting Subroutines		Calling Element		
∎SPDCR2	Digital filter for loco speed		BLKST/3	
ARD ···	Yard ope	eration's printout and summary	.BLKST/3	
.GENKW	D32 gene	D32 generator efficiency		
.DEZL	645E die	•YARD		
BRKFC	Air brake chacacteristic TE vs pressure			
∎EHPG	Loco amperes, speed converted to horsepower based on D77 characteristic		•YARD	

B-1

#### TABLE B-2

#### SIMULATION MODEL SOFTWARE

Program Identification	Contents						
LOWST/28	SW1500 model (D77 motors, 032 generator, 12-545 diesel) throttle profile control configuration. Operates in car kicking or cut fetching modes.						
.LCMFW/2	A2 configuration (SW1500 with 2 energy storage fly- wheels). Current profile control configuration. Operates in car kicking or cut fetching modes.						
.PLU40	Plots 5 variables on Calcomp plotter.						
Supporting Subroutines	Contents	Calling Element					
.º <u>0</u> 77%2	D77 motor model (using Pittsburq test data for saturation curve)	LCMTS/2B					
.¤D"7SH	Shunt field version of .PD77SR	∎LCMFW/2					
.DRAGL	Modified Davis drag computation	*					
.OEZLL	Diesel characteristic and fuel consumption (also .DEZLL/A, .DEZLL/S)	■LCMTS/2B					
.GENKW	032 generator characteristic	*					
GNLM	032 envelope limits (voltage, hp, current)	*					
,TRN <u>7</u> L	Drivé/brake transition	LCMTS/2B					
.RAMPY	Ramp control	.LCMF₩/2; TRNZC					
.LSTAT	Statistical data summary	.LCMTS/2B					
.ESUH	Energy storage FW motor model	∎LCMFW/2					
.DEZLF	Similar to .DEZLL/S	∎LCMFW/2					
.CP/30	3D curve look up (for iron losses)	.ELOSM					
-ELOSM	Motor losses (basic curve data are stored in respective model)	.PD77SR, .PD77SH, .ESUI					
-RMSUM	Data accumulator for rms quantities						
- OSHLN	Draws dashed line from X, Y coord data	.PLU40					
,)TMH9P2L	Prints dates and time as required	*					

B-2

### APPENOLX C

# FESS ECONOMICS PROGRAM LISTING

0094FESS	(1).MAI	N
I	C	
2	С	FLYWHEEL ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM (FESS)
3	C	ENGINEERING ECONOMICS ANALYSIS
4	C	
5		PARAMETER NP1=4,NP2=10+NP3=20,NP4=10
6		REALAA LOCMTC,LOCMT2,NAS,NPV,LOCC ,LOCNO
7		DIMENSION SACPEZ(4), UNIT(4)
8		COMMON /NUME/ BOXC(NP4),LOCC(NP2),CARSD(NP3)
9		COMMON /COST / COSMOD, BOXCOS, ESUCOS, LOCMTC, ESUMTC, BOXMTC, FULSAV
13		COMMON /CUST2/ COSMD2,80xCS2,ESUCS2,LOCMT2,ESUMT2,BOAMT2,FULSV2
11		COMMON /PEPCNT/ XIR(4,4)
12		COMMON /SAVE/ NAS (30,4), NPV (30), ROI (NP3, NP2, 3), LOCNO (NP2), FACT
13		° JSTAR(NP3,NP2,3) YMAX-
16		COMMON /SAV2/ SINV(NP2),XPV(NP3,NP2),CWEIT,FULDLA,NYRCON
15		COMMON /1700 / JIJJK,NCARS,IFLG,NOLOC
70		CUMMUN /ALIG / HILETIA/
1.9		ENGINALENCE (LOUMICISALUNGE(I)) Enginalence (Loumicisalunge), above uniteroll (Above uniteroll)
10		
20		DATA CONVIZED ACONVER 424-TRLOTZOZ-TRRTZOZ
21		
22		NAMELIST ZINGUTZ COSMODIABOYCOSI ESUCOSI COMTORESUNTORIUSANA
23		boots we be an an an addition and a construction of the second of the se
24		Z IRPI CONTINUE IN A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
25		CALL NTNTPO(1.E=20.100)
26		RATE1=1,16494
27		RATE2=1.08004
2 분	2	20 READ (5:1+END=999) TITLE
29		READ(SyINPUT)
30		1FLG=0
31		前2丁作臣(6・J12月1)
32	C	
33	С	CONVERT COST TO 1982 DOLLARS
34	C	
35		CUSMO2=CUSMC04RATE1
30		
37		E20C224E20C024MA1E1
38		
.0		
4 V 4 1		COMPLETEDUMIC/RAICE DOMETO-DOMENTO/DETEO
42		FULSV2=FULSAV6CNV26BaTF20CNV3
43		FULDLA#FULSAV@CONV1#CONV2
44		00 200 J1#1,N080X
<del>4</del> 5		480XC# 80XC(1)
<del>4</del> 6		ABOXD=ABOXC
47		<u>ن</u> هال
48		DC 190 J2=1,NOLOC
49		ALOCC= LOCC(J21
50		IF(ABOXC.GT.ALOCC) GO TO 190
51		
52		LOCNO (JK) ALOCC
53		SINV82=4L9CC+C0SMD2+ABOXC+(R0XCS2+ESUCS2)
54		SINA(1K) = 210 ASS
55		DU 180 JJAIDACARS
56		ACARSDE CARSD(J3)
57		ACARS=ACAPSO
<u>50</u>		OU 30 14)PV DO 30 14)PV
59		OO OO Teetae

-----

```
IF(I.NE.1) HAS(1.1)=NAS(1.1)-SINV82
30 CONTINUE
    NPV(1)=SSAV82/(1.+DISCON)**0.5+SINV82
    DO SO I=2+NYRCON
    XI=I
     X.I=XI=0.5
     XII=XI=0.5
    NAS(I:1)=0.
    OF 40 K=1≉4
 NAS(I+1)=MAS(I+1)+SACP82(K)#UNIT(K)#(1+XIR(K+1))##XII
40 CONTINUE
    NPV(I)=NPV(I=1)+NAS(I+1)/(1++DISCON) **XI
 50 CONTINUE
    XPV (J3+JK) =NPV (NYPCON)+SINV82
    NO 100 J=2+4
00 75 I=2+NYPCON
    N\Delta S(I,J)=0.
    X ] = I
    X1 = XI = 0.5
    XII=X1=0.5
    LO 70 K=1:14
    NAS([,J)=MAS([,J)+SACP82(K)+UNIT(K)+(1,+XIR(K+J))++XII
 70 CONTINUE
 75 CONTINUE
    վվ≠1
    CALL RONINV (NAS (JJ,J) ,NYRCON, XROI, SINVB2, IPR, ISTAR)
    R0[(J3,JK,J-1)=100,9XR0]
STAR(J3,JK,J-1)=1 1
    ST48(J3+JK+J=1)=1
    IF (ISTAP.EQ.1) STAR (J3, JK, J=1)=+++
100 CONTINUE
180 CONTINUE
190 CONTINUE
    IF(IPLOT+DE+0) CALL PLOTC
IF(IRPT +DE+0) CALL REPORT
200 CONTINUE
    GO TO 20
999 STOP
    \mathsf{ENO}
```

61 62 63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70 71 72

73

74 75

.76 77

78

79

80

**U** 1

82

ь3

F 4

65

86

87 38

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96

97

98

HESSIL HRUNING 007 C \* CASHELON ANALYSIS + + ROL PROGRAM CAPL HEINZ + SUBRUUTINE ROUTING (CASELO,NYR, ROI,SIIV90, IPR, ISTAR) CARL HEINZ " GARRETT CORP. 1 2 . MTO YEAR DISCOUNTING 3 Са C e e 4 5 С . . NYR= TOTAL NO. OF YEARS CONSIDERED. C 6 C \* \* CONVE = CONVERGENCE TOLERANCE USED IN ITERATION LOUP: • 7 а С A HOI = RETURN ON INVESTMENT. C . . POIRSS = GUESS FOP ANSWER FRACTION FORM(NOT PERCENTAGE) q C + + DCF(1) = DISCOUNTED CASHELOW FOR INTH YEAR. 10 C . OCFCES =0.0 = ZERO DISCOUNTED CASH FLOW AT END OF NYH YEARS 11 ITLIM & MAXIMUN NUMBER OF ITERATIONS ALLOWED FOR CONVERGENCE. 12 C 0 0 DIMENSION CASFLO(50) +DCF(50) +IT(10) +XX(2) +YY(2) 13 \* \* READ N DATA: 1ST CARD CONTAINS (1) NYR, (2) C156SS: ¢ 14 C # # AND (3) CONVGI. 15 C . CONVEISINGUT CONVERGENCE TOLERANCE. IF NOT INPUT THIS TOLERANCE 16 17 C & o IS AUTOHATICALLY DETERMINED. WHEN GUESSING ROIGSS IT IS BETTER TO GUESS LOW (IF POSSIBLE). 1 a Ç ÷. ö 19 ISTAR=0 20 ITLIM=27 DCFDES SET BY SUBR ARGUMENT Çφø OCFDES=0.0 21 DCFDES=SIIV90 22 CONTROL CARD FORMAT # # 23 COO 24 FORMAT(15,5X,2F10.0) 1 . READ CONTROL CARD. 25 C 🔅 CON 5 READ (5.1.END=9999) NYP.ROIGSS.CONVGI 26 27 KOUNT=0 2₿ Coo READ IN CASHFLO FOR EACH YEAR (8F10+0) FORMAT С 29 30 FORMAT(8F10.0) 2 31 C · QEAO DATA. READ(5,2)(CASFLO(I),I=1,NYR 32 Ççe н ð 33 r 0 IF(IPR.NE.0) 34 wPITE(6,4)NYR\*(CASFLO(I)\*I=1\*NYR) 35 4 FORMAT(1H1//20X+ ROI CASHFLOW ANALYSIS //5X+ NUMBER UF YEARS= + 110 36 1//5X, INET CASH FLOW PER YEAR# 1/(10F12.2)) 37 • SPECIAL EXPERIMENTAL GUESS ROUTINE FOR ROL FOR WESS PPOGRAM. IF (ABS(SIIV90).LT.0.001) GO TO 175 C o 38 39 STAND= 100+/SIIV90 40 DUMSUM= 41 42 DO 170 I=1,NYR 170 DUMSUM=DUMSUM+STAND+CASFLO(I) 43 IF ( (DUMSUH-100.).LT.0.0) GU TO 175 44 RUIGSS#DUMSUM/(NYR) 45 ROIGSS=ROIGSS#0.001 46 a 7 GO TO 180 48 175 CONTINUE POIGSS=+.01 49 180 CONTINUE 50 ROIPGS=100\_\*ROIGSS 51 IF ( LABS (ROIGSS) .GT. 1.E-12) .AND. ( IPR.GT. 0) ) WRITE (6.3) ROIPGS 52 53 3 FORMAT(/5X) + GUESS FOR ROI=++F15+3++ PERCENT+///) CONVGI=0.0 54 IF ( A85 (CONVGI) .GT. 1.E-10) GO TO 27 55 FMAX#0.0 56 57 DO 11 JELINYR 11 IF ( ABS (CASFLO(J)).GT.FMAX) FMAX= ABS (CASFLO(J)) 58 59 CONVG=0.000015\*FMAX

C-3

```
60
                  GC TO 13
  р1
               27 CONVG=CONVGI
               13 IF (IPR.GT. 0) WRITE (6:12) CUNVG
  62
  63
               12 FORMAT ( .
                                CONVERGENCE TOLERANCE= + G17.6)
           Ċ
  64
  65
           ¢
             8 3
  66
           С
  67
                  POISHOIGSS
  68
               47 CONTINUE.
 69
                  IT(1)=1
  70
                  XX(1)=R0I
  71
               10 CONTINUE
  72
                  00 20 1=1+NYR
  73
                  XP=I
                  XP=XP+0.5
  74
           C 4 4 XP#XP=0.5
  75
                                   : THIS ALLOW FOR MID YEAR DISCOUNTING.
               20 DCF(I)=CASFL0(I)/(1.0+R0I)++xP
  75
  77
                  DCFACT \neq 0
  78
                  00 21 1=1:NYR
 79
               21 DCFACT=DCFACT+DCF(I)
  90
                  IF(IT(1) .EC. 1)YY(1)=DCFACT
 81
                  IF(IT(1).NE.2)GO TO 7
 82
                  XX(2)=R0I
 83
                  YY(2)=OCFACT
                  DYDX=(YY(2)-YY(1))/(XX(2)-XX(1))
 84
 â5
                  IF (DYDX.GE.0.0) GO TO 8
 86
                7 CONTINUE
 87
                  IF(IPR.GT.DIWRITE(6.6) DCFDES, DCFACT, ROI
 88
                6 FORMAT(1
                              OCF DESIRED=++G16.6++ OCF ACTUAL=++G16.6++ R0I=++
 89
                 1 G16.6)
 90
                  ROISAV=RUI
 91
                  CALL ITPAT($25,$50,POI,DCFACT, OCFDES, IT, 1, CONVG, ITLIN)
           C . CONVERT FROM FRACTION TO PERCENT.
 92
 93
                  PR01=100.4RCI
                  IF (IPR.GT.O) WRITE (6:51) PROI
 94
              51 FORMAT(//SX1
 95
                                    THE ROI FOR SEQUENCE OF NET CASH FLOWS IS:
 96
                 1+2X+F10,3+ PERCENT+1
 97
                  RETURN
 94
           Coo
                  GO 10 5
          C 4 4 YGU CANNOT LOSE MOPE THEN 100 %,

25 IF(POI LT, -0,9) O(1=0.9

IF(ROI GT, 9.99999 9, ROI=9.99998

C 4 4 IF(POI GT, 9.9999999) ROI=9.99998
 99
100
101
                                                                # LIMITS PROFIT TO 1000%
102
103
                  GO TU 10
104
           C**50 60 TO 5
105
              50 CONTINUE
106
                  ISTAR=1
107
                  RETURN
108
               8 ROITEM=99999
                  IF (ROI .GT. 0.01) ROITEM=0.5*ROI
IF (ROI .GT.C.O .AND.ROI.LE.O.01) ROITEM=~.01
109
110
                  IF (ROI LE.0.0) ROITEM= 85*801 -0,149997
111
112
                  IF ( (KOUNT # GE . 10) . AND . (IPR . NE . 0) ) WRITE (6,9) ROITEM . KOUNT
113
                  IF (ROITEM.EG.99999.)WRITE (6:9) ROITEM.KOUNT
               IF (POITEM.EG.99999.)STOP
9 FORMAT(//' + + + ROITEM=++G16.6++
114
115
                                                             KOUNT= +, IIO, + & & # //)
                  KOUNT#KOUNT#1
116
117
                  IF (KOUNT GT .7 ) GO TO 9999
118
                  ROISROITEM
119
                  IF (IPP.GT.0) WRITE (6,19) ROITEM
```

C-4

C-5

IS FORMAT(\* NEW GUESS FOR FOI=\*+G16.6+\* PROVIDED AUTOMATIC BY PROGRA 120 121 1\*\*} GO TO 47. 9999 IF(IPR.EG.0) GO TO 9996 122 123 120 WRITE (6,9997) SIIV90 9997 FORMAT( 125 SUM INITIAL INVESTMENTS 1990 SET.G16.6. OF CHECK CAS IN FLOW 0001) 126 WRITE(6,4)NYR+(CASFLO(1)+1=1+NYR) WRITE(6,9998) KOUNT 127 128 AFITE(6,9998) KOUNT,ROI FORMAT(' \*\*\* CANNOT GET A GOOD GUESS FOR ROI NEXT CASE PLEASE \*\*\*\*// KOUNT#\*,I10\* BAD VALVE OF ROI=\*,G16,6,/ \*\*\* \*\*\* CHANGE ROI TO MINUS 99.99 PERCENT \*\*\*\*//) 129 999P FORMAT( 130 131 1 0001/1 2 1 132 9996 ROI=-.9999 133 ISTAR=1 130 135 RETURN E N O 136

```
009#EESSt I) .PLOTC
```

```
С
 1
                PLOT ROI (RETURN ON INVESTMENT) VS CARS SWITCHED PER DAY FUR A
        С
 2
         С
 3
                GIVEN NUMBER OF BOX CARS.
 5
                SUBROUTINE PLLTC
                PARAMETER NP1=4,NP2=10,NP3=20,NP4=10
 6
                REALRA MAS, NPV. LOCC, LUCNO
               COMMON /SAVE/ NAS(30,4)+NPV(30);POI(NP3+NP2;3)+LOCNO(NP2)+FACT
+STAR(NP3+NP2;3);YMAX
 8
 Q
                COMMON ZNUMBZ BOXC (NP4) +LOCC (NP2) +CARSD (NP3)
10
                COMMON /TITL/ TITLE(14)
11
                COMMON /INDX / JI+JK+NCARS+IFLG+NOLCC
12
                DIMENSION LABX (4) + LABY (4) + Y (NP3) + XA (3) + YA (3) + X (NP3)
13
               DATA JELG /0/, XSL /500./. YSL/5.0/, XPAG/0./. YPAG/0./. KOUNT/1/
14
                DATA LAGX /*CARS S*,*WITCHE*,*D PER ***DAY */
15
               16
17
                IF (JFLG.NE.0) GO TO 10
:15
               CALL PLOTS(0.0.0)
CALL FACTOR(FACT)
19
20
21
                JFLG#1
            CALL PLOT(2.,-5.,-3)
10 IF(KOUNT.GT.3) GO TO 20
22
23
24
                YPAG=YPAG+2.
25
                KCUNT=KOUNT+1
                GO TO 30
26
27
             20 CALL PLOT (XL+2.5++40++=3)
                XPAG=0.
28
                YPAG=2.
29
                KGUNT=2
30
             30 CALL PLOT (XPAG, YPAG, -3)
31
                XL=CARSD(NCARS)/XSL
32
                YE = YMAX / YSL
13
                CALL AXIS(0.,0.,LABX,-24,XL,0.,0.,XSL)
34
                CALL AXIS(0.,0.,1A8Y, 24,YL,90.,0.,YSL)
YPAG=YL+1.
35
36
                SIZE=xL/80.
37
                VALUE=80XC(J1)
38
                CALL SYMBUL (0., YPAG, SIZE, TITLE, 0., 80)
19
                CALL SYMBOL (.5. YPAG-0.30, SIZE, 13HSENSITIVITY 1,0,,13)
40
                CALL SYMBOL (3... YPAG=0.3.SIZE.18HNO. OF BOX CARS # .0.,18)
CALL NUMBER (999.,999.,SIZE.VALUE.0.,=1)
41
42
                XK=XL+0.65
43
44
                YK=YL-0.5
                SZ=0.08
45
                CALL SYMBOL (XK-0.55, YK, SZ) 12HNO, OF LOCO., 0., 12)
46
                00 50 J=1+JK
47
                I=0
48
                00 40 K=1+NCARS
49
                YPOT=ROI(K;J;2)
5 A
                IF (YPOT .LT. 0.)
                                   GO TO 40
51
52
                I=I \neq 1
                Y(1) = YPOT
53
                x(1)=CARSD(K)
54
55
             40 CONTINUE
                11=1
56
                IF(11.LE.1) GO TO 50
57
                 Y([]+1)=0*
58
                Y(II+2) =YSL
59
60
                X(II+1)=0
61
                x(II + 2) = xSL
                CALL LINE (X+Y+II+1+0+INTED)
62
                CALL LINE (X(II) , Y(II) , I + 1+=1+J)
63
                XK=XK+0,25
64
65
                YK=YK=0.25
                XA(1) = XK
66
67
                YA(1)=YK
68
                CALL LINE (XA+Y4+1+1+++++).
69
                 XK=XK+0+25
7.0
                 CALL
                      NUMBERI
71
             50 CONTINUE
72
                RETURN
73
                END
```

SUPPOUTINE REPORT PARAMETER NP1=4+NP2=10+NP3=20+NP4=10 2 REAL #4 LOCMIC: NAS, NPV+LOCC+LOCNO 3 COMMUN /NUME/ BOXC(NP4) .LOCC(NP2) .CARSD(NP3) à CUMMUN /CUST / COSMOD+BOXCOS+ESUCOS+LOCMTC+ESUMTC+BOXMTC+FULSAV 5 COMMON /SAVE/ NAS(30,4), NPV(30), ROI (NP3, NP2,3), LOCNO (NP2), FACT 6 · ISTAR (NP3+NP2+3) + YHAX 7 COMMON /SAV2/ SINV(NP2), XPV(NP3, NP2), CWEIT, FULDLA, NYRCON COMMON /INDX / J1, JK, NCARS, IFLG, NOLOC Э 3 COMMON /TITL / TITLE(14) IF(IFLG\_NE.D) GO TO 80 10 11 ÍFLG≢1 12 13 WRITE(6+1) 14 WRITE(6,2) TITLE WRITE(6,3) 15 CARSD(1) + CARSD(NCARS) 16 WRITE(6+4) CREIT 17 LOCC(1) +LOCC(NOLOC) \*PITE(6+5) 1A WRITE(6,6) FULSAV 19 \*RITE(6+7) NYRCON 20 HRITE(6,8) COSMOD BOXCOS 21 \*RITE(6,9) 22 23 WRITE(6,10) ESUCOS WRITE(6,11) LOCMIC 24 WRITE(6+12) ESUMTC 25 WRITE(6,13) FULDLA 26 80 00 100 I#1,JK 27 WRITE(6,14) TITLE 28 WRITE(6+15) HOXC(J1) 29 WRITE(6,16) LUCNO(I) 30 WRITE(6,17) 31 DO 60 J=1+NCARS 32 XNEV#XEV(J,I)/1.E+3 XINV=SINV(I)/1.E+3 %FITE(6,18) CARSO(J)+XNPV+XINV+(HOI(J+I+K)+STAP(J+I+K)+K=1+3) 33 34 35 60 CONTINUE 36 100 CONTINUE 37 FORMAT(1H1,10X, FLY, HEEL ENERGY STOWAGE SWITCHER ////) 1 2 FORMAT (2X, \*ANALYSIS: \*+1346, 420) 3 FORMAT (2X) YARU DATA \*//7X, \*CARS SWITCHED PER DAY 38 39 11.9F5.091-40 \*\*\*\* F5.0/) 4 FORMAT(7X++AVERAGE CAR WEIGHT 41 1++F4.0++ TONS+/) 5 FORMAT (7XIINO, OF LOCOMOTIVES 11,F3,0,1--1,F3,0/) •2 6 FORMATIZX: FUEL SAVING (GAL/CAR SW) 11,F6,3/) 43 7 FORMAT(7X++LIFE OF PROJECT (++13++ YEARS+/) 8 FORMAT(///2X++INITIAL INVESTMENT SUMMARY (1978 8)--PER UNIT+// 44 45 Thr LOCOMOTIVE MODIFICATION 46 11,F7.0/) t',F7.0/) 9 FORMATITX, PROVISION OF BOX CAR 47 11 FORMAT(///2X+'CHANGE IN ANNUAL COSTS AND CREDITS (1978 \$) 9 '// 7X+'LOCOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE 1'+F7.3+' PFR CAR (1) 48 49 50 PER CAR SWITCHED o+/) 51 52 12 FORMAT (7X) FESU MAINTENANCE :+9F7.U9+ PER BOX CAR+/) 13 FORMAT (7X, FUEL SAVING 1 F7.49 PER CAR SWITCHED 53 4+/} 54 14 FORMAT(1H1+10X++SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS+//2X++ANALYSIS: ++1346+4 55 56 02/) 57 15 FORMAT (2X+INO. OF HOX CARS 1 \*\*F4.0/) 16 FORMAT(2X+ IND. OF LUCOMOTIVES: ++F4+0/) 58 17 FORMAT (/25X) TOMB A-94 TI14X, TRETURN ON INVESTMENT % /2X+ CARS SW 59

0099FESS(1) NEPORT

C-7

		•	1. The	Sales and the second second	
	the second second		1		

bO	11TCHER/DAY	16 X1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIV
<del>a</del> 1	21TY+/22X++NPV	INIT COST 42	1×++1++13×++2+/	28Xi+(1982 5)	•/)
62	18 FORMAT(7X+F5.0	1+8X+F7+2+2X+F7	-2+6X+F6+2+1X+A	2+4X+F6+2+1X+#	42;4X;F6.2
63	(SA+X]+*				
<b>4</b>	PETURN				
65	ËND				

009*FESS[1]	BLK(AT					
1	HLOCK DATA					
5	PARAMETER	NP1=4+1P2=	10+NP3=20+N	≪P4=10		
Э	REAL®4 LUC	NO, NAS, NPV				
4	CLAHON /PE	PONTA AIP(	4.3}			
5	COMMON ZSA	VEZ NAS(30)	4)+NPV(30)+	POI (NP3) NP	2+31+LOCNO (M	P2),FACT
5	9 STAR (NP3	AMY (E.SAM	X			
7	DATA FACT	/1.0/				
я	DATA XIR	/ 0%02 +	• S0•0	0.02	• S0•0	
Y	4	0.0 +	0.0	0.0 .	0.0 ,	
10	9	0.08	0.08	0.08 .	0.08 É	
ΙI		0.08 1	0.08 .	0.08	0.10 /	
12	FND			· -		

sf [te

	· · ·	
-		

C-8

#### FESS BASELINE CONCEPT ECONOMICS ANALYSIS

APPENDIX D

FLYWHEEL ENERGY STORAGE SWITCHER

ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2 YARD DATA

CARS SWITCHED PER DAY : 200400				
AVERAGE CAR WEIGHT	: 50. TONS			
NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES	: 2 6.			
FUEL SAVING (GAL/CAR SK)	: .001			
LIFE OF PROJECT	1 20 YEARS			

INITIAL INVESTMENT SUMMARY (1978 5)--PER UNIT

LOCOMOTIVE MODIFICATION	\$118000.
PROVISION OF BOX CAH	: 35500.
PROVISION OF 2 ESUIS	:18000¢.

CHANGE IN ANNUAL COSTS AND CHEDITS (1978 \$)

LOCOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE	:	18.900	PER	САР	SWITCHED
ESU MAINTENANCE		-3000.	PEP	BOX	CAP
FUEL SAVING	:	•1470	PEP	ÇAF	SWITCHED

STIMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT AZ

NO. OF BOX CAPS 8. 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 2.

CARS SWITCHED/DAY (% X1000) 4P METHUD SENSITIVITY SENSITIVITY 2 (1982 4)

	(1985 2	<b>)</b>		
200.	11.25 570.0	1 -15.93 **		- 99 98
400 .	64.19 570.0		-9.67	-9.04
600.	117.12 570.0	1 -11, 32 44	-5.78	-5.76
800.	170.06 570.0	1 -10.18	-3.13	-3.11
1000.	223.0e 570.0	1 -8,25	-1.06	-1.04
1200.	275.94 570.0	1 -6.64	.67	.69
1400.	328,87 570.0	1 -5,23	2.18	2.20
1600.	381.81 570.0	1 -3,97	3.53	3.55
1800.	434,75 570.0	1 -2.82	4.77	4,79
2000.	487.69 570.0	1 -1.75	5.91	5.93
5500 *	540.62 570.0	1	6.99	7.00
2400.	593,56 570.0	1 .20	8.00	8.02
2600.	646.50 570.0	1 1.10	8,96	8,98
2800.	699.44 570.0	1 1.96	9,89	9.90
3000.	752.37 570.0	1 2.80	10.78	10.79
3200.	805.31 570.0	1 3.60	11.64	11.65
3400.	858,25 570.0	1 4.38	12.47	12.47
3600.	911.19 570.0	1 5.15	13.29	13.30
3800.	964,12 570.0	1 5,89	14.08	14.10
4000.	1017.06 570.0	1 6.62	14.86	14.88
			the second se	



ANALYSIS: PASELINE CONCEPT A2

NŬ e	OF	вох	CARS	;	1.	
			1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1			· .
NO.	UF	LOC	DEUTIVES	S :	3.	

	De-H	A=94
CARS SWITCHEDZDAY	(5. ×	1000)
	NPV	U.JT COST
	•	(1982 %)
200.	11.25	718.98
4-Q () 🖕	64.10	718.98
690.	117.12	718,48
800 .	170.06	718,98
1090 .	90.523 M	718.98
1200.	275. 14	714.4R
1400 e	328,87	718,98
1600.	351.91	718,98
1800.	434.75	718,98
2000.	437.69	718,98
2200.	540.62	714.94
2400.	593.50	<u>।</u> 118,98
2600.	646.54	718,98
2000.	699.44	718.98
3000.	752.37	718.98
3208.	805.31	718.98
3400,	858,25	118.98
3600.	911.19	716.98
3800.	964.12	718,98
4000	1017.00	718.98

1			
	- 19 <b>6</b>	TURN ON INVEST	F.D.T. As
4 R	METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY
		- 1 <sup>-</sup> - 1	5
		· · ·	

12.555	$\Omega \Omega$	7H	() ()	- <mark>- 9</mark> .7	4) 4) () 4)	
у	0 Q	- 11, 07		-11.04		· ·
• 1. () A	8 G	-7.33		-7.31		
11.73		<b>4</b> •80		-4.7×		
79,91		-2.84		-2.22		
-d.39		-1-21		<b>-</b> 1,}) ⊂	· · ·	·
<b>-7</b> ,08		.20		.2.2	• •	
-5,90		I+46		1.49		5 E
-4.84		2.60		2.02		ja e
-3,36		3,65		3.67	· · ·	
=2.95		4.63		4.05		· · · ·
-2.09		5,55		5.57		
-1,27		6.42		0.44		
		7.26		1.27		$(\cdot, \cdot)_{j \in \mathbb{N}}$
- 25		8.05		8.07		1 A
.97		8 12		n. 14	•	1
1.68		9.50		59.56		
2.33		10.28		10.24		
2.98		10.97		10.94	· · .	
3.62		11.65		11.67	· · · ·	
					1.0	

SUCHARY OF FESS ECOLORICS

# ANALYSIS: PASELINE CONCEPT AZ

NO. OF HOX CALS : I.

NO. OF LOCCHOTIVES: 4.

Ŕ

	· · ·			the second s
	CARS SWITCHEUZCAY	0455 Å <b>−94</b> (* ×1000)	HETURN ON INVESTMEN 48 NETHOD SECSILIVITY S	4[ 4 Fe/STTTUPTO
•		(1982 x)		5
	200. 400. 600. 600. 1000. 1200. 1400. 1600. 1800. 2000. 2400. 2600. 2600. 3000. 3200. 3400. 3600. 3600.	11.25 867.95 64.19 867.95 117.12 867.95 170.06 867.95 223.07 867.95 275.94 867.95 328.87 867.95 381.81 867.95 434.75 867.95 540.62 867.95 540.62 867.95 646.50 867.95 646.50 867.95 699.44 867.95 752.37 867.95 858.25 867.95 911.19 867.95	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	92 00 -7.56 00 -7.56 00 -7.52 -5.03 -4.25 -2.64 -1.30 -1.30 -1.0 .98 1.97 2.8 - 3.74 4.56 5.33 6.05 6.77 7.45 8.11
	4000.	1017.05 867.95	•88 5•72 1•45 9•34	8.74 9.36

ANALYSIS: PASELINE CONGEPT AZ NO. OF BOX CARS : 1.

NO, OF LUCOMOTIVES: 5.

		OMP	A=94	i	₹E TUI	RN ON INVEST	MENT &	
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(. <del>5</del> . ×. NPV	1000) INIT COST (1982 %)	4Η ΜΕΤΗΟ	י נ	SENSITIVITY 1	SENSITIVITY 2	
	¢00\$	11.25	1016.93	-15.52	\$ <b>Q</b>	98 **	98.44	
	400.	64.19	1016.93	*• 98 (	* 4)	-1.08 44	=1,09 88	
1.1	600°	117,12	1016.93	<b>9</b> 8 、	* 4)	-9,53	-9.51	
	800.	170,06	1016.93	-1.02 *	⇒ <>	-7.16	-7.14	
	1000.	\$53°(0)	1016,93	-12.22		=5,33	=5.31	
	1200.	275.94	1016.93	÷10.82		-3.82	-3,81	
1 	1400.	328.87	1016.93	=9.62		-2.53	-2.51	
	1600.	381.81	1016.93	-8.55		-1.38	+1.37	
	1800.	434.75	1016.93	-7.59	•	-, 35	33	
•	2000.	487,69	1016,93	<b>~6.71</b>		,59	.61	
	2200.	540.62	1016.93	*5,91		1.47	1.48	
1. j. 1. j.	2400.	593.56	1016.93	•5.13		2.28	2,30	
	2600.	646.50	1016.93	74.42		3.05	3.07	
	2800.	699.44	1016.93	-3.74		3.78	3.80	
	3000.	752.37	1016.93	-3.09		4.47	4,49	
	3200.	805.31	1016.93	-2.47		5.14	5,16	
	3400.	858.25	1016.93	<b>=1.8</b> 8		5.77	5.79	
	3600.	911.19	1016.93	=1.31		6.39	6.41	
	3800.	964 12	1016.93	=.75		6.98	7.00	
	4000.	1017.06	1016.93	-• 22		7.56	7.57	

SUNMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS

ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2

NO. OF BOX CARS I 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

		01-FL A=94	PET	UPN ON INVESTI	SENT %	
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ A1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSTITVITY	
	and the second	(1982 \$)		I	,	
	200	and the second	-15 53 80	00 44		
	200 e	11.25 1105.90				
	400e	64,19 1165,90	•••98·**		• • 91; 00	
	600e	117,12 1165,90	=,98.00	-10,36	-10.34	
	800.	170,06 1165,90	<b>*•</b> 98 **	-8.04		
· .	1000.	223.0v 1165.90	-1.84 99	-6-26	-6.25	e de la construction de la constru
	1500.	275.94 1165.90	-11.73	-4:80	-4.78	· · ·
	1400.	328.47 1165.90	=10,56	-3.54	-3.53	
	1600.	381.81 1165.90	-9.53	-2.43	-2:42	and the part of the
	1800.	434.75 1165.90	-8.60	-1.44	-1.42	
	2000.		-7.75	- 53	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
	2230.		+6.97		3.7	
1. 1.	2484	- 500-54-1192500 040505	-6.24	1.12	1.11.	• . • . • . •
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 2 2	1911	
	2000.	646.5V 1155.9V		1002 5 5 5 5	1.00	
	<b>5</b> 800*	699.44 1165.90	-4e9	2:03	2.07	
	3000.	752.37 1165.90	-4.29	3.19	3,21	and the second second
	3200.	805.31 1165.90	-3.70	3.82	3.84	
	3400.	858.25 1165.90	<b>*3.1</b> 4	4.43	4,44	
	3600.	911.19 1165.90	#2.59	5,93	5.03	
· .	3800.	964.12 1165.90	-2.07	5.57	5,54	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	4000.	1017.06 1165.90	-1.56	6.11	6.13	
				the second se		

ANALYSIS: HASELINE CONCEPT AS

NO. OF HOX CAPS : 2.

MU. OF LOCCIOTIVES: 2.

		01 h /=94			PETUPO DE INVESTER - 4				
CARS	SHITCHEDZDAY	( b - )	(tiðų) - (	4	4 PETHU	31)	SERSTERVITY	SESTIVIT	
		tite∆ 1	ULT CUST				1	S	
			1984 5)						
•	2000	- 30,44	842.07		=90 aq	**	-99,99 44	-09-99-00	
	4-0 () 👦	22.50	842.07		<b>≈.,</b> 98	6 Q	I. 🚯 🚯	- 96 08	
	600.	75,43	842.07		<b>≈,</b> 9⊁	φφ	=11.₀05	<b>-</b> 11 02	
	600e	128.37	842.07		7	<b>⇔</b> ↔	<b>-7∎7</b> 6	=f_73	
	1,606.	101,31	842.07		-12 <b>.</b> 34		-5.46	=5,43	
	12000	234,25	842.07		-10.65		<b>●</b> ③∎64	=3.62	
	1400.	267.10	842.07		=9.24		-2,13	-2+1-1	
	1600.	340.12	842.07		-8.01		<b>-</b> .81	-,19	
	1860.	393.06	842.07		-6.92		∎37	<b>-</b> 30	
	5000.	446.00	842.17		-5.93		1:43	1.45	
I .	2¢00.	448.33	842-01		~5.0l		2.42	6.44	
	2400.	551.87	842.07		=4 <b>,</b> 1 6		3,33	3 35	
	2600.00	604.01	842.07		=3 <b>.</b> 3a		4.19	4+51	
	SH00.	657.75	842.07		<b>*2.,6</b> 0		5∎份位	5.02	
1 - A	3000.	710,6B	842.07		-1,88		5.77	5∎14	
а 4		763.62	842.07		-1.19		6.51	0.53	
	3400.	816.50	342-17		<b>-</b> ,53		22.7	1.24	
	3666.	869.50	842.07		• 1 1		7 <b>.</b> 9 i	7:92	
1. T. T.	3F60.	922.43	842.07		.73		8.57	8.5M	
	4000.	975.37	.842.07		1,33		9.21	55.6	

! !

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS ANALYSIS: PASELINE CONCEPT A2 NO. OF POX CARS : 2.

NO. OF LOCONOTIVES: 3.

		0MB 4-94		RETURN ON INVESTMENT &				
CARS S	WITCHEDZDAY	(' <del>N</del> ) 1/PV	(1000) Inti Cost (1982 4)	AR METHOD	SENSITIVITY I	SEAST1EVITY 2		
	200.	-30,44	991+04	<b>≈99.<b>,</b>90,84</b>	<b>-99</b> *98 88	-99,99 **		
	400。 もりり。	22,50 75,43	991.04 991.04	=_198 00 =_198 00	9 ↔↔ ⊷11.93 ↔↔	=_;98 00 =11,96 00		
<b>)</b> .	ους. Οθό∎ 200.	- 165+37 - 181,31 - 237 - 26	991.04	—11 7. —198 89 —11 7.	₩8.89 ₩6.56	-8,7/ 50154		
, 1 1	400, 600,	287,10	991.04 991.04	=10,33 =9,20	=4+8x 3=35 =2+08	-4.74 -3,33 -2.04		
1 2	600. 000.	393.00	991.04 991.04	- 7.2°	=_95 ∎97	- 93 ,02		
5 5 5	200. 400. 630	498,93	991.04 991.04	₹6,33 ₹5,52	】■11月 1→円7 つ→内部	1917月 19日前日 19日前日		
23	800a 800a	657.75 710.65	99].04 99].04	*4.05 *3.37	2+30 3+45 4+18	2 + 47 3 + 47 4 - 19		
<u>,</u> 3	200• 490•	763.52	991.04 991.04	-2.12 -2.12	4=87 5=53	4 <mark>-</mark> 유익 5 - 등도		
3 3 4	500. 500. 000.	922,43 922,43	991.04 991.04 991.04	— 1,5] ♥,93 ♥.38	6 • 17 5 • 79 7 • 38	た。154 た。1540 子。430		

(	4		(			C
	SUMMERY UF FESS	S ECODOMICS				
	AMALYSIS: BASELINE CONC	CEPT AZ				
·	NO. OF BOX CARS : 2					
	NO. OF LOCLACTIVES: 4	•				
	CARS SHITCHED/DAY C	0001 +-94 +	EETI 4R. METFOD	URIN OC INVEST SENSITIVETY 1	E I SENSITIVITY 2	
	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$44$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $50$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $43$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $37$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $37$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $31$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $31$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $31$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $31$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $15$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $16$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $16$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $93$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $93$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $81$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $67$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $67$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $56$ $1140 \cdot 02$ $56$ $1140 \cdot 02$	-99.99 00 -15.93 00 -99.00 -99.00 -11.32 00 -11.32 -10.18 -9.16 -9.16 -9.16 -9.16 -5.91 -5.23 -4.58 -3.97 -3.35 -2.82	-90,99 00 -9,74 00 -9,67 -7,48 -9,67 -7,48 -5,78 -4,36 -3,13 -2,04 -1,06 -1,06 -16 .51 1,45 2,18 2,07 3,53 4,16 4,77 -35	- 44, 94, 88 - 98, 88 - 98, 88 - 9, 64 - 7, 44 - 5, 76 - 4, 34 - 3, 11 - 2, 62 - 1, 47 - 14 - 6 - 14 - 6 - 14 - 5 - 4, 79 - 2, 29 - 2, 89 - 3, 55 - 4, 18 - 4, 79 - 5, 79 - 5, 79 - 5, 79 - 5, 79 - 7, 97 - 7, 97	
	3800. 922. 4000. 975.	43 1140.02 37 1140.02	-2+2/ -1+75	5.91	5+37 5+93	

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONUMICS ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2

NO. OF POX CARS : 2.

		tit S	4=94	RETURN OF INVESTHENT &				
CARS	SHITCHEDID	∆Y - (S Å)	ü <b>00)</b>	48 METHOD	SEUSITIVITY	SEPSITIVITY		
· .		NPV I	LI COST		1	2		
		стана на селото на <b>с</b>	1995 #)					
	200.	-30.44	1288,99	-99.94 \$	e =93,46 88	-99,99 84°		
	400.	22.51	1288.49	-15,55 *	4) <b></b>	ି କ <b>୍</b> ୟନ୍ୟ କଳ		
	600.	15.43	1258,99		8 -l. (C. 88	-1.00 SS		
	800.	120.37	1288.93	: <mark>=</mark> <sub>∎</sub> ,9 A <sup>°</sup> A	◆ 「 → 1 ② ~ 4 引	-10.30		
	1000.	181.31	1268.94	~, 9 ·, 8	8 -3.27 S	-8.28		
	1200.	234.25	1208.99	-1.24 *	♦	-6.5C		
	1400.	287.14	1288,99	-12.12	-5.22	-5.2 10		
	1600.	340.12	1268,99	-11.01	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-4.01		
	1800.	393. ch	1288.99	<b>−</b> 10+03	-2.47	-2.95		
	2000.	445.00	1544,49	=9.14	-2.02	-2.4		
1.1	2200.	490.93	1289.99		-1.15	-1.13		
	2400.	551.17	1203.99	-7.54	- 34	37		
	2600.	604.41	1200.99		• 41	. 4.3		
	2800.	657.75	1283.99	-6.22	1.12	1.13		
	3000.	71) 48	1284.99	-5.60	1.78	1.40°		
	3200.	763.02	1293,99	-5.01	2.42	2.43		
	3400.	816,56	1288.99	=4,45	3.12	3. 14		
	3600.	* H9 51	1242.99	-3.91	3.0"	1.50		
	3800.	922.43	12324499	-3.34	4.10	4.17		
	4000.	975-37	1268.99	-2.A9	4.69	4.71		

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS ANALYSIS: RASELINE CONCEPT A2 NO. OF BOX CARS : 2.

NO. OF LOCULATIVES: 6.

(

		()≅n <b>4−94</b>	RETURN ON THVESTOFUL 38				
CARS.	SWITCHED/UAY	(\$ X1000)	48 METHUR	SENSITIVITY	SE ISITIVITY		
		NPV UNIT COST		1	5		
		(1985-2)					
	200.	-30.44 1437.96	•99 <b>.</b> 90.40	-99,99 00	-09,09 00		
	400.	22,50 1437,96	-15.57 **		- 98 44		
	600.	75,43 1437,98	🖛 ្គុំភ្លុំដ សំសុ		- 45 00		
	800.	128.37 1437.96	- 9H BB	-11.07	-11-04		
•	1000.	181.31 1437.96	<b>∞,</b> 92 00	-8.47	-6.94		
	1200.	234,25 1437.96	•1 (i) 80	-7.3.3	-7.31		
	1400.	287.18 1437.96	-4,4( **	-5,47	-2.75		
	1660.	340.12 1437.96		-4000	-4.78		
4	1800.	393.06 1437.96	-10.77	-3.77	-3,75		
	2000.	446.00 1437.96	-9.91	-2.84	-2.82		
	5500.	498.93 1437.96	-9,12	-2. W()	-1.98		
1	2400.	551.87 1437.96	-8,39	-1.21	-1.19		
	2600.	604.81 1437.96	-7.71	<b>= 4</b> 8	- 47		
	5000.	657.75 1437.96	<b>■7</b> . Q4	.20	.22		
1 · · ·	3000.	710.88 1437.96	<b>**6</b> • 4 B	• 95.	. a 86		
	3200.	763.62 1437.96	*5+91	1.46	1.48		
	3400.	816.56 1437.96	<b>=</b> 5+3h	2.04	2.9A		
	3600.	869.50 1437.96	<b>≈4</b> •84	2.69	2.62		
	3800.	922.43 1437.96	<b>=</b> 4′∎34	3.14	3.15		
1	4000.	975.37 1437.96	<b>-3.</b> 8%	3.65	3.67		

ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT AS

NC. OF BOX CARS' : 3.

D-12

NO. OF LOCUNUTIVES: 3.

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	) 4P	1 A=94	RETU	JHIG ON INVEST	
C4	RS	SWITCHFOIDAY	(* *	(100)	4H METHOP	SENSITIVELT	SESSITIVITY
			NPV	INIT COST		<b>1</b>	$\sim 2^{-1}$
				(1982 %)			
		200.	-72-13	1263.11	=99,09,00	-99,99 88	-09-09-04
		400.	-19.19	1263,11	-39,03 44	-99.49.44	-33.99 00
		600.	33.74	1263.11	<b>=_9</b> H 00	- 98 **	-,98 44
		800.	56.68	1263.11		-1.56 **	-1.63 00
1		1000.	139.62	1263.11	<b>~.</b> 9d 44	-7.78	
		1200.	192.56	1263.11	<b>~.</b> 99 **	-7.76	-7.73
		1400.	245.47	1263.11	-2,31 **	-6,16	-0.13
		1600.	298,43	1263.11	=11.74	-4.81	-4.79
		1800	351+37	1263.11	-10.64	=3+64	-3.65
		5000.	404.31	1263.11	<b>~9</b> • 69	-2.61	-2,59
		5500.	457.24	1263.11	<del>™8</del> •82	-1.67	-1.65
1		2400.	510.14	1263.11	<b>-8.</b> 01	- • 8 J	-,79
		2600.	563,12	1263.11	-7.27		• 01
		5900.	616.96	1503.11	<b>5</b> 6 <b>.</b> 58	.73	<b>.</b> 75
		3000.	668,99	1263+11	-5.9 3	1.43	1.45
		3200.	721.93	1253.11	-5.31	2.10	2.12
		3400.	774.87	1263.11	- 4.77	2.73	2.75
		3600.	827.81	1263.11	-4.16	- 3 <b>,</b> 33 -	3.35
		3800.	.880.75	1263,11	•3,62	3.91	3.93
		4000.	933.68	1203.11	· <b>=3+</b> 10 · ·	-4.47	4.48
						and the second	

### A ALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2

# N OF POX CARS

# NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 4.

					and the second second
		0MB A-94	RET	URN ON INVEST	EUT S
CA	RS SWITCHED/DAY	(* (1900)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SEUSITIVITY
		NPV ITICOST		1	2
		(1982 %)			
	201) .	-72.13 1412.08	∞99 <b>,</b> 99 00	+99°33 00	
	400 .	-19.19 1412.08	≈99 <b>,</b> 99 00	-99,99 00	-99,00 00
	600 e	33,74 1412,08	9 🕫	<b>~_</b> 98 00	<b>一。</b> 9月 44
	800.	86.68 1412.08	⇔ <sub>8</sub> ዓጸ ቆቅ	-1.03 04	⇒1.04 00
	1000	139,62 1412,08	<b>~ 9</b> 8 44	<b>*</b> ]),46	-lu,43
	1200.	192.56 1412.08	64 A G a	-3.47	±=45
	1400.	245,49 1412,08	-1.07 00	-6,90	
	1600.	298.43 1412.08	-12,46	-5,58	-5.56
	1800.	351.37 1412.08	<b>~11.4</b> 0	-4.45	-4.42
	2000.	404.31 1412.08	-10.46	<b>-3</b> ,43	-3, <u>4</u> ]
	2200.	457.24 1412.08	<b>~9.6</b> 1	-2,52	=2 <u>5</u> 0
1	2400.	510.18 1412.08	<b>*8.</b> 83	-1.68	<b>-</b> 1.66
	2600.	563.12 1412.08	<u>™</u> 8 ∎ 11	-,91	♥★성영
	2800.	616.06 1412.08	~7.44	<del>-</del> ,19	= a 1 7
	3000.	668.99 1412.08	<b>~6.8</b> 1	• <u>4</u> 9	•5)
	3200.	721.93 1412.08	<b>™</b> be21	1.13	1.15
	3400.	774.87 1412.08	- <b>*5</b> +64	1.74	1.76
	3600.	827.81 1412.08	75,10	2.32	2.34
	3800.	860.75 1412.08	<b>*</b> 4.58	2.88	2.90
	4000.	933.68 1412.08	•4.08	3.41	3.43
			• •	- ·	

ŧ

ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2

NO. OF HOX CARS : 3.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5.

								· · · · · ·	
$\gamma = 1$		Оме	A=94		RETI	JRN ON INV	EST	ENT 4	
CARS	SWITCHEDIDAY	(3 X)	1000)	4R METHO	00	SENSITIVI	ΤY	SENSITI	VITY
1		NPV	IT.IT COST			1		S	
			(1982 \$)						
	•	· · · ·							
	200.	-72,13	1561.05	-99,99	0.0	-99,99	44	-99-99	0.0
	400.	-19,19	1561.05	-99-99	44	-99,99	\$ \$		+ <b>()</b> ()
	600 e	33.74	1561,05	=21,96	4 A	- , 98	45-45	-,98	4 A
	800.	86.68	1561.05	98	0.0	38	o o		00
	1000.	139.62	1561.05	98	र र	-11.06		=11.03	1
	1200.	192.50	1561.05	98	0.0	-9.10		<u>−9</u> •08	l i
	1400.	245 . 44	1501,05	, <b>* * 6</b> 6	44	-1.56		-1.54	
	1600.	298.43	1561.05	-1.83	43 43	-6.27	• •	-0.25	•
	1800.	351.37	1561.05	-12.05		-5.15		-5.13	
· ·	2000.	404.31	1561.05	-11.13		-4.16		-4.14	
	2200.	457.24	1561.05	-10.30		-3.27		-3.25	
· [	2400.	510.18	1561.05	-9.54		-2.45		-2.43	
	2600.	563.12	1561.05	<b>#8.8</b> 4		-1.70	· .	-1.68	ļ .
· .	-2800.	616.06	1561:05	-8.19		- 99		97	
	3000.	668.99	1561.05	-7.57		- 33	· .	31	
		721.93	1501.05			-29		.3)	
	3400.	774.87	1551.05	-6.44	1				
	3600.	827.81	1561.05	-5,92	· ·	1.45		1.46	
	3000.	880.75	1501.05	-5.41		1.98		2.00	· .
	4000	933.68	1551.05	-4.91	. •	2.50		2.52	۱
								· · ·	

ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2

NO: OF BOX CARS : 3.

ŧ

D-15

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

		QM용 61-94	RET	URN ON INVEST	MENT %	
	CARS SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ ×1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
		NPV INIT COST		1	2	
		(1982-\$)				
	000	-72.13 1710.02	-99.99 **	-99,99 **	-99.99 40	
	400.	-19.19 1710.02	-99099 <b>**</b>	-99,99 **	-99.99 **	
	600,	33.74 1710.02	-15.93 🔮	- 98 00	<b>∞</b> 298 44	
.*	800 e	86.68 1710.02	<b>∞</b> ,98,44	~,98 **	* 98 AB	
	10000	139.62 1710.02	<b>∞°0</b> 8 00	-11,59	-11,57	
	1200.	192.56 1710.02		-9.67	-9.64	
	1400.	245.49 1710.02	<b>∞_9</b> β ₩₩	≈ <u>8,14</u>	-0.12	
	1600.	298.43 1710.02	~1, <u>j</u> 9,#0	-6.87	-6.85	· ·
	1800.	351.37 1710.02	-11.32 **	-5.78	-5.76	
	2000.	404.31 1710.02	-11.73	-4.81	=4.79	
	2200.	457.24 1710.02	<b>≈10,92</b>	<b>~3</b> ,93	-3.91	
	2400.	510.18 1710.02	-10,18	-3.13	-3,11	
	2600.	563.12 1710.02	-9.45,	-2.39	-2.37	
	2800*	616.06 1710.02	-8.85	-1.71	-1.69	
	3000.	668.99 1710.02	-8.25	-1.06	-1.04	
	3200.	721.93 1710.02	-7.68	45		
	3400.	774.87 1710.02	-7.15	.12	.14	
	3600.	827.81 1710.02	-6.64	.67	.69	
	3800.	880.74 1710.02	~6.15	1.20	1,21	
	4000.	933.68 1710.02	<b>5.6</b> 8	1.70	1.72	

ANALYSIS: PASELINE CONCEPT A2

NO. OF BOX CARS : 4.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 4.

		0MB A-94	PET	UPN ON INVEST	MENT 4	
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ ×1000)	48 METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
	,	P INIT COST		1	2	
		(1982-5)		-		
	200.	-113.82 1684.14	-99.99 **	-99.99 88	-99 <b>.</b> 99 88	
	400.	-60.88 1684.14	-99,99 44	-99,99 44	-99,99 44	
	600.	-7,95 1684,14	-99,99 00	-99°99 **	-99.99 00	
1.1	800.	44,99 1684,14		98 **	- 98 64	
	1000.	97.93 1684.14	-,96 44	- 09 88	-1.00 44	
	1200.	150.87 1684.14	- 98 **	-11.05	-11.02	
	1400.	203,80 1684,14	-,98 **	-9.22	-9.19	
1. A.	1600.	256.74 1684.14	~~~ <u>~</u> 98 **	-7.76	~7.73	
	1800.	309.68 1684.14	=1.31 44	~6.53	-6.50	1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -
	2000.	362.62 1684.14	-12.34	-5.46	-5.43	
	2200.	415,55 1684,14	-11.45	-4.50	-4.48	
	2400.	468.49 1684.14	-10,65	-3.64	-3.62	
	2600.	521.43 1684.14	-9,92	-2.86	-2.84	
	2800.	574.37 1684.14	-9.24	-2.13	-2.1)	na station tak
	3000.	627.30 1684.14	-8.6]	-1.45	-1.43	
	3200.	680.24 1684.14	-8.01	-,81	- 79	
	3400.	733.18 1684.14	-7.45	20	-,19	
	3600.	786.12 1684.14	-6.92	.37	.39	
	3800.	839.06 1684.14	-5.41	.91	,93	
	4000.	891.99 1684.14	*5,93	1.43	1.45	

D-16

ĺ

#### ANALYSIS: HASELINE CONCEPT A2

#### NO. OF POX CARS 4 4

NO. OF LOCOMULTIVES: 5.

		0Mł	6-94		PET	URN OU INVEST	YENT A
ARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ }	(1000)	4R METH	00	SENSITIVITY	SESTIVITY
		NPV	INIT COST			1	2
			(1982-5)				
	200.	-113.82	1833.12	-99.99	Ø Ø	-99.97 **	499,99 AA
	400.	-60.88	1833.12	-99.99	<b>₽</b> 0	-99.99 👐	-99,99 00
	600.	-7,95	1833,12	-99.99	φφ	-99,99 **	-99,99 00
	800.	44,99	1833+12	-,98	on	-,98 **	• 92 00
	1000.	97,93	1833,12	- 9A	0 Q	# <b>.</b> 98 44	- 30 AA
	1200.	150.87	1833.12	9	φ φ	-11.55	+11.52
	1400.	<b>503</b> .80	1833,12	-,98	<b>\$ \$</b>	-9.74	-9.72
	1600.	256 . 74	1833.12	98	4 A	-8.30	-8.28
	1800.	309,68	1833.12	-1.03	0 Ø	-7:09	-7.07
	2000.	362.52	1833.12	*3:35	4) 4)	-6.04	<b>-6</b> 91
	<b>2200</b> °	415,55	1833,12	-12,01		-5.10	<del>-</del> 5,09
	2400.	468.49	1833.12	-11.22		-4.25	+4 - 23
	2600.	521.43	1833,12	-10.50		<b>~3,</b> 48	-3,46
	5800.	574.37	1833.12	<b>*9.8</b> 4		-2.77	-2,75
	3000.	627.30	1833+12	=9.22		-2.10	<b>-2</b> .08
	3200.	680.24	1933.12	-8,64		-1.48	<b>*1</b> • 46
	3400.	733.18	1833,12	-9°6		-8 <u>.</u>	<b>*</b> .87
	3600.	786.12	1833.12	<b>-</b> 7.57		- 33	31
	3800.	839.06	1833-12	-7.07		•21	- 22 -
	4000.	891,99	1833.12	<b>~6.6</b> 0		•71	•73

# ANALYSIS: HASELINE CONCEPT AZ

#### ND. OF BUX CARS I 4.

# NU. OF LOCONCTIVES: 6.

		0N8 A-94		RETURN ON INVESTMENT &					
CARS	SWITCHEDZDAY	(\$ ×	10001	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY			
		NPV	INIT COST		1	2			
			(1982 1)						
	200.	-113.82	1982.09	-99.99 **	-99,99 ##	=ଥିମି°ପ୍ର ୬୬			
	400.	-60.88	1982.09	~99.99 **	<b>-99</b> ,99 **	-33,04 44			
	600.	-7.95	1982.09	-99,99 ##	-99,99 **	-99,99 44			
	800.	44 99	1982.09			₩ <mark>₩</mark> \$98 88			
	1000.	97.93	1932.09	· 92 **	-,98 44	* 91 44			
	1200.	150.47	1982.09	- 9A 44	-11,93 **	-11:96 00			
	1400.	203,80	1982.09	- 98 44	-10,22	-10,19			
	1600.	256.74	1982.09	= 99 30	-3,80	- d . 77			
	1800.	309.68	1982.09		-7.63	-7.58			
	2000+	362.62	1982.09	-1.28 **	-6.56	-0.54			
	2200 ·	415.55	1982.09	-12.51 **	-5,64	-5,67			
	2400.	468.49	1982.09	-11.74	-4.81	-4.79			
	2600.	521.43	1932.09	-11,03	-4 e 05	-4 . ) 3			
	2800.	574.37	1982.09	-10,38	-3.35	- 3.33			
	3000.	627.30	1982.09	-9.77	-5*68	-2,67			
	3200.	680.24	1982.09	-9,20	-2.08	-5.06			
· • •	3400.	733.16	1942.09	-0+6h	-1.50	<b>~]</b> ,43			
	3600.	786.12	1985.09	-8.1S		-,73			
	3800.	839.06	1982.09	-7,66	-, 43	<b>*</b> _41			
	4000.	891.99	1995.09	-7.20	.07	,02			

.

l

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONDUICS ANALYSIS: RASELINE CONCEPT A2

10. OF BOX CARS : 5.

10. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5.

			0114	₫ A – 94		RET	URN OH INV	EST	EVI %			
2	ARS	SWITCHEUZDAY	(5 ) NPV	(1000) INIT COST (1982 ±)	4R METHO	)D	SENSITIVI 1	ΤY	SENSITIV 2	1.1.X		
			·									
- 1		. 005	<u>-155,51</u>	2105.18		4 <b>(</b> )	-99,99	4) 4) ()	-99,99	ØØ -	•	1. A. A.
		400.	-102,57	2105.18	-99.99	44	-99.99	<b>\$</b> \$	-99,99	44		-
		600.	-49.64	2105,18	-99,99	φφ.	-99,99	\$ \$	-99,99	<b>₩</b> 4		
		800.	3.30	2105,18	-28.01	44	-15.52	44	-15.52	0 O		
		1000.	56.24	2105.18	- 98	\$ \$	<del>-</del> 99	0 Q	<b>~ 9</b> 8	<b>4</b> 0		
		1200.	109.18	2105.18		6.6	98	\$	# <b>.</b> 98	4.9		•
		1400.	162.11	2105.18	- 98	₩ ₩	-11.93	45-45	-11.90			
		1600.	215.05	2105.18	- 98	4 (b)	-10.26		-10-23			
		1800.	267.99	2105.18	- 98	\$ \$	-8.91		-d.88		1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	÷
		2000.	120.93	2105.18	- 98	0 Q	-7.76		-7.73			· .
		2200.	373 86	2105.18	-1.13	00	-6.76		-0.74			
		2400	426.80	2105.18	-7-54	44	-5.87		-5.85	· · .		
1		2600	479.74	2105.18	-11.97		-5.06		-5.04		and the second	
		2800.	532.68	2105.18	-11.29		-4-33		-4.30			i e e e
	1	3000	5A5 62	2105.18	~10.65		-3.64		-3.62			
		3300	636 55	2105.18	-10.06		=3.01		-2.99			
		3400	. 2010 <i>0 177</i>	2105110	=Q_C1		-2.41		-2.30		· · · ·	
		3400 ·	1071047 1914 A 7	2198 18 8175019	=9.00		=1.85		୍ ଜ୍ଞାନ କମ୍ପାନ୍ତି ମ			
		39011e	744,443	C1V3010 3106 10	0.0.970		· •1 33					
		3000.	171.31	2102010	-0+47	÷.,	 					
		4000 e	850.30	C102010	-0+01	1.						1.10

# ANALYSIS: BASELINE CONCEPT A2

NO. OF BOX CARS 1 5.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

f		6MO	<b>d=94</b>		RETURN ON IT	VEST	HENT &	
ARS	SWITCHED/DAY	( <u>\$</u> X	1600)	4R METHO	0 SENSITI	VITY -	SENSITIV	(ITY)
		NPV	INIT COST		1		S	
			(1982 %)					
ľ.	200.	-155.51	2254.15	-99.93	oo - 99.99	) 44	+99,99	44
	400.	-102.57	2254.15	-99.99	oo _99.99	42-42 42-42		00
	600.	-49 64	2254.15	-99.99	##	) 4545	-99,99	<b>0</b> 4
	800.	3.30	2254.15	-27.73	## <b>-15.5</b> 2	44	-15.52	8 Q
	1000.	56.24	2254,15	<b>~_</b> 98	oo =_9;	3 0 0	9₽	4) 4) () 4)
	1200.	109.18	2254.15	- 9A	44 - 9	8 0 0	<b>~.,</b> 98	4 4)
<b>.</b> .	1400.	162,11	2254.15	-,98	00 -2.9!	on	-3.32	0 Q
	1600.	215.05	2254.15	98	44 -10.6	7	-10.64	
	1800.	267.99	2254.15	98	66 <b>~9,3</b>	3	-9.31	
	2000.	320.93	2254,15	- 98	44 -3.2:	ð	<b>8</b> -∎17	
	2290.	373,86	2254,15		44 =7.2	1	÷7;19	
	2400.	426.80	2254.15	-1.64	oo -6.33	\$	-0.31	
	2600.	479.74	2254.15	-12-41	-5.54	ļ	-5.52	
$e^{-i\theta}$	2800.	532.68	2254.15	-11.74	=4.8	1	-4.79	
1.	3000.	585.62	2254,15	=11:11	- 4.14	4	-4.12	
	3200.	638.55	2254.15	-10.53	-3.51		-3.49	
-	3400.	591.49	2254+15	<b>-9</b> -98	-2.42	2	<b>=5+</b> 80	
	3600.	744.43	2254,15	-9.47	=2+3	7	<b>#2</b> ,35	
	3800.	797.37.	2254.15	-8.98	-1.8	5	<b>-1.</b> 83	
	40000	850,30	2254-15	<b>*8.5</b> 2	-1.35		<b>₩1</b> ,33	
SUMMARY	C F	FESS	ECON	Ωŀ	'ICS			
---------	-----	------	------	----	------			
---------	-----	------	------	----	------			

ANALYSIS: HASELINE CONCEPT AZ

NO. OF BOX CAPS : 6.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6,

		()M5	Δ=9.4	RETURN ON INVESTMENT *					
CARS	SWITCHFU/DAY	(B X	1000)	4R METHO	)n	SENSITIV	ТҮ	SENSITIV	/ <u>T</u> TY
		NРV	INIT COST			1		5	
			(1982 \$)						
	200.	-197.20	2526.22	-99,99	Ø Ø	-99.99	00	-99,99	0 Q
	400.	-144.20	2526.22	-99.99	φφ.	-99.99	0 Ø	-99.99	\$ <b>\$</b>
	600.	-91,33	2526,22	-99,99	\$	-99,99	() ()	-99 <b>.</b> 99	4) (A)
	800	-38,39	2526.22	-99,99	\$\$ \$\$	<b>~99,9</b> 9	4) A)	-39-90	44
	1000.	14.55	2526.22	-15,52	44	=15.81	$\phi \phi$	-16.33	47 47 47
	.1200.	67.49	2526.22	93	ΦQ.	- • 9 B	<b>₩</b> 49	<b>∞,</b> 999	φ.Φ
+	1400.	120.42	2526.22	-,98	44	-,98	46-45	-21,10	4 4
-	1600.	173.36	2526.22		42 44	-1.56	<b>4</b> (\$	-1.63	4) 4) 4)
	1800.	226.30	2526.82	-,98	0 Q	-11.05		-11:02	
	2000.	279,24	2526.22	98	<b>⇔</b> ⇔	<b>~9.7</b> 8		-9-75	
	2200.	332.17	2526.22	- 98	() () ()	-8,70		=5.6V	
	2400	385.11	2526.22	-,98	0.0	-7.75		- 7.7 3	
	2000.	438,05	2526.22	-1.07	0.0	-6.92		<b>≈</b> 5≩83	
	2800.	490.99	2526.22	-2.31	4 A	-6-16		-6.13	
	3000.	543,93	2526,22	-12.34		-5,46		-5,43	
	3200.	596.86	2526,22	-11.74		-4.81		-4.79	
	3400.	649.80	25.26,22	-11.18		-1.71		<b>=</b> 4∎19	
	3600.	702.74	2526.22	-10.65		-3.64		-3,+62	
	3800.	755.68	2526.22	-10.16		=3:11		-3.09	
	4000.	808.61	2526.22	=9.69		<del>~</del> 5*61		-2.59	

D-21

OFIN

### APPENDIX E

### ALTERNATE CONFIGURATIONS

### INTRODUCTION

The following applications of technology developed during the FESS and other related programs were considered in an attempt to identify a viable energy saving or productivity increasing concept.

#### CONCEPT A2 (MODIFIED)

### System Description

Concept A2 (modified) is shown in principle in Figure E-1. The variation from Concept A2 is the traction motors that are unmodified D77 models with the fields excited at high current and low voltage from an externally controlled supply. A simplified schematic diagram of the field power supply is shown if Figure E-2.

The rationale behind this concept is the engineering effort that is concentrated in the provision of the field power supply rather than being split between the traction motor modification and the field power supply.

### System Costs

The system costs identified here are based on those derived for Concept A2. Only variations are described in detail.

#### 1. Initial Locomotive Modification

The \$11,000 estimated for the traction motor modification in Concept A2 is saved, but is offset by an increase in the cost of the four field power supplies from 830,000 to \$40,000. Therefore, the total locomotive modification cost for Concept A2 (modified) is \$117,000.

It is not possible to quantify the benefit (or penalty) of not modifying the standard traction motor from the viewpoint of traction motor interchangeability, spares holding, etc.

### 2. Boxcar Installation

The boxcar cost remains unaltered at \$215,000.

### Annual Costs and Credits

The locomotive and boxcar maintenance costs are the same as those derived for Concept A2, as the fuel consumption is.



Figure E-1. Concept A2 (Modified)



Figure E-2. Field Power Supply for Concept A2 (Modified)

### Economic Analysis

It can be seen that the only saving resulting from Concept A2 (modified) compared to Concept A2 is a saving of less than 1 percent in the initial cost of the locomotive modification, Therefore, the results of the economic analysis of Concept A2 (modified) are not significantly different from Concept A2, and Concept A2 (modified) is considered to be economically unattractive.

### CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

#### System Description

Concept A1 (modified) is based on Concept A2 (modified), but utilizes only one ESU with a higher capacity flywheel machine (the energy storage capacity of the ESU having already been shown to be adequate). The proposed flywheel machine, which has yet to be designed, would be rated at 850 amp (continuous) as the traction motors are. The system schematic is conceptually the same as Figure 57 contained in the main body of this report.

### System Costs

### 1. Initial Locomotive Modification

The locomotive modification costs are the same as those for Concept A2 (modified), that is, \$117,000.

### 2. Boxcar Installation

It is estimated that the cost of the ESU, complete with a larger capacity machine, would be \$120,000, thereby resulting in a total boxcar installation cost of \$155,000.

### Annual Costs and Credits

### 1. Locomotive

The locomotive maintenance costs are the same as Concept A2 (modified). The fuel consumption would be reduced compared to Concept A2, due to the reduction of the boxcar weight now that only one ESU is used. The flywheel machine is significantly larger, so this will offset the weight saving due to the elimination of one ESU. However, the reduction in fuel consumption is negligible because the reduction in weight would be approximately 1 percent of the combined locomotive and boxcar weight, which represents an even lesser proportion of the total average system weight.

### 2. Boxcar

The 5SJ maintenance will be \$1,600/year.

### Economic Analysis

The preceding data were input to the FESS economics program. The results are contained in the following pages. From these, it can be seen that for a typical locomotive, switching 395 cars/day, the ROI is only positive (but less than 1 percent) when the number of boxcars assumed is unrealistically low. Therefore, it was concluded that Concept A1 (modified) was uneconomic.

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CAPS : 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 3.

Π

		048 A-94		RETURN ON INVESTMENT S			
CAHS	SWITCHED/DAY	TCHED/DAY (5 X1000)		4H METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
		V I	NIT CUST		1	5	
		(	1982 \$)				
	200.	30.70	643.23	-,9H ++	98 88	-1.72 00	
	400.	83.64	643.23	-15.42	-8.77	-8,75	
	600.	136.58	643.23	-12.43	-5.55	-5,54	
	B00*	189.52	643.23	-10.26	-3.22	-3,21	
	1000.	242.45	643.23	-8.52	-1.35	-1.34	
	1200.	295.39	643.23	-7.05	.23	•25	
	1400+	348.33	643.23	-5.75	1.63	1.64	
	1600.	401.27	643.23	-4.58	2.88	2,90	
	1800.	454.20	643.23	-3,51	4.03	4.05	
	2000.	507.14	643.23	-2.51	5.09	5.1)	
	2200.	560.08	643.23	=1.58	5.09	6.11 J	
	2400.	613.02	643.23	<b></b> 70	7.04	7.05	
	2600.	665.95	643.23	• 14	······································	1.95	
	2800.	718,89	643.23	.94	8,79	B. 81	
	3000.	771.83	643.23	1.72	9.62	9.64	
	3200.	824.77	643.23	2.46	10.42	] (: , 44	
	3400 ·	877.7.0	643.23	3.19	11.19	11.21	
	3600.	930.64	643.23	3,89	11.95	11.96	
	3600.	983.58	643.23	4.58	12.58	10.70	
	4000-	1036.52	643.93	5.25	13.40	13.41	

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AT (MODIFIED)

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS

NO. OF BOX CAPS 1 1.

4 .

930.64

983.58

1036.52

792.20

792.20

792.20

CARS SWITCHED/DAY

NO. OF LOCOPOTIVES:

Z00\*

400.

600.

800.

1000.

12001

1400.

1600.

1800.

2000.

2200.

2400.

2600.

5900.

3000.

3200.

3400.

3600.

3800.

4000.

0M8 A=94 RETURN ON INVESTMENT (\$ A190(F) 4R METHON SENSITIVITY. SENSITIVITY INIT COST NPV 2 1 (1982 \$) 792.20 30.70 - 98 44 -.98 00 - 98 64 83.64 792.20 -10.06 -10-04 -.98 00 792.20 136.58 -6.96 -6.94 -1.06 ## 792.20 189.52 -11.66 -4.72 -4.71 792.20 242.45 -10.00 -2.94 -2.93 295.39 792.20 -1.44 -1.42 348.33 792.20 -7.38 **....** -.12 401.27 792.20 -6.28 1.05 1.07 792.20 454.20 -5.28 2.14 2.13 507.14 792.20 3.15 3,13 -4.36 560.08 792.20 4:06 -3.50 4.04 792.20 4,93 613.02 -2.69 4.91 792.20 665.95 5.73 5.75 -1.92 792.20 718.89 6.52 6.54 \*1.18 792.20 7,29 771.83 7.27 -48 824.77 792.20 8.00 6.01 .20 792,20 8.71 877.70 .85 8.69

1.48

2.10

2.70

9.37

10.03

10.67

Ç,

9.39

10.05

10,69

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CARS : 1.

. .

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5.

	9MO	A-94	RET	URN ON INVEST	MENT %
CAWS SWITCHEDZDA'	Y (5 X)	,000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SERSITIVITY
	NPV I	INT COST	$\sum_{i=1}^{n}   f_i   \leq 1$	1	2
	(	(1985 \$)			· · · ·
200.	30.70	941,18	- 98 **	<b>≈</b> •98 44	<b>-</b> .98 00
400.	83.64	941.18	98	<del>=</del> 1109	=11.UBa
600.	136.58	941.18	- <u>98</u> 44	-4.08	e. 06
800.	189.52	941.18	=5.84 00	-5.92	<b>#5</b> +90
1000.	242.45	941,18	-11,17	-4.20	-4.18
1200.	295,39	941.18	-9.83	-2.75	-2.74
1400.	348.33	941.18	-8,66	-1.50	-1.48
1600.	401.27	941.18	=7.61	-, 37	-,36
1800.	454.20	941.18	-6.66	•65	.66
2000.	507.14	941.18	-5.79	1.58	1.60
2200.	560.08	941.18	-4.97	2.46	2.47
2400.	613.02	941.18	-4.21	3.28	3.24
2600.	665,95	941.18	-3.49	4.05	4.07
2800.	718,89	941.18	-2.80	4.78	4 <b>.</b> 8 (I
3000.	771.83	941.18	-2.15	5.49	5.51
3200.	824.77	941:18	-1.52	6,16	f:. I"
3400.	877.70	941.18	32	6.81	6.8A
3600.	930.54	941.18	<b>~.</b> 33	'7.43	1.645
3300.	983,58	941.18	.24	8.04	0.000 to
4000.	1036.52	941.18	,79	8,63	8.64

NO. OF HOX CARS	• •			
NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES	∓ 6 <b>.</b>			
	이러는 A-94	PEI	TURN ON TRVEST	ENT &
CARS SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1000)	4R METHOD	SENSTTIVITY	SENSITIVITY
	NPV INIT COS	Т	]	2
	(1982 \$)			
	a second s			•
200.	30.70 1090.15			
400.	83.64 1090.15	- 98 88	-11.95 00	-11.94 **
600.	136.58 1090.15	- QA 98	-9.01	-8,99
800.	189.52 1090.15	-1.07 **	-6.90	-6.88
1000.	242.45 1090.15	-12.13	-5.23	-5.22
1200.	295.39 1090.15	-10.83	-3.83	-3.82
1400.	348.33 1090.15	-9.70	-2.62	-2.60
1600.	401.27 1090.15	-8.70	-1.54	=1.52
1800.	454.20 1090.15	-7.78	56	-,54
2000.	507.14 1090.15	-6.95	• 34	.36
2200.	560.08 1090.15	-6.17	1 • 17	1.19
2400.	613.02 1090.15	-5.44	1.96	1.97
2600.	665.95 1090.15	-4.75	2.69	2.71
2800.	718.89 1090.15	-4.10	3.39	3.41
3000.	771.83 1090.15	-3.48	4.05	4.07
3200.	824.77 1090.15	-2.89	4.69	4.71
3400.	877.70 1090.15	-2.32	5.30	5.32
3600.	930.64 1090.15	-1.77	5.89	5,91
3800.	983.58 1090.15	-1.24	6.46	6,48
4000.	1036,52 1090.15	72	7.01	7.03

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AT (MODIFIED)

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AT (MUDIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CARS	: 7.					н
NO. OF LOCOMOTIVE	S: 2.					. '
				na el 11 de la companya de la compa El companya de la comp		
						1
	OME	5 A=94	RET	URN ON INVEST	MENT %	
CARS SWITCHED/DAY	(\$)	×1000)	4R METHUC	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
	NPV	INIT COST		1	5	- 14 J
		(1982 3)				
244	0 <b>1</b> 7	404 67	-16 65 64	- 00 08	- 00 40	i -
200.	1 <del>4 8 0</del> 1 4 1 4	670 DI		-11 00	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
400	Q1+41	690.07	-1 -1 -1 -1-4	7 22		
500 e	114 04	- 070 <u>-</u> D1 400 57	-11 EQ			÷
800 <b>.</b>	T01+V0	10+07	-11.50	<b>■40</b> 4		an '-
1000+	220.22	670.57	-7+72	2+64	-2.62	
1200+	273-15	670.57	75.1/	<b>₩•7</b> /	<b>T ( 2 h</b> )	
1400+	326.09	670.57	-6.83	• 46	• 4 8	
1600.	379.03	690.57	-5.64	1.74	1.76	
1800.	431.97	690+57	<b>4</b> +56	2.91	2.92	
2000.	484.91	690.57	=3+56	3.98	3,99	
2200.	537.84	690.57	-2.63	4,97	4 90	
2400.	590.78	69.0+57	<b>=1.75</b>	5.91	×5•43	
2600+	643.72	690.57	-,92	6,80	6.62	
2800.	696.66	690.57	<b>≂13</b>	7.65	7.67	-
3000.	749.59	690+57	•63	8.46	8.48	۰.
3200.	802.53	690.57	1.36	9.24	9+26	
3400.	855.47	690.57	2.07	10.00	10,02	
3600.	90H.41	690.57	2.76	10.73	10.75	· .
3800.	961.35	690.57	3.42	11.45	11+47	
4000.	1014.28	690.57	4.08	12-14	12.16	

.

ANALYSIS! CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CARS 1 2.

NU. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 3.

1	0MB A-94	RETI	JRN ON INVEST	化ENT 先
CARS SWITCHEU/DAY	(\$ X1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY
	NPV INIT COST		1	2
	(1982 \$)			
200.	8.47 839.55	-15-52 **	÷.98 **	
400.	61.41 839.55		-4.57 ·**	-5,18 44
600.	114.34 839.55	-1.13 💏	-8,48	-8,46
800.	167.28 839.55	=4.10 ##	-5,99	-5.97
1000.	220.22 839.55	-11.05	-4,07	<b>#4</b> ∎05
1200.	273.16 839.55	=9.57	-2.48	-2.47
1400.	326.09 839.55	-8,30	-1.12	-1.10
1600.	379.03 839.55	<b>7,18</b>	.09	•11
1800.	431,97 839,55	<del>*</del> 6+16	1.19	1.20
2000.	484.91 839.55	-5.22	2.19	2,21
2200.	537.84 839.55	=4.35	3.12	3.14
2400.	590.78 839.55	<b>=3.5</b> 4	4:00	4.01
2600.	643.72 839.55	-2.77	4.82	4. <u>#</u> 84
2800.	696.66 839.55	-2.04	5.60	5.62
3000.	749.59 839.55	<b>=</b> 1.34	6.35	6.37
3200.	802.53 839.55	67	707	7.09
3400.	855.47 839.55	-•02	7.76	7.78
3600.	908.41 839.55	•60	R.43	ä•44
3800.	961.35 839.55	1.20	9.07	9.09
4000.	1014.28 839.55	1.79	9.70	9.72

2.

4.

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CARS NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES:

		0M9 A-94	RET	URN ON INVESTM	ENT %	
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1000)	48 METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
•		NPV INIT CUST		1	2	
		(1982 \$)				
	200.	8.47 988.52	=15.52 **		98 44	
	400.	61.41 988.52	98 00	-1.05 00	-1,06 44	
e de la	600.	114.34 988.52	-,98 **	-9,50	-9.48	
	800.	167.28 988.52	=1.03 00	-7.08	-7,06	
	1000.	220.22 988.52	-12,12	-5.22	~5.20	
	1200.	273.16 988.52	-10.70	-3.69	÷3,67	•
	1400.	326.09 988.52	-9,48	-2+38	-2.30	
	1600.	379.03 988.52	<b>**8</b> .40	-1.22	-1.20	
	1800.	431.97 988.52	-7,42	17	-,16	
1.1	2000.	484.91 988.52	-6.53	•78	•8n	
	2200.	537,84 988,52	-5,71	1.67	1.68	·
$1 < \frac{1}{2} < $	2400.	590.78 988.52	<b>~</b> 4 <b>.</b> 94	2,49	2,51	
- 1. F.	2600.	643.72 988.52	-4.21	3.27	3,29	
÷ '	2800.	696.66 988.52	-3.52	4.01	4.03	
6 <u>.</u> .	3000.	749.59 988.52	=2.87	4.71	4.73	
	3200.	802.53 968.52	-2.24	5,38	5.40	artina a
	3400.	855.47 988.52	-1.64	6.03	6.05	
	3600.	908.41 988.52	-1.06	6.65	6.67	
. · · ·	3800.	961.35 988.52	50	7.25	1.27	
te station	4000.	1014.28 988.52	• 05	7.84	7.85	· · ·

NO:	OF HOX	CARS	: 2.						
NÖ.	OF LOCO	ONUTIVES	i 5.						
			0M <sup>5</sup>	3 4-94	RE	TURN ON INVEST	VENT 9		
CARS	i Switch	HEDZDAY	(\$) NPV	(1000) INIT COST (1982 \$)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY 1	SENSITIVITY		
	200.		8.47	1137.49	-15-52 00	-23.81	-23.74		34
	400.	1. St. 1.	61.41	1137.49	=.98 **	98 000	-,9A 88		
· .	600.		114.34	1137.49	-,98 00	-10.36	-10.34		
	800.		167.28	1137.49	98. 44	-7.99	-7.97		
	1000.		220.22	1137.49	-2.17 **	-6.18	-6.16	and the second sec	
1	1200.	2	273.16	1137.49	-11.63	-4.70	-4+68		۰.
	1400.		326.09	1137,49	-10,45	-3,42	-3,41		• •
	1600.		379.03	1137.49	-9.41	-2.30	-2.29		
	1800.		431.97	1137.49	-8.47	-1.30	-1.28	н. Настория (1996)	
1	2000.		484 91	1137.49	-7.61	38	36		
	2200.	1.	537.84	1137.49	±6.82	•47	•49		
	2400.		590.78	1137.49	-6,08	1.27	1.28	and the second second	
	2600.		643.72	1137.49	-5.39	2.01	2.03	· · · ·	
	2800.		696.66	1137.49	-4.73	2.71	2.73		
	3000-		749.59	1137.49	-4.11	3.38	3.40		
:	-00SE		802.53	1137.49	=3.51	4.02	4.04		
	3400.		855.47	1137.49	-2.94	4.63	4.65		
	3600-	e de la composition de	908.41	1137.49	-2.40	5.22	5.24		
	3800-		961.35	1137.49	-1.87	5.79	5.81		
-	4000-		1014.28	1137.49	-1.35	6,34	6.36		•

ANALYSISI CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS

SUNMARY OF FESS ECONULICS

### ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

# NO. OF BOX CARS : 2.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

		0M8 A=94	PET	URN ON INVEST	·E种T · · ·	
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1006)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
		NPV INIT COST		1	2	
		(1982-8)				
	200.	8.47 1286.46	-15.52 **	-24.34 94	-24,29	
	400.	61.41 1286.46		-98 **	-1.72 00	
	600.	114.34 1286.40	· •••98 **	-11.09	-11+07	
	800.	167.28 1286.46	=15+42	-9.77	-8.75	
	1000.	220.22 1286.46	-1.05 **	-7.00	-6,98	a de la composición d Composición de la composición de la comp
	1200.	273.16 1286.45	-12.43	-5,55	-5-54	÷ 1
	1400+	326.09 1286.46	-11.28	-4.31	° - <b>4 - 3</b> t≨	· .
	1600	379.03 1286.46	-10.26	-3.22	-3,21	4 <sup>1</sup>
	1800.	431.97 1286.46	-9.35	-2.25	-2.23	-
	2000	484.91 1286.46	-8.52	-1.35	-1.34	i L
	2200.	537.84 1286.46	+7.76	-,53	= . 51	
	2400.	590.78 1266.46	=7.05	.23	.25	
	2600.	643.72 1256.46	-6.38	. 95	.97	
	2800	696.66 1286.46	-5.75	1.63	1.64	
	3000.	749.59 1286.46	-5,15	2.27	2.29	
	3200.	802.53 1286.46	-4.53	2.88	2.90	
	3400.	855.47 1286.46	-4.03	3.47	3.44	
	3600.	968.41 1286.46	-3.51	4.03	4 . (15	1
	360.	961.35 1266.46	-7.00	4.57	4.59	
	4000	1014.28 1286.46	-2.51	5 • V9	5.11	

(

SUMPARY OF FESS ECONDUTCS ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AL (MODIFIED) NO. OF POX CAPS : 3.

(

NO. OF POX CAPS :	3.	•			
NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES:	3.				
	0M8 4+94		RETURN ON INV	ESTMENT &	
CAPS SWITCHED/ SY	(* *1000) NPV INIT (1982	CUST CUST	D SENSITIVI 1	IY SENSITIV	
200.	+13.77 1035	-86 -99.99	ee -99,99	44 <u>-</u> 39,99	↔ ↔ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓
400.	39.17 1035	.86	4495	ee98	45-65
600.	92.11 1035	.8698	ee =11.09	-11,07	
800.	145.05 1035	i.86 👘 e.98	## -3.36	-8.58	
1000.	197.98 1035	.36 -1.82	## =6.27	-o.25	
1500.	250.92 1035		-4.64	-4.62	
1400.	303,86 1035	.86 -10.29	-3,26	-3.24	
1600.	356,80 1035	i.86 -9.17	-2+05	-2,03	
1800.	409.73 1035	.86	-,97	-,94	
• 2000 •	462.67 1035	.Ré <b>-7.</b> 26	• 3.0	• • 62	
• 0.022	515.61 1035	6 <u>+85</u> 5 <b>=6</b> +42	: • 91 ·	se.	
2400.	568,55 1035	ie#6 =5±64	1.74	1.76	
2600.	621.49 1035	-85 -4-91	2.53	2.55	
2800.	674.42 1035	-86	3.27	3.29	
3000.	727.36 1035	.86 -3.56	3,98	3.59	
3200.	780.30 1035	i.86 -2.93	4,65	4.67	
3400.	833.24 1035	EE.S= 98.6	5,29	5.31	
3600 •	A86.17 1035	5,86 -1,75	5.91	5.93	
3800.	939.11 1035	•86 1.19	6.51	til b <b>.5</b> 3.	
4000.	992.05 1035	5•86 <b>*•6</b> 5	7.09	7.11	

### ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (HODIFIED)

### NO. OF BOX CAPS : 3.

NO. OF LUCOMOTIVES: 4.

	<u>омв А-94</u>	RETURN ON INVESTMENT &			
CARS SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1000) New Twitt Cost	48 METHOD	SENSIFIVITY -	SENSITIVITY	
	(1982.*)		*	۴	
200.	-13.77 1184.83	-99,99 44	-99.99 **	-99 <b>.</b> 99 88	
400.	39.17 1184.83	*•98 BB	-,9H ##	<b>-</b> .92 88	
600.	92,11 1184,83	- 98 88	-11,88	+11.85	
800.	145.05 1184.83	+ 9A 88	-9.15	-9-13	
1000.	197.98 1184.83	-1.02 04	-7.16	- 7.14	
1200.	250.92 1184.83	-12.45	-5.57	-5.55	
1400.	303.86 1164.83	-11,20	-4.23	-4,2)	
1600.	356.80 1184.83	-10.11	-3.06	-3,04	
1800.	409.73 1184.83	-4,14	-5+95	-2.00	
2000.	462.67 1184.83	-8.26	-1.08	= L + 1/A	
.0055	515.61 1184.83	-7.46	21	<b>*.1</b> 5	
2400.	568.55 1184.03	-6,71	.60	■67 <sup>-1</sup>	
2600.	621.49 1164.63	-6.00	1.35	1.37	
2800	674.42 1184.03	-5.34	2.06	2.08	
3000.	727.36 1184.83	-4.71	2.74	2.75	
3200.	780.30 1184.83	-4-12	3.38	3,39	
3400.	833.24 1184.03	-3.54	3.99	4.01	
3600.	886.17 1154.63	-2.99	4 <b>-</b> ⊃ છ	4.6,	
3600.	939.11 1184.23	-2,46	5.15	5.16	
4000.	992.05 1164.63	-1.95	5.69	5.71	

i

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AL (MODIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CARS 1 3.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5.

<u>E-18</u>

1

		0MB A-94	RET	URN ON INVESTI	ENT 9
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(5 ×100C)	48 METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY
		NPV INIT COST		1	2
		(1982 \$)			
				\$7	- 316k
	ZOO.	-13,77 1333,81	-99 99 00	-99,99 00	-99.99 48
	400.	39.17 1333.81		- 98 44	-,98 44
	600.	92.11 1333.81	98 00	-1.65 44	-1.71 00
	.006	145.05 1333.81	98 40	-9.88	-9.86
	1000.	197,98 1333,81	- 98 HV	-7,93	-7.91
	1200.	250.92 1333.61	=1,55 00	-6.37	-6.36
	1400.	303.86 1333.81		-5.07	-5,05
	1600.	356.80 1333.81	-10.92	-3,93	-3.91
	1800.	409.73 1333.81	-9,98	-2.91	-2.90
	2000.	462.67 1333.81	-9.12	-2.00	-1.98
	2200.	515.61 1333.81	-8.34	-1.16	-1.14
	2400.	568.55 1333.81	-7.61	38	36
	2600.	621.49 1333.81	6.93	.35	
	2800.	674.42 1333.81	-6.30	1.04	1.06
	3000.	727.36 1333.81	-5,69	1.69	1.70
	3200.	780.30 1333.81	-5,12	2.30	2,32
	3400.	833.24 1333.81	-4.57	2.89	2.91
	3600.	886.17 1333.81	-4.04	3.46	3.48
	3800.	939.11 1333.81	-3,53	4.00	4.02
	4000.	992.05 1333.81	-3.04	4.53	4.54

-(-

e des a constantes a constantes

2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000

SENSITIVITY 2

-99,99 44 - 9A 44 -1.06 44 -10.50

### SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS

ANAL	YSI	S:	CONCEPT	r Al	(MOD I	FIED)
N0.	OF	BOX	CARS	; ;	3.	
NU.	OF	LOCO	MOTIVES	51	6.	

		OM8 A-94		RETURN ON INVESTMENT &				
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1000)		48 METH	00	SENSITIVITY	SENSITI	
		NPV	INIT COST (1982 \$)			1	2	
e e e	200.	-13.77	1482.78	-99.94	0 Q	-99,99 88	-99.99	
` <del>.</del>	400.	39.17	1482.78	- 98	₿ Q		<b>-,</b> 98	
	600.	92.11	1482.78	-,98	ΦΦ	-1.05 **	-1.05	
	800.	145.05	1482.78	98	<b>\$</b> ₿	-10.52	-10.50	
	1000.	197.98	1482.78	- <u>-98</u>	Ф Ф	-8.61	-8.59	
	1200.	250.92	1452.78	-1.03	40 (A)	-7.08	-7.95	
	1400.	303.86	1482.78	-10,68	() ()	-5.80	-5.78	
	1600.	356.80	1482.78	-11.62		-4,68	-4,66	
-	1800.	409.73	1482,78	-10.70		=3,69	-3.67	
	2000.	462.67	1482.78	-9,87		-2,80	-2,78	
	• 00SS	515.61	1482.78	<b>-9.1</b> 0		-1-98	<b>-</b> 1.96	
	2400.	568.55	1482.78	-8.40		-1.22	<b>=1</b> ,20	
	2600.	621.49	1482.78	-7.74		51	~,49	
	2800.	674.42	1482.78	-7.12		+15	.17	
	3000.	727.36	1482.78	-6,53		•78	•80	
<i></i>	3200.	780.30	1482.78	-5.9A		1.38	1.40	
14.14	3400.	833.24	1482.78	=5.45		1.95	1.97	
11	3600.	886,17	1482,78	=4.94		2.49	2.51	
e e e e	3800. · · · · · ·	939.11	1482.78	-4.45		3.02	3.04	
	4000.	992.05	1482.78	-3,98		3.52	3,54	

6-L-3.

ł

2		
		(
	. •	
		10.12

St	NEWARY OF FE	ESS ECONDATES
ANALYSIST	CONCEPT A1	(1-001E1E0)
NO. OF BOX	CAES 1	4.
NO. OF LOC	OPOTIVES:	4.

--E--20---

		014H A=94		RETURN OH INVESTMENT &			
CARS SWITCH	ED/DAY	(\$ X1000)	4H METHO	D SENSITIVI	TY SENSITIVETY	· ·	
	NP NP	PV - INIT CUST	•	<b>1</b>	2		
		(1982 %)		and the second se			
200.	-36	6.00 1381.15	-99,99	** =99,99	44 <b>-</b> 99,99 44	1. A.	
400.	16	6.94 1361.15	-15,52	oo - 98	00 - 99-00		
. <b>6</b> 00.	69	9.87 1381.15	-,98	oo =14.31	-1.02 00		
800.	122	2.81 1361.15	98	** -11.09	-11.07		
1000.	175	5.75 1301.15	98	•• -8.91	-8.39		
1200.	228	8.59 1361.15	-1.01	-7-22	-7.29		
1400.	281	1,62 1381,15	-9,25	₽₽. ⊶5,83	=5,81		
1600.	334	4.56 1381.15	-11.58	-4.64	-4.62		
1800.	387	7.50 1381.15	-10.60	<b>=3,5</b> 8	-3.54		
5000.	44(	0.44 1381.15	-9.72	-2+64	-5+65		
•00SS	49	3.38 1381.15	-8,91	±1.77	-1.75		
2400.	546	6.31 1381.15	-8.17	-,97	<b>-</b> • 9 6-		
2600.	599	9.25 1381.15	=7.48	23	-,21		
2800.	652	2.19 1381.15	**6.83	• 46	<b>●</b> 4 8	۰.	
3000.	705	5.13 1381.15	=e*55	1.12	1.4		
3200.	758	8.06 1381.15	=5,64	1.74	1.76		
3400+	811	1.00 1381.15	<b>-5.</b> 08	2.34	2.36	• •	
3600.	863	3.94 1381.15	-4.56	2.91	2492	· · · ·	
3800.	916	6.88 1381.15	-4.05	3.45	3.47		
4000+	969	9.81 1381.15	<b>5</b> 3,56	3.98	3,99		

N0. (	F LOCOMOTIVES	ŧ 5.				
		OM8 A=94	PET	URN ON INVEST	ENT &	
CARS	SWITCHEDZOAY	(% X1000)	4R METHON	SEUSTIVITY	SENSITIATIA	
1. J. J.		NPV INII CUSI		and the second sec	4 A A	•
		(1995-2)				
	200.	-36.00 1530.12	-99.99 **	- 99.99 ¢¢	-99.99 **	
	400.	16.94 1530.12	=15.52 ##		93 00	
	600.	69.87 1530.12	- 98 **	9 **	98 44	
	800.	122.41 1530.12	- 98 88	-11+69	<b>-</b> 11.67	
·	1000.	175.75 1530.12	9 **	=9.54	=9,52	
	1200.	228.69 1539.12		- <u>7+89</u>	-7+87	
	1400	281.62 1530.12	-1.32 **	-6,52	-6.50	
	1600.	334,56 1530,12	-12.24	-5.35	- 533	
	1800.	387.50 1530.12	-11.28	-4,32	-4,30	
	2000.	440.44 1530.12	-10,42	=3.39	<b>-3,3</b> 4	
ta di s	.0055	493.38 1530.12	=9.464	<b>≓2</b> 465	-2.53	
	2400.	546.31 1530.12	-8-92	-1.78	=1,76	
	2600.	599.25 1530.12	-8+54	-1,05	-1.03	
· ·	2800.	652.19 1530.12	=7.61	-,38	<b>=</b> ∎36	
ч. <sup>4</sup> . г.	3000.	705.13 1530.12	-7.02	∎26	<b>■2</b> 8	
1.1	3200.	758.06 1539.12	=6.46	■87	■ 5 £	
	3400.	811.00 1530.12	-5,92	1,44	1,48	
· ·	3600.	863.94 1530.12	=5 <u>+</u> 41	1.99	6.01	
1. 1. 1. 1.	3800.	916.88 1530.12	=4,92	2.52	2.54	
	4000•	969.81 1530.12	=4, <b>,</b> 44	3.03	3.04	

NO. OF BOX CARS 1 4.

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AL (MOUIFIED)

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONUMICS





SUMMARY	OF	FESS	ECONC	HICS	

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT AI (MODIFIED) NO. OF BOX CAPS : 4. NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

		0MB A-94	RETURN OU INVESTMENT *				
CAHS	SWITCHEU/DAY	CHEU/DAY (\$ X1000)		SEMSTTIVITY	SENSITIVITY		
		NPV INIT COST		1	2		
		(1985-4)					
	200.	-36.00 1679.09	-99,99 **	-99.99 **	-99,99 **		
	400.	16.94 1679.09	-15.52 **	98 **	- 98 **		
	600.	69.87 1679.09	-,98 00	-,98 **	- 99 84		
	800.	122.81 1679.09	- 08 04	-4.57 88	-5.1A ##		
	1000.	175.75 1679.09	- 98.00	-16.11	-19,09		
	1200.	228.69 1679.09	-1-13 40	-8.48	-8.46		
	1400.	261.62 1679.09	-1.02.00	-7.14	-7.12		
	1600.	334.56 1679.09	-4.10 00	-5.99	-5.97		
	1800	387.50 1679.09	-11.89	-4.98	-4.96		
	2000.	440.44 1679.09	-11.05	-4.07	-4.05		
	2200.	493.38 1679.09	-10.28	-3.24	-3,23		
	2400.	546.31 1679.09	-9.57	-2.48	-2.47		
	2600.	599.25 1679.09	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-1.78	-1.76		
	2800.	652.19 1679.09	-8.30	-1.12	-1.10		
	3000.	705.13 1679.09	-7.72	50	48		
	3200.	758.06 1679.09	-7.18	.09	• 1 1 Ave 14		
	3400.	811.00 1679.09	<b>~6.66</b>	•65	.67		
	3600+	863.94 1679.09	=6.16	1+19	1.20		
	3800.	916.88 1679.09	-5.68	1.70	1,72		
	4000.	969.81 1679.09	-5.22	2.19	2.21		

( ) .

-E-22-

# 

#### RETURN ON INVESTMENT & 4R METHOD SENSITIVITY SEUSTITVITY 1 2

1726.44	-99,99	**	-99.99	44	-99.99	44	
1726.44	-99.99	Ø ()	-99.99	0,85	-99.99	44	
1726.44	-,98	0 Q	-,98	<b>₽</b> ₽	98	<b>6</b> 6	
1726.44	-,98	4) (ł)	-1.00	4:4	<b>→]</b> ,0/)	60	
1726.44	<b>7.9</b> 8	4) 4)	*11.09	7	-11.07	1997 - 19	
1726.44	- <b>,</b> 9H	4 Q	-9.29		-9.27	•	
1725.44	-,98	¥ 47	-7.85		-7.83		
1726.44	-1.21	0 Q	-6.64		-6,52		
1726.44	-12.45		-5,58		-5.56		
1726.44	-11.58		-4.64		-4.52		-
1720.44	-10.78		-3,76		-3.76		· .
1726.44	-10.06	1.1	3,00	1.0	-2.99		
1726.44	- <b>- 9,</b> 39		-5.58		-2.26		
1726+44			-1.61		-1.59	· ·	
1726,44			97		-,96		÷ .
1726.44	-7.61		8E.++		36		
1726.44	=7.09		.19		.21	· · · · ·	
1725.44	-6.59		,73		+75		
1720.44	<b>~</b> ₩•16		1.25		1.27		. •
1726.44	<b>≓5</b> .64		1.74		1.76		11.5

# ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (MODIFIED)

SUNMARY UF FESS ECONOMICS

NO. OF BOX CARS 5. NO. OF LOCONCTIVES: 5. 0NB A-94 CARS SWITCHED/DAY (\$ X1000) NPV INIT COST (1982 5)

200.

4000.

ामा ।

 $\sim$ 

-58.23 1726. -5,30 400 1726. 600. 47.64 1726. 800. 100.58 1726. 153.52 1000. 1726. 1200. 206.45 1726. 1400. 259.39 1726. 1600. 312,33 1726. 1800. 365,27 1726. 5000\* 418.20 1725. 471.14 2200. 1720. 2400. 524.08 1726. Se00. 577.02 1726. 2800+ 629.95 1726. 682,89 3000. 1726. 735.83 3200+ 1726. 788.77 3400. 1726. 3600. 841.70 1726. 3800. 694.64 1720.

947.58

# ANALYSIS; CONCEPT A1 (MUDIFIED)

NO.	OF	BOX	CARS	1	5.
1.1		lation a			1.1
N0 🖕	OF	LOC	DHOTIV	ES1	6.

		0H8 A-94	RETURN ON INVESTMENT %			
CAWS	SWITCHED/DAY	(* *1000) MPV INIT COST (1982 *)	4R METHO	SENSITIVI 1	TY SENSITIVITY 2	
	200.	-58-23 1875-41	-99,99	ee =99,99	40 -99.99 48	
	400.	-5.30 1875.41	=99.99	84 =00.00	44	
· .	600.	47.64 1875.41	- 98	ee - 98	44 - 98 44	
4	800.	100.58 1875.41	- 98	00 - 98	64 - 98 of	
1. A. A.	1000.	153.52 1875.41	- 98	00 -11-58	-11.55	
1	1200.	206.45 1875.41	- 98	44 -9.80	-9.78	
ана) Казар	1400.	259.39 1875.41	98	## #8.38	-8.36	
	1600.	312.33 1875.41	-1.01	00 -7.18	-7.16	
	1800.	365.27 1875.41	-2.40	66 =6.14	-6.12	
:	2000.	418.20 1875.41	-12.11	-5.21	-5.20	
	2200.	471.14 1875.41	-11-34	-4.38	-4.36	
	2400.	524.08 1875.41	-10.62	=3.61	-3.59	
	2600.	577.02 1875.41	-9.96	-2.90	-2.68	
•	2800.	629.95 1875.41	-9.35	-2.24	-2.22	
- -	3000.	682.89 1875.41	-8.77	-1.62	-1.60	
	3200.	735,83 1875,41	-8.23	-1.04	-1.02	
	3400.	788.77 1875.41	-7.71	48	47	
	3600.	841.70 1875.41	-7.22	.04	.06	
	3800.	894.64 1875.41	-6.75	.55	•57	
	4000.	947.58 1875.41	-6.30	1.03	1.05	

ANALYSIS: CONCEPT A1 (MUDIFIED)

NO. OF BOX CAPS : 6.

NO. OF LUCOMUTIVES: 6.

	0%B b−94	RETURN ON INVESTMENT %			
CARS SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSILIVITY	
	NPV INIT COST			S	
	(1982 \$)			•••	
200.	-80.47 2071.72	-99 <b>.</b> 99 ##	<b>"33"3</b> 3 49	-99.99 00	
400.	-27.53 2071.72	-99.99 **	-99.99 00	-99.99 en	
600.	25,41 2071,72	-15.52 00	- 98 44	= 98 04	
860.	78,34 2071,72	- 98 04	• 98 4*	- 98 88	
1000.	131.28 2071.72		-1.09 49	=1.10.00	
1200.	184.22 2071.72	- 98 80	-11.09	- 11.07	
1400.	237,16 2071,72	<b>- 9</b> 8 trtr	-9,56	-9.54	
1600.	290.09 2071.72	-,98 00	-8.30	-8.28	
1800.	343.03 2071.72	-1.01. **	-7.22	-1.20	
2000.	395+97 2071+72	=1.82 ##	-6.27	-6.29	
2200.	448,91 2071,72	-12.30	-5,41	-5.3s	
2400.	501.84 2071.72	-11.58	=4.54	-4.62	
2600.	554.78 2071.72	-13.91	-3.92	-3.90	
2800.	607.72 2071.72	+10,29	-3,26	-3.24	
3000.	660,66 2071,72	-9.72	-2+64	-2.62	
3200.	713.59 2071.72	=9,17	-2.05	-2.03	
3400.	766.53 2071.72	-8.66	-1.50	<b>-1.</b> 48	
360.0 •	819.47 2071.72	=8.17	- 97	<b>-</b> Q.4	
3800.	872.41 2071.72	-7.70	-,47	<b>*</b> ,46	
4000.	925.34 2071.72	-7.26	• 0 ()	• (12	

~

a.

FIN

### SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

### System Description

The series motors concept is based on the use of standard dynamic brake techniques using unmodified traction motors. The traction motor fields, having been separated from the armatures, are connected in series with each other across the main generator. Traction motor excitation is controlled by using the main generator field to control the voltage, and therefore the current, applied across the fields.

The single ESU with increased capacity flywheel machine identified in Concept A1 (modified) will be applied to this concept; however, a power supply, now required for the flywheel machine field, will be taken from an ESU-driven alternator.

A simplified system schematic is shown in Figure E-3.

### System Costs

### 1. Initial Locomotive Modification

An estimate of the locomotive modification cost is given in Table E-1.

### Table E-1

### COST OF LOCOMOTOVE MODIFICATION FOR SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

Element	Cost, \$		
Switchgear	5,000		
Jumper cables	4,000		
Control modifications	15,000		
Installation labor	15,000		
Miscellaneous	5,000		
Total	44,000		

### 2. Boxcar Installation

The boxcar installation cost will be the same as Concept A1 (modified) except that an ESU-driven alternator is required at an estimated cost of \$6,000, giving a total boxcar installation cost of \$161,000.



### Annual Costs and Credits

#### Locomotive

The locomotive maintenance costs will be the same as those for Concept A1, except for the following:

- (a) The additional maintenance cost allowed for the electronic equipment will not be required.
- (b) The additional maintenance cost allowed for the field power supply alternator will not be required.
- (c) An allowance of \$200 per year will be made for the maintenance of the additional contactors and control equipment required.

Therefore, the maintenance saving becomes \$0.06 per car switched.

The fuel consumption is reduced compared to other concepts due to the elimination of the diesel-engine-driven field power supply alternator. The fuel saving for this concept is estimated at 0.016 gal/car switched.

2. Boxcar

The maintenance cost of the boxcar will be the same as that for Concept A1 (modified).

### Economic Analysis

The preceding data were input to the FESS economics program. The results are contained in the pages that follow.

For the typical locomotive usage, the series motors concept shows an ROI that is less than 5 percent, the actual figure being dependent on the ratio of boxcars to locomotives. It is clear, however, that this concept, in common with the other flywheel options, is not economically attractive.

# FLYWHEEL ENERGY STURAGE SMITCHER

## ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT YARD DATA

CAPS SWITCHED PEH DAY	: 200 <b>4</b> 000.
AVERAGE CAP WEIGHT	: 50. TONS
NU. OF LOCOMOTIVES	: 2 6.
FUEL SAVING (GAL/Car So)	• <b>. . . . . . . . . .</b>
LIFE OF PPOJECT	1 20 YEARS

## INITIAL INVESTMENT SUMMARY (1978 %) -- PER UNIT

LOCOMOTIVE MODIFICATION	<b>: 44000.</b> • 11/10 - 11/14
PROVISION OF HOX CAP	<b>\$ 35600</b> .
PROVISION OF SESU	:126900.

# CHANGE IN ANNUAL COSTS AND CHEDITS (1978 +)

LOCOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE	: 21.000	PER CAR	SWITCHED
ESU MAINTENANCE	: -1600.	PER HUX	CAP
FUEL SAVING	1 2+3520	PER CAL	SHITCHED

### SUITARY OF FESS FORMETCS

# ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS COLCEPT

# NO, OF HUX CARS : 1.

E-30

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 2.

		0+53 <b>A=94</b>	RETUR	N ON INVES	5188EBUT *	
CARS	SWIICHED/DAY	₩PV INT CUST ₩PV INT CUST (1982 5)	4R METHOD SI		SENSTIVIT)	· · ·
						-
	200+	42+6/ 314+36	<b>₩ 4 9 6</b>	<b>58+5</b> 0	-8•22	
+ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	490.	107.57 314.36		<b>−</b> 2, <b>1</b> 0	-1.86	
	690 <b>.</b>	1/2,4/ 314,36		1.74	1,97	
·	800.	237.38 314.36	-2.91	4.67	<b>4.9</b> 0 mile	
	1000.	302.28 314.36	<b>₩ • 61</b> •	7-13	1.36	
· · ·	1200.	367.18 314.36	1.42	9 <b>.</b> 30	5.54	
	1400.	432.08 314.36	3.27	11.29	11.52	
	1600.	496.99 314.36	5.00	13.13	13,37	
	1800.	561.89 314.30	6.65	14.88	15.12	
	2000.	626.79 314.36	8.22	16.56	16.88	
	2200.	691.69 314.36	9.75	16.19	15.43	A second second second
· ·	2400.	756.60 314.36	11.24	19.77	20.01	· · · · · ·
· · ·	2600.	821.50 314.36	12.71	21.33	21.57	
	2800	886.40 314.36	14.16	22.87	23.11	
	3000.	951.30 314.36	15,59	24.39	24.63	
	3200.	1016.21 314.36	17.02	25.90	26.15	
	3400.	1081 11 314.34	18.45	27.41	27.66	
÷	360A.	1146:01 314.36		29.92	29.17	
	3600-	1219 01 314 24	21 31	29 # 76 30 44	5.491.0 30.50	
		121V#71 - 314#30 	-1#J] 35 72	<u>ງປອ</u> 4449 ຫຼາຍໂຮ	20 21	1 A.
	99 L7 L7 L7 L7 A	1/10+22/ 1944-10		31 4 70	36661	

ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CUNCEPT

NO. OF BOX CARS : 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 3.

E-3

		0HH A-94	HETUPH ON INVESTMENT &			
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ X1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
ан. 1917 - Ал		NPV INIT COST		1	2	
		(1982 \$)				
· ·	200+	42.67 369.91		<b>-</b> 9 <b>+</b> 52	-9-23	
	400.	107.57 369.91	-10.35	-3,32	-3,08	
	600.	172,47 369,91	-6,93	<b>3</b> 6	.59	
	800.	237,38 369,91	-4.34	3.14	3.37	
	1000.	302.20 369.91	-2-18	5.45	5468	
	1200.	367.10 369.91	-,29	7.47	7.76	
	1400.	432.0H 369.91	1.42	9+30	9.53	
	1600.	496.99 369.91	3.00	11.00	11.23	
	1800.	561.89 369.91	4.50	12.59	12.62	
	2000.	626.79 369.91	5.92	14.11	14.34	
	2200.	691.69 369.91	7.28	15+56	15.80	
	2460.	756.60 369.91	8.61	16.97	17+81	
	2600+	821.50 369.91	9.91	18.35	15,58	
	2800.	886.40 369.91	11.17	19.69	19,93	
	3000.	951.30 359.91	12.42	21.02	21.26	
	3220.	1016.21 369.91	13.65	22.33	22.57	
	3400.	1081.11 369.91	14.87	23+63	23.87	
· · · ·	3600.	1146.01 369.91	15.09	24.92	25.16	
	3800.	1210.91 369.91	17.31	26.20	20,45	
	4000.	1275.82 369.91	18.52	27.49	21.13	

(\* 1

# ANALYSIS: SEPIES MOTOPS CONCEPT

. .

### NO. OF HOX CARS : 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 4.

			0MB 9-94	PE	TURN ON INVEST	≪E⇔T %	:
(	CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(6 41000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	£
	-		NPV INIT C (1982	OST %)		2	
,	•	200.	42.67 425.	45 <b>- 9</b> 8 88	-10+37	-10+09	
÷.		400.	107.57 425.	45 -11.29	-4.33	-4,09	800 L
-		600	172.47 425.	45 -7.99	- 78	- 55	
. I.	÷.,	800	237.38 425.	45 -5.51	1.89	2.11	
		1000.	302.28 425.	45 -3.45	4.09	4.31	
	2 L	1200.	367.18 425.	45 -1.67	6.00	6+23	
		1400.	432.08 425.	4506	7.72	7.95	
	÷ .	1600.	496.99 425.	45 1.42	9.30	9.53	2
		1800.	561.89 425.	45 2.80	10.78	11.01	
		2000.	626.79 425.	45 4+11	12+18	12.41	
		2200.	691.69 425.	45 5.37	13+52	13,75	and the second
		2400.	756.60 425.	45 6.57	14.81	15.04	
	1. 19.1	2600.	821.50 425.	45 7.75	16.06	10.24	
		2800.	886.40 425.	45 8.89	17.27	17.51	
	10 A.	3000	951.30 425.	45 10.01	18.46	18.70	
		3200.	1016-21 425.	45 11.11	19.63	19.87	
		3400.	1081.11 425.	45 12.20	20.79	21.03 -	
		3600.	1146.01 425.	45 13.27	21.93	22+17	
		3800.	1210.91 425.	45 14.34	23.06	23.39	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		4000.	1275.82 425.	45 15.40	24.19	24+43	1

 $\mathcal{L}$  is the second s

SUMMANY OF FESS ECONOMICS	
ANALYSIS: SEFIES MOTORS CONCEPT	n an Allanda ann an Allanda an Allanda an Allanda. An Allanda An Allanda
NU. OF POX CARS : 1.	
NO. OF LOCOMUTIVES: 5.	

E-33

ł

	$()$ 5 in $\Delta = \Omega A$	RET	LIPM CIRA THAVEST	hart ¥
CARS SWITCHED/DAY	(\$ ×1000)	4H METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SEUSTITUTY
	VPV INIT COST († 1982)			2
200.	42.67 481.09	98.99	-11+19	=10.63
400.	107.57 481.00	-12.10	-5.19	·=+ + 96
600	172,47 481,00	-8,88	-1.74	-1,51
800.	237.38 461.00	-6,49	.83	1.06
10000	302.28 481.00	=4.52	2.95	3.17
1200+	367.18 481.00	-2.8	4.78	5.6t
1400.	432.00 481.00	-1.28	5.41	t . 54
1600.	496.99 401.00	•12	7.41	t . 14
1000.	561.89 481.00	1.42	9.31	9.53
2000.	626.79 401.09	2.65	10.62	16.85
2200.	691.69 481.00	3.82	11.87	12.10
2400.	756.60 401.00	4.94	13.06	13,24
2600.	821.50 481.00	50.0	14.22	4.45
2800.	386.40 481.00	7.97	15.34	15.57
3000.	951.30 481.00	8.10	16.43	16.67
3260.	1016-21 461-00	9.11	17.50	11.74
3400.	1081.11 481.09	10.09	18.55	18.70
3000.	1146-01 (481-00)	1107	19.59	17.13
a state a	1210-91 00 451-90	12.93	2(.61	20.05
4006.	1275.82 401.00	18.98	51.05	23.44

•		(	$c_{\rm eff} = c_{\rm eff} + c_{\rm$
			an an an African an Anna an Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna A
SU-MARY OF	FESS FCONDETCS	en e	
AHALYSIS: SEE IFS	INTURS COLCEPT		
NO. OF ROX CARS	1.	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	
NO. OF LOCONOTIVES:	and and an and a second se		
CARS SWITCHED/DAY	이어런 A=94 (0001초 분) vPV IVIT COST (1982 %)	RETURN ON INVE 48 METHOD SENSITIVIT 1	X SEHSIJIVITA SIMENT &
200• 400• 600 <u>-</u> 800•	42.57 536.55 107.57 536.55 172.47 536.55 237.35 536.55		-11.47 -5.71 -2.35 +15

ISING COURSES

ANALYSIS: SEHIFS MOTORS CONCEPT

NU. OF HOX CAES : 2.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 2.

÷

1	0003 A=94		3 A-94	RETURN ON INVESTMENT &				
	CARS	SWITCHFD/DAY	(%)	(1000)	48 METHOD	SENSTITUTY	SENSITIV	TTY
l			NPV	HALL CUST		1	2	
Į	ti e e			(1982 +)				
1		200 <b>•</b>	20.43	517.62	98 **	98 94	98	0 0
		400.	85.34	517.62	<u>~1.01 98</u>	-7.25	<b>*</b> 6₊96	1. St. 19
1	а.	600.	150,24	517_62	-10,37	-3,33	-3.08	. · · ·
		860.	215.14	517.62	-7.80	-,58	- 33	
ľ		1000.	280.04	517.62	-5.75	1.62	1.86	
	e i se	1200.	344.95	517.62	=4 e () ]	3.49	3.72	4 
	· · · ·	1400.	409.85	517.62	-2.47	5.14	5.37	
	a de la composición d Parte de la composición	1600.	474.75	517.62	-1.08	6.63	6.67	
		1800.	539.65	517.62	•21	8.01	25.0	
		2000.	604.56	517.62	1 = 42	9.30	9.54	
		.9655	669.46	517.62	2.56	10.53	10.75	
	1 1 Nov. 1	2400.	734.35	517.62	3.65	11.69	11.93	• • • • • • •
		2600.	799.20	517.62	4.70	12.81	13.05	
		5900.	864.17	517.62	5.72	13.89	14-13	•
		3000.	929.07	517.62	6.70	14.94	15.18	
1	8 T	3200.	993.97	517.62	7.67	15.97	16.21	
	6. State 1997	3400.	1058.87	517.62	8.61	16.97	17.21	
	1.1	3600.	1123.78	517.62	9.54	17.96	18.20	
		3000.	1138.68	517.62	10.45	18.93	19.17	
		4000.	1253.58	517.02	11.35	19.89	29.13	·

		а. — А.	

x,

i e

	SULMARY	OF FESS	ECOLOHICS.
AUALYSISI	SEPTES	MOTOHS	CONCEPT
NO. UF 30	CAHS	: 2.	

NO. OF LOCUMOTIVES: 3.

		ONB A-94	RETURN ON INVESTMENT &			
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	(% ×1000) ₩ <b>PV</b> INIT COST (1982 %)	4H METHON	SENSITIVITY 1	SENSI <b>I</b> IA SENSIIIA	
	200+	20+43 573+16	98 **	-,98 **	98 **	
	400.	85.34 573.16	S 98 - **	-7.91	-1+62	
	600	150,24 573,16	-11.05	-4.07	-3,82	
	800.	215 14 573 16	-8.55	-1.39	-1.14	
	1000.	281.04 573.16	-6.57	.75	.99	
	1200.	344.95 57.3.15	-4.88	2.56	2.19	
	1400.	409,85 573.16	<b>-3.4</b> 0	4.15	4 • 3 P	
	1600.	474.75 573.16	-2.05	5,59	5.82	
÷	1800.	539,65 573,16	82	6.91	7.14	
	2000.	604.56 573.16	•33	8.14	8.37	
	2200.	669.46 573.16	1.42	9.30	9,54	
5 - S.	2400.	734.35 573.10	2.45	10.41	10.64	
	2600.	799.26 573.16	3.45	11.47	11.70	
	2800.	864.17	4.40	12.49	12.72	
	3000.	929.07 573.16	5.33	13.48	13.71	
· .	.3200.	993.97 573.16	6.23	14.44	14.68	
	3400.	1058.87 573.16	7.11	15.38	15.61	
e angere	3600.	1123.78 573.16	7.97	16.30	16.53	
	3800.	1188.68 573.16	8.82	17.20	17.44	
•	4000.	1253.58 573.10	9.65	18.08	18,32	

ANALYSIS: SERIFS MOTORS COLCEPT

NO. OF BOX CAHS : 2.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 4.

E+37

		0NH A=94		FETURN ON INVESTMENT 9			
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	. (s) X	10005	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
		PV	INIT COST		- · · · 1	2	
			(1982 %)	•		1. 1999 a. 1	
			80 T			•	
·	200.	20.43	628 71	<b>~</b> ●98 <sup>%}6</sup>	98 44	<b>−</b> , 9 H 44	
	400.	85.34	628+71	°≈98 <sup>88</sup>	-A+50	=B+SS	
	600.	150,24	628,71	-11_67	-4,73	₩ <b>₩</b>	
	800.	215.14	628.71	-9.22	-2.10	-1.86	
	1000.	280.04	628.71	-7.28	-•02	-22+	
	1200.	344.95	628,71	-5.64	1.74	1.97	
•	1400+	409.85	628,71	-4.20	3.20	3.52	:
	1600.	474.75	628.71	-2.91	4.67	4.90	
	1800.	539.65	628.71	-1.72	5.95	° 6.°18	
	2000.	604.56	628.71	61	7.13	7.35	
1911 - 11 <sup>1</sup>	2200.	669.46	628.71	.43	8,25	8.48 -	· ·
	2400.	734.36	626.71	1.42	9.30	9.54	
	2600.	799.26	628.71	2.36	16.31	10.55	
and a star	2800.	864 17	628.71	3.27	11.29	11.52	
	3006.	929.07	628.71	4.15	12.22	12.46	:
	3200.	993.97	628.71	5. <b>∂</b> 0 ≈	13.13	13,37	
	3400.	1058.87	628.71	5.83	14.02	14.25	
	3600	1127.75	626.71	6+65	14.58	15.12	• •
1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	3800.	1188.05	628.71	7.44	15.73	15.97	
	4000.	1253.58	626.71	d•22	10.56	10.00	
			• •	•			
		0188 A-94		RETURN ON INVESTMENT S			
---------	--------------	-----------	-----------	------------------------	---	-------------	------------
CARS	SWITCHED/DAY	( % X	1000)	4R METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
•		NPV	INIT COST		1	2	- 7
			(1982 \$)		Maria da Cara d		• • • •
	200.	20.43	654.25	- 98 88	-,98 **	98 **	
	400.	85.34	684.26	<b>**</b> 98 **	-9.03	-8.75	
, · · ·	600	150.24	684.26	-12,21	-5,32	-5,07	
	800	215.14	684.26	-9.81	-2.74	-2.50	
	1000.	280.04	684.26	-7.92	70	-,47	
	1200.	344.95	604.20	-6.32	1.01	1.25	
	1400.	409.85	684.26	-4.92	2.51	2.75	
	1600	474.75	604.26	=3.65	3.86	4.09	
	1800.	539.65	684.26	-2.51	5.10	5.33	•
	2000-	604.56	684.26	-1.44	6.24	6,47	
	2200	669.45	684.26	- 44	7.32	7,55	
	2400-	734.30	684.26	.51	8,33	d • 57	
	2600.	799.26	684.26	1.42	9.30	9.54	
	2800.	864.17	684.20	2.29	10.23	10.47	
÷ .	3000-	929.07	684.26	3.13	11.13	11,36	
	3200	991.97	684.26	3.94	12.00	12.23	
	3400	1058.87	684.26	4.73	12.84	13.07	
	3600-	1123 78	684.26	5.50	13.66	13.90	<b>`</b> ,
	3800.	1188.68	684.26	6.25	14.46	14.70	
. *	4000+	1253.58	684.26	6.99	15.25	15.49	1 - A

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5+

NO. OF BOX CARS : 2.

ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONUMICS

(

1		
	and the second	in the second
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<ul> <li>A state of the sta</li></ul>	

1.00

ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

NO. OF BOX CARS 2.

E=39

NV+ C	DE DUX CANG	• 6•					
NO. (	OF LOCOMOTIVES	1 6a					
			A = Q /	RETHE	IN ON INVEST	MFRIS	
2010	SWITTOUTO/DAY	14 41	14-74 1401	48 METHON S	FNSTTIVITY	SENSITIVIT	¥ wa
ÇANS	3*1 CRE 07 0*1	apy It	VIT COST		······································	2	
		(	1982 \$)				
						-	
	200.	20.43	739.81	- 96 · **		is <b>=}9</b> 8 ₽₽	· ·
	400.	85.34	739.81	98 **	-9+52	-9+53	
<i>′</i> .	600.	150,24	739,81	-8.02 **	-5,86	-5,61	
	800.	215.14	739.81	-10.35	-3-32	-3.08	
	1000.	280.04	739.81	-8,49	-1.32	-1.0.9	
	1200.	344.95	739.81	-6.93	• 36	•59	
-	1400.	409.65	739.81	-5+56	1.82	6.5	
	1600.	474.75	739.81	-4.34	3.14	3.37	
	1800.	539.65	739.81	-3+55	4.34	4.57	
	2000.	604.56	739.81	-2.18	5,45	5.68	
	2200.	669.46	739.81	-1.21	6.49	6.72	
	2400.	734.36	739.81	-• 5 <sup>0</sup>	7.47	7,70	
	2600.	799.26	739.81	•58	8.41	8.64	
	2800.	864.17	739.81	1.42	9.30	7.53	
	3000.	929.07	739.81	2.23	10.17	10.40	
	3200.	993.97	739.81	3.00	11.00	11.23	
e de la compositione de la composit	3400.	1058.87	739.81	3.76	11.80	12.04	
a - 1	3600.	1123.78	739.81	4.50	12.59	12+82	
	3800.	1188.60	739.61	5.21	13.36	13,59	
1.2014	4000.	1253.58	739.81	5.92	14.11	14+34	
	2						1 A.

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

NO. OF BOX CAPS : 3. NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 3.

		0H8: A=94	RET	URN ON INVESTI	AEINT S
CARS	SWITCHED/CAY	(6 ×1000) NPV INIT COST (1982 %)	4R METHUD	SERSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY 2
	200.	-1.80 776.42	-99,99 **	=90.99 **	-15.52 **
	400.	63.10 776.42	· <del>·</del> ∗98.44	=11+62	-11,25
	600 e	128,00	-1,01 99	-7,25	-0,96
	800.	192.91 776.42	+11+41	-4.45	-4.19
	1000.	257.81 776.42	_ <b>=9+</b> 43	-2-33	<b>~2.</b> 08
	1200.	322.71 776.42	=7.80	-,58	-,33
	1400.	387.61 776.42	-6.40	•93	1.17
	1600.	452.52 776.42	-5.15	2.27	2+5)
	1800.	517,42 776.42	-4.01	3.49	3.72
	2000.	582.32 776.42	-2.97	4.61	4.84
	<b>22</b> 00•	647.22 776.42	-2+00-	5.65	5.00
	2490.	712.13 776.42	-1.08	6.03	6.67
	2000.	777.03 7/6.42	<b>→+21</b>	7.56	<b>7 - 6</b> 0
	2800.	841.93 776.42	•62	8.45	8.69
	3000.	906.83 776.42	1.42	9.30	9.54
	3200.	971.74 770.42	2.19	10.12	10.36
	3400.	1036.64 776.42	2.93	16.92	11-15
	3500.	1101.54 775.42	3.45	11.69	11.43
	3800.	1166.44 770.42	4.36	12.44	1 Cott
	4000.	1231.35 176.42	5.04	13.10	13.41

SUMMARY	CF	FESS	ECONOMICS

ANAL Y	SISE	SEPTES	MOTORS	Co	NCEF	۲.
					1.1	
		1 M				

÷.

۲

NO. OF BOX CARS : 3.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 4.

			Û146	4-94	RETU	JPN ON INVEST	HEINT S	
	CARS	SWITCHEDIDAY	( <u>5</u> - X )	1000)	4H METHOD	SENSITIVITY	SENSITIVITY	
			i4₽V °	1011 CUST (1982 %)		1	2	
		200	<b>-1</b> 50	831 97	-90 00 88			·. ·
		400.	-1900 63.10	431.97	- 7.77 HV	-11.80 66	-33,00 -11 65	
		600.	03#140 - 136 0.5	071477	- 00 00			
		0000	120.00	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			······································	
		1005 	145.41			#4 • 94	<b>*</b> 4+68	4v.
	1.1	1000	25/ 11	- 031,97		= C , 8 2	C , D	
	10 A.	1200.	355.11	H31.97		= 1 + 1.3		
		1400+	387.51	831+97	-6,93	• 35	.59	
		1600.	452.52	831+97	=5 • 7 1	1.66	1.90	
		1800.	517.42	831.97	-4.69	2.85	3.69	
		2000.	582.32	.831,97	-3.59	3.95	4.18	
·		2200.	647.22	631.97	-2.64	4.96	5.20	
		2400.	712.13	831.97	-1.74	5.92	6.15	
		2600.	777.03	831.97	90	6.82	7.06	
		20110	841.93	631.97	- 1 U	7.68	1.92	-
		3000	906:33	831.97	-68	8.51	d. 74	
		3200.	071.74	831.97	1-42	0.30	9.54	
		3400.	1076 64	· 631.97		10.07	10.30	
		3606. 	1,000+04	201821 231 G7	2.03	10401	11 / 6	
		- 2545110年 11日日の人口	UU1.+⊃≏	5 <b>3 1 • 7</b> !	C.003	LiteOT	[]] + 1(2) 2 2 - 2	
		50V().	1100.44	031.97	1001	11074	LL+F7	
		4000+	1531.32	1431.97	4.11	12.24	16.40	

.

(

.

ſ

E-4 1

....

(

SUMPARY.	0p	FESS	F CONDA	105
----------	----	------	---------	-----

З.

5+

5	ljt∘¥∕	71	Y	-OF	FI	<u>:</u> SS	-t:	CORDE	105	
---	--------	----	---	-----	----	-------------	-----	-------	-----	--

201040916	t up	・FEラン	P. CHEER 1	[ <b>(, '</b> 5 -

ALIALYSIS: SEPTES MOTORS CONCEPT

NU. OF BOX CAPS

NO. OF LOCOPOTIVES:

CARS SWITCHEDZDAY

1000. 1200. 1400. 1600. 1800. 2000. 2200. 2400. 2600. 2800. 3000. 3200. 3400. 3600.

3800.

4000.

PETURN ON INVESTMENT Ί. SENSITIVITY K METHOD SENSITIVITY

10.72

11.40

\*\*

10.95

11.64

| Ú*  | 11 A=94   |   |
|-----|-----------|---|
| (*) | ×1000)    | 4 |
| NPV | TEIT COST |   |

887.52

887.52

1166+44

1231.35

|   | 1.1 | 200+     |
|---|-----|----------|
| 1 |     | - 40h.   |
|   |     | <br>600. |
|   |     | 800.     |

| 1811 (1982 3)<br>(1982 3) | ,.        | 1            | · •      |
|---------------------------|-----------|--------------|----------|
| 887.52                    | -99.90 ** | -99,99<br>88 | -33.     |
| 897.52                    | 98 **     | -2.37 44     | -11,     |
| 887.52                    | - 99 88   | -8,12        | -7       |
| ດລາ້ເວ                    | _13_30    | · · _ ຮ້າວ   | <u> </u> |

|      | 55 - <b>=1</b> +86 | 897+52 |         | ** -99*94 | - ** -33+32       |
|------|--------------------|--------|---------|-----------|-------------------|
|      | 63,10              | 897.52 | -•98    | ## -2.37  | 44 -11.27         |
| . •  | 128,00             | 887,52 | - 99    | ## -8,12  | -7.83             |
|      | 192,91             | 887.52 | -12.28  | -5.39     | -5.13             |
|      | 257.81             | 887.52 | -10.36  |           | -3.09             |
|      | 322.71             | 887.52 | -8.78   | =1+63     | =1,39             |
|      | 387.61             | 887.52 | -7.43   |           | . 06              |
|      | 452.52             | 897.52 | -6.23   | 1.11      | 1.35              |
|      | 517.42             | 887,52 | -5.14   | 2.27      | 2.51              |
|      | 582.32             | 887.52 | -4.15   | 3.34      | 3,58              |
|      | 647.22             | 887,52 | -3.22   | 4.34      | 4.57              |
| 1.00 | 712-13             | 887.52 | -2.35   | 5,27      | 5.50              |
|      | 777.03             | 887.52 | -1.53   | 6.15      | 6.3h              |
|      | 841.93             | 887,52 | 75      | 6,99      | 1.22              |
|      | 906.83             | 887.52 | • 0 0 • | 7.79      | સ <sub>+</sub> 02 |
|      | 971.74             | 887.52 | .72     | 8,56      | 8.79              |
|      | 1036.64            | 887.52 | 1.42    | 9,30      | 9,54              |
|      | 1101.64            | 947.52 | 2 40    | 10.02     | 10.26             |

2.75

3.38

| <br> |
|------|
|      |
|      |
| <br> |
|      |

| 0. OF LOCOMOTIVES |                     |                            |               |            |
|-------------------|---------------------|----------------------------|---------------|------------|
| ARS SWITCHED/DAY  | ()≫9<br>(a ≭<br>NPV | рт94<br>1000)<br>INIT COST | 4R. METHO     | RETI<br>20 |
| 200.              | -1.80               | (1982 \$)                  | -99.99        | <br>Ф.Ф    |
| 400,<br>600,      | 63.10               | 943.07<br>943.07           | -+98<br>-1.24 | 6 6<br>6 6 |
| 800               | 192,91              | 943.07                     | -10.18        |            |

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943.07

943+07

+77

1.42

2.05

2.67

322.71

387.61

452.52

517.42

582,32

647.22

712.13

777.03

841.93

906.83

971.74

1036.64

1101.54

1106,44

1231.35

## 0. OF LO.

1200+

1460.

1600.

1800.

2000.

2200-

2400.

2600.

2800.

3000.

32001

3400.

3600.

3800+

4000+

SUMMARY UP FESS ECONDITIES ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT : 3. NO. OF BUX CAPS

INH ON INVESTORET & SENSITIVITY 1 2

SEMSTIVITY

-33-53 -93.99 44 -1.31 00 -2.32 \*\* -8.59 -8.22 -5.81 ~5.55 -3.77 -3.52 -10.77 -9.22 -2.10 -1.86 -7.89 -.67 -.43 .83 -6.71 . . 60 -5-64 1.74 1.97 2.79 3.02 -4.66 -3.76 3.76 3,99 4.67 4,90 -2.91 5.53 5.76 -2.10 6.58 6,35 -1-34 7.36 -.61 7.13 7.88 8.11 • 09

8.84

9.54

10.21

10.87

8.60

9.30

9,98

10+64

ш

-43



SUMMARY OF FESS ECONUMICS ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT NO, OF BOX CARS : 4.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 4.

. ...

. 1

" ·

|                            |                | 0 <sup>to</sup> te | <u>4</u> =94           | HE.              | TURN ON INVESTI | 时间的             |   |
|----------------------------|----------------|--------------------|------------------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|---|
| CARS                       | SWITCHED/DAY   | ( <del>5</del> 8   | 1000)                  | 4R METHOD        | SENSITIVITY     | SEDSITEVETY     |   |
|                            |                | (1Þ∛               | In 11 COST<br>(1982 %) |                  | 1               | 2               |   |
|                            | 200.           | -24,04             | 1035,23                | <u>9</u> 9,99 88 | -99,99 66       | -99,00 44       |   |
|                            | 400.           | 40.07              | 1635.23                | 9 ##             | <b>₩</b> ,98.00 | <b>÷</b> ,98 ## |   |
| $(1,1) \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$ | 600.           | 105.77             | 1035+23                | 93 88            | -10-26          | -9.95           |   |
|                            | 800.           | 170.67             | 1035+23                | <u>=1.01</u> 00  | -7+25           | -6+96           |   |
|                            | 1000,          | 235 57             | 1035,23                | -11,98           | -5,07           | -4 81           |   |
|                            | 1200.          | 300,48             | 1035.23                | -10.37           | ÷3,33           | -B.0A           |   |
|                            | 1400.          | 365.35             | 1635.23                | <b>_</b> 9,00    | – 1∎ <u>86</u>  | -1.01           |   |
|                            | 1600.          | 430.28             | 1032-53                | 7.80             | <b>-</b> •58    | <b>-</b> •33    |   |
| •                          | 1800.          | 495.18             | 1035.23                | =6+73            | •57 ~           | •H1             | : |
|                            | 2000.          | 560.09             | 1035.23                | -5.75            | 1.62            | 1.96            | 1 |
|                            | *00 <b>2</b> 5 | 624.99             | 1035.23                | -4. H5           | 2.59            | 2.82            |   |
| * *                        | 2400.          | 689.89             | 1, 35.23               | -4:01            | 3.49            | 3=72            |   |
|                            | 5000.          | 754,79             | 1935.23                | <del>~3,22</del> | 4. 3.3          | 4 • 57          |   |
|                            | 580 <b>0</b> • | 819.70             | 1035.23                | <u>+</u> 2+47    | 5.14            | 5+37            |   |
|                            | 3600.          | 884.60             | 1035.23                | <b>1∎7</b> e     | 5.90            | 6.14            |   |
|                            | 3200-          | 949.50             | 1035.23                | -1:08            | 6+63            | 0.87            |   |
| 1.1                        | 3400.          | 1014.41            | 1032.53                | <b>**</b> *42    | 7.43            | 7.57            |   |
|                            | 3600+          | 1079.31            | 1035.23                | • 21             | H∎dt]           | <b>0</b> ∎25    |   |
|                            | 3800 <b>.</b>  | 1144.21            | 1035.23                | ∎ <u>8</u> 2     | R.67            | <b>8∎9</b> 9    |   |
| $(1,1) \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$ | 4000.          | 1209.11            | 1035.23                | l, <b>,</b> 4 c  | 9,30            | 9≠54            |   |

сана с С стала с

ABALYSIS: SERIES BOTORS CONCLET

NU. OF BOX CARS : 4.

NO. OF LOCOMUTIVES: 5.

|      |              | (JMM A-94)               | PET            | URN ON INVESTI | EPI S       |         |         |
|------|--------------|--------------------------|----------------|----------------|-------------|---------|---------|
| CARS | SWITCHED/DAY | (% ×1000)                | 4R METHOD      | SENSITIVITY    | SELSITIVITY | 92 y    |         |
|      |              | NPV LET COST<br>(1982-5) |                | 1              | 2           |         |         |
|      | 200.         | -24.04 1090.78           | =99,99 #4      | -99,99,48      | -99,99 86   | · · · · |         |
|      | 400.         | 40.87 1090.78            |                | a,98 ¢₽        | -,98 44     |         |         |
|      | 600.         | 105.77 1090.78           |                | -10.57         | -10.24      |         |         |
|      | 800.         | 170+67 1090+78           | - <u>_</u>     | -7+59          | -7.30       |         |         |
|      | 1000.        | 235 57 1096 78           | -12,32         | -5,44          | -5,17       | 1       |         |
|      | 1200.        | 300.48 1090.78           | -10,72         | -3.72          | -3.46       |         |         |
|      | 1400.        | 365.38 1090.78           | -9.37          | -2.26          | -2-01       |         |         |
|      | 1600.        | 430.28 1090.78           | -8,19          | -1.00          | - 75        |         |         |
| * .  | 1800.        | 495,18 1090,78           | -7.13          | • 14           | .38         |         |         |
|      | 2000.        | 560.09 1090.78           | -6.17          | 1.17           | 1.41        |         |         |
|      | 5500.        | 624,99 1090,78           | -5,29          | 2.12           | 2.36        |         |         |
|      | 2400.        | 689.89 1090,78           | -4.40          | -3•01          | 3.24        |         | والمعار |
|      | 2600.        | 754.79 1090.70           | =3,69          | 3.84           | 4.07        | l       |         |
|      | 2800.        | 819.70 1090.78           | -2.95          | 4.63           | 4.85        | i u t   |         |
|      | 3000.        | 884,60 1090,78           | -2.25          | 5.37           | 5+61        |         |         |
| · ·  | 3200.        | 949.50 1090.78           | -1.58          | 6.09           | 6.32        |         |         |
|      | 3400+        | 1014.41 1090.78          | 94             | 6.78           | 7.01        |         |         |
| · ·  | 3600.        | 1079.31 1090.78          | -• 32          | 7.44           | 1.67        |         |         |
| 1    | 3800.        | 1144-21 1090.78          | • 27           | 8+08           | 8.31        | ÷ .     |         |
| 1    | 4000.        | 1209-11 1090-78          | <b>,85</b> ‴ ∕ | 8.70           | 8.93        | ÷.,     |         |

ANALYSIS: SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT

NO. OF BOX CARS : 4.

ŧ

NO. OF LUCOMOTIVES: 6.

4000.

UMH 2-94 CARS SWITCHEDZDAY (\$ X1000) NPV . INIT COST (1982 \$) 200. -24.04 1146.33 -99.00 04 400. 40.87 1146.33 9 44 105.77 1146.33 -.98 00 600. -.98 00 179+67 800. 1146+33 235.5% -11.35 \*\* 10001 1146.33 300.48 1145.33 1200. -11.05 1400. 365.38 1146.33 -9+72 430.25 1146.33 1600. -8.55 1146.33 -7-51 1800. 495.1H 2000. 560.09 1146+33 -6.57 624.99 -5,69 2200. 1146.33 -4.8-2400. 689,89 1146.33 2600. 754.79 1146.33 -4.12 -3.4ú 2800. 819.70 1146.33 -2.71 3000+ 884.60 1146.33 -2.05 3200+ 949.5U 1146.33 -1.43 3400+ 1014.41 1146.33 -.82 3609+ 1079.31 1146+33 3806. 1144.21 1146.33 -.24

1209.11

1146.33

RETURN ON INVESTMENT 9 48 METHOD SENSITIVITY SENSITIVITY 1 2

-99.99 00 -99,99 \*\* -.98 00 - 9H 04 -10.87-16.53 -7. f.? -7-91 -5.76 -5.51 -4.17 -3.H2 -2-64 -r. 39 -1.39 -1.14 -.27 =.03 **1**75 **.**99 1.69 1.92 2.55 2.79 3,38 3.61 4.15 4.38 4.88 5.12 5.59 5.82 6.26 6,49 5.91 1:14 7.53 1.17

14

0.37

+33

 $\epsilon$ 

# SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS

# ANALYSIS: SERIES MUTORS CONCEPT

NO. OF BOX CAPS : 5.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5.

E-47

|                  | i D.e                      |           |                 |            | •   |
|------------------|----------------------------|-----------|-----------------|------------|-----|
| 4                | ()14日 山田94                 | HET       | URIN ON INVESTM | ENT %      | . • |
| ARS SWITCHED/DAY | ( <u>s</u> ×1000)          | 4P METHOD | SENSITIVITY     | SENSTIVITY |     |
|                  | NPV INIT COST<br>(1982 \$) |           | 1               | 2          |     |
| 200.             | -46.27 1294.04             | -99,99 00 | -99,99 48-      | -99,99 68  |     |
| 400.             | 18.63 1294.04              | -15-52 98 |                 |            |     |
| 600.             | 83.53 1294.04              |           | -1.14 00        | -1.64 44   |     |
| 600.             | 148.44 1294.04             | 98 **     | -9.55           | -9.23      |     |
| 1000             | 213.34 1294.04             | -1.01 44  | -7.25           | -6 96      |     |
| 1200.            | 278.24 1294.04             | -12.35    | -5,47           | -5.19      |     |
| 1400+            | 343.15 1294.04             | -10.98    | -3.99           | -3.73      |     |
| 1600.            | 408.05 1294.04             | -9.79     | -2.72           | -2.47      |     |
| 1800.            | 472.95 1294.04             | -8.75     | -1.59           | -1.35      |     |
| 2000             | 537.85 1294.04             | -7.80     | - 58            | - 33       |     |
| .0055            | 602.76 1294.04             | -6.94     | • 35            | .59        |     |
| 2400.            | 667.66 1294.04             | -0.14     | 1.21            | 1.45       |     |
| 2600.            | 732.56 1294.04             | -5,39     | 2.01            | 2.25       |     |
| 2800.            | 797.46 1294.04             | -4.68     | 2.77            | 3.01       |     |
| 3000.            | 862.37 1294.04             | -4.01     | 3.49            | 3.72       |     |
| 3200.            | 927.27 1294.04             | -3.38     | 4.17            | 4.40       |     |
| 3400.            | 992.17 1294.04             | -2.77     | 4.82            | 5.06       |     |
| 3600.            | 1057.07 1294.04            | -2+18     | 5.45            | 5.68       |     |
| 3800.            | 1121.98 1294.04            | -1.62     | 6.05            | 6.28       |     |
| 4000.            | 1186.88 1294.04            | -1.08     | 6.63            | 6.87       |     |

(

SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS ANALYSIS: SEPIES MOTORS CONCEPT NO. OF BOX CARS : 5.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

|                                       | 0M8 A=94                  | RET                | FURN ON INVESTE   | AENT S               |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|-------------------|----------------------|
| CARS SWITCHED/DAY                     | : <sup>©</sup> (\$ X1000) | 4R METHOD          | SENSITIVITY       | SENSITIVITY          |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | NPV INIT COST             |                    | 1                 | 2                    |
|                                       | (1982-\$)                 |                    |                   |                      |
| 200.                                  | -46.27 1349.59            | <b>≈99,9</b> 9 ≬≬  | -99,99 **         | -99,99 88            |
| 400.                                  | 18.63 1349.59             | -15.52 **          |                   | - 98 crcr            |
| 600.                                  | 83.53 1349.59             |                    | • <u>1</u> •04 ** | -1,25 00             |
|                                       | 148+44 1349+59            | =•98 <sup>84</sup> | -9.81             | =9+49                |
| 1000.                                 | 213,34 1349,59            | • 99 er            | -7.52             | -7,23                |
| 1200.                                 | 278.24 1349.59            | =11.92.00          | -5.75             | = <del>-</del> - 4 + |
| 1400+                                 | 343.15 1349.59            | -11,26             | +4.29             | <b>→</b> 4 1;        |
| 1600+                                 | 408.05 1349.59            | -10.09             | -3+63             | -2.78                |
| 1800.                                 | 472.95 1349.59            | -9.05              | -1.92             | -1.67                |
| 2000.                                 | 537.85 1349.59            | <b>-8</b> •11      |                   | +.67                 |
| <b>5500</b> • 1                       | 602.76 1349.59            | -7.25              | • 40              |                      |
| 2400.                                 | 667.60 1349.59            | -6.47              | .85               | 1.09                 |
| 2600.                                 | 732.50 1349.59            | - 5.73             | 1.65              | 1,03                 |
| 2800.                                 | 797.46 1349.59            | -5.03              | 2.39              | 2.63                 |
| 3000.                                 | 862.37 1349.59            | -4.37              | 3.10              | 3.34                 |
| 3200.                                 | 927.27 1349.59            | -3.75              | 3.77              | 4 • 0 ]              |
| 3400.                                 | 992.17 1349.59            | -3+15              | 4 • 4 ]           | 4.65                 |
| 3600.                                 | 1057.07 1349.59           | -2.57              | 5.03              | 5.26                 |
| 3800.                                 | 1121.98 1349.59           | -2. 02             | 5.62              | 5.85                 |
| 4000.                                 | 1186-88 1349-59           | <b>−1</b> -49      | 5.20              | 5 - 4 -              |

|     |   | a da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arres<br>Arresta |                    |
|-----|---|--|--------------------|
|     |   |  |                    |
| Į.  |   |  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     | SUMMARY OF FESS ECONOMICS   |  | ·                  |
|     |   |  | · · · · ·          |
|     | ANALYSIST SERIES MOTORS CONCEPT   |  | · · · ·            |
|     | NO. OF BOX CARS : 6.  |  |                    |
|     |   |  | · · ·              |
|     | NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.  | 417  | •                  |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     |   | RETURN ON INVESTMENT &   |                    |
|     |   | 4K METMOU SENSITIVITT SEASITIVITY  |                    |
| I   | (1982 \$)   |  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     | 20068,50 1552,85  | -99,399 00 -99,995,88999,99 08 -   | - 12 J             |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     | 800. 126.20 1552.85   | ===203 °°° ====20 °° ====20 °°<br>==203 °° ===11+62 ===11°+260   |                    |
|     | 1000 191 11 1552 85   | - 98 00 -9,12 -6,80  |                    |
|     | 1200. 256.01 1552.85  | 1=01 ** -7-25 -0.96  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     | 1800 450 72 1552 85   |  |                    |
|     | 2000 515.62 1552.85   | -9.43 -2.33 -2.08  |                    |
|     | 2200. 580.52 1552.85  | -8.58 -1.42 -1.17  |                    |
|     | 2400. 645.42 1552.85  | -7.8033  |                    |
|     | 2000 710.33 1552.65   | =7∎OR •∠0 •44  | •                  |
|     | 3000. 840.13 1552.85  | -5.75 1.62 1.86  |                    |
|     | 3200. 905.03 1552.85  | -5.15 2.27 2.51  | н.<br>Н            |
|     | 3400. 959.94 1552.85  |  |                    |
|     | $\frac{1034.84}{1099.74}$   | =4+9 <u>1</u> 3+49 3+72<br>==3=28 4+96 4+29  |                    |
|     | 4000 1164.64 1552.85  | -2.97 4.61 4.84  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
|     | will the second s |  |                    |
|     |   |  |                    |
| . ! |   |  |                    |
|     | and the second  |  |                    |
|     |   |  | 11 (11)<br>11 (11) |

#### CHOPPER CONTROLLED DYNAMIC BRAKE

#### System Description

From the results obtained in this study, it is clear that energy savings are minimal at best, and negative at worst. The only positive benefit identified has been the saving in brake maintenance brought about by the use of electric, rather than friction, brakes. This saving could be realized by the use of a series chopper, as shown in Figure E-4.

In this scheme, full braking effort can be maintained to less than 1 mph. In conventional dynamic brake schemes (i.e., without a chopper), the braking effort falls rapidly at a relatively high speed (24 mph in a typical U.S. road locomotive). Available extended range features successively short out sections of the dynamic brake resistor, but this is not effective below approximately 10 mph. The chopper can be used to maintain the armature current and hence the braking effort at a sensibly constant level until the output voltage of the motors can no longer overcome the voltage drops in the circuit. This condition occurs at approximately 1 mph with four D77 traction motors that have a 62:15 gear ratio and a 40-in. diameter wheel.

#### System Cost

#### 1. Initial

The only initial cost is the modification of the locomotive, because the boxcar is no longer required. This modification has an ROM cost as shown in Table E-2.

#### TABLE E-2

#### COST OF LOCOMOTIVE MODIFICATION FOR CHOPPER-CONTROLLED DYNAMIC BRAKE

| Element                    | Cost, \$      |
|----------------------------|---------------|
| Chopper and resistor grids | 40,000        |
| Control modifications      | 15,000        |
| Jumper cables              | 4,000         |
| Installation labor         | 15,000        |
| Miscellaneous              | <u>10,000</u> |
| Total                      | 84,000        |
|                            |               |





Figure E-4. Simplified Schematic, Chopper-Controlled Dynamic Brake

#### 2. Annual Costs and Credits

The saving in brake maintenance will be higher for this concept because the dynamic brake is available for all stops. However, an allowance is required for the maintenance of the chopper, and an ROM estimate of \$1,000 per vear has been made. Therefore, the net saving in locomotive maintenance becomes \$0.059 per car switched.

#### Economic Analysis

The preceding data were input to the FESS economics program. The results are contained in the following pages.

For the typical locomotive, **it** can be seen that the ROI is 8.4 percent. Although this is significantly higher than the ROI for any other concept, **it** is still much too low to be worth considering.



ł

### FLYWHEEL ENERGY STORAGE SWITCHER

33

# ANALYSIS: CHOPPER CONTROLLED DYNAMIC BRAKE YARD DATA

| CARS SWITCHED PER DAY    | : 2004000.     |
|--------------------------|----------------|
| AVERAGE CAR WEIGHT       | 1 50. TONS     |
| NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES       | t 2 <b></b> 6. |
| FUEL SAVING (GAL/CAR SW) | .000           |
| LIFE OF PROJECT          | 20 YEARS       |

INITIAL INVESTMENT SUMMARY (1978 \$)--PER UNIT

| LOCOMOTIVE MODIFICATION | 1 | 84000. |
|-------------------------|---|--------|
| PROVISION OF BOX CAR    | : | . 0.   |
| PROVISION OF ESU        | ŧ | 0.     |

CHANGE IN ANNUAL COSTS AND CREDITS (1978 \$)

| LOCOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE | : : | 20.650 | PER | CAR | SWITCHED |
|------------------------|-----|--------|-----|-----|----------|
| ESU MAINTENANCE        | 1   | 0.     | PER | BOX | CAR      |
| FUEL SAVING            | t   | .0000  | PER | CAR | SWITCHED |

| €   |         |               |                            |               | - (       |                |          |
|-----|---------|---------------|----------------------------|---------------|-----------|----------------|----------|
|     |         |               |                            |               |           | t i s          |          |
|     | 14      |               |                            |               |           |                |          |
|     |         |               |                            |               |           |                |          |
|     | ·       | SUMMARY       | OF FESS                    | ECONOMICS     |           |                |          |
|     | ANAL    | YSISI CHOPP   | PER CONTR                  | OLLED DYNAMI  | C BRAKE   |                |          |
|     | NQ. (   | OF BOX CARS   | 1 1.                       |               |           |                |          |
|     |         |               | - • •                      |               | · · · ·   |                |          |
|     | NO      | OF LOCOMOTIVE | 5: 2.                      |               |           |                |          |
|     |         |               |                            |               |           |                | ·        |
|     |         |               | OM                         | 8 A-94        | RE        | TURN ON INVEST | MENT %   |
|     | CARS    | SWITCHED/DAY  | r (\$                      | X1000)        | 48 METHOD | SENSITIVITY    | SENSITIV |
|     | -       |               | NPV                        | INIT COST     |           | 1              | 2        |
|     |         |               |                            | (1982 \$)     |           |                |          |
|     |         | 200-          | 57.39                      | 212.10        | =10.84    | -1.84          | -3.84    |
|     | •       | 400           | 114.79                     | 212.10        | -5.75     | 1.62           | 1.62     |
|     |         | 600.          | 172.18                     | 212.10        | =2.24     | 5.38           | - 5.38   |
| · · |         | 800.          | 229.57                     | 212.10        | .60       | 9.43           | 8.43     |
|     |         | 1000.         | 286.96                     | 212.10        | 3.09      | 11.09          | 11.09    |
|     |         | 1200.         | 344.36                     | 01.515        | 5.35      | 13.50          | 13.50    |
|     |         | 1400.         | 401.75                     | 212.10        | 7.47      | 15.76          | 15.76    |
|     |         | 1600.         | 459.14                     | 212.10        | 9.49      | 17.91          | 17.91    |
|     |         | 1800.         | 516.54                     | 212.10        | 11.45     | 19.99          | 19.99    |
|     |         | 2000.         | 573.93                     | 212.10        | 13.36     | 22.02          | 22.02    |
|     |         | 2200.         | 631.32                     | 212.10        | 15,25     | 24.02          | 24.02    |
|     |         | 2400-         | 688.71                     | 212.10        | 17.12     | 26.01          | 26.01    |
|     |         | 2600          | 746 11                     | -212.10       | 10.00     | 27.99          | 27 00    |
|     |         | 2800          | 803 50                     | 212 10        | 20.97     | 20.07          | 20 07    |
|     | ÷       | 3000          | 0 V 3 4 3 V<br>9 4 A 9 0 0 | 212 10        |           | 21.06          | 27+71    |
|     | · . • • | 3000          | 010:00                     | <u>CICOLU</u> |           | 31070          |          |
| 1.1 | -*<br>- | 3200.         | 918.29                     | 616.10        | 24+00     | 33+71          | 33+97    |
|     | i i i   | 3400.         | 975.64                     | 212.10        | 20.54     | 35.99          | _35.99   |
| ľ   |         | 3600.         | 1033.07                    | 212.10        | 28.54     | 38.04          | 38.04    |
|     | 1       | 3800.         | 1090.46                    | 212.10        | 30.51     | 40.12          | 40.12    |
|     |         |               |                            |               | <b>m</b>  |                |          |

ANALYSIS: CHOPPER CONTROLLED DYNAMIC BRAKE

NO. OF BOX CARS 1

£,

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 3.

|         |              | QMB 4-94                                   | RET       | RETURN ON INVESTMENT % |                  |  |  |  |
|---------|--------------|--|-----------|------------------------|------------------|--|--|--|
| CARS    | SWITCHED/DAY | _ (*6 X1000)<br>NPV INIT COST<br>(1982 \$) | 4R METHOD | SENSITIVITY<br>1       | SENSITIVITY<br>2 |  |  |  |
|         | 200.         | 57.39 318.14                               | -1.20 **  | -6.66                  | ~6.66            |  |  |  |
|         | 400.         | 114.79 318.14                              | #8.84     | -1.69                  | -1-69            |  |  |  |
|         | 600.         | 172,18 318,14                              | -5.75     | 1.62                   | 1.62             |  |  |  |
|         | 800.         | 229.57 318.14                              | -3.32     | 4.24                   | 4.24             |  |  |  |
|         | 1000.        | 286.96 318.14                              | -1.24     | 6.46                   | 6.46             |  |  |  |
|         | 1200.        | 344.36 318.14                              | .60       | 8.43                   | 8.43             |  |  |  |
|         | 1400.        | 401.75 318.14                              | 2.29      | 10.23                  | 10.23            |  |  |  |
|         | 1600.        | 459.14 318.14                              | 3.86      | 11.91                  | 11.91            |  |  |  |
|         | 1800.        | 516.54 318.14                              | 5.35      | 13.50                  | 13.50            |  |  |  |
|         | 2000.        | 573.93 318.14                              | 6.77      | 15.02                  | 15.02            |  |  |  |
|         | -2200.       | 631.32 318.14                              | 8,15      | 16.49                  | 16.49            |  |  |  |
|         | 2400.        | 688.71 318.14                              | 9.49      | 17.91                  | 17.91            |  |  |  |
| • *     | 2600.        | 746.11 318.14                              | 10.80     | 19.30                  | 19.30            |  |  |  |
|         | 2800.        | 803.50 318.14                              | 12.09     | 20.67                  | 20.67            |  |  |  |
|         | 3000.        | 860.89 318.14                              | 13.36     | 22.02                  | 22.02            |  |  |  |
| · · · · | 3200.        | 918.29 318.14                              | 14.62     | 23.36                  | 23.36            |  |  |  |
| 1.1     | 3400.        | 975.68 318.14                              | 15.87     | 24.69                  | 24.69            |  |  |  |
|         | 3600.        | 1033:07 318.14                             | 17.12     | 26.01                  | 26.01            |  |  |  |
| · '     | 3800.        | 1090.46 318.14                             | 18.37     | 27.33                  | 27.33            |  |  |  |
|         | 4000.        | 1147.86 318.14                             | 19.62     | 28.65                  | 28.65            |  |  |  |

ANALYSIST CHOPPER CONTRULLED DYNAMIC BRAKE

4 .

NO. OF BOX CARS 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES:

|      |              |         |           | and the second |             |                   |  |
|------|--------------|---------|-----------|--|-------------|-------------------|--|
|      |              | 0MB     | A-94      | RETURN ON INVESTMENT 🕏   |             |                   |  |
| CARS | SWITCHED/DAY | (\$ X   | 1000)     | 4R METHOD  | SENSITIVITY | SENSITIVITY       |  |
|      |              | NPV     | INIT COST |  | 1           | 2                 |  |
|      |              |         | (1982 \$) |  |             |                   |  |
|      | 200.         | 57.39   | 424.19    | -3.38 **   | +8.52       | <del>-</del> 8•52 |  |
|      | 400.         | 114.79  | 424.19    | +10,84   | ÷3,84       | -3.84             |  |
|      | 600.         | 172.18  | 424.19    | -7:98  | 77          | = • 77            |  |
|      | 800.         | 229.57  | 424.19    | -5-75  | 1.62        | 1.62              |  |
|      | 1000.        | 286.96  | 424.19    | 73,88  | 3.63        | 3.63              |  |
|      | 1200.        | 344.36  | 424.19    | -2,24  | 5,38        | 5,38              |  |
|      | 1400.        | 401.75  | 424.19    | • 76   | 6.97        | 6.97              |  |
|      | 1600.        | 459.14  | 424.19    | ●60  | 8.43        | 8,43              |  |
|      | 1800.        | 516.54  | 424.19    | 1.88   | 9,80        | 9.80              |  |
|      | 2000.        | 573.93  | 424.19    | 3.09   | 11.09       | 11,09             |  |
|      | 2200.        | 631.32  | 424.19    | 4•24   | 12.32       | 12.32             |  |
|      | 2400.        | 688.71  | 424.19    | 5,35   | 13.50       | 13,50             |  |
|      | 2600.        | 746.11  | 424.19    | 6.42   | 14.65       | 14,65             |  |
|      | 2800.        | 803.50  | 424.19    | 7.47   | 15.76       | 15.76             |  |
|      | 3000.        | 860.89  | 424.19    | 8.49   | 16.85       | 16.85             |  |
|      | 3200.        | 918.29  | 424.19    | 9.49   | 17.91       | 17.91             |  |
|      | 3400+        | 975.68  | 424.19    | 10.47  | 18.96       | 18,96             |  |
|      | 3600+        | 1033.07 | 424.19    | 11.45  | 19.99       | 19.99             |  |
|      | 3800.        | 1090.46 | 424.19    | 12.41  | 21.01       | 21.01             |  |
|      | 4000.        | 1147.86 | 424.19    | 13.36  | 22.02       | 22.02             |  |

ANALYSIS: CHOPPER CONTROLLED DYNAMIC BRAKE

NO. OF BOX CARS : 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 5.

E-57

|            |              | Омв           | A-94      | RETURN ON INVESTMENT % |              |             |
|------------|--------------|---------------|-----------|------------------------|--------------|-------------|
| CARS SWITC | SWITCHED/DAY | ( <u>*</u> *) | 1000)     | 4R METHOD              | SENSITIVITY  | SENSITIVITY |
|            |              | NPV           | INIT COST |                        | 1            | 2           |
|            |              |               | (1982 \$) |                        |              |             |
|            | 200.         | 57.39         | 530.24    | 98 00                  | -9+91        | ~9.91       |
|            | 400.         | 114.79        | 530.24    | -12.31                 | -5.42        | -5.42       |
|            | 600.         | 172,18        | 530.24    | <b>*9</b> ,59          | -2,50        | -2,50       |
|            | 800.         | 229.57        | 530,24    | -7.49                  | <b>*</b> •25 | -,25        |
|            | 1000.        | 286.96        | 530.24    | <b>*5</b> .75          | 1.62         | 1.62        |
|            | 1200.        | 344.36        | 530.24    | -4+24                  | 3.25         | 3.25        |
|            | 1400.        | 401.75        | 530.24    | -2.88                  | 4.70         | 4.70        |
|            | 1600.        | 459.14        | 530.24    | -1.63                  | 6.04         | 6.04        |
|            | 1800.        | 516.54        | 530.24    | <b>*</b> •48           | 7.27         | 7.27        |
|            | 2000.        | 573.93        | 530.24    | .60                    | 9.43         | 8.43        |
|            | 5500.        | 631.32        | 530,24    | 1.63                   | 9.53         | 9.53        |
|            | 2400.        | 688.71        | 530,24    | 2.61                   | . 10.58      | 10.58       |
|            | 2600.        | 746.11        | 530.24    | 3,55                   | 11.58        | 11.58       |
|            | 2800.        | 803,50        | 530.24    | 4,46                   | 12.56        | 12.56       |
|            | 3000.        | 860.89        | 530.24    | 5,35                   | 13.50        | 13.50       |
|            | 3200.        | 918,29        | 530.24    | 6-21                   | 14.42        | 14.42       |
|            | 3400.        | 975.68        | 530.24    | 7.05                   | 15.32        | 15.32       |
|            | 3600.        | 1033.07       | 530.24    | 7.88                   | 16020        | 16.20       |
|            | 3800.        | 1090.46       | 530.24    | 8.69                   | 17.06        | 17.06       |
|            | 4000.        | 1147.86       | 530.24    | 9.49                   | 17+91        | 17.91       |

 $C = \{C_{i}, \ldots, C_{i}\} \in \{C_{i}, \ldots, C_{i}\}$ 

(

. . . .

# ANALYSISI CHOPPER CONTROLLED DYNAMIC BRAKE

NO. OF BOX CARS : 1.

NO. OF LOCOMOTIVES: 6.

|  |              | ÓMB     | A-91      | RETURN ON INVESTMENT % |             |             |  |
|--|--------------|---------|-----------|------------------------|-------------|-------------|--|
| CARS   | SWITCHED/DAY | (% X)   | 1000)     | 4R METHOD              | SENSITIVITY | SENSITIVITY |  |
|  |              | NPV     | INIT COST |                        | 1           | 2           |  |
|  |              | • • • • | (1982 \$) |                        |             | -           |  |
|  | 200.         | 57.39   | 636.29    | - 98 00                | -11.01      | -11 01      |  |
| - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 1   | 400.         | 114.79  | 636.29    | -1.20 99               | =6.66       |             |  |
|  | 600.         | 172.18  | 636.29    | +10.84                 | =3.84       |             |  |
|  | 800.         | 229.57  | 636.29    | 8 - 84                 | -1,69       | -1.60       |  |
|  | 1000.        | 286.96  | 636.29    | 7.18                   | -08         | -1009       |  |
|  | 1200.        | 344.30  | 636.29    | =5.7%                  | 1.62        | 1.62        |  |
|  | 1400.        | 401.75  | 636.29    |                        | 2.99        | 2.00        |  |
|  | 1600.        | 459.14  | 636.29    | -3.32                  | 4.24        | 4.24 ~~     |  |
|  | 1800.        | 516.54  | 636.29    | =2.24                  | 5.38        | 5,38        |  |
|  | 2000.        | 573.93  | 636.29    | -1.24                  | 6.46        | 6.46        |  |
|  | 2200.        | 631.32  | 636.29    |                        | 7.47        | 7.47        |  |
|  | 2400.        | 688.71  | 636.29    | •60                    | 8.43        | 8.43        |  |
| н на селото<br>На селото селот<br>На селото село | 2600.        | 746.11  | 636.29    | 1.46                   | 9.35        | 9,35        |  |
|  | 2800.        | 803.50  | 636.29    | 2.29                   | 10.23       | 10.23       |  |
| 1  | 3000.        | 860.89  | 636,29    | 3.09                   | 11.09       | 11.09       |  |
|  | 3200.        | 918.29  | 636.29    | 3.86                   | 11.91       | 11.91       |  |
|  | 3400.        | 975.68  | 636.29    | 4.61                   | 12.72       | 12.72       |  |
|  | 3600.        | 1033.07 | 636.29    | 5,35                   | 13.50       | 13.50       |  |
|  | 3800.        | 1090.46 | 636.29    | 6.07                   | 14.27       | 14.27       |  |
|  | 4000.        | 1147.86 | 636.29    | 6.77                   | 15.02       | 15.02       |  |

• • •

E-58

\$FÌ⊡